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Our products i
are all around you.

On your walls.

In your car.

Under your carpet and floor tiles ~

or wrapped around your lunch. Denorative
They're in the wires and cables that connect you to 2:&2:::‘

the worid, in the clinics and hospitals that keep us all
heaithy, and in the factories, construction sites and
offices that drive our economy.

And if you're holding a printed copy of this report,
they could even be in your hands.

Our teams of experts make many of the high-performance,
highly specialised chemical products that bind the modern
world together, using water-based solutions that eliminate
carbon emissions. We serve customers in a huge range of
markets, whose own end-products are a vital part of all our
daily lives. And we're growing fast, by fulfilling our purpose:
creating innovative and sustainable polymer solutions for
the benefit of customers and society.
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Who we ars and what we do

Synthomer at a glance

We make high-performance, highly specialised
chemical products to serve customers all over
the world, and we’re a leading supplier of
sustainable water-based polymer solutions
which help eliminate harmful emissions.

Through our differentiated portfolio, our
wide customer base, and our track record of
outstanding innovation, we’re delivering on
our strategy: driving long-term sustainable
growth organically and through acquisitions.

12021 Highlights

Underlying performance statement

The Group's performance management uses Underlying performance to plan for, control and assess the performance of the Group. Underlying performance
ditfers from the statutory IFRS performance as it excludes the effect of Special tems, which are dgetailed in note 4 16 the financial statements. The Board's view is
that Underlying performance provides additionat ciarity for the Group's investors and staksholders and <o It is the primary focus of the Group's narrative reporting.
Where appropriate, IFRS performance inclusive of Speclal ltems is aiso described. References to 'unit margin' and ‘margin’ ere used In the commentary oh
Underlying perforrnance.

Unit margin {or margin) is calcuiated on selling price iess variable raw materia! and ogistics costs.

EBITDA is calculated as aperating protit belore depraciation, amortisation and Special items.

Free Cash Fiow is the movement in net debit before financing activities, foreign exchange and the cash impact of Special ttams, asset dispasals and businass
combinations.

02 i Synthomer plc
Annual Report 2021



| Our four divisions:

O u r —g’l_a—ba I reaCh Performance Elastomers

Delivering water-based Nitrile Butadiene
Rubber latex (NBR) and Styrene Butadiene
Rubber latex (SBR} products.
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Functional Solutions

Delivering acrylic and vinylic water-pased o
dispersions. : §
Industrial Specialities 2

Delivering speciality chemical additives and
non-water-based chemistry for a broad range
EMEA of applications as weli as laminates & films.

Acrylate Monomers -
Supplying acrylic monemers to our European §
Functional Solutions Division and to third- §
party customaers. B
: B
North America Share of revenue 3
Asia by end market
A 232% Hoealth & Protection
B 11.6% Carpat, Compounds & Foam
. C 63% Paper & Packaging '
D 14.3% Coatings |
, E 8.4%  Construction |
i F 7.6%  Technical Textiles -
i G 61% Adhesives !
H 20% Ol&Gas g
|  85% Polymer Additives 2
! J 63% Laminates & Fims 2
| K 17% Coated Fabrics H
L 4.0% Acrylate Monomers §
=
£2.3bn 4,600+ 37
revenue | employees : production sites
2020: £1.6bn ! 2020: 4,200+ 2020: 38
i .
(4] g
6,000+ 12 34%
.. P 3
customers - principal end markets reductlon inScopetand2 |2
| GHG emissions since 2019 ;
Successfully integrated | Launched our Vision ' Announced proposed ‘
our OMNOVA acquisition { 2030 roadmap to a more $1 billion acquisition
ahead of schedule - sustainable future to form our Adhesive

. Technologies division
See page 21 See page 18 ; See page 14

Synthomer plc
Annual Report 2021 | 08



Who we are and what we do

Our business model

Innovation, sustainability and customer service
are at the heart of our business model, which
draws on our unique teams and assets to deliver
high-performance speciality chemical products
and create value for all our stakeholders.

Global demand...
...for serving
diverse global

markets...
...shapes our

strategy... ...through

; four divisions
w

across three
continents...
...for lower- | Over 6,000
carbon, more { To drive | } customers in:
circular products | [0 drivelongterm 1o ¢ protaction
- sustainable growth . = Carpet, Compounds & Foam
...for construction ‘ organically and :gir;igsl:ackaging Performance
and urbanisation through a_CQU|ISlt|.OInS ; » Construction Elastomers
I through six priorities: = Technical Textiles Functional
*» Adhesi
...Jor heaith and * Rasearch and developmant . O &62;955 Soluti
hygiene products 27 eehnical expertise to * Polymer Additives utions
exploft new consumer markets 4 | aminatee & Films Industrial
5 « Driving efficiancy and » Coated Fabrics : P
-..for adheSI.ves axceflence through opsrations ~ * Acrylate Monomers Sp@Clalltles
and packagmg  Capacity utiisation I \ Acrylate
R * Investment in capacity A | Monomers
. , = Bolt-on acqulsitions o |
- » Transformational transections o ‘ B _ ‘ -~
I '
~ Strong relationships with """
. - ; customers in highfy L T
2‘:\:?&"; ‘;z‘::::;’ Y i differentiated markets Growing
Und st . i Global technical F— in‘Efﬂgtbname:hmh
nderstanding the : ! srvicas teams s and reach, wi
macro trends Entr:preé'\wzal k s : ! increasingly batanced
3 peopia and cullure, . sales across Amencas, |
" underpinned by our valugs ; A EMEA and Asia
. i Imtegrated risk strategyandrisk : !
RETTPRRRTE * managementprocesses . Foous
Track record of Integratng ;;};ﬁcc;n ::é
acauisitions business excellence

e : Strong relationships with
. raw materials’ suppliers [
and a resilient !
... supplychan .-

04 Synthomer plc s
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.-.and fulfilling
our purpose...

...creating
innovative and
sustainable
polymer solutions
for the benefit
of customers
and society

Global
leadership
in water-based
polymer solutions

. Vision 2030, :
“. ouw ESGroadmap -
Our
valuas
Safety, health and
anvironment
Accountability

Irtegrity
Teamwork

.-.by making
specialist, high-
performance
products...

} Over 14 product lines
including:

Waetsr-based Nitrile latex and

Performance Materials products !

for the healthcare, carpet, foam
and paper markats.

Acrylic and vinylic water-based
disparsions for the coatings,
construction, technlcal textiles,

adhesives and ol & gas markets,

Speciality chernical
additives and non-water-
based chemistry for a
broad range of applications
from polymer aaditives

and polymer manufaciure
to emerging materiais.

Acrylate monomars that
improve the performance
characteristics of polymar
formulations including
latex and soluticn
copolymers and cross-
Inkable polymer systems,

Highly
differentiated portfolio

Improved products with
Improved margins

|
|

\
i
'
[

...that add value
for customers...

Responding to
consumer needs

l in thousands

|
{
i

|

of applications

Outstanding global
and divisional
innovation

Focusing on product
sustainability benefits

designed for use
in customer-
specific products to meet
consumar needs

Closa technical services

...and create
value for all

stakeholders.

- £522.2m
2020 £259.4m
EBITDA

- 4,632
| 2020: 4,601 employess
Empioyees in 24 countries

| £243.7m
2020: £211.3m

i payroll

- £28.9m

2020: £25.8m
RAD spend

 43%
_ of new products with
- sustainability benefits

!

' £1.6bn

| 2020; £1.2bn

i spend with suppliers

£73.56m
2020: £12.8m
i retumed to shareholders

| £86.4m

i 2020: £31.4m
corporate tax paid

E partnerships with customers i
*., to aavise on applications, -

sustaingbifty and

Synthomer ple
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Who we are and what we do

What we make ~ and who we make it for

Differentiation. Specialisation. Sustainability.

And high performance. We're able to lead the way
in water-based polymers because of the breadth
and diversity of the end markets we serve, our
strong relationships with more than 6,000
customers, and our commitment to innovate and
deliver the high-performing products they need.

We draw on our unique business strengths...

< Global leadership in

water-based polymers

. which eliminate the need
for the volatile organic

', compounds in solvent-

' based products 7 .o

Cutting-edge
: Innovation focused on
: consumer needs including
' specialisation and 3
sustainability

Powerful connections

¢ 1o customers through 3
: our technical service and
research teams '

Worldwide reach
through innovation
and manufacturing sites
in Asia, EMEA and
Naorth America

O 6 Synthomer pic
Annual Report 2021



...1o serve over 6,000 customers
in diverse, strategic end markets:

Health &
Protection
23.2% of revenue

Carpet,
Compounds &
Foam

11.6% of revenus

Paper &
Packaging
6.3% of revenue

Coatings
14.3% of revenue

Construction
8.4% of revenue

Technical Textiles

7.6% of ravenue

Adheslives
6.1% of revenue

Ofl & Qas
2.0% of revenue

Polymer
Additives
8.5% of revenue

Laminates &
Films
8.3% of revenue

Coated Fabrics
1.7% of revenue

Acrylate
Monomers
4.0% of revenue

We are a wortld lsader in Acrvionitrie Butadiene Rubber (NBR
latex) for glove-dipping and associated healthcars industries.
Gloves made from our speciality NBR Iatax snsure a combination
of high tensile strength, good elongation and relaxation.

Our speclalist High-Solid Styrene Butadiene (HS-SBH), Styrene
Acrylic {84} ana SBR-compounded products provide high-
performance binders for the backing of carpet and artificial turf,
and as gel foam elastomers for floor coverings, footwear and
matiresses.

We are Europe’s largest manufacturer of SBR and SA high-
performance binders for graphic, packaging and speciality paper
coatings. Our products help customers meet stringent regulatory
requirements and comply with rules on food contact.

We develop speciality binders to meet the performance

and regulatory requirements of 1he architectural and

industrial coatings market, using acrylic and vinylic copolymer
dispersions that are low Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs),
low odour and alkylphenol ethoxylate (APEQ) frea.

Our dry and liquid speclallst polymers provide binding or
bonding properties for many construction applications,
including mortar modification, liguid-applied waterproofing
membranes, ceramic tile adhesives, and flooring adhesives.

Our products ars used In a broad range of woven and
non-woven applications, including to bind mesh insulation
systems in technical textiles, to provide the binder in distribution
layers in non-woven nappies, and in decorative laminates.

Our specialist polymers bond dispersions and bind industrial
and consumagr adhesives, meeating our customers’ stringent
technical and regulatory requiraments.

We are a global leader in speciality polymeric sofutions that
promote wellbore stability and driling sfficiency in the most
challenging high-temperature, high-pressure and high-
differantial pressure operating environments.

We make a broad range of speciafist polymer solutions,
including suspending agents for FVC manufacture,
thermosetting polyester resins for powder coatings,

and thermal stabilisers in polyamide engineering plastics.

We produce decorative laminates for residential
and commercial interdors and recreational vehicles,
and performance films for luxury flooring, signage
and industrial applications.

Wa manufactyre high-performance polyurethane and vinyl coated
fabrics used in seating and trims in cars, buses, boats and ships,
and in healthcare, hospitality, education and corporate offices.
Our range includes our industry-leading PreFixx protective finish.

We make acrylic acid and acrylate monomers which improve
the performance characteristics of thousands of polymer
formulations including fatex and solution copolymers and
cross-linkabls polymer systems.

...by making speciality products

used in thousands of applications

that consumers use every day:

* Medical and examination gioves
= Industrial and fabric-supported gloves
+ Medical devices and balloons

+ Carpst

» Tufted carpets

* Woven carpets

* Naadle falt carpets

* Graphic paper
* Packaging

» Speciality paper
* Paper sdditives

* Architectural coatings
+ Masonry coatings

* Intumescent coatings
+ Metal coatings

* Mortar modification
* Waterproofing
* Flooring adhesives

» Giass fibre
» Roofing
* Decorative laminates

* PSA packaging tapss
* PSA speciality tapes
* PSA labels

= Caulks and sealants

¢ Oll and gas cementing
» Drilling fluid additives

¢ Elastomeric madifier for

= Automotive carpets

* Gel foam elastomer
backings

« Badding foam

» Footwsar foam

= Sport surfaces
+ Additives for
construgtion

¢ Technical fibre
* Footwear
= Hyglene and wipes

* Packaging
speclalities

* Release coatings

* Tape saturants

* Tyra cord

thermoptastics and friction
» Reinforcing resins for rubber

compounds

* Luxury flooring
* Bathroom fittings
» Kitchen fittings

= Recreational vehicle fittings

* Durable surfaces for
retail and domestic
applications

* Automeotive and bus seating

« Marine seating and trim

* Healthcars, hospitality, education

and corperate seating

+* Compounds and ¢uring pastes

* Monomers
= Antioxidants

Synthomer plic
Annual Report 2021
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Who we are and what we do

Chair’s statement

Our people have risen to the unique demands
and delivered exceptional performance in 2021 -

the Board expected and planned for this,

and it has allowed us to carefully invest for
future growth, maintaining prudent leverage.

08
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“In 2021, the Board

focused on the

-significant demands of

the business as well as
succession planning,
business excellence
and delivering on the

- OMNOVA acquisition.

The acquisition of
Eastman’s Adhesive
Resins business was a
strategic and important
step and we thank |
shareholders for their
support.’

Caroline Johnstone
Chair

Exceptional performance,

built on robust foundations

Oy business ended the year with record
resuits, and with the foundations in place

for growth that will enable us to create value
nto the future. This was made possible by
two things: further delivering our consistent
strategy of iong-term sustainable growth
organically and through acquisitions,
including the $1 billion acquigition of
Zastman's Adhesive Resing business which is
expacted to complete in March 2022; and the
resilience and skill cf our employess, who
have continued to put our values into pract ce
riespite the ongoing challenges of the



COVID-18 pandemic. | would like to thank
them all personally, and also on behalf of the
Board. The safety of emplcyees is our first
priority and the Board oversaw progress
towards achiaving top quartile performance
across all our sites during 2021.

- commercial teams. The results also show that

the integration of CMNOVA - Synthomaer's
largest acquisition at the time - is complete,
waoll ahead of schedule and is delivering
highar gynergies than originally announced.
The synergies outlined have ali been realised,

. despite the COVID-19 pandemic making it

A smooth leadership transition,

and a consistent strategy

in June, we announced the appointmant of
Micheel Willome as our new Group Chief
Executive Officer, after Calum Maclean
announced his intention to step down at the
start of tha year,

| was delighted to welcome Michael in
November, following an extensive search
process which identified him as a high-
calibre, proven business laader with
experionce in the global speclality chemicals
industry and a strong track record of driving
growth (ses page B4 for details). The smooth
transition since his appointment has
confirmed that Michaal has the right
capabilities to lead Syrthomer through the
next phase of its development. He has
already demonstrated his appetite for organic
and inorganic growth, a passion for building
our teams and developing our people, and an
Instinctive understanding of the importance of
sustainability to our future.

This seamless handover was due in no small
part to Calum, and on behalf of the Beard

| would ke to thank him for his outstanding
leadership over the past seven years. | extend
the same thanks to Stephen Bennett, our
Chiet Financial Officer, who in August
announced his intention to stand down.

As we discuss on page 107, we look forward
to welcoming Lily Liu this summer,

Calum and Stephen have helped transform
Synthomer into a diversified, differentiated,
global speciality chemicals pusiness, and the
beneftts can be clearly seen in the Company’s
performance. They have built a strong ;
platform for continued success, and leave |
behind a highty experienced Jeadership team, |
We wish them both the very best.

QGrowth that supports our purpose

One of the most exciting developments of
the year was October’s announcement of our
proposed acquisition of Eastman's Adhasive
Resing, which will bring clear benefits, as
discussed on page 14. It s a great example
of Synthomer's growth strategy in action,
and I'd like to comment on two points,

First, the Company’s ability 1o dalhver

growth. The year's results show that

across the business, our teams have

worked superbly to create arganic growth -
through innovation, capacity utilisation, and a
continucus focus on mesting strong customer
demand. This was despite the challenges
presented by disruptions in the global supply
chain, which were navigated with great skil |
by our procurement, cperations, and |

difficult for new teams to meet In parson.
This is & tribute to everyone involved,
especially colleagues who have joined
Synthomer from OMNOVA, the teams who
made the transaction In the first place, and
the management and finance teams

who oversaw the integration process.

My second point is realfy a question. What is the
purpose of growth? Synthomer does not seek

growth for its own sake. Of course, we wantito
' keap craating value for shareholders, But we

also want to embed sustainability into every
aspect of the business, to help Synthomer
play a greater role in creating a fairer, more
sustainable future and respond to the climate
emergency. Growth, with the scale it brings,
makes us more resillent. It enables us to invest
in our people, our Infrastructure, and our assets,
and means we are batter able to deliver on our
purpose of creating Innovative and sustainable
polymer solutions for the bensfit of customers
and society. That is why the Board spent a lot
of time on another highlight of Synthomer’s

- year — the launch of our Vislon 2030 roadmap

1o & more sustainable business.

Regulatory fine

During 2018, the European Commission {the
Commission} initiated an nvestigation into
practices relating to the purchase of styrene
monomer by several companies, inclugding
Synthomer, oparating in the European
Eoonomic Area. The Company has and will
cortinue to fuliy co-cperate with the
Commission during its investigation. Based on
the information avaliable and the resulting
assessment of the expectsd outcome of the

* investigation a provision of £57.2 million has

heen made in relation to this case.

{ A more diverse, incluaive Synthomer,

underpinned by sound governance

The full detalls of our Vision 2030 roadmap

- which includes our commitment to net zero
as well as expanding on Synthomer’s
longstanding work on safety, heatth and

. envirenment (SHE) - can be found in our

Sustainability report on pages 42 to 68.

We have, for the first time, fully integrated this
into our Annual Report so that stakeholders
can understand how sustainability is
inextricably linked to our financial
performance.

Along with the rest of the Board, |
whotsheartedly endorse Vision 2030.

it is a huge step forward, strengthening
{he business and helping Synthomer meet

~ the rising expectations of stakehokders over

the next decade. The Board has beer fully
involved in the developrent of Vision 2030

. and will be regularly revisiting and challenging
the targets, and where we can be boider
and go faster, in & balanced way.

I At the sams time, we know that launching
Vision 2030 is not an end In itself. We have more
to do in many amas — including ona particularly
close to my heart, which is making our culture
more diverse, inclusive, and supportive of the
employses who drive our success, with further
| equality of career development cpportunities.
We have made progress in many areas — and
. there is a clear appetite from everyone in the
{ business to enhance our ability to plan and
develop people’s cargers to ensure
their engagement and success, and our
business grewth.

Like every other aspect of our strategy,

Vision 2030 must be underpinned by sound
governanca - and | talk more about this in my
introduction to the Governance report, on
page 90, where | also thank Dr Just Jansz for
his valued service to the Board, and welcome
Roberto Gualdoni, who Joined Synthomer as
an independent Non-Executive Director in
July.

Dividend of 21.3 pence

The Board has recommended a final ordinary
dividend of 21.3 pence (2020: B.8 pance) per
shara, consistant with our dividend policy, this
exceptional Increase reflecting the unique
vear of profitability.

Carocline Johnstone
Chair

| 3 March 2022

Looking ahead/
priorities for 2022

« Oversee the completion of our
acquisition of Eastman’s Achesive
Resins fo create our new Adhesive
Technologles division

* Ensure that Adhesive Technologies is
effectively integrated into Synthomar,
and synergies are being captured

* Continue to focus on nitriles capacity
expansion and investment

* Oversee our leadership team transition
and succession planning

i | * Further drive our Vision 2030
sustainability agenda and oversee
progress on Tagk Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)

* Continue to engage with Investors and

all stakeholders

Synthomer plc |
Annual Report 2021
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Who we are and what we do

Chief Executive
Officer’s review

Exceptional resuits, built on a platform
of underlying growth — and with great
opportunities ahead.

‘When | look beyond the
most obvious figures,

I see a more important

narrative. That’s a story

- of consistent growth

- built on the core assets

of this business.’

~Michael Witlome
Chist Exacutive Officer

1 O Synthomer plc
Annual Report 2021



Building on an outstanding year
to consistently deliver growth

and value

Synthomer has delivered record results

this year. But in a way, those results don't

tell the full story of our Cornpany. When | look
beyond tha most obvious figures, | see a more
Important narrative. That's a story of consistent
growth built on the core assets of this business.
Today Synthomer enjoys loadership positions
in & wide range of altractive, giobal markets,
based on a broad portfolio of diffarentiated
speciality progucts, We have proven expertise
in acquiring and Integrating new businesses.

Furthermore, our powerful sustainability
credentials, including our leagership in
watar-based polymers in our dispersions
business and our sustainability innovations in
areas such as Nitrile latex for medical gloves,
or lower carbon footprint products in our
Functional Solutions division mean that we
are weli positioned in this vitally important
area. Qur platform for future growth is strong.

The exciting thing for me is that there is more
we can do in all these areas. The unique
conditions of the past two years, and
particularly those affecting our Performance
Elastomers division, may not come back for a
fong time — but our underlying position means
we will have the opportunity to strengthan our
business further in the future. Cur innovative,

sustalnable products perform a vital rolg in
people's ives — and our strategy of investing
in organic and inorganic growth in attractive
end markets has consistently created value
for all our stakeholders over saveral years,
and given us a platform to continue to deliver
in the years ahsad.

Excellent EBITDA performance in all
divisions, creating a platform for the future
All our divisions have achieved record EBITDA
growth in 2021 as described in our divisional
reports on pages 26 1o 37. The strongest growth
cams from Performance Elastomers, which
grew EBITDA by 136.9%, mainly as a result of
the unprecedented, and oneg-off, dermnand for
Nitrile latex causad by the COVID-18 pandermnic
in 2020 and 2021 — though other areas of the
divisian also grew their profitability. At the same
time, Functional Scluticns grew by 48.8%,
and Industrial Spacialities by 18.9%.

Acrylate Monomers has retumed to profitabiliity
with £35.3 million EBITDA. Overall, Group
EBITDA grew by 109.8% to £522.2 milllon
and resulted in an EBITDA margin of 22.4%

of net sales (2020: 15.8%).

This outstanding performance meant we
further strangthenad our balance sheet.

We succaessfully deleveraged 10 0.3x EBITDA,
through strong Free Cash Flow and the equity
placing, creating the conditions to pursue
further inorganic and organic growth
opportunities, and add further value.

The most significant strategic event in
2021 was our acquisition of the Eastman's

! Adhesive Resins business, which on

compietion will creata our new Adhesive
Technologies division.

Thig is a highly complementary opportunity
with a strong focus on attractive end markets
such as packaging, hygiene, bullding and
construction, and high-performance tyre
additives. k will enable us to further develop,
manufacture and sell tackifying resins and
additives for adhesive products and,

as we describa on page 14, it will sxpand
our portfolio and our geographical reach,
especially in tha US, ane of our focus markets.

People and teams making the difference
Everything we have achieved this year is

the rasull of the agility, dedication and
commitment of Synthomar people, all over
the world.

it is ona thing to Invest In attractive markets
and technologies, as the business has done
consigtently over the years - but that does not
proditce strong performance on its own.

That is down to people going the extra distance,
time and again, despfte chalienges such

as the COVID-19 pandemic, or significant raw
material and energy price increases, or supply
chain disruption, or unprecedented demand.
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Robust investment case in line with global megatrends

Globally Growing
differentiated proportion of
chemical speciality
company chemicals

Strong organic
and inorganic
growth drivers

Resilient
demand

Sustainable and
responsible
operator

Attractive
financial metrics

Accelerating

urbanisation

Demographic and
social change

Climate change and
sustainability

Shifting economic
power
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Who we are and what we do

Chief Executive Officer's review continued

i have met outstanding people and teams
evarywhere | have bgen — and | ook forwarg
10 working with therm on future opportunities
based on the success achigved s0 far.

As a speciality chemicals player with 37
production sites workdwide, our first priority
is to continue our journey towards becoming
a top quartile work gnvironmant in temmns of
personal and process safety. We are on the
right frack, but we stili have further to go

to ensure that our safety performance §
consistent across the business, site by sile.

Safety remains bath g core valus and a
strategic priority for Synthomer, and we
giscuss our pertormance in detai; on
pages 54 to 57.

| would also like to mention another
priority, ‘people development’. We will
spend significant time and effort on ihis
area, creating an excellent ernvironment
for all stages of people's protessionat life,
starting with our woll-established and
highly successiul graduate programme,
our talent development inftiative for more
expeariencad employeas, and serior
leadership development. Our aib is 10
create a cutiure which fosters trust, open
and fast communication between people,
unity and regions, and strong performance
far our customers.

1 would also highlight our need for more
divarsity of alt kinds in our Comparty.

As recent nominations to our Executive
Committea show, we have already made
first steps on a joumey that clearly builds
vatue for the businass, and we wili cortinue
it in 2022 and beyarid,

Maintaining our strateglc focus

Qnce again, our results demaonstrate fow
critical ! is to have Jgadership posiiions inow
markets. They nave also shown how valuabie
it is o have a growing glooal lootfrint, whicn
is why we continue o address cpporiunities
in the US, South East Asia and China, as well
as Europe.

Above ati, we nged to rake sure we are
always ‘'market-oriemated’ - which means
always thinking about the end consumers
whao will ylt:mately benefit from our products.
What do they need from the buildings they live
or work in, or the surface coatings solutions
we gl need in daily life, or the health and
hygiene products that serve them, or the
functional textiles, and automative products
that surround therm?

VYWe make specialised chemical products for

our customers, who sgli them to consumers

- 5C ungerstarding the consumer rreans we
Can serve our cusiomers hetler.

1 2 | Synthemer plc
! Arnual Report 2021

SyNovus™ Plus - sustainable innovation in action

Cur specialised SyNovus™ nitrie products,
witsely Jsed in latex glove manufacture, have
played an important part this year in the
suceass of our Performance Elastomers
division — and of Synthomer overall.

in 2021, teamis at our Asia lrnovation
Centra in Malaysia worked on making

thie SyNovus™ range even more attractive
to our cusioners — and more sustainable
- through developments in content and
manufactura. They created SyNovus™
Pius, 2 new nilrile product that we will
faunch in 2022,

High-performing. Recyclable. And with
a lower carhon footprint.

SyhNovus™ Plus prov des the same
high-performance bartiar protection as
convertional nitrile larex, but hasg sevaral
eritical difierences - including the potertial
for gloves made using SyNovus™ Plus to be
recycled into other products after they are
worn for applicaticns such as food handling

and hygiene (all gloves used for medical
applications have 1o be inc.narated).

The way we make SyNovus™ Plus also
snables our customers to reduce the
carbon footprint of their gloves. Our Life
Cycle Assessment has demonstrated that
customers need less nitrile latex and can be
more energy efficient in their manutaciuring
because SyNovus™ Plus can be used in

a low-energy cure process.

And by eliminating the use o rupber
accelerators, which can lsave rasidues
that cause reactions to people with latex
allergies, gloves made with SyNovus™ Plug
can be used by more professionals and
consumers in our customers’ markets,

Wa believe SyNovus™ Plus has the potentisl
to transform our approach to NBH latex
- and shows that sustainabla inncvation
car be good for customers, consumers,
and our business.

/




We are also striving for innovation exceliencs,
always drivan by consumer and customer
demand illustrated by our new, patented
SyNovus™ Plus Nitrile latex for gloves
combining exacting consumer requirements
and sustainability.

Innovation continues to be a core pillar

of our growth strategy, helping us secure
differantiated market postions and generate
added value for cur customers, This year, the
full integration of OMNOVA has significantly
strangthaned our innovation pipeline, and our
network of four giobal Innovation centras of
excellence supported by local application and
technical service centres is a key strategic
asset, as we dascribe on page 38.

Inspired by out purpose, and committed
to Vision 2030

The demand for more 'sustainable products'
has naver been so great. .

Here, t00, we are in a strong position for future

growth, Our expartise in water-based polymers,
which have a lower environmental impact than
solvent-based aftarnatives, makes us leaders
in many fields of specialised chemical products.
This year, we were awarded the London Stock
Exchange's Green Economy Mark, given {o
companies that derlve more than 50% of their
revenues from sustainable solutions. We are
closing the coalfired power station at Sokolov
{Gzech Republic), which ends our use of

toal for power genaration across Synthomer,
and we moved to electricity from renewable
sources in Europa and North America. And our
Vision 2030 roadmap, aligned with the UN’s
Sustainable Development Goals and reported
on in full for the first time on page 18 of this
Annual Report, sets out our course to make
ouwr business increagingly sustainable. it makes
clear that our ESG priorities, bayond safety,
rermaln combating cimate change, becoming
more diverse and incluslve, and developing
our supply chaln assurance.

We are wall-embarked on this journey, but we
know we have much more to dp bacausa as
well as being the right thing to do, we know
that consumers, and therefore our customers,
willincreasingly demand sustainable products,
and prefer companies that can produce them.

£522.2m

! EBITDA

+109.8%

Increase in EBITDA vs 2020

Looking ahead

F would like to thank everyene at Synthomer

- and my predecesscr, Celum MaclLsan, whose
leadership over seven years at the company did
s0 much to create the differentiated, global
business we are today — for thair dedication
over the last year.

Exceptional levels of profitability in 2021 have
enabled the Group to make major inorganic and
arganic investments to significantly strengthen
our platform for future growth. As set out in the
February trading statement, Nirile latax margins
have normalisad to pre-COVID levels and

the Group does not expect any Nitrile latex
pandemic premium in 2022, Year-to-date, Nitrle
latex demand remains subdued due to high
inventery levels of medical gloves and reduced
demand due 1o the sasing of the COVID-19
pandemic. Howaver, trading conditions in Nitrile
latex are expected to normalise by the end of
H1 with mariet growth returning to 2018 levels
in the second half. All cther divisions have
had an encouraging start to the year, and the
Group expects to make continued strategic,
commercial and operational progress in 2022,
We have very Imiteg exposura to Russia and
Ukraine, with both countries accounting for less
than 1% of Group revenue, and we continue to
carefully monitor the situation and its potential
implications on our business. The acquisition
of Eastman’s Adhesiva Resins business is
expected to complete in Q1. The Group
continues to look for further bolt-on acquisition
opportunities geared towards attractive
end-markets that ars value accretive to
Synthomer's portfolio. The Board remaing
confident that the bensfits of recent acquisitions
angd disciplined capital allocation focused on
organic growth, Inorganic growth and dividends
will underpin growing sustainabls profits and
value creation in the coming years,

Michael Whiome
Chief Executive Officer

3 March 2022

|
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Who we are and what we do

Our new platform for growth: Our planned Adhesive Technologies division

Building on our success -
Adhesive Technologies

On 17 Decemrber 2021, Synthomer
shareholders approved the acquisition of
Eastman’s Adhesive Besins. Subject to
regulatory approvals and customary closing
conditions, we intend to complets

the fransaction in March 2022, and

creale a rew division far Synthomer:
Adhesive Technologies.

For details of the Eastrman's Adhesive
Resins transaction, please see our investor
pragentation on Synthomer.com,

Speciality products that broaden ocur
portfolio and extend our reach

it is an exciting moment in our growth story,
and a& demonstration of cur organic ard
inorgamc growth strategy in action. Inthe
iargest acauisiticn in our history, valued at
31br on & cash/debt free basis, Synthomar
will gain a UUS-based giobal business which
develops, manJdfactures and sells tackitying
resing and additives for adhesive products,
making us a global teader in the fielc,

Our growth strategy in action

Adhesive Techrologies will have s strong
focus on attractive ena markets such as
hygiens, packaging and high-performance
tyre add tives. On completion, it will maan
we gan extend and giversify our portfofia,
rsach more customers in more end markets,
and turther expand our geographical reach.

A platform for growth

The transaclion is in line with our
conservative capital allocation policy.

and has been enabled by the outstanding
performance of our existing d visions as

well as our effective imtegration of OMNOVA,
ahead of schedule. Our track record anc
experience of integrating OMNOVA gives

us contfidence that we have the people

and skifls to realise synergies {brough

the creatior of Adhesive Technalagies.

And with e alignment with our sustainability
ob ectves — including through a focus on
renewable raw materials, circular economy
approaches, and solvent-free product

lines — we believe Adhesive Technologies
vell provide vs with @ platform for further
sustanable growth.

Synthomer pic
Annual Report 2021
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At-a-glance:

What Adhesive Technologies

will add 1o Synthomer

1. Wall-invested assets with a global
leading position in adhesives

2. Around 650 talemed employaes
worldwide, and a strong management
team

3, Six plants with strong SHE standards
and a track record of manufacturing
excelence

4, More actess 1o attractive end markets
with rashient growth fuidamantals

5. Greater scale anc diversity to our
porifolio, and greater gecgraphic reach

§. Strong R&D, and opportunities for
further innovation-led growth

7. Alarge and growing portfolio of
sustainable products and alignmant
with our Visian 2030 sustainability goais

8. Fotential synergies foliowing integration

9. Compelling financial metnce with
accretive unit gross margins

Key product lines for

Adhesive Technologies

Hydrocarbon Resins (HCR)

+ Hydrogenated HOR (H HCR)

* Non-ydrogenated HCR (Nan-H HCR)
s Pure Monomer Resins (PMB)

Non-Hydrocarbon Resins (Non-HCR)

* Amorphous Polyoletins (AP0)

+ Olap Chemicals. Rosins and Digpersions
{OCRDY)

Increasing our reach in

attractive end markets

« Tapes and labels

» Packaging

* ygiene

« Building and construction

» Tyres

* Other, Including woodwork,
automotive, wngows, rubber,
toad and care, and inks




Who wa are and what we do

Synthomer strategy

Our six-pillar strategy

1 Innovation and technical expertise to exploit new markets

+ Anticipate consumer market trends and customer requirements to
deliver improved and differentiated products

» Foous on development rather than pure research

2 Driving atficiency and excellence through operations
* Oparate continuous improvement across operations

» |dentify good practices and share throughout the business
» improve commercial, HR, IT and procurement functions

3 Capacity utilisation

¢ Drive profitability through maximum
utilisation of assets

» {dentify the causes of production bottlenecks
and find innovative solutions

4 Investmaent in capacity
* Seek to add capacity, particularly
in high-growth attractive end markets

5 Bolt-on acquisitions
* Aciively seek opportunistic bolt-on M&A in similar chemistries

& Transformational transactions

* Not to occur bafore deleveraging to within the range of our strict capital policy
¢ Transformational acquisitions not limited by geography or chemistry

¢ Growth, stable EBITDA marging, and innovation are some of the target criterla

Qur Vision 2030 roadmap sets us on the path to net zero
and contains a series of targets across three key areas:

Synthomaer pic
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Who we are and what we do

Our progress - KPIs

Measuring the progress

of our strategy

Financial

Strategy

' Definition
Operating profit before depreciation, amortisation
and Special items.

Comment

; Group EBITDA increassed 108.8% 1o £522.2 million, with strong

. growth across ali four divisions. Performance Elastomers EBITDA
grew by 136.9%. Functional Solutions EBITDA grew by 49.8%.
Indusirial Specialities EBITDA grew by 18.9%. Acrylate Monomers

. EBITDA returned to profit, delivering £35 4 miliion.

Strategy

Definition
Basic Underlying sarnings per share bafore Spacial tams.

Comment

The 160.2% increase in undenlying EPS reflects the strong Increase
In underlying profit bafore tax, otfset by a shight incroase in the
weitthted average number of shares in issue. Figures pravious 1o
2019 have bsen restated for the Rights Issue which complated in
July 2018,

Underlying performance statement

Strategy

Definitlon
Underhying profit before tax comprising IFRS profit before tax
before charging/crediting Special 'terns.

Comment

Group underlying profit bafors tax increased 162.6% to
£420.1 million, drivan by strong growth in EBITDA across all
four divisions.

Strategy

Definition

Movement in net debt before financing activities, fareign exchange
and the cash impact of Special itarms, asset disposals and
business combinations.

Commant

Free Cash Flow was driven by the rise in EBITDA and reflected the
increase in activity Jovels and raw material prices which drove a first
halt 2021 net cuthow, which was partly offsat through working
capital management in the second half of the year when raw
material prices rermained high.

Capitat expenditure was £82.2 milion (2020; £53.8 millicn) as the
Company focused on organic growth projects, business system
platforms and site sustenance expenditure.

The Group's performance management uses Underlying perfermance to plan for, control and assess the performance cf the Group. Underlying performance differs
from the statutory IFRS performance as it excludas the eftect of Specia ltems, which are detailed in note 4. The Boarg's view |s that Underiying perfarmance
pravides additional clarity for the Group’s investors and stakeholders and so it is the primary focus of the Group's narrative reporting. Where appropriate, FRS
performance inclusive of Special ltems is also tescribed. Refarences to 'unit margin' and "margin’ are used in the commentary on Ungerlying performance.

Unit margin (or margin} 13 calculated on selfing price loss variable raw material and logistics costs,

EBITDRA is calcuiated as operaling profit before depreciation, amortisation and Specia) ltems,

Free Cash Flow Is the movement in net debt hefore financing activitias, toreign exchange and the cash impact of Special Rems, asset dispasals

and business combinations.

16
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Non-financial

Strategy

Definition

Recordable injury rate for accidents involving more than first aig
treatment, expressed as accidents per 100,000 hours worked by
amployaes and all contractars.

! Comment

Qur Group recordable injury case rate (RCR) reduced to 0.31,
largely due io improved performance at former OMNOVA sites,
which saw RCR fall from 0.64 in 2020 to 0.47 in 2021, The Group

* recorded 34 injuries in 2021, versus 37 in 2020. We raported no

cases cf disease caused by occupational factors and there were
no accidents that resulted In fatality or permanent disability.

! strategy

. Definitlon

Volume of our preducts sold in thousands of tonnes (ktes).
The voiurne is based on wet volumes ~ Le. the volumes including
water content.

Comment
The growth in our volumes was driven ty the full-year benelits of
our infagration of OMNQOVA (compared to months in 2020) and the

. inarease in activity in Functional Solutions and industrial Specialities

markets. This is ofiset by lower Performanice Elastomers volumes,
which reflect the rationalisation of cur SBR business and iower
nitriles volumes in H2 2021 caused by restrictions in cutput in
Malaysia and lower levels of demand.

Strategy

Definition

Metered Energy (GJ) (including gas, electricity, steam and fuel oil)
used at each of our plants divided by the number of tonnes of
product made. The enargy excludes transport of goods o and
from site ard the movernent of the associated vehicles on site,

. but internal transport on site is included,

Comment
COVID-18 continued to disrugt supply chains lsading ta inafficient
operations, Key energy sfficiency processes were aiso delayed.

Strategy

Definition
Percentage of sales volume in the year that can be attributed to
new and patented products launched in the past five years.

Comment

Qur strong performance in 2021 teflects our greater scale in
innovation following the integration of OMNQVA, and the full
apening of our new Asia lnnavation Gentre, demonstrating our
continuad invastment in innovation.

Synthomer pic I
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Who we are and what we do

Our progress — KPIs continued

In July 2021, we set out our Vision 2030 roadmap as our starting point for
realising our commitment to sustainability and to reaching net zero by 2050.

it includes targets for each of the three key areas of sustainability: products,
operations and people, aligned with the seven UN’s Sustainable Development
Goals most material to our business. Here we set out our first year of progress
against these targets. We will continuously review the targets to ensure that
they remain appropriately challenging. For more details, see pages 42 to 68.

\

1. Products

2. Operations

3. People

The UN's Sustainable Development Goale {SDGs) most relevant to our Vision 2030 goals

Qur targets are underoinned by a series of short-term objectives and are aligned with the UN's SDGs that are most material to our busw’nessj

1 8 Synthomer plc
| Anmyal Report 2021
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Synthomer specialist polymers
are used to bond and bind

industrial and consumer adhesives
for a wide range of applications, .
Packaging and speciality tapes, paper 1
and filmic labels, contact adheshves and

can sealings all rely on our superior

products which deliver solutions to

our custemers’ technical and
ragulatory requirements.

-
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Review of the year

Group financials

CFO’s introduction to
the Financial review

2021 has been a year of strong performance
by all our divisions and a truly exceptional
performance in our Nitriles business delivering
a record EBITDA of £522.2 million.

‘EBITDA grew in each
| of our divisions. Our

investment in organic
' growth, and our
‘successful integration
of OMNOVA, has created

a powerful platform for
future growth.’

Stephen Bennett
CFO

2 O ‘ Synthomer plc
Annual Report 2021



Volume

+2.09%

2021: 1,671.5ktes 2020; 1,638.2k:e8
2019: 1,465.7k1es

EBITDA

+109.8%

2021; £522.2m 2020: £253.4m 2018: £177.6m |

Underlying PBT

+162.69%

2021: £420.1m 2020: £160.0m 2019: £116.2m
IFRS PBT

+1,298.5%

2021: £283.9m 2020: £20.3m 2019: £100.5m
Underlying EPS

+160.29%

2021: 75.2p 2020: 28.9p 2019; 25.3p
IFRS EPS

+0,8009%

2021: 48.3p 2020: O.7p 2019: 21.5p
Free Cash Flow

1+29.8%

2021: 217.6m 2020: £167.6m 2019: £92.8m

A proven strategy, good
execution and a strengthened

balance sheet

QOur performance this year is a fribute to the hard
work of everyone at Synthomer, who put in an
extraordinary etfort to meet the needs of our
customers, It also reflects the sucoess of our
strategy, as our investment in organic growth,
and our successiul integration of OMNOVA,
created a powerful platform for our performance.

Strong performance from all divisions
despite giobal supply chain disruption
EBITDA grew in each of our givisions,
Performance clastomers EBITDA growth of
136.8% to £320.7 milion reflected more than
the strong demand for hygiene products, with
improved demand and marging in Performance
Materials also making an important coniribution,
Functioral Solutions EBITDA grew by 49.8%, to

© £139.2 milion refiecting owr stronger global reach
and increased market diversity following the

" integration of OMNOVA, factors which alsa saw

Industrial Specialities EB{TDA grow by 18.9% 1o

£47.8 milion. Acrylate Monomers EBITDA grew

to £35.3 million, from a smali loss in 2020,

The growth across the business took place
against a backdrop of squeszed supply chans
~and Is tribute to the work of our procurement
and customner service teams, who kept
meeting our customers' needs.

: Growth in gross margin per tonne
' reflects increasing speciallsation

This long-term growth reflects the fact that
our differentiated portfolio contains many
speaciallsed, high-performance products.
This year, extraordinary demand for Nitrile latex
products during the COVID-19 pandamic rmeant
that our Nitrile business in particular performed
exceptionally and, even as this demand
softened, in line with our expectations, our

| specialised portfolio will continue to benefit

from the underlying market growth trend
that existed belore the pandemic.

QOne of the most pleasing aspects of our
performance has been the consistent growth
in our gross margin per tonne over recent
years, a trend which continued in FY21 and
not just attributable to the impact from the
Nitrile latex business.

Rapid Integration of OMNOVA

realises $42 million in synergiss

Desplte the pandemic, we completed the
inegration of OMNOVA ahead of schedule.
The synergies we identified in our acquisition
investmant case have also been realised faster
than budgsted, and have craated greater value,
with $42 milion realised in the first 18 months
of integration. This has strengthened the
business, and buit the acquisition and
integration skills of our teams.

Free Cash Flow up 29.8% to £217.6 million
Strong cash generation and the £203,1 million
equity placing ahead of our acquisition of
Eastrman’s Adhesive Resins business bas helped
drive a rapid reduction of our net debt to

| E112.2 mifion leading to leverage of 0.3x EBITDA. |

This strengthened balance sheet underpinned
our proposed acquisition of Eastman’s Adhesive

Resins business, which was approved by our
‘ sharehciders on 17 December 2021, and which
supports our overall strategy for organic ang
inorganic investment. We expect the acquisition
to compiete in March 2022,

Reduced pension liabilities

As a result of more favourable market conditions

and several years of work, including a detailed

review of our persion Investrment strategy,

our pension liabilty has decreased to

£122 4 mition from £221.4 million at

31 December 2020. Strong asset rstums,

cash contributions of £27.¢ milion and actuarial
gains of £51.2 million have all contributed.

Dividend of 21.3 pence

The Board has recornmended a fina! oroinary
dividend of 21,3 pence (2020: 8.6 pence) per
share, this exceptional increase reflscting the
uniaue year cf profitability.

Taken with the 2021 interim ordinary
dividend of 8.7 pence (2020: 3.0 pence}
per share, the total ordinary dividend is
30.C perce (2020; 11.6 pance).

" The total dividend for the vear is in line with
the Group’s dividend policy with the dividerd
representing 40% of the Underlying eamings
per share. The findl dividend per share is subject
to shareholder approval at the Annual General
Meeting on 28 Aprit 2022 and will be payable
on 5 July 2022 to those sharehokders registered
at the clese of businass on 6 June 2022,

Looking ahead

The excepticnal perfarmance in 2021 has
enabled the Group to deleverage quickly and
has paved the way for the $1 bilion acquisition
of Easiman's Adnesive Resins business, the
largest acquisition in the Group's history.

The acquisition In the attractive adhesives
market provides further differentiation and
diversification to the Group.

Coupled with our continued organic growth
investment programme, particularly In Nitriles,
the Group has created a powerful and multi-
faceted platform ta underpin future growth.

Stephen Bennett
CFO

| 3 March 2022
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Review of the year

Group financials continued

Financial review

Special Hems

¢ Acquisition costs and related gains are

|

!

2021 2020
£m £m
Amortisation of acquired intangibles {38.2) (30.9)
Res;;uct;.l\ring and site ck;sure cééts - - (29.7) —-m
Acguisition -(-:-n;sts and related gains 71171 .;) (14.6)
Sale of busines;é o (7.4) 6.6}
Regulatory fine - T ey -
impairment éhargé_ - —- (36.6}
Total impact on operating prafit {142.4) {131.2}
far vaturéﬂgam/(ross] on unhadged interest rate dé}frvart'ives : 6.2 o (3.6) |
Loss an exti;gﬁis;r;lént of ﬁnancmg“ f;cirities o T T (4.9} :
Total impact on profit before tax {136.2} {130.7)
Taxation Special ltems B.8 (4.9)
;I:'.axaﬁon on épeJ-;tems 11.8 a 20.5
Total impact on profit for the year {115.8) (124.1)

The foilowing items of income and expense have been reported as Special tems:

= Amortisation of acquired intangibles
increased in 2021, retiescting the first
full year charge since the acquisition of
OMNGVYA Salutions tnc on 1 Aprit 2020,
The fair values of the intangible assets
arising on the acquisition of OMNOVA
amounting to £330.1 million are being
amortised over a period of 89-11 vears

Presentation of
financial results

Tre Group has consistently used two
significant Aternative Performance
Measures (APMSs] since its adoption
of international Financial Repbrting
Standards (IFRS) in 200%:

» Underlying parfermance, which
axcludes Special toms from IFRS profit
measures

» £BITOA, which excludes Special lterns,
amortisation and depreciation from IFRS
cperating proft.

The Board's view is trat Urderlying
performance provices additional clarity
for the Group's investors and sa it is the
orimery focus of the Group’s narrative
reporting. Further infermation and the
reconciliation o the IFRS measures

are included in note 5 of the

financial statements,

Synthomer plc
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mainly oependent on the characteristics of

tha customar relationships.

Restructuring and sre closlre costs

in 2021 comprise:

— A £13.2 milicn charge in ralation 1o the
suUbstantially completed integration of the
OMNCVA acquisition net of a £1.2 rnilkon
pension curigilment credit in relation to
the French business;

- A £11.6 milion charge to demolish and

raticnalise assets at a small number of

sites, to bring them into Yine with our ESG
strategy; and

A further £4 @ milfion for the completion

of the rationalisation of the Group's

European Perforrmance

Materials network.

Restructuring and site ¢losure costs in 2020

comprised £19.5 milion for integration cf

OMNOVA, £20.9 mifion for the

rationalisation ot the Group’s European

Performance Materiala network and

£2.1 million 1o rationalise the Acryiate

Monomers' site,

for the acquisition of Eastman’s Adhesive
Resins busingss and comprise £15.0 milion
ot costs, mainly professional adviser fecs,
of'set by a £3.1 miion gafn on a forsign
exchange derivative enfered into in October
2021 to hedge the acquisition price, '
Agquisition costs in 2020 related to the
acquisition nf OMNOVA.
» Bale ¢f business mainly comprised a further
£7.1 million losa on the enerous contract tor
the disposal of Synthomer's European Tyre
Cord business as production ts relocated 1o
Caojing (China} to enable the Marl 3 asse:
{Germany) tc be fully closed. This is
ineremental to the charge taken in 2020,
During 2018, the Ewropean Commission
Initiated an investigation into practices
relating to the purchase of Styrene
monomers by several companies, including
Synthomer, operating in the European
Economic Ares. The Comparny has and
will continue 10 fully cooperate with the
Commission during its investigasion.
Based on the information avalable and
the resulting assessmeont of the expectad
outcome of the investigation a provision
of £87.2 million has been mada in relation
to this case.
In 2020, a £36.6 million impairment charge
was bocked relating to four siles.
in Juty 2018 the Group enterad into swap
arrangements to fix Euro interest rates '
on the full value of the then €440 million
committed unsecured revoiving ¢redit
facility. The fair value movernent
of the unhedged imerest rate derivatives
relates to the movement in the mark-10-
market ¢of the swap at 31 Dacember 2021
in excess of the Group's curent Borrowings.
Folowing the Group's successiul
refinancing in 2020, capitalised debt
costs relgting to the 2018 refirancing
and the 2019 oridge to bond were written
off, leading to a loss on axtinguishment
of £4.8 million,
Taxation Special tems compriss the release
of uncertan tax provisions in relation to
hisiorical tax {ssues in France and Malaysia.
Taxation on Special tems is mainly deferred
tax credits arising on the amortisation of
acquired intangibles and resiructuring and !
site closure costs,



2020 |

Finance costs zﬁ 20
Net interest payable {26.9) {24.3} .
h;twlntere.m ;;;t-ar-w_s:;ar:i;ﬁned bc-ar.lneflt obiigation {2.4) {3.7)
Interest elem;ﬁ{ ;;;.iéasé paymenrts 7 {1.8) {1.6)
Underiying finance costs {30.8} (26.6)
Fair vatse gain/loss) on unhedged interest derivatives 6.2 (3.6
Lo;ss on ex;;;u;shm:c_nt of financing facilities - 1.9
;o:a;l fl_ﬁance cnsf:s* (24.8) {38.1)

We have designed our new
sustainability brand Lipalan™ TERRA
to help reduce the carbon footprint
typically associated with making latex
foam.

Qur first preduct is caled Lipolan™ TERRA
2022F and is made using processes that
can reduce that footprint by up tc 60%.

It also contains 70% total sclids, makirg it
more efficient to transport, which means we
can lower the associated logistics carton
footprint by up to 5%. This is just the start
though — we're now planning ways in whicn
to use bio-based and recycled feedsock.

N

Underlying finance costs increased to

£30.8 million (2020: £29.6 million) and
comprise interest on the Group's financing
fadilities, interest rate swaps, amortisation of
associated debt costs and 1AS 19 pensions
interest costs I respect of cur defined benefit
pension schames.

The rise In the net Interest payable mainiy
reflects the higher interest rate on the

€520 million, 3.875% senior unsecured lean
notas due 2025 bond issued in June 2020,
refinancing the OMNOVA acquisition finance
bridge, as offset by the lower level of
borrowings in 2021 relative to 2020 as a result
of the strong Free Cash Flow and the equity
placing in anticipation of the acquisition of
Eastman's Adhesive Resins business.

" The Group’s committed unsecured facilities

comprise the $260 million term loan, the
€520 million bond and the €460 million
revolving credit facility. The revolving credit
facility was fully undrawn throughout 2021
and, &s a result, the interest rate derivatives
were fully unhedged and the full movement in
fair value was taken to Special ltems.

Taxation

The Group's effective tax rate is affsctec by
the tax cherge/credit of Specisi ttems. | is
therefore helpfut to consider the Underlying
and Special lterns tax rates separately:

» The effective tax rate on Underlying profit
before tax for the year decreased toc 22.5%
(2020: 23.4%} due to the impact of
COVID-19 on the geographical mix
of profits.

« The effective tax rate for Special ltems was
15.1% {2020: 11.2%) and was driven by
deferred tax credits on the amortisation of
acquired intangiblas and restructuring and
site closure costs, and a current tax credh
in relation to historical tax issues in Francs
and Malaysia.

Non-controling interest

The Group continues to hold 70% of
Revertex {Malaysia} Sdn Bhd and its
subsidiaries. These entities form a relatively
minor part of the Group so the impact on
Underlying petformance from non-controliing
interests is not significant.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated based on
the average number of shares in issue during
the year. The weighted average number of
shares for 2023 increased to 432,290,000
(2020: 424,84 3,000) following the equity
share placing cn 28 October 2021 where
42,485,080 snares were issued raising net
proceeds of £203.1 million.

Undetlying earnings per share for the yaar

is ¥5.2p, up from 28.9p in 2020, reflecting the
exceptional performance in the year, The IFRS
earnings per share is 48.3p (2020: 0.7p).
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Review of the year

Group financials continued

Financial review continued

Balance sheet

Net assets of the Group increased by
84.5% to £1,033.0 milion, mainty reflecting
the £210.0 million profit for the year, the
£203.1 miliion share issue and actuarial gains
of £66.8 milion offset by dividend payments
of €74.0 million.

Provisions

As a result of the regulatory fine and the
rastructuring and site closure costs set
out above, provigions have increased

to £103.7 million {2020; £31.6 million).

The closing balance includes £57.2 milion
for the raguiatory fine, £15.8 million and

£1.0 million in relation to the rationalisation of
the Group’s European Parforrmance Materials
network in Mar! and Qulu respectively and
£10.6 million in relation to the onerous
contract arising on the disposal of the
European Tyre Cord business,

In the year, a £5.1 million provision was
recognised for the closure of CMNOVA's
administrative and R&D site in Vitiejust
{France) and the site transformation

in Kluang {(Malaysia) was completed.

A £11.6 milion provision has been made to
demoelish and rationalise assets at a small
number of sites, to bring them into line with
our ESG strategy.

Retirement benefit plans

The Group's principal funded defined benefit
pension schemes are in the UK and the US
and are both clesad 1o new antrants and
future accrual. The Group also operates an
unfunded defined benefit schaeme in Germany
angd various other dafined contribution
overseas retirement benefit arrangements.

The Group's net retirament obligation
decreased by 44.7% to £122.4 milion

at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: £221.4 milton) and reflects the markat
value of aszets and the valuation of fiabiliies
in accordance with IAS 19, This £99.0 miiion
reduction in the net ratirement cbligation
is principally attributable to the conservative
investment strategy, £66.8 milior of actuarial
gains and Group funding contributions

of £27.0 million. The actuarial gain arose
due to a £15.6 million return on assets,

a £32.2 mitlion impact from increases in
discount rates, an £11.8 million gain from
experience adjustments and a £7.2 millicn
gain on demographic assumptions.

The most recent trisnnial valuation of the
UK scherme took place at April 2021 and

is progressing in line with expectations.
Thie vaiua of iabiities under this method
dittars shghtty from (AS 19, but we axpact
the finalised valuation to result in an improved
funding staius relative to the 2018 valuation
completed in 2019.

Synthamer ple
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Cash performance

The Group's primary focus is on managing net debt by maximising Free Cash Flow. The following
table summarises the movement in net debt and is in the format used by management:

“om o

Opeaning net {debt)/cash {462.2) 20.7
Underlying operating profit excluding oint ventures) T YRRTY
Movement in working capital (82.8) 238

; Depreciation of property, plant and equipment &64.2 64.9
: Amortisation of other intangible assets 7.1 49
Share-hased payments charge 2.1 2.0
Capital expenditure (82.2) {53.6)
Businesz cash flow 358.7 2299
Net 7inierest pa;(i i (27.8) {14.0}
Tax paid (86.4) (31.4)
Pansion funding ' @10 (88
DiVLde;ds rocelvaed from joint veh;sures 1.8 i 19
Free Cash Fiow 217.6 1676
Cash impact of restructuring and site closure costs [17.8) (25.3)
Cash impact of acquisition costs 7 (6.6] {7.4}
Purchase of business B -7 (5é7.6)
Sale of business 1 T 01
Pmceeﬁs onissue of shares i 203‘1 o
hépa;ﬂ;m of ;;;incipai bgr{ion of lease rfabilfﬁes (9.;) o iQi?)

- Dividends paid {73.5) (12.8)
Dividenas pﬁ(d to non-confrdiling interests {05) 3.1)
Foreign exchange and other movements 33.7 4.7
Movement in net debi 3480 {452.8)
C|osiﬁg net deb (114.2) (462.2)

Underlying operating profit more than doubled
to £448.3 mifion due to exceptianally strong
trading but this was offset in part by an
£582.8 million investment in working capitat
mainly due to significant rises in raw material
costs partially reflecting disruptions in raw
material supply chains. Working capital as

~ apercentage of sales - the key performance

measure monitered by the Group - remains at

around 10% in line with historical performance.

Depreciation and amortisation of other
intangibles are in line with the previpus year.

Gapital expenditure increased to £82.2 million,
recovaring from thae COVID-18 measures
introduced in 2020 t¢ preserve cash and
liquidity. Our Nitrlie latex capacity expansion
project in Malaysia is nearing completion, as
is tha project to replace the coal-fired power
station in Sckolov (Czech Republic). The Group
continues 1o invest in its Pathway Programme
systerns transformation project, the first bhase of
which was successfully deployed in May 2021,

Interest paid increased 1o £27.6 million
refiecting the first full pericd of additional

. borrowings drawn for the OMNQVA acquisition

and the successiul issue in June 2020 of the
€520 milion, 3.875% sanior unsecured loan
notes due 2025, for which the first biannual
intarest payment was due in January 2021,



Tax paid increased by £65.0 million to
£86.4 million. The Group’s overall effective
tax rale reduced slightly, from 23.4% to
22.5%, and the increase in cash payments
is mainly due to higher profitability in 2021.

The cash impact of restructuring and site
closure costs was £17.8 million, which
comprises £6.C milion of OMNOVA synergy
costs, £10.5 millior utilisation of restructuring
provisions and £1.3 milion of cther
restructuring costs in the year.

The cash impact of acquisition costs was
£8.6 million, arising from the acquisition

of Eastman’s Adhesive Resins business,

The 2020 net outflow of £7.4 million relatea
1o the OMNOVA acquisition and comprised
£20.1 mifion of costs offset by a £12.7 million
cash gain on deal-contingent foreign
axchange contracts.

The 2020 cash outfiow for the purchase
business related to OMNOVA,

On 28 October 2021, the Group successfully
compieted a share placing, raising £203.1 million,
net of issue costs, again relating to the financing
of the proposed acquisition of Eastman’s
Adhesive Resins business.

Dividends pafd in the yaar increased. The finat
dividend payment for 2020 was paid in July
2021, whereas the 2019 final dividend was
cancelied in order to preserve cash, liquidity
and balance sheet strength at the onset of the
COVID-19 pandemic in March 2020,

Qur gebt is denominated in eurcs and dollars.

The eurc weakened relative to sterling during
2021, leading to a foreign exchange gain in
net gebt,

Currency

The Group presents its consolidated financial
statements in sterling and conducts business
i in many currencies. As a result, it is subject
1o forsign currency risk due to exchange

rate movements, which affect the Group's
transiation of the resutts and Undetlying net
assets of its operations. To manage this risk,
the Group uses foreign currency borrowings,
forward contracts and currency swaps to
hedge non-sterling net assets, which are
predominantly denominated in euros, US
doilars ana Malaysian ringgits.

In 2021, the Group experienced an overall
currency headwind with average FX rates
against our three principal currencies
increasing by 3.4% to €1.165, £.3% 1o $1.374
" and 5.5% to 5.70 ringgits. This resufted

in a net £22.1 million translation headwind
in reported EBITDA.

Given the global nature of our custormer and
supplier base, the impact of {ransactional
foreign exchenge can be very ditferent from
transiational foreign exchange. We are able
10 partially mitigata the transaction impact
{ by matching supply and administrative cost
1 currencies with sales currencies.

To reduce volatility which might affect

the Group's cash or inceme statement,

the Group hedges net currency transaction
exposures at the paint of confirmed order,
using forward foreign exchange contracts.
The Group’s policy is, where practicable,
to hedge all exposures on monetary assets
and liabilities.

Financing and liquidity
At 31 December 2021, the Group had net

: debt of £114.2 milion compared to net debt

of £462.2 million at 31 Dacember 2020,
The reduction in net deht reflects the

. strong Frea Gash Flow in the year and
. the proceeds on the equity share placing.

This cash generation resulted in a
raduction in the Group's leverage, from

¢ 1.8x at 31 December 2020 to 0,3x at

31 December 2021, lsaving the Group
well placed to finance the acquisition
of Eastman’s Adhesive Resing business,

Ahead of the Eastman's Adhesive Resins
acquisition, a new committed unsecured
$£300 million loan facility was entered into
on 28 October 2021 which will be drawn,
alongside a pottion of the revolving credit
facility on completion. An equity share
placing was also undertaken on 28 Cctober
2021 ralsing £203.1 million net of issue
costs. These proceeds were swapped info
US dollars on the day of the placing in order
to hedge against the doflar-denominated
acquisition price.

While arranging the new $300 million loan
facility the Group took the opportunity to
transition the reference rates for $260 milion
term loan and non-Euro horrowings under
the €460 million rolling credit facility away
from inter-bank interest rate to risk-

free rates.

At 31 Decembar 2021, the Group
had committed borrowing facilities of

| approximately £1,250 million through until

July 2024 with a single financial leverage
ratio covenent of 3.5x for 2022 and 3.25x
for 2023 and 2024,

Synthomer plc !
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Reviaw of the year

Divisional reviews

Performance
Elastomers

A year of exceptional
growth ~ and clear
opportunities for the future,
driven by innovation and
capacity expansion.

26
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"We've been able to meet
the exceptional demand
of 2020 and early 2021
because of the dedication
of our people and our
investment in innovation
and increased capacity.

That has created
significant value to
support Synthomer’s
future growth.’

Neil Whitley

|

1S plants we share with Functionel Solutions,

Main markets

Health & protection

| Carpet, compounds & foam

Paper & packaging

Main product lines

» Nitrile Butadiene Latex emulsion (NBR}

= Styrene Butadiane Latex emulsion (SBR)
* Antioxidants

+ Speciality SBR

= Parformance Materials

= Elastomeric Modifiers

947 people in 12 plants jn Europs, Middie
East, South East Asia and China, and in two

Our contribution to sustainability
Performance Elastomers has a strong

track record of innovation, increasingly
driven by consumers’ damand for progucts
with recuced impast on the environmant.

In line with the Group's 2030 target of more
than 60% of new products having a posttive
sustainability impact, the division has

an exciting innovation funnel in both

+ SBR and NBR which sel the standards

for sustalnability.

Highlights of our performance

320./m

EBITDA

+136.9%

. Inconstant currency



Congtant X [ | - -
Curency i«
w =« % Divisional :
Safety (RCR) 0.11 0.31 (65) sn a p sh ot Z
Volumes (kies) 844.2 8960 (58 3
Revenue (Em) 951.5 680.2 38.¢ 46.2
EBITDA (Em) 320.7 142.5 1251 136.9 o
Operating profit — Underlying performance (€m) 294.9 116.8 152.5 1686.0 ’ é’
- P N ———— - Q
Operating profit - IFRS (Em) 286.9 80.8 2551 | &
[
|
Putting aside ths exceptionat demand created ’ T
by the pandemic, we intend to continue | %)
investing in Nitrile latex because we, along ‘§,
with other industry experts, expect the i g
underlying groveth in demand for Nitrile ' | 2
latex experienced pre-pandemic to continue, a2
given the glooal trends in the heatthcareand . - g‘
. hygiene product markeis and the fact that &
ritrile latex is increasingly substtuting PVC o
Deadicated people and strong teamwork and natural rubber in personal protactive
The first is that it was only possitle because equipment. We have a very strong position
of the commitment of our people and teams in this market with a high market share, !
1o working through ehallenges — whether industry-leading manufacturing technology |
those were the constraints imposed by and & track record of product innovation.
COVID-19, which had a particutar Impact in Tnere are exciting opportunities on the o ' T T
Malaysia and on the pecp'e working in our horizon and we will continue our focus |
NBR business, or the disruptions to global on product, process and application i
supply chains that affected the whole improvemants. We are currently o
industry. Across the division, our teams kept commigsioning our JOBB6' expansion } g
our manufacturing going throughout, working  project in Pasir Gudang, Malaysia, creating | ‘ B2
safely, and consistently going the extramile | 60ktes of additional Nitrile latex capacity e
to meet the needs of our custemers, resulting 1 which will provide additional prodiucts for our ) §
in strong performances from both our NBR local ang growing US customer bases. At the . i &
and SBR businesses. same time. we have carried out siting reviews D2
Glear benefits from long-term in Agia to snsure that the required Nitrile latex ' g
investment capacity is avai Fable'in :he_cqming years to g
The second is that there was a clear link reet our customars' cortinuing growth: plans. | ’
bstween our consistent investment in organic  Added to this, we have some of the most |
growth and capacity utilisation, and our ability / innovativa, highly-skilled people in the industry
to mest demand, particulariy for Nitrile latex - and the full apening this year of our Asian : |
to support the heakhctare sector during | innovaticn Centre (AIC) has enhanced I
the COVID-19 pandemic. } our abfiity to lead the way on innovations '
We know that extracrdinary Nitrile latex ' In products and Processes, many of .WhiCh
demand for glove manufacturing during the wilf have defined sustamabr!lty beneﬁts for =
andemic resulted in exceptional earnings | customers and consumers - including : g
P one d ByNovus™ Plus, described in the case g
and cash generation this year, and we =
" study on page 12. 3
expected conditions to normalise as supply <
and demand became more balanced. g,
[~
H-—]

That began to happen in H2 2021, ‘

Synthomer plc l 2 7
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Review of the year

Divisional reviews continued
Performance Elastomers continued

Ensuring we have the structure

in place for future success

While resulis this year have been strong,
we need to remain focused on staying
cormpetitive in all our markets. This year, in
fine with the findings of our review of our SBR
business, we closed SBR facilities In Oulu,
Finland, and Man, Germany, shifting our
production to our other sites, where we have
been able to focus on aur strategic move
towards greater capacity utilisation.

Porformance review

Safety

Perfarmance Eiastomers achieved a
recordable injury case rate of 0.11 in FY21, and
& pracess safety rate of .18, The three-vear
average recordable injury case rate of 014
flustrates consistant delivery of upper-quartie
safety performance across alt sites, with an
ongoing focus on slips, trips and fa'ls which
now acgount for most of the small numbar

of incidents each year. Qur major nitrile project
JOBB} in Pasir Gudang achieved more than
750,000 hours without a recordable accident.
Significant management attention and
reporting focuses on further improving
process safety perforrrance, including leading
inchcators for permit to work and management
of change. We are launching behavioural
safety programmes in 2022 10 drive safety
performance 1o Industry-lsading levels.

Synthomer plc
Annual Report 2021
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Volumes

Performance Eiastomers achieved overall
volurnes of 844 2ktes in FY21, a reduction
on the exceptional volumes of 886.0kles in
FY20, and in line with our FY19 performance
of 849.1ktes, Within this overall figure,
volumes in our Nitrile latex business ware
lower than in 2020. Nitrile latex performance
was affected by Emergency Movemant
Gomrol Orders put in placs in Malaysia in
response to the pandemic in Q3, as well

as some customer de-stocking in H2 2021
that followed exceptional demand in FY20

[ and H1 2021. Our further investment in Nitrlg

latex capacity, including JOBE and our
announced plans for significant further
investment in South East Asia, demonstrate
our long-term commitment 10 the growing
Nitriie latex market.

Wa closed our Performance Materials fagility
in Oulu, Finland, in February 2021, reducing
SBR capacity by §5ktes in FY21, Our cidest
SBR plant in Mart is closing and a range of
products previously made at this plant are

' being succassfully transferred across
i the wider Synthomer network, This wiil

significantly improve the utilisation of the
Performance Elastomers Performarnice
Materlals assets in Curope.

Revenus
The division achieved revenuas of £851.5 milion
in FY21, with particularly strong demand, driven
by the global COVID-18 pandemic, for Nitrile
latex for a range of madical and industrial

" gloves. Glave prices rase ta record lavels and
with demand for Nitrile latex exceading supply in
H1, margins rose well above normalised levels.
As demand reduced during H2 both glove and
Nitrile tatex prices reduced significantly,
retuming to historical levels since January 2022,
industry analysts foracast that demand for
Nitrile latex, the preferred material of choice for
rmedical goves, will continue to grow strongly 8a
glove usage per capita continues 1o increass
in developing countries. Synthomer also has

* a strong product development pipafine arising

| #rom our industry-eading Asia Infiovation Centre

| in Malaysia, including SyNavus™ Plus, samples
of which were approved by customars in
at 2022,



EBITDA

This was 8n exceptional year for the division,
and we achieved EBITDA of £320.7 millior.
This compares to divisional EBTDA of

£142.5 milion in FY20, The underlying margins
within the NBR businesa were at exceptional
levels as demand for Nitrile latex exceeded

H

supply and record production ratas for medical

gloves continued in H1. Demand for Nitrile
latex started to slow through H2, partly due
1o de-stocking, with margins reducing to
more normal levels since January 2022.

Parformance Materials margins improved
following our asset rationalisation programme,
and helped by movernent in raw materials
through the year.

Priorities for FY22

Extending our SyNovus™
product range, building

our capacity and reducing
energy use

We are proud of the innovation that goes intc
developing new products for our customers,
espacially those that support our — and our
customers' — sustainability ambitions.

But innovation is equally important when
it comes to our processes, supporting
our strategy by increasing our capacity,
maintaining the high performance of our
speciality preaucts, and making us more
enerqy gfficient.

To support our family of patented SyNovua™
products, cur new Asian innavation Centre
in Malaysia launched a process innovation
programme designed to further improve the
way we make the NBR nitrile grades that
are vital to the manufacture of thin latex
examination gloves — a critical product

to us, and to the healthcare sector during
the COVID-18 pandemic.

Harnessing the energy from

chemical reactions

While at afl times ensuring that our nitriles
product maintains its high perfarmance in
our customers’ applications, our innovation
teams have adapted our systems 1o hamess
the heat created by the chamfcal reactions
that lead to polymerisation, and used that
heat in the product process, reducing our
need for steam.

In the secono year of a threa-ysar programme
that has involved cooperation between our
vparations, commercial and technicaf suppert
teams in Malaysia, the project has boosted
capacity by a further 10%, while reducing
the enargy consumption in use for both
Synthomer and our customers. It has meant
we could increase our supply to custamers at
a time of very high demand — and is creating
opportunities to use the technology within
other plants and product lings.

/
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Review of the year
Divisional reviews continued

Functional
Solutions

Building on our growth
platform through innovation
and sustainability.

30

B ‘Very strong demand

il across all end markets

B served by Functional

R Solutions has led to
robust business growth
despite substantial

R supply chain disruptions
¥ in all regions.’

Rob Tupker
{ N TR

Synthomer ple
Annual Report 2021

Msain markets

- Coatings

| Construction

J Technical Textiles
Adhesives
Ol & Gas

Main product applications
& Architectura! paint

* imumascent paint

« Wood and metal coatings

» Tile and fiooring achesives
* Specigiity tapes

» Sealants

* Watarproofing

+ Repair mortar

= Glass fibre scrim

» Non-woven and wovan textiles
& Driling additives

i » Cement enhancement

1,807 people in 16 plants in Europs, the USA,
the Middle East, Scuth Fast Asia and China,
11 technology and innovation centres.

Our contribution to sustainabllity
With a strong focus on its development
pipsling, the division is making goed
progress towards mesting the Group's 2030
 target of more than 60% of new products
" having a positive impact on sustainability.
Many of Functional Solutions’ nawly
devoloped praducts raptace solvent with
water, contribute to energy savings for
the customer, reduce the use of materials
of concem or have a positive impact
on recyclabifity.

- Highlights of our performance

£139.2m

EBITDA

+49.8%

in constant currency
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Our extensive portfolio of
innovative and sustainable

products are used in divarse
applications by our
customers around 1he world.

Though consumers will rarely see
Synthomer's name on consumer products,
Functional Solutions' wide range of products
piay a viai rofe In people's lives, and with our
{eadership positions in sustainabie, water-
based dispsersions and our broad customer
base, we have a clear platform for growth,
Qur commitment te innovation, capacity
expansicn and operational excefence ensures
we stay ahead and remain one of the laaders
in speciality dispersions, and this year helped
drive an outstanding 49.8% growth in
EBITDA. Both top- and bottom-line growth
were delivered despite a succession of
disruptions to raw material supplies, inciuding
COVID-19-relatad supplier closures in Agla,
the Texas freeze in February 2021, and force
majsures in Europe.

Harnessing nnovation and sustainability
to drive growth

With rmore than 80% of our products
consisting of water-based dispersions which
eliminata the VOCs associated with solvents,
Functional Solutions plays a key part in
Synthomer's Vision 2030 ambitions.

Dernand from our more than 3,000 custorners
across the world tor sustainabls polymer
sofutions is growing, driven in many regions
by regulation as well as customers' own
sustainability objectives. At the same time,
our innovation teams are working with
customers to develop products that push
the possibilities further - meeting needs for
formaldehyde-free, biocide-free or lower-VOC
applications, and developing biodegradakbie,
bio-based or industry-compostable products
to support circular sconomy approaches

to sustainability, Our 11 tachnology and

innovation centres are state-of-the-art
facilities for all our main tachnology functions:
polymer synthesis, materials characterisation,
applications technology, technical service
and production scale-up.

Synthomer people dedicated to meeting
neads of customers in diverse markaets
An essential sement i the dhision's success
this year has been the commitment of
Synthomer peopls to meeting customer
needs. This takes many forms — keeping

our plants running through the COVID-19
pandemic, overcoming the disruptions in
global eupply chains, maintaining close
partnerships with customars when it comaes
to innovation and delivery. There is no doubt
that our strong performance ks owed in lerge
part to our peopls and teams, and to the
focus we have placed on both commercial
and manufacturing excellence programmes
in recent years.

This was especially important in the context
of recovering and rising demand, The year
saw a notable imprevement in dernand in the
Coatings, Adhasives, Sealarts and Elastomers
{CASE), and Oll & Gas sagmants, and
products that found their end-applicaticn

in consumers’ houses performed very well,
as s0 many pecpie turned their hang to EAY
in the pandemic, Investment in capacity over
the past few years served us well here, as
our Worms plant ran at increased capacity
and allowed us to deliver diffsrentiated
products across our Eurcpean network,

part of an overalt increasa in capacity in cur
plant natworks in Europe and North America

_in particular,
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Review of the year

Divisional reviews continued
Functional Solutions continued

‘This was a record year
for the division, and

we achieved EBITDA of
£139.2m. This compares
to divisional EBITDA of

£95.6m in FY20, Aided by
strong cost control and
synergy realisation, all
regions contributed to

a 46% growth in EBITDA/

Synthomer plc
Annyal Report 2021
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Delivering on the benefits of CMNOVA
integration

Last year we completed the integration of
OMNOVA, helping to increase the scale and
geographic diversity of our division, As wel!
as delivering cost synergies, the successful
integration of the Functicnal Solutions’
sales team with that of the former OMNOVA
business has opened up sigrificant new sates |
opportunities, many of which wera realised
during 2021.

The integration significantly broadened our
global reach as a division, with around a third
of revenue now coming from aur Americas
and APAC markets.

It has also axpanded our technological
capabiiity — 50 we can continue to inhavate
and meet the needs of our diverse
customer base.

There is still work to do to ansure that SHE
performance is consistently high across
the division inciuding the heritage
OMNOVA sites,

Pertarmance review

Safety

Functiona! Solutions achieved a recordable
injury case rate of 0.37 in FY21, and a process
safety rate of 0.28.

Both metrics are higher than 2020, reflecting
the integration of formar QMNOVA sites

for a full year. Our strrong focus on safety
transforthation initlatives at key sites is already’
beginning to show success, with all-injury
rates at an all-time low for the division.

For 2022, wa will focus on complating
transformation inftiatives at all Functional
Solutions’ sites as we push for world-class
safely rates agross our whole site network.

Volumes

Functional Soiutions achiaved overall
volumes of 855,9ktes in FY24, an increast
on §81.2ktes in FY20, and substantially
greater than our FY18 parformance

of 487.4kdes.

This strong overall performance raflects
robust demand in all our main markets as
well as the fact that we have grownas a

' aivision, inclucting through the successtul

integration of OMNOVA, which has created
new sales opportunities as well as increased
our capacity.

In addition 10 an extra quarter of volumes
from OMNOWVA, the division bansfited from
growth in our CASF businesses in Eurape
and USA, offset in part by tha impact of
prolonged COVID-19 etfects in South East
Asia. Demangd was particularly strong in
construction and textiles. The Qi & Gas
business also saw haalthy growth, driven by
increased driling activity and higher oil prices.

Revenue
The Functional Solutions division achieved

- revenues of £900.3 million in FY21, a growth

of 38.2% on FY20. The extia valumes rnoted
abouvs, both from the OMNOVA integration
and organic growth, contributed te this

' increasa, along with an improvement

in unit margins in certain segrments,
Ancther driver for the increase was the
pass-through to customers of substantial

" Increases in unit raw material costs.



EBITOA

This was a record year for the division,

and we achieved EBITDA of £139,2 million.
This compares 10 divisional EBITDA

of £85.6 miflion In FY20, Aided by strong cost
control and synergy realisation, all regions
contributed to a 45.6% growth in EBITDA.

This excellent result was achisved despite
significant prolonged US disruption from
the ‘Texas freeze’ and multiple force
majeures affecting our key raw material
stippliers in Europe. Functional 3ulutkons
delivered record margin growth, with all
our global businesses contributing,
Volume increases, strong margin
management in the face of steeply

rising monomer prices, cross-seliing

of our speciality product portfolio

and the ongoing shift towards a more
differentiated and sustainable product
portfolio alt contributed to this Improved
margin profile.

Priorities for FY22

LITEX™ Shield technology — helping builders keep
the weather out, more sustainably

Energy-efficient housing is the future for
bullders and homeowners - and it is an
Important focus for our sustainable
innoveation programmes.

Our UTEX™ Shield XSBR technology
supports builders by improving the fechnical
textias they need in products such as giass
fire and roofing felt, materials they use o
protect bullding ‘nteriors from the outside
tempsrature and rain. These materials need
to have mechanical stabiiity, chemical
resistance and water-proofing properties -
all of which the LITEX™ Shield provides.

But LITEX™ Shield goes much further

than competitor products. Thanks to

the work of our innovation teams in Mari,
Germany, LITEX™ Shigld technology is free
from formaldehyds — a critical competitive
advantage in & markel where regulaticns
are dermanding ever-higher standards - and
has low Volatlle Organic Compound (VOC)
content. Fast-drying, it helps our customers

increase thelr productivity and reduce their
energy censumption. And by helping peosie
insulate their buildings better, #t contributes
1o a lower energy consumption and carbon
footptint for consumers, 100,

Regular sales of LITEX™ Shield began

in 2020 in Europe - &nd by 2021, tollowing
our launch in North America, global sates
raached €17 million in revenue.

And in another exampie of our approach

to comimercialising successful innovations,
we have applied the formaldehyde-free XSBR
technology that underpins LITEX™ Shield
to new products. REVACRYL™ Design
creates low-emission acrylics that are used

in househokd applications such as decorative
taminates for furniture and glass fibre
wallcoverings. Sales began in 2020, and by
2021 had expanded to €2 milion in revenue.
Both REVACRYL™ Design and LITEX™ Shiels

won categorfes in our annual Innovation
Awards in 2021, /

Synthomer plc '
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Review of the year

Divisional reviews continued

Industrial

Specialities

Driven by innovation,
delivering excellence

and growth.

34
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‘The successful
integration of OMNOVA
and excellent operating
performance across our
highly-specialised
product range has
delivered strong business
growth.’

Ana Perroni Laloe
For

} Main markets

| Polymer Additives
- Laminates & Films
Coated Fabrics

Main businesses
» Laminates & Films
» Coated Fabrics
., & Vinyl Polymers
' « Polybutadiene Lithere
. = William Blythe {speciality chemicai
; products)
* Speciality Additives
» Powdar Goatings

1,182 paople in 8 plants in Europe, the USA,
the Middle Fast, and South East Asia.

Our contribution 1o sustainability

The division is assessing a number of
sustainability inttiatives, including developing
a pilot site for water metering at our
Speciality Vinyl Polymers plant in Harlow
(UK) and reviewing options for improved
tashnology to help reduce wasts at our
Speciaiity Additives plant in Ghent, Belgium.
In addition, there are a number of active
R&D projects across the division with
sustainabliity as a core driver,

Highlights of our performance

SA76m

EBITDA

+18.9%

in constant currency
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This year's growth in sales, volumes and
EBITDA show that we are succesding in
finding anewars to thesa quastions. The seven
businesses in our division supply specialised
products for niche markets around the world
from their manufacturing sites in Europe, the
US and South East Asia. They have
suceeadad in meeting the diverse and
speciglist requirements of our globat customer
base, in the context of a yaar in which we
have had to address the twin challenges of
COVID-19 and disrupted raw material supply
chains. That i tribute to the commitment and
talent of our 1,192 people ~ and shows that
weé have solid foundations for future growth.

Outstanding customer service and
consistent, safe production

Disruption across the industry has meant that
this year, more than ever, customers wanted
to know that when they picked up the
telephone to their supplier, there would be
someone thare going the extra miie to help
them. Our customer service, purchasing ang
logistics teams have done exactly thet.

But of course, they could net maet customer
demand without the dedication of the people
in our operations wha have kept our sites

running througheut the pandemic — and who

have done so while delivering our division’s
best-ever procass safety perfermance.
Thelr comrmitment to safety, backed up by
our consistent investment in manufacturing
excellence, has seen a 16% raduction in the
recorded case rate since 2018, It means that
we can point to examplas such as our
powder coating business in ltaly, which has
now gone five years without a recordable
incidem, to drive further improvaments
across lhe division.

' Manutacturing excellsnce brings other

benefits too: our 'Value Gap' programmes
continuegs to deliver debottlenecking, cycle

. time improvements and additional capacity.

It has improved productivity, Increased
utilisation, and helped identify opportunities
to minimise our erwironmental profile and
reduce emissions.

. Responding to strong consumer and

customer demand across all end
markets

Sales volumes across the division grew

by 26.8% as demand grew in all our main
markets, and particularly in the automotive
and consumer-facing industrial sectors.

Laminates & Fims, and Vinyl Polymers have
continued to grow significantly, as consumers
seek out high-performing products for the
furniture and floors of their kitchens and

' bathrooms, and where our teams are

succeeding through a winning blend of
material performance and aesthetic design.
QOur relationships with major retail customers
are critical here ~ and anticipating their needs
and dalivering with fast, effective service is
spurring cur growth.

The racovery in automotive demand has
benefited our Polybutadiene Lithene and
Powder Coatings businesses, which also
serve the construction, rubber modification

. and adhesives sactors.

We continue to see opportunities for all

our businesses, and we have sat out further
investment for growth.

. == | Divisional

snapshot

Priorities for FY22

Synthomaer plc
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Review of the year

Divisional reviews continued
Industrial Specialities continued

Leading innovation, and strengthened
reach and scale

The integration of OMNOVA has given our
division further diversification, both in terms
of the end markets we serve, and our
geographical teach. We have really seern
the benefits this year, with cost synergies
being reatised and significant new salas
opportunities, particularly In the US.

It has also expanded our innovation
capabifities, which remain a key focus
in our ability to meet end consumer and
customer needs.

Performance review

Safety

Industrial Spacialities achieved a recordable
case rate of 0.40 in FY21, and a process
injury safety rate of 0.04.

Across our chemicals plants, we have
continued our sustained focus on strengthening
practices and processes, particularly on permit
to work and management of change system
improvements. The recordabile injury case rate
across the chemicals plants in MY21 was 0.27,
which is slightly above FY20 but comparable
to top quartile performange in the industry.

The focus for our surfaces plants (Laminates
& Fiims, and Coated Fabrics) has besn on
improving occupational health and safsty
performance by simplifying and embedding
fundamentat SHE practices, with three of
four surfaces sites graduating from SHE
‘supported stte' status inn FY21, and the
remaining site expected to graduats in the
first quarter of FY22. In FY21, the surfaces
sites recordad their lowest-ever recordable
injury case rate of 0.53, atthough we
recognise there is much mote still to

do and are committed to ensuring safaty
remains at the heart of everything we

do for all empioyees.

Volumes

Industrial Spacialities achieved overall
volumes of 115.5ktes in FY21, an increass
on our volumes of 91,1ktes in FY20, and
substantially greater than our FY19
performance of 67.3ktes.

Robust demand in all our main markets
drave the strong volumes, while wa have also
grown as a division through the successtul
intagration of OMNOWVA. Cur reliability
programme at Hariow, as well as smaller
de-bottlenacking projects across other
plants, have also helped us increase capacty.

Synthomaer plc
Annual Report 2021
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upholstery stain-free

'Pinking’ is a real proplem for bosat builders
and owners. 1t appears as a red or pink
stain on viny! marine uphaoistery caused
by a specific strain of bacteria that thrives
in Marine envirgnments. There is usually
no altermative but to replace the
upholstery completely.

Thanks 10 innovation by our Coated Fabrics
techmical taams in Columbus, US, and
Rayong, Thailang, we have developed a
new, palent-protected barrier technology

Tidal Wave™ - new technology keeping marine

that stops the bacteria's pink dye from
spreading to the surface of the upholstery.

Our new Tida! Wave'™ rnarine vinyl
upholstery, sold in our Nautolex® range,
means beat owners can kesp their cushions
white — and creatas savings and competitive
advantage for our boat-building customers.
Launched in 2018, Tidal Wave™ had Its
bDest-ever year of sales in 2021, and was
recognised in cur annual Innovation

Awards this year.

_/

Revenue

The division achieved revenues of £382.5 milion
inFY21, a significant increase on FY20,

The increasa in revenue was attributable

. loincreased volumes, consisien focus

on product pricing and margin management,
and the impact of the OMNQVA integration.

EBITDA
We achieved EBITDA of £47.6 million for
industrial Specialities in F¥21, compared to

~ divisional EBITDA of £41.2 million in FY20.

Larninates & Films, imtegrated from OMNCVA,

. vontinued to grow revenue in FY21 through
. strong volurmes and further market share

gains, following a very strong yaar in FY20.
Ths business contiues to grow ahead of the
market through substitution of the superior
performance and lowar cost of aminates and
flims compared to traditional wood and stone
materiais. The business is well placed to
deliver another year of growth in FY22,

The Coated Fabrics business also integrated
sinca the acquisition of CMNOVA, benefited
from growth in the Asian automotive and
motorcycie markets. The business experienced
strong volumes during FY21, and delivered
very strong year-on-year growth.

The Vinyl Polymers buginess had a resiient

. year, delivering strong volumnes, but was

adverssly affected by weaker unit margins
tollowing unprecedented raw material price
Increases and a weaker US dolla-. With the
recovery of unit marging during the second
half of the year following sales price
increases, this business is in a good
position to deliver growth in FY22,

The Polybutadiene Lithene business delivered
year-on-yedar growth through strong volumes,
partly helped by the recovery in the

automctive sector.

: Williar Blythe deliversd excelient year-an-

year growth with strong underlying volumes

" from existing and new prodyct sales.

Our Speciality Additives business, which
supplies speciality coatings, delivered an
exceptional performance with record valumes
and streng unit margins. The business also
benefited from the cost improvernent plan
delivered during FY21.

The Powder Coating business delivered
strong voiumas and unit margins, and
defivered a recard EBITDA year.



Acrylate

Monomers

Canstant
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Set up as a division in early 2021, Acrylate
Monemers has made significam progress
on its iong-term transfermation prograrmme,
which set out to retum the division ic
profitability and establish a strong,
sustainahle foundaticn for future growth,
Our abitity to make good progress with the
programme in 2021 reflects the commitment
of our paopie at Sokolov, who have driven
it through while maintaining operations,

all in the 1ace of the disruptions caused
by COVID-19. Whiist the exceptichal
performance in 2021 is principally driven
by strong unit margins brought about

by disruption In the monomers market,
the transformation project has undoubtedly
benefited the site and has placed it on

a mare resilient and sustainable footing.

Ending coal use in Synthomer

A key element of our transformation
programme &t Sokolov, was beginning

the closure of the site's coal-fired power
gtation. This will mark the end of coal use
in Synthomer, centributing to our target to
reduce GHG emissions by 40% by the end
of 2030 (compared to 2019), and reinforcing
our strong commitment to reducing our
carbon fogtprint. Our investment at the site
witl aleo reduce our site water requiramants
by 23%.

Continuing focus on safely
Improving safety performance is another
cantral component of the transforrmation
of the Sokolov site. We have focused on
strengtnening practice and processes
including permit 1o work, management
of change, and local involvement and
accountability for driving SHE culture
across the site.

We will continue to invest in improved safety
as part of our Group-wide commitment to
SHE as a cora Synthomer value, and of our
Vigion 2030 sustainability roadmap.

Performance review
Safety
Acrylate Monomers achieved a recordable

| cage rate of 0.2 in FY21. This represents
- a significant decrease in the recordable injury
" case rate from FY20, when it was 0.42.

The division demonstrated significant
improvermnent in & number of SHE focus areas
as part of our transformation programme at
the Sokolov site. Tha division also graduated
from SHE 'supported site’ status at the end
of FYZ1. No process safety events were
recorded in FY21, an improvement on the

. F¥Y20 process safety rate of 0.10.

Volumes

Acrylate Monomers achieved overall volumes
of 56.9ktes in FY21, compared 10 volumes
of 59.9ktes in FY¥20. This decrease is partly
attributable o a change in product mix,
supphying greater volumes to our Runctional
Solutions dispersions business as well

as the chalfenging operationat and raw
material environment.

Revenue
Tha division achieved revenues of
£85.2 million in FY21, a significant increase

- onFY20. This increase reflects a substantial
. rise in sales ptices dus to strong demand,

and the lemporary tightening of supply in
both European and global markets in FY21.

" Among the events which had an impact

on supply were & number of acrylic monomer \

supplier ferca majedras within Europe, the
US winter storm and the blockage of the

]

Divisional

‘'snapshot

~ Suez Canal, which began in March 2021,
I This ternporary tightening of supply is

expected to nermalise ovar the course
of FY22 as competitors restore levels of
production and shipping constraints sase.

EBITDA

The division deliveren EBITDA of £35.3 million
InFY21, compared to a smail joss of £2.4 milion
in FY20. This return 1o profit was primarity driven
by a substantial increase In unit marging, as

a result of the period of strong demand and
temporary tightaning of supply in our marksts,

: described above.

In agdition, Acrylate Monomers has delivered
a number of cost savings in FY21 as part of
our transformation programine, the full-year
benrefits of which will bs realised during FY22.

Priorities for FY22

Synthomer plc |
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Review of the year

Innovation

Innovation:
creating value

for customers,
driving our growth

38
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‘Our global innovation
network is at the heart of
serving customer needs,
meeting our sustainability
objectives and driving
our growth’.

Marshall Moore

e

Why we innovate, what we
innovate — and how we do it
Everyone working in innovation at Synthomer
should have two words on their mind, every
day: 'specialisation’, and 'sustalnability’.
Whatevar we are doing — investigating

new technology platforms, desigring new
products, researching new applications

- we must focus on what will drive growth

for the business, That comes from customers
choasing our products — and more and more,
specialisation and sustainability are the
criteria they use to make that choice.

Cur strategic priorities reflect this. We have
introduced a target that 60% of new products
should Fave a definad sustainability benefit
by 2030, and we are aiming o ensure thal
rew and protected products make up at leasl
20% of our sales volume fthe NPP metric).
Thase are ¢hallenging goals - but tam
convinced we have the right innovation
pracess, tha right people, and the right

spirit to achieve them.

Where we focus our

innovation efforts

Innovating to support sustainable growth
for Synthomer means adding distinctive,
differentiated value for our customers, while
making our own business more etficient
and effactive.

New product innovation within our customer-
facing innovation teams means tailoring
soiutions based on our current technologies to
mest new customer neads, or in anticipation of
consumer and market trends. To enable more
game-changing innovations In the future we
have astablished a new Technology Platform
innovation team focused on investigating new
chemistrias designed to mest the changing
needs of the market.

The three pillars of our
Technology Platform’s

" innovation apprcach

O,

Suetainability
Supporting Synthomer's Vision 2030 roadmap
through technologies and products that:

= Are based on more sustainable raw
materiais, inciuding bic-based materiais

» Have lower environmental impacts when
inuse

« Have lower environmental impacts at tha
end of their lives.

. Enhanced performance

Expanding and diversifying Synthomer’s
portfolic by investigating new monomer and
polymer systems that perform better at:

» Binding, bonding and toating
+ Improving adhesion, repellency,
or aesthetics

 « Materiaf and formutation efficiency.

©,

Formuiation and process efficiency
Developing efficient technical approaches
and methodologies that:

1 * Make us mers efficient
* « Get our products to market gquicker

+ Enhance our product knowledge
¢ Give us a bettar raturm on ivestmeant.

 Across these piliars, we have developed a

new Innovation Excellence Framework 1o help
keep everyone in our teams focused on our

 objectives. Tha framework gives Us ail six

'ways of working' — the principies that guide
how we work every day.



Global coverage - with direct
finks to manufacturing sites
Worldwide, we have 16 innovation sites.
Qur four centres of excellence in the UK,
Germany, Malaysia, and the United States
provide leading research and developmant,
and capabllities to suppert product and
process innovation acrass all our divisions.
The other 12 are technical centres and pilot
Ines located close to our manufacturing
sites that respond to market-specific
customer neads.

Putting innovation to work in
every aspect of our business
Each business unit within Parformance
Elastorners, Functional Solutions and
Industrial Specialities has its own dedicatod
innovation team. Our Giobal Technology and
Innovation function aversess our worldwide
innovation network, conducts research on
new technology platforms and provides
centralised support for safety management,
material characterisation, process
deveiopment, intellectual property

and regulatory compliance.

Innovation
shapshot

Qur cenires of Qur market-specific

excellence: technology centres:
Akron, LUSA USA: Aubum, Chester,
Harkew, UK Jeanngtte, Monrca,
Marl, Gormarry Restiuck and Stafford
AIC (Kula), Malaysla Rayong, Thaltand
Sant'Albano, tafy
Shanghai, China
Sintra, Portugs!
Villajust, France
Accringian, UK
Giobal Technology and Innovation
SHE Product Stewardship and
Ovarseas occupationat safety in our Regulatary Compliance

innovation centres and labs, and our
Responsible Care Managemsant System.

Intellectual Property and Knowledge
Management

Protects our proprietary knowledge

and maximises the value of inventions
through patents.

Material Characterisation

Builds understanding of materials at
a molecular level to enable smarter
product design.

Advanced Process Innovation
Industriafises new innovations and engineers
safer, more effective and efficient ways 1o
manufacture our products.

Ensures that the products we ssll are
safe and compliant, and guides safe
product design.

Platform Technology and External
Innovations

Innovates new technology platforms that
help us make differentiated products at
scale to meet customer demand.

Sustainability

Oversees our sustainability governance
framework and sets goals to guide how
we innovate and operate,

Our new Innovation
Excellence Framework gives
us six ‘ways of working’

1. Clearly alighing innovation resources
to the business strategy

2. Fostering creativity within our team
and through collaborations

3. Incorporating process safety and
sustainability into product deslgn

4, Investing in people, working in teams

5. Delivering excellence in project and
portiolic management

6. Focusing on delivering results.

Priorities for 2022

Synthomer pic
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Reviaew ot the year
Innovation continued

Investing in innovation
in Asia to meet
customer needs

Qur Asia Innovation Centre [AIC) in Malaysla
became fully operational in April 2021,
The AIC is isading the way on research and
development to support our Performance
Hastomers and Furctionat Solutions
business units,

We invested RM35 million in the §,000m?
facifity in the iPark near Senai Airpont, Johor
Bahru, as part of our commitmant to meet
growing demand from customers for
product development and apglications
suppott. The AlC has accelerated innovation
in key markets such as Healthcare and
Protection (nitrile gloves) through state-of-
the-art R&D reactor capabillities and
investmant in new Apolication Technology
inciuding a robotic glove-dipping laboratory.

"Our new flagship facility
leads our innovation in
novel nitriles and ensures
Synthomer stays at the
forefront of nitrile latex
product development and
appfications. 1f will aiso create
the right environment to
attract and retain the best
talent in the industry.”

Gan Boon Teck

Vice Presigent and General Manager of
Performance Elastomers division in Asia
“This is the first phase

of what we expect to be

an ongoing investment in
innavation in Asia, supporting
al divisions of the company.
As well as expanding our pilot
lab reactor capacity, we are
also investing in a new
robotic dipping arm to

more effectively mimic

our customers’ processes
and accurately predict the
behaviour of our polymers.”
Dr Zhenli Wei

Vice Prasidert of innovation for

~N

Performence Elastomers division

/

Innovating sustainably

We see sustainability as one of the main
drivers of innovation - and product and
process innovation as an essential enabler for
making our business both more sustainabie,
and more competitive. Developing more
sustainable products and processesis a
critical way we can add value for customers
—which is why we've set a target of B0%

of new products with cefined sustainability
banefits, including:

= Eiim'pating ingredients of concem
+ Reducing energy consumption and
carbon emissions
* Reducing water consumption
= Reducing waste generation
* Reducing or efiminating hazards in
our products
= improving product end-of-iife management
* Enabling sustainability benefits in
downstream use.

Synthomer plc
Annual Report 2021
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We've created new benchmarks 10 assess
the impact of our innovation projects against
the goals of Synthomer’s Vision 2030
roadmap. We conduct Sustainabiity impact
Assesaments o all of our product innovation
projects, and we're developing the capability
to cenduct life cycle assessments on
candidate products during the innovation
process, We've developed new capabilities
to enable the design of biodegradable
products, and we're exploring how we can
increase our use of bio-basad raw materials.
Wa already use them in several of our
products and they coufd play a big part

in our lower-carbon fulura.

At the same time, by optimising or
radesigning our manufacturing processes,
we can help make our plants safer and more
efficient while reducing greenhouse gas
emissions. For more on our contrioution,
see the Suslainabifity section of this repaort,
pages 42-68.

|

QOur innovations are
all around you...

.and wil' find &
throughout this re

SyNovus “Plus - sustainable
innpvation in action

Lipolan'* TERRA - making latex
foam more sustainahle

Innovaling cur processes to deliver
SyNovus'” products

LITEX' " Shield XSBR fechnology ~
supporting construction

Tidal Wave' '~ helping marine
upholsterers combat 'pinking’

Suncryl® - hio-based and circular




Synthomer
speclalist polymers in
liquid er dry form provide
binding or bonding properties in a
broad range of industrial and
consumer construction apphications.
From mortar modification to fiquid-
applied waterproofing membranes,
caramic tile adhesives to flooring
adhesivas, our SBR and acrylic
dispersions deliver exceilent
performance across the various
technologies in use in the
construction market.
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RBusiness folndalions

Synthomer and sustainability

A sustainable
agenda for a
growing business

This has been an important
year for Synthomer and our
sustainability agenda.

https://www.symthomer.com/company/

corporate -responsibllity/

sustainahility/?region=EUROPE
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‘As a speciality chemicals
company we recognise
that we have arole to
play in meeting society’s
expectations for a more
sustainable future. The
launch of our new Vision
2030 roadmap in 2021 is

an important step. 1t will
help guide our actions
over the next decade as
we work towards our net
zetro ambitions.’

Tim Hughes

For many years, our speciality water-based
polymers have helped replace solvent-based
products that contam harmiul volatiie organic
compounds. However, if last year's COP26
event proved anything, R Is that society's
expectations of businesses iike ours continue
to grow.

As a speciality chemicals comparny, we
recognise the role we must play, which is wiy in
2020 we announced our commitment to reech
net zero by 2050. We've since launched our
Vision 2030 readmap as our starting poirt for

! realising that commitment. This roadmap sats
. aut a series of sustanability targets, aligned with

the UN's Sustainable Development Goals, and
reflects the issuBs we Know matter most to
our stakeholders. Many of these targets are
undeminned by short-term objectivas, so
that we can track and repart progress over
the coming decade.

Taking ection -~ and making progress
Targets must be backed by action, and

'm pleased to say we've put a lot of wheels
in mation this year. For example, we've
established a new sustainability governance
structurs, introduced new sustainability
champions across key operations and
functions, and launched new scorecards

to assess all new product development

and large-scale capital projects against
sustainabiity criteria. And so that stakeholdars
can betier understand our financial and
non-financial performance side-by-side,
we've integrated our sustainability reporting
into our Annual Report. To coincide with the
pubication of this Annuai Report, wa will also
pubiish a data pack on our website, giving our
stakeholders easigr, faster, more transparent
access 10 our sustainability cata.

Meanwhile, we've also hit our interim

| renawable eiectricity objactive ahead ot
 schedule, published externaly assessed

Scope 3 ernissions for the first time, and
established a new diversity and inclusion
steering committee, led by our Chalr, Carotine
Johngtone. | am also particularly pleased
that gur commitment to sustainable products

" and services was externally recognised with

an LSE Green Economy mark in July 2021,
This is awarded 1o compahies who earm
more than 50% of their revenue from
envirenmental salutions.



01563

tonnes of CO.e Scope 1 and 2 GHG
emissions per sales production tonne

1%
reduction

vs 2019 baseling

Putting safety first - and responding

to COVID-19

Of course, as a chemical manufacturing
busiress, safety must always ba our first
priority and sits at the centre of our core
values (se¢ page 55). we're proud of our
long-term record and know we must maintain
our focus as we grow. Wa anticipate some
short-term fiuctuation in our safety, health
and environment (SHE) perfarmance when
imMegrating naw businesses like OMNOVA.
We allow three years from the date of a new
acquisition to help our new businesses to
meet our SHE standards and align with our
sustainability goals. We are now almost two
yaars into that process with OMNOVA and
are starting 1o see their efforts show in our
results. This is thanks o the excellent

work our SHE teams have done o help

our new colleagues introduce our tocls

and processes.

It's impossible to talk about health and
safety and not mention the ongoing COVID-18
pandernic, Demand for our products has
remained hign and | would like to thank
everyone for continuing 10 protect one
another while keeping our sites running
sa'ely. | believe the dedication and care
they've shown are clear expressions of

all our core values in action.

We have continued to adapt fo local reguiations
throughoudt the pandemic, including having

. fewer people cn site and closing labs when

i needed. Our customers have faced similar

chaftenges. This is likely to have a short-term
impact on our innovatien pipsline — but we've

' Mmade progress nonetheless. In 2021, wa

{aunched 19 new products, of which 43%
include & defined sustainability benefit.

We also introduced new innovation awards,
which include a sustainability categaory.

Going further on diversity and inclusion
Ws also continued to embed our people
agenda, with a growing focus on key areas
such as divarsity and inclusion, career
development and employes engagement.

We're particularly pleased that we met our
2021 abjective of 20% of women in senior
leadership toles. In February 2022, Ana
Permroni Laloe was appeinted President,
industiial Speclalities, joining our Executive
Committes. The appointment of Lily Liu

as our Chiet Financial Officer will further
accelerate our progress. Once Lily Is
officially on board, women will make up
44% of our Board.

We have a good gender and sthnic split at

a graduate leval. And the global Engender
women’s network had a busy first year.

We also reviewed our recruitment processes
to keep improving representation on our
candidate lists.

" Of course, diversity must be backed by

a sense of belonging, | think the speed with
which we compieted the OMNOVA integration
is an example of our commitment to this, with
many OMNCVA leaders taking up seniar
positions in Synthomer,

* But we have a lot more to do, and my

Executive Committee colleagues and | are
personally committed to encouraging greater
diversity across Synthomer and to creating an
envircnment where paople see opportunities

i 1o grow their career with us.

Driving down emissions
We've done a fot of work over the past
few years to address our Scope 1 and 2

i emissions, in 2021, we ook & big step

forward when we [nstalled new gas boflers

. to allow closure of our only coal-fired
power station, and ensured that 90%

of the elactricity we use at our sites came
from certified renewable sources. These are
fantastic achievements, but our teams remain
busy finding further ways to improve our
energy etficlency, source long-term

| renewable electricity and manage

our water and waste levels.

Meanwhiie, we started work this year to
report in line with the recommendations of
the Task Force on Climaze-related Financial
Disclosures (TCFDY). This work focusea

On our governance, assessing our ciimate

risks and developing ore scenario analysis.
During 2022, we will devekop further scenario
analyses n our key operations and supply
chains to develop our understanding of our
climate opportunities and risks.

i We're now building on our TGFD work to

determine science-based targets, dus for
compistion in the coming year. See page 77
for our TCFD report,

Starting the next decade from

a strong platform

Qur teams have achieved a great deal

this year, including ongoing work to
integrate OMNOVA in the face of COVID-19
trave! bans and operational restrictions.
Cnce our proposed acquisttion of Eastman's
Adhesive Resins is complate, ano we create
aur new Adhesive Technologies division,
we 'l realign our baseline sustainability
metrics. This wil be a big task, but it's also
an opportunity to embed our sustainability
agenda into our new division from day one.

Working in partnership to build a more
sustalnable world

This next decede will be crucial for the world's
ability to limit temparature rises and mest the
commitments set out under COP26A. And,
integrations aside, we will have our own
challenges to address. Many of our chemical
processes require heat, which ws typically

" generate with natural gas. And most of our

raw materigls are made from fossi fuels,
Indead, more than 90% of our Scope 3
emissions ¢ome from our supply chaln.

So, while we continue to invest in our own
sites and progesses, we know that we can't
salve all these challenges on our own. We're
going to need to forge new partnerships to
change the way we use energy and find more

" sustainable ways to select our raw materials.

We're already working with our customers
10 create innovative new products with better
sustainabllity ¢redentials. Now, we want to
increase the number of suppliers we work

. with who can provide the most sustainable

products and services, so that we can help
drive down emissions across the whole
supply chain.

Through our spacialily chemicals, we can and
do make a meaningful contribution to society.
Our growing stature gives us the chance to
play an even greater role in helping the world
tread a more sustainabile, fairer path. We've

. done a Iot of work over the past coupla of

years to put strong foundations in place.
There wil be challenges as we move

. through this next decade, but there are

. also epportunities, | know that cur people

will rise to both.

Synthomerplc
Annusal Report 2021 |
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Business foundations

Synthomer and sustainability continued

Our approach to

sustainability

We want 1o embed

sustainability into every :
aspect of our business, to l
help us play a greater role
in creating a fairer, more

. ke :
sustainable future and respond | e e
to the climate emergency. ‘
Our commitment fo net zero 1. Products

We made a public commitment in 2020 to )
reach net zero by 2050, in ins with the Paris |
Agreerent. To achieve this, we are: !

« Using our innovation skills to develop new
products made with iower-carboen raw
materials and more eficient manufacturing
Drocesses

Ending coal Lge at our cperatons (see page
59 in our Oparations section for more
information on how we achieved this

in2021)

Starting work 10 define new science-

based targets

Using new sustainebility scorecards to
255688 oL Innovation programmes and
capital expenditure '
Establishing intarnal life cycle assessments

tc assess the viability and resource needs

of our products

Estabiisning partnerships with suppliers

1 drive dowr emissions across aur

supply chain

Agdressing end-of-lfe product

management across cur markets

Waerking to incorporate a carbon price into
our capital planning.

3. People

And. as we grow and acqudire new
busingsses, this apgroach is part of how
we look 1o integrats them into Synthomer,
We introduce our tools and processes into
new acquisitions to help them meet our
sustainatyiity objactives. which we expect
thern ‘o do within three years of acquistion,

In considenng our approach, we concentrate
on the issues where we can have the most
impact and that are most material to cur '
stakeholders. This year, we recrganised our
prigrties, moving from our six pihars 1o thrae
key areas:

1. Products
2. Opeyations
3. People

2. Operations

Vision 2030: our roadmap to a more
sustainabie future

Wa have developed our Vision 2030 roadmap to help guide aur dacisions over the next
decade and set us on the path 1o net 2erc. it contains a serles of targats across cur threa

We will continue it increase the number of praducts we maxe that
have sustainability benefits, and source more raw materials with
suppliers who have a sustainability rating and who share our gthical
standards:

= Al least B0% of hew products with enhanced sustainability benefits
* 80% procuremant spend with supplers with a sustainabibty rating.

While aimmirg for zero harm, we will achieve top quartile performance
tor persenal and pracess safety. We will also dress down emissions
and minimise our broader snvironmental impact:

» Secordabic infury case rate of no more than 0.20 per 100,000
hours for errployees and contraclors

» Process safety event rate of no more than §.10 per 100,600 hows

= 40% reduclion in Scope 1 and Z gregnhpuse gas emissions
intensity [vs 2019)

» 10% -eduction in Scope 3 emissicns imensity {vs 2019}

* 80% of our electricity from renewablg sources, plus improving
energy efliciency in all our operations

« Manage ana minimise water consumption, and introduce watier
managament plans it water-stressed araas and at the sites where
we use mast waler.

We will become a more diverse and inclusive company, Hind now
ways 1o listen 10 cur employees, and increase our support
for local communities:

= 50% gender giversity in leadership, rnanagement and protessional
new hires

* 70% participation in our employee engagement surveys at global
and country levels

* Provide volunteer support and financial contributions i excess
of £1 million a year for locel educalion, pubilic heafth, diversity and
environmental projects.

The UN's 5D0s mast relevant to aur Vision 2030 goals

Our targets are underpinnec by a series of short tarm objectives and
ag ahgried with the LIN's Sustainabile Development Goals [SDGs) that
are Most material 1o vur business. We cutline these objectives and
describe our approach to tach of our ma'erial issues across pages

48 to 68. Over time, and where agpropriate, we will lock to update

and add new shortterm objectives as we mave 1owards 2030, ‘)

44 Synthomer plc
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Governing our sustainability approach

How we oversee progross
QOver the past three years, we have evolved our governance structure ta ensure
gustainability is discussed at the highest levels of the company, and to heip further embed

sustainability into every aspect of our business.

Board of Directors

Arsponsibilitles
Oversess our Group-level sustainabilty agenda.

Actions
Reviews sustainabiity topics at Board mestings, with particular
focus on our most material issues.

J

Executive Committee Steering Group

Responsibliities
Our CEC is responsibtle for delivering our sustainability agenda
and meeting policy commitments on behalf of the Board, and leads
the Executive Committee Steering Group.

Approves all sustainability-related strategic planning, including on climate-related issues.
Actions
Reviaws sustainability topics monthly/quarterly.

Sustainability Steering Committee

Responsibilities
This cross-funcrional group of serior leaders defines our sustainability targets and roadmap.
Coordinates sustainability activities across tha business.
Reports directly to the Executive Committee Steering Group.
Actions
Cur Sustainability Director hosts quarterly meetings of the committee to monlior progress
asross our business.

\

Sustainability Delivery Board

Responsibilities
This Beard consists of our Group-wide network of sustainability champions who manage

cross-functional sustainability projects and programmaes.
Actlong
QOur Sustalnability Director hosts monthly meetings with this Board to discuss
project progress.

| Membership of industry associations

. We work closely with the main sector groups in
our industry, including the Chemical Industries
Association {CIA] in the UK, the European

. Polymer Dispersion and Latex Association
{EPDLA)} in the EL), the American Chemistry

i Councit{ACC) in the USA, and the Malaysian

" Rubber Glove Manutacturers Association

Manufacturers Association (MRPMA)

| (MARGMA} end Malaysian Rubber Products

. in Malaysia. In many cases, this work inchudes
taking a seat on the sustainabiiity committees
and actively participating in sustainability

workshops within these groups.

‘Our commitment to

sustainability can be seen
at all levels of Synthomer

- from engagement with

our Board and Executive
Committee, to our frontline
employees. Finding ways
to help our business and

the products we make
creates a positive impac
on the world around us

t

And our team of dedicated
sustainability specialists

is growing across our
glohal business, too.’

Susana Carvalho

Synthomer ple
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Business foundations

Synthomer and sustainability continued
Approach to sustainability continued

Our materiality ant

We assess our material issues every two
years 1o ensure we raport on thoge that
matter mast to our stakehaoloers.

W carried out our fatest assassment in Aprif
2021, speaking to a range of stakeholders,
including customers, employess, shareholders
and legislators. During this progess we:

= Incorporated *‘Quality’ into 'Customer
satisfaction and engagement’ and added
thiee new fopics

= Focused on ‘Communication and training’,
to snsure clear understanding of our
procedures, targsts and achievements
during cur integration with OMNOVA

*» Introduced 'Digitalisation’ to reflsct new
opporiunities to use digital technology
1o reduce our carbon fostprint

» lngorporated product life cycle
into & new ‘Circular economy’ topic,

We serit an online sustainability survey

1o 400 people from our main stakeholder
groups. We received feedback from 37%,
which confirmed that these topics remain
material. Our Susteinability Steering
Commitiee reviewed concerns and
suggestions raised by the survey to idantily
potential areas for action. While we have
made no significant changes, we will give
graater attantion to ‘Community engagement’
and 'Gircuilar economy’.

Undarstanding our climate-related risks
and opportunities

Ulimate-related risks have atways been
embeddad in tha principal risks of our Group

risk framework. During the last quarter of 2021,

wae expandad the framework to consider

a broader scope of climate-related rsks as &
result of the work carried out to report against
TCFD, This helps us better understand what
impact the ciimate emergency might have on
aur business and engure we rermain resilient
1o climate change. See our Risk report on
pages 69 to 76.

In 2021, we met our objective, set out in our
Sustainability Report 2020, to begin reparting
against TOFD. This will help us assess any
future impact on our business arising from
tachnology changes and the financial impact
of carbon pricing. See pages 77 t0 80 for our
TCFO report,

Synthomer plc
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| Materiality assessment

‘ 19 Sustainable growth

Products
1 Sustainable procurement
2 rTechnology and inngvation
3 Manufacturing excelience
4 Product safety
& Customer satisfaction and engagement
6 Circu Gircular Jlar economy

paga 51
page 48
page 54
page 50
page 50
page 48

Operations
7 Qccupational health and safity

8§ Process salety

] Energy management and reductaon
10 Watsr stewardship

11 Greenhouse gas emissions redution
12 Waste generation and minimisation

Peaople
13 Ethics and integrity
14 Commumcaﬂon and tramnng
15 Employee conditions
16 Diversity and inciusion
17 Talent developrment

18 Community engagement e

Strategy and governance

20 Risk management
21 Digitalisation

22 Responsible and mvmved management
23 Stakeholder involvernent and engagement
24 Compliange

__ pagss 54.and 55
page 56
page 59
bage €0
page 60
page 61

- page 66
_pages 85 and 66
page 63

pages B3 and 64
~ page65
pages 67 and 68

pages 26 10 40
pages B9 1o 76

page 66

from pages 83 to 128
pages 96 and 67
_Pages 8310129




External benchmarking and accreditation | Our approach \
We obtain independent assurance of our sustainability practices and parformance ~ l to reportlng and
and benchmark ourselves against our peers s we can better understand our progress and assurance

opportunities for improvemnent. We do this through voluntary participation in several external
programmes {such as CDF) and by reviewing our ratings on several recognised ndices

such as ISS ESG.

We engage with, and are assessed by, kay sustainability ratings organisations:

We hava reported our climate change performance to CDP since
2013 and water management performance since 2015. In 2021,
we retained our B- score in both categoriss.

CDP - D to A {maximum)

We submit annual data 10 the EcoVadis platform and use its
assegsmant to identify ways to Improve. In 2021, we Improved
our score from 58 to 63 and retained our silver status. We also
use the platiorm to ynderstand the sustainability rating of existing
and future suppliers,

EcoVadis — scale 0-100, medals, bronze to platinumn

We have besn a member of this organisation singe 2004. in 2021,
our overall scora was 3.6. We remain committed to our memhbership
and aim 1o improve our overall rating as we grow.

FTSE4Good —scale D to 5

IS8 Corpoarate Sclutions uses a data-driven scoring system and
screening analysis lo evaluate our sustainability agenda. Our 2021
overalil score was G-, This is the same as our 2020 score and
continues 1o place us well above average in our peer group.

IS8 - D- to B- fmaximurm for our industry sector)

MSC! measures our resilience to iong-term, financially relevant
sustainabifity risks. In 2021, we scored an ‘A’ This reflects our growing
commltment to continuously improve our sustainability practices.

MEC! - GCGC to AAA (maximurmy)

We were recognised with a Londen Stock Exchange Green Economy
mark in July 2021, This is awarded to companies who sarn more
than 50% of their revenue from environmental solutions, tls
designed to recognise both gresn technclogy companies and
businesses across all industries that are raking a signlificant
contribution to the transition to a more sustainable,

low-carizon econormy,

In past years, we have published a
separate Sustalnability Report — the
most recent being that for the fiscal year
2020, published in July 2021, Given the
Importance of sustainability issues, and
thair relevance to our overall business
performance, this year we decided to
incomporate owr Sustainability Report
into tha Annual Repart, with suppaorting
tachnical information published as data
downloads on our website.

This Annual Report, together with those
downioads, meet the requirements of the
Global Reporting tnitative {GRI). We have
preparad them to comply with GRI's ‘corg’
pption, and the topics we cover are those
we and our stakeholders have identified as
the most material. The details of specific
GRI disclosures can be found in the annex
on pages 184 and 185.

Synthomer plc i
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Busineass foundations

Synthomer and sustainability continued

Products

Delivering products that meet
the ever-changing needs of
our customers and the markets
they serve is essential for

the success of our business.
it has always been our goal
to make them using efficient
manufacturing processes
and in ways that ensure

they are safe for people

and the gnvironment.

Now more than ever we strive to design
products and processes that are less energy
intensive, generate fewer carbon emissions,
u5g fawer resources, glimingte substances
of concemn, and support @ more circular
scoromy. And we want 1o source the raw
materials that we use to make those products
from more sustainable sources, I is what
our customers are asking for, and our

other stakeholders expact. increasingly,
sustainability wilt become tha benchrnark

by which we assess every aspect of our
product pipeline and supply chain.

‘We made good progress
in our innovation pipeline
in 2021, despite ongoing
challenges related to
COVID-19 and global
supply chain problems.
For example, we're
making new products {o
replace additives that
contain volatife organic
compounds.’

Marshatt Moorg

Synthomer plc
Annual Repart 2021
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|
|

innovating
sustainable
products

As g leading supplier of water based

polymers, we have always been proud

of our ability to make products that have
sustainahility benefits built into them, |
Our specality chemical products provide )

_ essential building blocks to support modam

f
!

life. For decades, we have made most

of them in a way that usas water rather than
salvents in their manufacturing and in their
and-use, This helps keep harmful volatile
organic compounds (VOGs) out of the I
atmosphere. 1t is testament to the talent in our
innovation team that we continue to find ways

fo addapt our existing portfolic while designing

naw products with even greatar banefits. !

. Product sustainability performance in 2021

fm July 2021, we raceived the London Siock
Exchange's Green Economy Mark, which
acknowledges the fact that mere than 50%

of aur revenues come from environmental I
sohrtions. We are proud of this recognition, but |

" we know there is plenty more to do. it is our aim

. We rmade good progress in our innovation
* pipsfine in 2021, faunching 19 new products,

to deliver an ever-more sustainable portfolio,
$0 we have sel a product sustainability target
as part of our vision 2030 rcadmap.

" of which 43% included a defined sustainability

benefit. Wa also introduced new innovation
awards, including a sustainability category.

See page 33 for more information on our Shisld
XSBR technology, which wen this award in 2021

. by reducing exposure to substances of concern.

Our central innovation team also introduced
a sustainability scorecard 0 assess new
product ideas, and is devefoping in-house
capabilities to conduct lite cycle assessmants
on existing and new products. This will help
us improve the way we report on the profile
of cur products and allow us to devalop new
products with reduced carbon emissions.

Our progress
against 2030 targets

L B S B IR

Our shori-term cbjectives

Sefting a new baseline {o track

our progress

innovation is one of our five core values and
is an essential part of our plans to achieve

~ our 2030 targets. To track our progress over

the next dacade, we need to understand our
baseline. S0 wa used our new sustainability
scorecard to assess all our existing products
and our development picafine.

This exercise showed that across our
business, 57% of afl the new products in
our pipeline taday will defiver a net positive

. sustainability benedfit. Of thoge, 50% wil!

improve carbon emissions or have a positive
impact on the environment, 35% will reduce
the use of hazardous ingrediants, and 15%
will nelp craate a more circular sconomy.
Many of these praducts will offer more

tharm ane sustainability bonafit.



We know we will need to move at

rapic pace 1o meet our 2030 target.
Ongoing COVID-19 restrictions and global
supply chain problems affected scheduling
of the scale-up of new products in our plants
and the ability of our customers to evaluate
them during 2021, resulting in a slower pace
of commercialisation that will carry into 2022,

But these delays have not haitad progress
altogather. We have a strong base on which
to build, and our integration with OMNOVA
hax increased our capacity to design new
products by 50%.

Innovative products for a more
sustainable future

We continued to prograss our innovation
pipefine in 2021, designing and rnaking
products that replace ingredients of concemn,
have a lower carbon footpring, and help
support a more ¢lrcular economy.

For example, we continuad developing new
products for water-based paints that remove
the need for certain additives. While these
additives help paint spread across a surface,
they typically produce VOCs. Replacing those
additives therefore means we can prevent éven
more VOCs from entering the atmosphere.

We are also making products that halp
support a more clreular sconomy, such as
our new SyNovus™ Plus product line, which
is helping to recycle rubber gioves into new
applications, including soles for safety shoes,
See page 12 for a case study.

In addition, our centra! Innovation group
carniad out initial research in 2021 to evaluate
a broad range of low-carbon-impact raw
matarials. This led to a shortlist of raw
material candiclates with potential for further
devalopmeant. Our divisional mnovation teams
are now exploning tachnically and
cormmercially viable opportunities,

Introducing our new product
sustainability scorecard

In 2021, we rolled cut a new sustainability
scorecard 10 assess our innovation pipsline
againgt nine gustainability criteria (see box).
Tha scorecard is designed to give us a qualiativa
indication of the net Impact that a product may
have on our overall sustainability performance.
Products are scored on a scale from -5 to +5
{with +5 indicating a highly posttive impact) in
each area. Projects that have & negative
sustainability impact score are re-assessed
to identify approaches to improve the score.

As well as helping us sat the baseline for aur
2030 target, we are now using the scorecard
to identify opporiunities to improve the
sustainability credentials of existing and new
praducts, compare them against alternativas,
and share the!r banafits with our custorriers.
We have also introduced & sirnilar scorecard to
help our sites assess the potential environmantal
impact of large-scale capital projects (see page
42 for more information on this scorecard).

|
|

Our sustainability scorecard criteria

We now assess all the products in our Innovation pipeline under four kay areas:

sustainability goals.

Eliminating ‘ingredients of concern’ (listed as high hazard or of

Product hazard classffication {whether a product contains regulated
End-of-life managerment {e.g. longer product life cycle, better recycling

Customers able to eliminate ingredients of concem or lowsr thair

Raw materials

reguiatory concem)

Using raw materials from lower-carbon sources
Manufacluring Abliity to reduce enérgy consumption
Processes o — -

Ability 1o reduce water consumption

Ability to reduce waste /n our manufacturing processes
Product safety and
support for circular  hazardous Ingrediernts)
economy - T T

or biodegradable properties}
Bensfit to supply
chaln and product hazard classffication
customers — o —

Helping customers use lass energy or water, lowar carbon smissions
of wasta, support the clreular economy, or otherwise mest their

Devsloping in-house e cycle assessment
We run our major product lines and strategic
new products through external life cycie
assessment to help us understand their
sustainability benefits and identify areas

for improvement. In 2020, for example, the
European Polyrmer Disperslon and Latex
Association's cradle-to-grave Iife cycle
assessment showed that our key emulsion

| polymers (typically used lo make a wide

range of products, including coatings,
achesives, construction and non-wovens)
parform better than the benchmark in all

. categaties. Bureau Veritas has also carried

out a cradie-to-grave life cycle assessment
on our SyNovus™ Plus products.

These external ageessments are useful,
but the cost and time needed make them

" Impractical for evaluating sach product of

interest. Wa have begun a project to develep
new in-house life cycle assessments, starting
with a handfu! of our biggest-selling products.

" These assessmerts will improve our own

understanding so wa can report against
our products’ sustainability credentials on
an ongolng basis and continue to develop
new products with even greater banefits.
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Business foundations

Synthomer and sustainability continued

Products continued

Product safety

The majority of our products aris not classified
as hazardous, in accordance with the Globally
Harmonised System of Classification and
Labefing, as they do not have any componeris
or additives that require labelling at the
concentration in which we use them. Howaver,
a small proportion of what we sell contains
hazardous materials, including acrylic
manoiers. We provida customers with
up-to-date, legally compliant safety data
sheets for all products in all the markets
where we operate. in 2027, we had no
repored incidents of non-compliance
regarding owr product safety information,
lateling or marketing.

Less than 2% of our products contain
substances of high concern at a concentration
higher than 0.1%. Wherever possible, we look
for ways 10 avoitd using them at all. For examipie,
i 20271 we completed the reformulation of our
sustanable coated fabric product line typicalty
used in healthcare, office and hospitality
furniture, to efiminate ingradents that we know
regulators are increasingly concarned aboul.
To maintain our focus in this area, eliminating
ngredients of concern is one of the nine
criteria in our product innovation
sustaingbility scarecard.

Qur siatement on substances o very high coencarn
can be found at www.synthomer.com

Following the UK's trunsition out of

the: European Union, Synthomer UK has
completed the grandfatherng of s existing EU
REACH registrations into the UK programme.
We submitied move than 500 downstream user
import notfications ta the UK Health and Safety
Exeacutive before its 28 Qctober 2021 deadiine.
The products that we make and/or import in‘o
the UK now comply with UK REACH,

We alsc connucted a due ailigence exercise
to enswre the products we make in the UK
comply with EU REACH. This process
confirmed that all the ingredients in these
products are either sourced diractly

from the Furapean Ecananric Area

or are registered by Synthomer's

Only Representative.

All legal recuirements regarding provision of
safety information have boan complied with,
and we have had no reported incidents of
non-comalance regarding product safely
intormation, Iebeling or marketing.,

Customer satisfaction

Qur innovation and manufacturing technology
@armns and sales taarr s work closely with our
customers to ungerstand the technical and
sustainability chailenges thay face in thair own
manufaciving processes. This helps us keep
improving the products we make for them,
For example, we worked with a USA label
manifaciurer to develop grades for clear
filmic labels ‘or use n the USA, We alse
heped them expand ther business into
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"Our Suncry® HP 114 water-based polymer
contains more than 56% bic-based raw
materials, raking it a ‘antastic example of
how we can replace chemicals mads from
fossil fuels with lower-carbon options.
Suncryl® HP 114 is used in water-based
refease coatings on paper or plastic
packaging tape o create a non-adhesive
surface that means the tape can b easily
pulled free) and replaces fraditonal
solvent-basead relsase coatings. In other
apphications, it can be used to raplace
release coatings that traditivnally contain
silicone, This makes the finat product,
such as a selff-wound adhesive label,

Bio-based and circular: Suncryl® HP-114

more recyclable. In certain applications hike
paper tape, it can even be re-puiped and
reysad in new paper products, S0, it has
real petential 1o holp support a more circular
eacnomy. Wa're sc excited about that
patential tnat we're now exploring its use in
othar applications, like variable information
prirt labels, which can be customised

on demand for fast food orders or
warehouse shipments.”

Dr Carla McBain
Vice President of Innovation
for Functiona! Solutiens

S/

| Europe, evalating a new coating ine and
© transierring our technology from the USA

te our Sokolov site in the Czoch Republic.

We track customer complaints as a

- measure of our reputation and success

in the market, In 2021, we defined a now
‘cusiomar complaint rate’ baseline, to include
our legacy OMNOVA sites within our Group
and divisional perarmance metrics.

Whie the COvID-18 pandemic and

i global supply chain dificulties continued
- to challenge our manuacturng teams, we

sgnificantly improved our customer complaint

. performancs (number of complaints per

1,000 deliveries). We achieved this thanks

10 saveral improvement prograrmmes, inchuding
adopting new hygiene best praclice guidance
and pertorming specific process confirmations
for critica to-guality steps at some of gur sites.
As a result, our globa! complaint rate in 2021
vias 4.1, This is more than 30% lower when
compared 1o 2020

We also assess our manufacturing
effectivenass wa a 'ngh-first-time' rate

and scored 87.4% in 20271, This reprasents
the percentage of produc’s that are made to
ther correct specification in the first instance.
Herg, too, we sat new baselires in 2621 to
include our legacy OMNOVA sites 1 our
performance metrics.

We introguced several measures to
improve perfarmance at some of our sites,
For example, we rolled out our ‘proolem grade

, methodology” to afl our new sites. This helps
" gites fix the yoo! causes of recurrent product

or process guality issues.

We also estatiished a 'site-supported’

; nodel for sites that need specific help,

Thig increased support from our central
functions that nelps stes understand the root
causes of specific issues and provides more
fraquent montoring of sits pertormance and
progress against agreed corrective actions,
This model has helpead improve one site’s
right-first-time percentage by 10%, and an
ovarall Group-tevel improvement of 0.4%.



Sustainable
procurement

complex supply chain. We rely
on our suppliers to provide
high-quality raw materials,
goods and services, such

as petrochemical monomers
(including styrene, butadiene,
butyl acrylate and acrylonitrie),
additives, packaging,
machinery parts, gas and
electricity to run our plants
and ensure our products

meet the standards our
customers expect.

|
We are part of a global, highly {
|

Our progress
against 2030 targets

Our short-term objectives
2022

Our speciglist procurement teams around tha
world work with thousands of suppliers, and
in 2021 we spent approximately £1.5 billion
with third parties.

In order to move these supplies, as well

as our products, around the world, we have
to buy a range of logistics services across

all forms of transport, including shippling,

rait and road. As well as the large, bulk
shiprhenis, we also buy and sell many raw
materials and products at different quantities,
including what is known as Intermediate bulk,

Qur factories raly on machinery to operats
safely and we need spare parts and site
servicss to keep them in good working order.

I or in drums and smal packaging.
i
I

. As a large, multinational business we also
[ need to buy corporate services such a8s
. travel, IT, financial and, where necessary,

we appoint specialist partners to help us.,

Our progress in 2021
‘ This year, we have achieved our commitment
to buy renewable efectricity through a

i combination of having renswable sources

in new supply comracts, on-site or off-she

| power purchass egreements (PPAs),

1 and through the purchasae of gertificates.
As aresult, 90% of all the siectricity our

l manufacturing sites and offices use comes

from renewable sources, marking a significant

! step forward in diiving down our operational
gresnhouse gas emissions (GHG),

’ See page 59 in Operations for more
Infermation on why we expect to see some

‘ fluctugtion in our renewable electricity
statistics over the naxt decade.

’ Woe also set important new sustainable
procurement targets and short-term objectives
as part of our Vislon 2030 roadmap.

For the purposes of disclosure and reporting,

we gather our Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions

data togsther in our Operaticns section

| on page 60. We provide more detailed
information on the work our procurement

i team did in 2021 to achieve 80% of our

l sites being supplied by renewable slectricity

| on page 60.

Tracking supplier sustainability ratings
| with naw tools
In the past two years, we have taken steps to
. strengthen our focus on sustainabllity within
; OUF procurement processes, including our
sustainable procurement policy, launched
in 2020, and our confiict minerals policy.

This year, we nvasted in & sustainability rating
platform to help us identify sustainability risk in
our supply chain and we have started to track
and report how much of our procurement
spend 15 coverad by a sustainabllity rating.

We have also revised our supplier Hisk
assessment processes to include sustainabiity-
risk sa that we can use the platform in the most
effective way. We began using the platiorm in

2021, and now have 26% of our spend covered
by a rating - some way ahead of our 2022
objective. This Is the first time we have

baen able to assess our spend in this way,

The platform also gives us an important
new tool to assess potential suppliers
during a competitive tender process and

. review our existing suppiiers against exiemally
f recognised sustainability criteria.

In future, we plan to use the sustainablity ratings
platiorm to hetp influence and ancourage our
important suppliers to identity areas 1o improve
their performance and sustainability rating.

ft will also help us idemtify suppliers who do
not meet our minimum requirements.

in the same way, our cusiomers are using
similar ratings platforms fo assess us and we
ara currantty looking for apportunities 10 keap
improving our business.

Addressing the carbon footprint

of our raw materials

QOne of the most signiticant ways in which
we can address the climate change impact
of our products is through the raw materials
that we use to make them. But this is also
one of our toughest challenges, since many
of these are derived from oil and natural gas.
As a result, mora than 90% of all our GHG
emissions come from our upstream supply

i chain. However, we are looking for ways
* to identify and source more sustainable

raw materials.

For example, our inngvation and procurement
teams are working together to identify and

source atternative raw materials that have a
lower carbon footprint, Thesa couid be made

; from renewable sources, such as wood

waste, be manufactured in a more energy

| efficlent way, be sourced closer to our

tactories or contain recycied content.

Wa can introduce somae of these raw
materials withou? significant investment.

One of the first steps we can take s to track
the amount of raw materials with a lower
impact in our supply chain using accounting
principles and external auditing. For example,
if we buy 10% of a raw material with a lower
carbon footprint, we gan state that 10%
content in our products. This is often referred
to as a 'mass balance' approach,

This is becoming an area of increasing
innovation, with growing interest from our
custerners and society in general, and it is
something that our teams are working on

' tlossly with our suppliers and customers.
i One exampls of using this mass balance

+ approach is the opportunity to buy & certain

amount of butadiene made from recycled

[ or bio-based sources, Instead of virgin,

fogsil-fuel-based sources. We plan {o use
this butadiene 10 manufacture our HSSBR
polymers, to make foam for bedding.
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Business foundations

Synthomer and sustainability continued

Products continued

This protess Is monitored and certified

by the Intemational Sustainability and Carbon
Certification for Biormass and Bicenergy,
under its ISCC PLUS pregramme.

Once in full production, our customers will be
able to declare a lower carbon footprint for
their own products, using the same or similar
certification progranmme.

1t will take some years for atternative lower-
carbon raw materials 1o become available

2t the required scale and cost to transform our
supply chaing. And | is likely that govermments
will intraduce further legislation, taxation and
incentives to drive future innovation and
growth, for example carbon pricing.

Updating our policles 1o set clear
expectations

We will only work with suppliers who act

in accordance with our new Supplier Code
of Conduct or who have their own codes
and policies with equivalent standards,
Qur suppliers must also make sure that
their subsidiaries and sub-contractors

do the same.

Our Supptlier Code of Conduct sets out aut
minimum acceplable standards on issues
such as confiicts of interest, bribery and
doing business in sanctioned couniries.

We recognise that our position in our supply
chains means that we have the opportunity
and respongibility to work in partnership with
suppliers, pears and customers to create a
more sustainable supply chain. And as we
continue 1o grow, we will use our global scale
and increased influence to make an even
greater impact and reduce risk further.

As well as oJur Supplier Code of Conduct, we
have also published a sustainable procurement
policy, which we devaloped after completing
our last materiality assessment. The policy
brings together our expectations and targsts in
important sustainabliity areas that are directty
relevant to cur suppliers, such as safety, health
and environmental management, diversity
and inclusion, and quality management.

tt alsa sels out a series of objectives, such

as communicating the policy to ouwr
procurement team and stakenholders,

which we have achisved.

Symthomer glc
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In October 2021, our procurement leadership
team tooK part in a dedicaied sustainable
pracurement workshop to reassess the policy

| and set new performance measures that will

haip us realise our Vision 2030 fargets.

. Read our full sustainable procurement policy online

at hitps:/fwww.synthomer.com/fileadmin/
filesf pany/group_policles/English/
Synthomer_Procurement_Strategy.bdf

Understanding the risks and
opportunities in our supply chain

Ag Synthomer continues to grow in a
dynamic environment, we need to stay
alert tn changes in the nsks and opportunities
in our supply chain. Every year, we carry
out due diligence to manage the risks refated
to bribery and corruption when working with
third parties.

n 2020, we asked external advisers to carry
out an independent assessment of our most
material sustainability risks. The assessment
identified carbon emissions and enaergy

use, waste generaticn, and logistics {e.g.
road transport, rall and shipping) as our top
three material sustainability risks. Our existing
measures and tools systematically identify,
control ahd mitigate these risks. For example,
we have processes In place tC ensure we
have alternative suppliers or substitute
matarials should we face any issuves with
existing orders. When a supply risk occurs
we identify it as an incidert and manage cur
responses appropriately. Ve then apply any
lessons learned from the incident to help
reduca the risk of it occurming again. Wa have
integrated the assessment’s findings ino
our existing risk governance processas by
Incorporating our largest waste and logistics
suppliers intc our sustainability ratings.

We aiso started using a sustainabliity
risk-scanning tool in 2021 that helps us
identify existing supply chain risks using
criteria such as geography and industry type.

. This {00l helps us spot broader sustainability

risks in our supply chain, such as exposure to
pribery and corruption and human rights risk.

We want to continue to improve our risk
assessmant process and are exploring
ways ta create stronger cannections between
our Group and local site risk assessments.

. This will allow us 1o better undarsiand the
' supply ¢hain risks we face at a local level, and

aur cantral procurement taam is now working
closely with our sites on this issue.

Taking a lead on sustainability issues
in our supply chain creates competitive

. advantage. Like us, our customers are

looking for suppliers who are committed

to sustainability. That is why our innovation,
manufaciuring and procurement teams are
focusing on areas where we can increase
our product sustainability and energy
efficiency, and lower our carbon footprint.
The improverments we ara making In the way
weo collect and analyse our sustainabilty data
and use that information to make decisions
will help us demonstrate progress and build

our reputation.
1

- Wpholding human rights in our

supply chain

| We believe everyone has the right to be treated
with dignity and wa respect and rscognise

human rights for all as outlined in the
Internationat 8ill of Human Rights, We are also
committed 1o acting in & way that meats the UN
Guiding Principies on Business and Human
Rignts, Our Group-wide diversity, human rights
and equal opportunity policy is aligned with
the UN's Sustanable Development Goal 8,

We worlcin parts of the world where the
rnisk of human rights abuses Is higher than
others. These risks are also higher in certain

| sectors, such as road fransport logistics,

consiruction and temporary site work,



Wa do not tolerate modern slavery

and human trafficking In any part of cur i
business or supply chaim, as cutlined inour |
2021 Modern Slavery statement. We expect

our suppliers to compty with ail domastic \
smpioyment legislation. Thay should also | |
follow the International Labour Organization
{ILO) conventione and protocols and the |
United Nations' Universal Declaration of ; |

@
o
=
@&
£
=
g

1
|

Human Rights that are relevant to their o

activities. These include: \ \ §

= Mot using farced or slave tabour, or | { | %
any other form of involuntary labour : [ \

» Complying with ali child labour laws, '
and beyond that, not employing anmyone \
under the age of 15 | —

= Not allowing any activity that restricts | R
free moverment, i o)

o

In 2020, we rolled out en updated due s

diligence process to a small number of our \ B

suppliers in China. In futurs, all new suppliers | : %

in China will have to complste this due ! 2

diligence in order to work with us. | g

As part of our ongoing work to standardise | Our commitment to avoid using | -

ihe way we qQualify new suppiiers, we moved conflict minerals |

our Nerth Americe processes onto our globat | Our conflict minarals policy commits us ‘

gualification plattorm in 2021, This platiorm 10 avoiding the use of conftict minerals in i

containg 2 standard set of qualification and | &l our activities. This is relevant for gold, |

due diligenca questions plus supporting © 1in, tamtaturn and ungsten, known as 3TG ' ‘

evidence that the procuremsnt team can | minerals, which can be mined in parts of the |

use to review and qualify suppliers. in all, ‘ worid where armed conffict and human rights |

31 sltes now use the platform, and we have abuses are known to take place. [

;:ans for the remaining seven to join within ' we continually assess our 3TG minerals. -

the next two years. | This includes tin, which we usa in one of ! g

Read c‘)fur Modem Slavery statement oglinlen?'t i our manufacturing processes and is also | o

https://www.synthomer.com/fleadmin/files/ | t in athe ; ! =)

company/group_policles/English/Modern%20 | gﬁiegs 't';ai’a'y;t;"ate”a's that we use, | i3

Slavery%20Statement%202020_pdf ‘ ’ : . 5

| Our policy also outlines our axpectations of | H
) ] , our suppliers, which includes cenducting their | by
The sieps we are ! own due diiigence to verify the origin of thelr | L g
- . . i P’ : | :
taking will make | matenqls an_d_prc;'wds certification under : | &
. o recognised initiatives. | .
sustainability part of ‘ i
everything we do in the ? . ,
. , Read our full conflict minerals policy onfine at: I
procurement function, ! tttps:/fwww.synthomer.com/filsadmin/fies/ | }
L. . company/group_policies/English/Confiict%20 | I
This is transforming Minerals$20Policy%20Staternent%20 - 1
the way we do business Dec%202019.paf :
and will help to lower i PO
the carbon impact [ g
of our supply chain | | §
on the planet. ‘ : 2
! =1

Dr Steve
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Business loundations

Synthomer and sustainability continued

Operations

We strive to make our
products in ways that keep
our employees, contractors
and communities safe.

Our ultimate goal is to have
zero accidents and no adverse
impact on the health of cur
employees or the people
who live near our sites. It is
aiso our goal to minimige the
environmental burden of our
activities and to reduce the
consumption of resources.

As the world responds 1o the climate
emergancy, i is more urgent than ever
that we play our part and address the
environmenta! impact of cur operations.
So, while we continue to use our innovation
skilis 10 make ever more sustainable
products, we are also optimising our
manufacturing processes o lower our
carbon, water and waste footpnmn.

We took an important step in 2020 when we
announced our commitment 1o reach net zero
ty 2050, in iine with the Paris Agreement.
Now, our Vision 2030 roadmap, launchsd in
2021, sets out the path we will taxe to turn
tnat commitment into & reality. The roadmap
is made ¢f a serigs of targels and shorl-term
objectives, and our SHE-spectic targets can
be found in their relevart sections.

Embedding SHE at every leval

of the business

At Synthomer, everyone is rasponsibie for
SHE and we want evervone who works with
us 1o feel able to speak up it they see unsafe
or Farmful bebaviour. Al our sites must ahan
their processes and palicies with our
Group-wide Satety, Healh and Environment
Management Systemn (SHEMS),

Qur President, Qperations is respansibie for
iriernal SHE performance and management
at an exacutive committes level. He s
supportea by a Global SHE Orector and

a small global tearm, a3 well as a SHE
network that includes heads for each
aivision. This network also supports site
leaders and ‘ocal SHE teams.

54 Synthamer plc
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Working with suppliers to meet operational \
SHE standards

Wa expact our suppiliers to work in a way that complias witn our Group SHE policy and
requirements, as set out In our sustainable procurement policy. This includes making sure
suppliers have etfective health, safety and environment management systems in place that
are appropriate {o the nature and scale of their business, We are also starting to gather data
that will help us consider the carbon footprint of suppliers' products and processes when
making our procurement decisions.

Read our full susiainabie procurarnent poiicy oniing at hitps:/fwww.synthamer.com/filsadmin/files/
company/group_policles/English/Synthomer_Procurement_Strategy,.pdf

See page 51 for more information cn working with suppliers.

_/

Our SHE management systems

W cerlify our managemen’ systems egainst several externally recognised standards
and initiatives:

« 150 14001; today, all our operating sites are either covered by the Group's 1SO 14001
cartification or have site-specific certificates in place.

« ISO 50001 Energy Management System: cur UK, German, Czech and Le Havre,
France sites are accredited to this standard. We continue to apply the lessons we have
jearned from this structured approach to other sites around the world.

« [SO 45001: twe of our siies in italy and cne in the Czech Republic comply with this
slandard 1o maet legal requirements.

» ISO 9001: 3% of our sites are covered by the Group's 150 9001 certification.

Our SHE management systems, including those aspects linked to ISC 9601 and 180 14001,
cover commen areas found within 1ISQ 45001, Given that our internal audit processes fook
at afl aspects of SHE management and the confidence we have in these processes, we do
not intend 1o certify the Group to the 15O 45001 standard.

We align our management systems with the global chemical Industry's voluritary
Responsible Gare® programme to drive continuous improvement in sate chemicals
management. In addition, seven sites in the US are conforming 1o the requirements of
the American Chemistry Council’s RCMS®. We arse also a long-term signatory of the UK
Charmical Industries Assogation’s ICIA) sustamable development guiding principles,

)




Health and
safety

Keaping our people and contractors safe is
our highest priority. it {s enshrined in our core
SHE value that atates ‘we always have time
to work safely’, And it is the mest mature
aspact of all aur sustainabiity activities:

our global amployee survey teks us that
empioyeas understand our safety messages
and their responsibilities (see page 65 for
more on employee engagement). We have
incorporated occupational heafth and
process safety targets within our

Vision 2030 roadmap.

Our progress
against 2030 targets

Recordable aceident case rate

Process safely event rate {(PSER)

Cur short-term objectives
2022

Continuing to support our employees
through COVID-18

Throughout 2021 we adapted to living with
COVID-18, managing occupational health
by continuing to operate in line with local
guideiines. In countries where empioyees
could return to our offices, we put in
additional measures, such as one-way
systems at our sites, temperature screening,
limits on the number of people in cornmon
areas and more frequent cleaning of common
contact points, such as door handles.

At our operational sites, we continued to
carry out COVID-19 risk assessments and
routine testing.

This was particularly important in Malaysia,
whare infection rates rose quickly across
the country and at our sites, We inlroduced
weekly PCR testing at all our sites and
distributed face masks to all employses
avery Friday for use cutside work,

We also provided extra disinfection

and hygiene products on site, and every
two weeks handed out products to take
home. As a result, our COVID-19 infection
numbers in Malaysia fell steadily throughout
the year.

Later in the year, we participated in

. the government's national vaccination
" programme, and 100% of our Malaysla

employees were fully immunised. This allowsc
us 1o iNcrease employoe capacity at our sites,
in line with ongoing national rules.

OQOccupational safety
We want our employess to go home safely at
tha end of every day. While we have reduced

, the number and severlty of injuries over

!

recent years, we must continue to improve
10 reach our Witimate aim of “zero’,

In 2021, our recordable injury case rate (RCR}
fell 1o .31, This is targely due to improved
performanca at our former OMNOVA sites,
which saw RCR fall from Q.84 in 2020 to 0.47.
In ail, we recorded 34 injurfes in 2021, versus
37 in 2020.

Buring the year, we reported no cases

of disease caused by occupational factors
and thare were no accidents resulting in
fatalty or permanent disability.

Our gocupational safety performance
Recordable accident case rate

* Accldents per 100,000 hours

We track our recerdable accident case rate
(RCR) for Injuries that need more than first aid
treatment. Cur figures include employees and
contractors working at our sites, as well as
short-gtay visitors, such as truck drivers and

- gleaners. While our matrics are in line with the

USA OSHA standard, we report our RCR per
100,000 working hours, instead of the OSHA
standard of 200,000. This is for historical
reasons linked to UK HSE reporting metrics.

Synthomerplc
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Business foundations

Synthomer and sustainability continued

Operations continued

“Integrating a new business under normal
circumstances irwolves a lot of time and
care. It's not just about introduging new
policies and processes, although that is an
important part of the process. We also want
to help our new colleagues understand why
our standards are so Important to us so that
we can create a drumbeat of safety and a
consistent cukure across our Sites, so that
everyone is working towards our 2030
target for fop-quartile performance.

This work has been avan fnore challenging
during our integration with OMNOVA, since
it has taken place in the middie of the
COVID-19 pandemic. Ordinarily, our teams

Integrating a new business during a pandemic

waould be working on site with our new
colleagues to hell; embed our SHE culture.
Throughout the year, the corporate 1eam
delivered hundreds of hours of virtuai
training and support to sites globally, and in
November we held a globa! 'virtual’ SHE
conference with well over 150 attendeas to
share good practice and improvement goals
tor 2022. It has been a challange for
averyone, but | think we've achieved ahuge
amownt under vary difficult circumstances.”

Phil Wrigley
President, Operations and SHE

/

Process safety

I s essential that wa keep our equipment and
plants in good working order to help prevent
process safety related incidents, We also
strive 10 prevent the unexpected release of
dangarous chemicals in our manufaciuring
processes. To that end, we carry out routine
inspettions and maintenance at all our sites
that help us spot warming signs so we can
address problems befora they ¢ceur,

Qur process safety event rate {PSER)

rose te 0.16 in 2021 (versus 0,10 in 2020).

In our lagacy Synthorner businessas, our
PSER rose to C.13 (202C; C.a1) and at our
former OMNCVA, sites we saw a rate of 0.23.

All of our reportable PSEs this year were
releases which we contained on site. None of
tham caused injury, damage or envircnmaertal
harm. One-third of cur PSEs ocourred at one
site (0 the USA. In 2022, we wil infroduce a
transforration project to help the site rapidly
irnprove its performance.

. Synthomer plc
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Synthomer moniiors, reports and investigates
ali spilis, ranking any loss against the
associatad hazard of the mataral invoived,

as well as quartity spiled, where the spil
oceurs and its actual impact.

Praventing and managing the loss of eny
material thazarcious or otherwisa) is an
important part of our SHE approach, which
is why we include it in our key performance
indicators. We analyse the root causes, such
as human factors or types of machanical
failure, to identify appropriate sfte, business
or Group-kevel actions 1o reduce the potertial
for recurrence.

In 2021, we recorded 23 spills in our top
two tiers (cavering reportable PSEs, high-
scoring loss of containment and reportabile
srvironmental losses). None of these
spills had an impact on the environment,

Throughout 2021, we used our progess safety
confirnation routines to help assure cursetves
that employess who carry out critical
operations have the correct knowledge and
unCerstanding of what they should be doing
and how to respond to abnormal situations.
We ran Group procass Safety training caurses
at our legacy OMNOVA sites in the USA and
Portugal, 1o axplain the fundamentals of our
process safety standard, principles and
golden rules. We alsc worked with slte teams
to identity the barriers they have in place to
prevent, control and mitigate identified
potantial major accident scenarias.

Wa also cartied out a review of our data

. refating to flammabls losses of containment
! and tracked what are known as ‘weak signal’

PSEs, including reperts of mischargs, high
pressurg, loss of cooling and failed reactions.
These signals indicate weaknesses in our
basiers that could lead to a significant PSE.

After analysing mischarge events in 2021
within ane business division, we developed

i a self-assessment quastionnaire tool,

This is now being used by all our sites ta
identify possible weaknesses in engineering,
organisational or procedural controis that
increase the risk of mischarge and action plans
are being deveiopad 10 close these gaps.

. Our 2021 proeass sately perforrnance
. Process salety event rate

Events per 100,000 hours

Wea record, rate and track our PSES using a four-tier
scorng system. Tiers 1 and 2 {with tier 1 baing more
severa} meet the Intemational Council of Chamical

( Assoclations’ {ICCA) definition of a ‘repartable PSE'.

‘ Tracking and auditing SHE performance

Wa collect, analyse and report on industry-
recognised leading and lagging indicators,

. such as recordable injuries. reportable
| process safety events ang near misses.

We recerd all incidents in our Group-wide
accident and incigert management system
database. And we track our near misses on
a monthly basis. This is a standard measure
in our industry and one we use to ldantify
occupational and process salgty igsues
before they become significant svents

so that we can continue to improve our
procasses and barriers.

Whils COVID-19 made i difficult 1o carry out
in-person site audits, we were abig 1o carry

- put remote auditing at eight sites, using digital

collabaoration tools to work with siteg and
review their systems and documentation.
Towards the end of 2021, we reintroduced
face-to-tace audts at three of our sites.



Sharing lessons learned across
Synthomer ‘
Gur 2021 global employee survey continued
to demonstrate that our safety messages |
are well understood across the business. i
{See page 65 in our People section for
mare on our 2021 Your Volce survey),

Sharing krowlsdge, tools and processaes
is an essential part of how we make sure ;
we continuously fmprove in safety, That includes i
creating an open culture in which cur employees |
fenl able to discuss data and prugress.

n 2021, we introduced new measures to help ‘
our leaders and opsrational teams learn from
ona another. We introduced new regional
process safety networks which meet on a
monthly basis to discuss performance and
exchange good practices. Additionally, we
have rolled out our "Yellow Book' of common
injuri@s across al our sites and continue to
share root ¢auses of high-profile incidents
internaliy, as well as lessons leamed from
major industry incidents.

Other reguiar knowledge-sharing activities
include ‘code red’ calls for site ieadership
teams which take place after any significant
incident or senes of related events, and our
annual global health and satety confarence.

We also look for opportunities to share good {

practice with our industry peers. For exarmpie,

we shared some of the tools we have developed !
to manage the COVID-19 pandemic, such as
on-site lateral flow testing programmes, with 1
Chemical Industry Association members via L
their weakly COVID-19 operational calls.

Maintaining our focus as we grow '
As wa grow and intagrate new businesses,
we want to énsure that we continue t¢ embed
consistent, high-quality safety standards and
processes across the Company. But this
takes time, and we expect our metrics to
fluctuate over the next few years as we cairy |
out this work. While our Vislon 2030 targets
ropresent top-guaniie industry performancs,
thay also reflect this expectation.

We have seen this most recently during

the OMNQVA integration. While aur 2021 SHE
incident rates are higher than expectations,
we have reduced the gap, thanks to our SHE
experts and legacy OMNOVA colleagues.
Togsther, they have fast-tracked gap analysis
and action plans and introduced a new
dashboard, which wa will complete in 2022,
1o track progress against nine core safoty
elemants, including competence, legal
compliance, employee engagement and
process safety. We also carried out site
leadership competency assurance for
two-thirds of our new leaders to ensure they
have the knowledge and undarstanding of the |
major hazard risks and required controls to
keap our piants safe while we keep improving
our performance. We will assess the rest ‘
of our new site leaders during 2022, \

systems and behaviours

Evaryone at Synthomer is accountabls for kee

us stay vigilant:

Actioi Qur

Managing health and safety with strong

Safe operations rely on clear processes and systems, and responsible behaviours,

our leaders 10 our site operators - and anyona can lead by example, regardless of seniority.
The combination of our SHEMS, safety leadership training and employse engagement help

ping themselves and others safe — from

What we did in 2021

1. A strong SHEMS
policles against SHEMS.

non-conformance.

Every site must align their standards and

We conduct Group SHEMS audits over
a three-year cycle and expect sies to
self-assess agalnst changes and report

Carried out 11 Group
SHE audits, 8 remotely
dus to travel restrictions
and 3 in person. Two
SHE audits were carried
out on our behalf in
China by a third party.

2. Great jeaders
who are
accountable for
psople,
equipment and
the enwvironment

Qur leaders must commi

open to change.

principles and our goldel

demonstrate key safety behaviours ang be

Everyone is accountable for safety at

3. Employes
engagement Synthomer and we expect our employees to  shopfioor engagerment
and training identify and eddress specific risks and 1ooils at our sites:
adopt key bahaviours. Workplace en —

Employees must follow cur 10 SHE

Site leaders must host guarterly safety
commitiee meetings with employses to
discuss local safaety issues.

To increase our focus on
safety we carried out
competence assurance
for two-thirds of our new
site leaders.

it to our targets,

We introduced two new

checklist to identify and
address specitic on-site
occupational health
hazards.

n rules.

Embedded process
safety confirmation
routines to provide
assurance that
procedural and
organisationat bartiers
against major accident
hazards remained robust.

We are particularly pleased with progress at one
of our sites in Poriugal, which had the worst
occupational safety performance anywhere

in Synthomer, with eight recordable injuries

in 2020 alone. As well as the dashboard and
training, we established a dedicated SHE
transformation team, deploying on-site
resources to help develod and introduce 20-day
targeted improvement plans. These plans cover
all aspects of occupationa and process safety,
and included implementing new systems for
permit to work and management of change,
carrying out process hazard assessments

| and reviewing risk assassments. The teaam
aiso strengthened existing workplace

engagement activities and introduced

! new ones. As a result, the site experienced

one recordable injury in 2021,

| We are now using the lessons we have

" lgarned from Partugal and our broader

=; infegration work to create a more structured
; safety programme to help new and existing
sitas that require specialist support. This will
be important in the coming months as we
imtegrate the Eastman’s Adhesive Resins
acquisition and begin the process of

| embedding all our SHE slandards and

| processes into our newest sites.

Synthomer plc
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Business foundations

Synthomer and sustainability continued

Operations continued

Environment

2021 environment
highlights

* installed new gas boilers to allow
ciosure of the coal-firad power station

* 90% of total electricity used at our sites
is now renewab e

» Jotal CO-» equivalent emissions
decraased by 34% vs 2019

Synthomer plc
Annval Report 2029
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Our progress
against 2030 targets

402 reduction in Scope 1 and 2 GHG
emissions intensity (vs 2019}

10% reduction in Scope 3
emissions intensity (vs 2019)
Externally assessed Scope 3
emissions data for 2021 was not
availzb'e ai time o° publication, but
our data pack can be downloaded via
our website. For baseline Scope 3
emissions data, please sae cur 2020
Sustainabiity Report, which can also
be accessed on our website,

Cur weter-based polymers help keep harmmiul
volatile organic compounds (VOGs} out cf the
atmosphere. Mowever, the raw materials and
raanufacturing processes wa use 1o make
them can have a negative iImpact on the
environment ~ with mora than 90% of all

aur emissions coming from our supply chain,

We rely on menomers 10 make our progucts.
These molecules are traaitionally made from
foasit fuels, which requirgs a significant amount
of enargy in the canversion process. As the
energy st mainly comes from non-rangwadle
SOUrCES, U monomers carry assoclated
carbon ernissions along tha value ¢hain.

© We also use a lot of water in our products

and processes and require energy o transport
owr preducts around the world,

We must find ways to addrese all these areas
if we gre 10 realise our nel zero ambitions.

1 is also goad business: our customers are
increasingly interested in the sustainability
benefits of our products.

Mora information on how we are improving
the sustainable benefits of our products can

+ be found on pages 48-53.

Defining our ambitions

. This year, we set new anviconmental targets m
_areas where we can makea the biggest impact,
" which includes water as well as carbon.

These targets are part of our Vision 2030
roadmap and are supported by ghon-term
objactives to help us track our progress
fdetaits gan be found in the relevant sections).
in 2022, we will also compiete the work 10
determine new science-based targets in ine
with the objectives we set ourssaives In our
2020 Sustainability Report.

We aid a lot of groundwerk in 2021 to

- improve how we frack and repart aur

environmanta data, as weli as continuing
0 develop proects that belp tac<e our
snvironmeantal footprint, For example we:

+ Met our pbjective to introduce a new
sustainabilty scorecard to help sites
assess the potential environmental

impact ¢° large-scale capital projacts
Launched & new snvirommanta! dashboard
¢ provide more aceurate, frequent
envirormental data a1 Group, divisional
and site levels

Began assessing opticns 10 develop our
own internal prodact iife cycle assessment
{LCA} programme.



Introducing our project

sustainability scorecard

Following on fromn the successful roll out of ou-
product sustainability scorecard (see page 49),
we have introduced a similar scorecard to
assess capital projects. We will now raview new
projects against six criteria, inclugding energy,
emissions and water, scoring each criteria -5 to
+5 (+5 represerting the biggest posttive impact).
Projects with higher scores will be considersd
more favourably during our screening and
approval processes. 'n 2022, we will a'sn Inok
at incorporating a carbon price into this
process to halp align our projects with our
Vision 2030 targets and net zero ambition.

Updating our reported envircnmental data
This year, we are reporting metered electricity
instead of primary electricity.

We have amended our 2019 baseline values
to reflect changes in our Company. In the first
quarter of 2021, we sold one site, stopped
production at & secong and closed an office.
We have removed associated data from our
caiculations to provide a more accurate
comparison. We have also mads some minor
modifications due to reporting mistakes during
2019 and 2020. The impact is limited {between
1-3% deperding on the KPI).

Qur energy use and carbon footprint
Our absolute and specific energy
consumption rosa this year by 4.7% and
2.4% respectively versus our 2020 numbers.
While our erergy performance is not yet
where we would like to be, we have, however,
made excefient progress in reducing our
GHG emissions. At the end of the year,

we completed the installation of new highly
eificient gas boilers at our plant in Sokolov,
Czech Republic. Commissioning began

in December 2021 with full operation

in February 2022, allowing us to close

our coal-firec power station. This eiminates
coal as an energy source from al' our global
operations and will significantly reduce

our Scope 1 emissions in 2022,

Our second milestone saw a dramatic fall
in our Scepe 2 emissions — testament to
the work from our procurement teams o
buy certified renewable electricity. We now
have 90% of renewable electricity usage

In our sites. This is well ahead of our
short-term 2022 target to reach 50%.

The increase in both absolute and specific
energy consurnption compared with the
previous year is related in part to changes

in product mix, with increased production

of some higher-energy-intensive products.
Severai of these praoducts have downstream
sustainability benefits for cur customers,
Meznwhile, our laminates and films sites
saw increased demand, which led to higher
energy consurption, and on the Group-wide
intensity metric, a poorer performanca.

Other factors also alfected our 2021
performance, including higher than average
demand for our products in some countries,
Keeping our plants full can typically laad to
greater energy efficiency. However, the need
to maximise production at one of our sites

I meant wa had 1o introduce more intensive

cooling, and, therafore, higher relative energy
Lise, to reduce cycie imes in our reactors.
Meanwhile, our operations were affected
by ongoing COMD-19 restrictions in countries

: suah a3 Malaysiz und Vietnam and the
Texas power crisis In February 2021,

which led to supply chain difficulties
and stop/start operations.

As wall as our project to install new gas
boilers at our plant in Sokolov, we expect

" several other projects to help reduce our

energy use by at least 3% during 2022,

We are also planning to carry out detailed
energy dagnostic work and davelop site-lavel
decarbonisation roadmaps, both of which
will hetp us identify further opportunities

for improvement,

| In future, we wil expect our suppliers fo

. provide us witn carbon metrlcs associated
- with their products so that we can repont

* on the carbon footprint we are passing on

to our customers.

See pages 51-53 in our Products section
for more information or the work our
procurement teams are doing to halp us
address Scope 3 emissions and support
a mare sustainable supply chain,

. While we no longer include VOCs in our GHG
. calculations, we do continug to monitor them.
' Wa aggregate our number on a Group basls

and convert them to a carbon dicxide
equivalent (CO-£), using a factor of 11 —a
figure used by UK ClA member companies
since 2005. COze emissions associated with

- VOCs in 2021 were 6,548 tonnes (i8%

Increase vs 2020).

We collect data on the release of refrigerant
gases and aggregate these to create a Group
fotal. We convert each reported release into
a COgze value using the relevant DEFRA GHG
factor for the refrigerant in guestion. These
are inclugded as Scope 1 emissions. In 2021,
they accountad for 1,805 tonnes, a 7%
increase versus 2020 and 30% reduction

' versus our 2018 basedfine.

Total metered energy use
Gigajoules [GJ) per sales production tonng

‘This year has been about
setting ourselves new
environmental targets
and laying important
foundations. Now we
must get to work to
achieve those targets.

Guy Scudder

See annex on pages 182-183 for our

- UK-specific energy use data.

Metered energy use by division
Gd/ionne
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Business faundations

Synthomer and sustainability continued

Operations continued

Scope 1 and 2 emissions {hybrid approach)
Tonnas CO: equivalent released per sales
production tonne (includes GO; fromn energy
generation and usej, and refrigerant iosses.

Scope 1 and 2 emissions by division
tonnes CO=e/per sales production tonne

Scope 1 and 2 - location-based and market-
based ~ GHG smissions have baen verified
by a third party.

See page 183 tor information on our reporting
methadalogy.

Scope 3 emissions

In 2021, we worked with a third-party
specialist 1o astablish our Scope 3 emissions
for the whole Group. This ivolved analysing 15
categories that contribute to these emissions.
Given the diversity in application and end
markets for our products, we do not have
sufficient visibility of the emissions associated
with processing our products and their
end-ot-lifa treatment.

Preiiminary data from this assessment
indicates that, overall, in 2021, our Scope 3
emissions were up to 109" lowser versus our
2018 baseline. This is largsly due to reduced
carben intensity in the mix of monomers we
used during the year.

Scope 3 emissions account for more than 90%
cf Synthomer's total emissions and of those,
more than 80% come from the goods and
services we buy. Which means that upstraam
categorias are mast relevant 1o our business,
Qur innovation and srocurement teams are
actively looking for atternatives that could help
rapidly reduce our Scopa 3 emissions,

Read our full Scope 3 emissions report in cur
onfine data nack.

* The actual percentage will be subjact to change
when presented in the data pack.

Changing our approach to energy

to address future emissions
Renewab'e snergy atttibute cartficates
{EACs) are traded on the open markat and
help companies ke ours prove that our
electricity is made from renewaple sources.
While buying certificates in this way is a
well-established process, it is just gne of the

' Synthomer ple
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' alsc set up new supply contracts and on- and

" EACs are a significant part of our short-to

ways in which we are increasing the amount
of renewable slectricity at our sites, We have

off-site power purchase agreements (PPAS],
with solar panels installed et sevara! of our
sites around the worid and a long-standing
PPA at our site in Stalingborough, UK.

madium-{erm energy plans but, as a traded
commadity, their price may risg ard it may
become more difficult to buy them in future
as more companies enter the market.
Fluctuations in the EAC market mean that
while we hit our 2030 target this year, we
anticipate sesing this figure rise and fall
betwaen now and 2030. That is why, in the
longer term, PPAs will become increasingly |
important to our engrgy management {
approach, But they wit take time 1o set up. f
1

Replacing natural gas is harder, since we

need it 10 generate the heat required to

power some of our chemical processes. !
Wa do have an advantage, since our
processes run at relatively modest

" temperatures. Here, too, we have the
- option in future to switch 1o renewable

; monitoring and process control, with the aim

. pledge to reduce emissions and improve

elactricity, Some options, such as electric
boilers. could involve significant capital
investment, howevar,

inthe meantime, we are exploring possible '
options that could help us capture and use
mora of the excess heat that is a by-product in
aur exothermic reaction processes, and satting
up projects 1o improve our energy efficiency.
For example, at our iargest site in Malaysia,
projects are unoerway 1o optimise the way
we use our chillers througi improved data

of making them 5-10% more energy efficient.

We a'so have an opportunity to bacome
much more energy efficient as we grow.
Integration allows us to iMmprove production
processes or upgrade equipment at new sites,
whilg introducing our standard tools, policies
and processes to embed Synthomer's cutiure
of manufacturing excellence. All our existing
sites in the USA have signed up to the
Department of Energy’s '‘Better Climate’

energy efficiency by 25% cvar the next
10 years.

Water

- We naed a signticant amount of waler to make
. our polymers, which help avoid merg harmful
. soiverts entering the atmosphere. We also use

a lot of watar in our manufacturing processes,
such as cooling and steam generation

Given cut considerable reliance on water,

we have a particular responsibility to use

tris natural resource caretully,

Our progress
against 2030 targets

Qur short-term objectives
2022

* [0

| We agreed a new Group-wide water

policy with our Sustainablity Gotnimittee,
which was approved by our Board

in December 2021,

Qur water poficy can
https://www.synth y
corporate-responsibility/group-policies/

be found online &t
P

To address prasent and future challenges, we
carried out third-party-assistad assessments
attwo of our sgven sites located in water-
stressed areas. These assessments explored
the potential to introduce more extensive
walar and automated metering and

! infrastructura monitoring, as well as
' options to assess the sites against the

Alliance for Water Stewardship framewark.

We wili continue this work throughout 2022,
axploring options ai some of our other key sites,

- as well as devaloping upgrade proposals and
. assessing water balances and opporiunities

to reduce and reuse waltsr.

Our water performance in 2021
Overall, we saw an B 6% increase

in total water withdrawal ai our sites.
Overall production rose 2.2%, which lad
to a 6.2% increase in specific water Use

in 2021 versus 2020, and 8.6% versus our

+ 2019 baseline. Qur water withdrawal statistics

rose in 2021, with our most significant

* Increases ocouring because of specific

events &t some of our Synthomar sites.

. For example. in France and the UK, we saw

risgs at two of our sites due to the impact

. of low rainfall on our reserves and the need

to ensure we had water available for waser
traatment and effiuent dilubon. We saw

aur mast significant increase at one of aur
German sites, which is currently using river
water for 'once-through’ cooling. A 13% rise
in production combined with relatively warm
temperatures meant the site had to ingrease
its water withdrawal by 25% 10 meet its
cooling needs. The site has now set up a
project to assess atternative, mors efficient
options for cooling.



At our legacy OMNOVA sftes, a combination
of higher production {compared with 2020)
rmegnt that our absolute volume noreased.
However, some sites saw a double-chigit
improvement in their spaciic water use. As a
whole, these sttes saw a 4.9% improvement
In water withdrawal compared to 2020,

Wa estimate that leaks in cur water linas
accounted for 10-15% of our net additional
water withdrawal this year. As part of our
commitment 1 our new water policy, we
are fooking to improve the way we monitor
sites and establish mere effective leak
rmanagement programmas. Tagether, this
shouid help reduce the risk of leaks as wal!
as minimising their impact in future.

Total water withdrawal
m? per sales production tonne

Water withdrawal and consumptlon
by division
m?® per sales production tonne

Waste

Our sites look for ways to reduce waste at
source, For example, our sito in La Hawre,
France, reduced material out of specification

by more than 35C tonnes compared o 2020.

Sites also look for opportunities to support
a more circular economy, by recycling and
recovaring waste where possible or finding
potential buyers for waste streams. We are
also developing several projects to identify
ways in which we might reduce and treat
the three most significant hazardous wasts
streams within our Industrial Specialities
division, which account for mora than
one-third of our Group total,

Our waste performance in 2021

We made changes to our 2018 basaline and
our 2020 numbers to remove waste figures
from sites that have been closad and sold in
the first guarter of 2021, This resulted in a
reduction of about 1.1%. Our 2019 baseline
and 2020 data also reflact corrections to
reported data. This includes one significant
waste stream in China, which we previously
reported as waste but was, in fact, recycled
at our site. This reduced our waste figure

by & further 1.7%.

Qur total waste in 2021 was higher than 2020,
dus, in part, 1o @ 2.2% increase in production
across the Group. We saw a particular rise in
totat hazardous waste because of two one-off
evants ~ the disposal of ofd contaminated soil
and raw materials, and the disposal of used
solvent from pne of our sites after we were

: unable to identfy a secondary buyer. We also
i gaw an increass at one of our sites in the USA

after we identified gaps in our historical waste
tracking amounting to B50 tonnes total waste
and 500 tonnes of additional landfil waste.

With more robust measurement, tracking and
analysis of our data now in place, we do not
axpact to identify errors of this kind in future.

Overall, the outlook against our 2010 bassline
remaing positive, with total waste around 15%
lower on an absolute and per tonne intensity
basis. Meanwhile, waste to landfill is dowrn

. 17% per tonne ahead of our 2022 objsctive

of 12%. This overall trend reficcts product
quality improvements at a number of sites,
as well as greater re-use of by-products that
wa would praviously have disposed, and
projects to reduce solid waste generated

by our wastewater treatmant plants,

Total waste
Kg per sales production tonne

Our short-term
objective to reduce
waste:

2022

*

Waste disposal to landfiil
Kg waste per sales production tonne

Total wasta and waste to landfill by
divislon
Kg per salas produced tonne
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Business foundations

Synthomer and sustainability continued

People

Our success relies on

our talented employees.

We will need plenty more

of their skills and experience
as we continue to grow,
integrating new businesses
like OMNOVA and Eastman's

one wih & claar set of shared values; where
every employee feels engaged, ampowered
and vatued, and sees opportunities to
davelop their career. We are tocused on
buiiding a diverse talent pipeline, developbing
leadership skilis, creating efficiont and
effective organisational structures and
processas, and creating a winning culture.
This will take time, and 1o support our work
we have incorporated two of pur empioyee

“‘Qur goal is to establish
an inclusive culture where
out people feel valued,
engaged, empowered and
able to use their strengths
to help Synthomer to

thrive. Our core values are
our guiding compass: they
describe what we aspire

to as a company and what
is expected of each of us’

targets into our Vision 2030 roadmap.

Adhesive Resins.

These acquisitons are changing Synthomer's
scope and scale, Indegd, once the transaction
with Fastman is complete. 25% of all cur sales
will be based in the USA and vur glebal
workicroe will be thiee tirmes larger than

1t was Us! SiX years 2go.

At the sama time, we want 1o lake a

more strategic approach 1o our canrmunity
. engagement, applying lessons learned from
" owr Synthomer Foundalion 1o the way In
which we provide funding and support for
local community activities. Here, too, we
have set & community-based target as part i
of Vision 2030,

att Freeland

If wa are 1o take full advantage of our new
scope and scale, we nead to ensure we have |
a cansistent culture across the Company —

Peaple at a glance \

Z_’682 ur values

In 2020, we launched our five core values, designed to support our purpose
amployeas

1.21%

turnover

13.2%

new hires

0/%

under collective bargaining agreements

o0

number of years the Synthomar Foundation
has supported lacal communities

Safety, health and environment
~ we always have time to work safely

Integrity
~wa et with integrity and show respect

fnnovation
- we welcoma change and new ideas

Accountahiiity
- we gdsliver on our promises

Teamwork
- we are strorger 25 one team

To help teams get 1o know the core values, we have rolled out a structured workshop and

discussian guide across Synthomer, And our values are now embedded in our annual
performance cycle, with alf employees expected 10 assess their work against them. //

| Synthomer pic
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Our
employees

This was anothar busy year for out
employees. Dermnand for our products was
high, especially in healthcare, And once
&galn, our téams worked tirelessly to protect
themaelves and each othet, and keep our
sites running safely throughout the COVID-19
pandemic (see page 65 Tor mere on our
COVID-19 safety and health measuras).

Newvertheless, we continued to make progress -

against our longer-term employee agenda,
Including the ongoing roll-out of our diversity
and inclusion vision and action plan, and the
launch of our second Your Voice global
employss survey.

We also introduced new tools and processes
to create a more structured approach o
career development — focusing particutarly
on early careers, functional career paths, and
leadership skilis fo help develop our leaders

- of the future. And to ensure we have robust
succession plans in place at all levels of the
business, we continued to develop cur global
talent toolkit and review process.

Supporting employee wellbeing

during the pandemic

CCVID-19 has challenged everyone'’s physical
and mental heatth over the past two years.
Whather warking from home or on site at ona
of our plants, our employees have had to
juggle everything from farmily care to health
worTies to feelings of isolation. Wae are
awara that all these issues can have
repercussions on individual performance.

To continue supparting our employees’ mental
health in 2021, we set up a number of country-
specific programmes, including a new
wall-being hub for UK employees located

on our Syntranet, The hub provides
infermation on Company-led programmes and
resources, including our Employee Assistance
Programme, as well as acvice on Issuss

like resitience, healthy shift working

and asking for help,

Also in the UK, we ran a well-bsing calendar
of monthly activities to highlight issues such
as fighting fatigue, personal fitness and
hydration. In Malaysia, we marked mental
health month with a saries of talks to help
amployees identify ways ‘o deal with stress,
anxiety and burnout in tha workplace.
Almost 100 employees attended the
5885i0nS. We also offered employess who
came into contact with the virus access to
counselling to talk to professionals about
the chalenges they faced, and get medical
advice and emotional support.

" ihe role they have to play,
We had an early opportunity to do this in

| the world to mark International Women's Day.

Our core employee objectives

réuild a sustainable, diverse ialént pipsline

Continuously improve our development programmas and ensure we have the right people
with the right skills in the right job at the right time.

2. Strengthen leadership capability at all levels

Help our leaders bacome role models, coach and develop their teams and lead the way
in successtully driving our business strategy.

3. Drive organisational effectiveness

Strengthen our abilty to manage business transformation in an agile way.

4, Establish a winning workplac;e culture

Where our pecple feel valued, engaged and empowered 1o use their strengths
to help Synthomer thrive.

We have learned a gresat deal throughout

the past two vears and are now developing

a long-term supportive workplace prograrmme
to take us beyond the pandemic. This includes
assessing employee data and employee
feedback on their needs and expectations,
examining our current resources and
identifying gaps, and benchmarking

our approach against our competitors.

Our progress
against 2030 targets

Building a diverse, incluslve workplace

Bullding a more diverse and inclusive business
Is key to our growth ambitions and our abiity
to attract and retain the best people. In 2020,
we launched our divarsity and inclusion vision,
and this ysar incorporated our gender target
as part of our Vision 2030 roadmap. This year

has been about raising awareness 1o help
employees understand why it matters and

Qur short-term objectives:
2022

March 2021 with a series of events around 2025
In June, we celebrated Pride month and have -
since set Up a new LGBT employes group. ‘.
And in December, we marked intemeational
Day of Persons with Disability, publishing
new quidance on our Syrtranet to help
employeas support their disabled colleagues,
and sharing two new videos from managars \
living with disabilities. !
In November, our exscutive sponsor for
diversity and inclusion, Rob Tupker, and !
Group HR Director, Matt Freeland, launched

. anew global awareness campaign, hosting

i a series of calls with our top 100 leaders to

discuss their role in supparting our vision.

Synthomer pic
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Businass foundations

Synthomer and sustainability continued

People continued

Engender: our first
employee group

“I'm proud to be part ot Synthomer's first
employae graup. We sat up ENGENDER
— our woman's network - to create a sale
envirocnment for discussion on issuses that
women face in the workplace and to help
support one another through our careers,
We're delighted with the support received
in organising a number of events on topics
such gs impogter syndrome, and vpice
and power for worman in business. We are
equally happy to have some men join our
sessions, {po.

Our first year was very busy, with regional
groups starting activities in the US and
Agia, cataring for local discussions and
face-to-face networking opparunities.

One of our highlights was having Carcling
and Holly, Synthormer's Chair and one of
our female Non-Executives respectively,
attend orie of our panel sessions. it was
a fantastic opportunity for our network

to hear about their career stories first
hand. We hope more peopie will sign

up and help us spread the word.”

Ana Perroni Laloe
President, Industrial Speciglities )

Ouwr diversity and inclusion vision
Wa value the difference everyone brings
1o work and are commitied to creating a
diverse and inclusive workplace, where
people are supported to make their best
contriputicn in creating a vibrant and
sugcessiul business.

6 4 Synthomer plc
| Arnual Repert 2021

network of diversity and inclusion champions.

. Goender diversity
‘We know that diverse

thinking and inclusive
cultures create
tremendcous business
value. It powers innovation
and performance and

it will drive Synthomer’s
sucecess in the future.’

Caroline J stone

Female
Male
Total

. Gender diversity

Ag part of the campaign we also shared
additional tools and materials on topics such |
as unconscious bigs and self-awarenessvia |
a Syntranst huby to help leaders support their
work to share our diversity and inclusion vision.

Meanwhile, we have staried using a new
diversity and inclusion dashboard to track
progress, spot gaps and Mprova suceession
planning. And we have established a naw
diversity and inciusion govemance structure
to ensure we gtay on course and embed I
accountability for diversity and inciusion

across all levels of the business. The structure
Includes a steering committee comprising
Synthomer's Chair of the Board, diversity |
and inclusion Executive Committee sponsor
and Group HR Director, s well as a regional

Female
Male
Total

Gender diversity

" Locking ahead, our plans for 2022 include

" ambassador programme designed to craate

new imerviewing skills and inclusive
racruitment training for hiring managers,
inclusive lsadership training and & new i

vpportanities for employees 1o shars their
personal diversity and inclusion stories.
QOur Board and Exacutive Gommitiee wil be
Involved andg will regularly review progress.

Our diversity and inclusion Zemale
performance in 2021 Male
We are pleased that we met our 2021 . Total
objective of 20% of women in senior

leadershp rales. finishing the year at 204%.

In all, we saw a 5% rise in the number of

women in senior leadership versus 2020.

We also apponted Lily Liu 8$ our new Chief

Financial Officer who will join Synthomer no

later than 1 July 2022. Once Lily is officially

on board, women will make up 44% of our

Board. In February 2022, we also appointed

Ana Perroni Laloe as President, (ndustrial

Specialities and she has now joined our

Executive Committes. We aiso met the

expectations laid out in the Parker Report,

by having a1 least one Board member from

an ethnically diverse background.

976
3,656 :
4,632

w oW

10
39
49



Employee engagement

Listening to our employees helps us
understand what Is working well and tells
us whera we have mare to do. But we need
ta hear from everyone, so, as part of our
Vision 2030 roadrmap, we set 2 70% target
for participation in our global Your Voice
survey. We introduced our first survey in 2019,
With 63% taking part, it revealed areas of
strength, such as our commitment to safety,
and areas for improvemant, such as
communication and knowledge sharing.

Good communication has become even
more important over the past two years

with the pandemic keeping many pecple

at home, and restricting our rumbers on site.

To help people feel connected and ensure
they understand our priorities, we launched
new quarterly (virtual} global townhalls

during 2021 hosted by senior leaders.

Around 1,000 employeas attended each
townhall. We ensured employees could ask
questions before and during the calls and
submit those questions ancnymously if

they wished. Employees were keen to hear
more on a number of issues, including our
sustalnability agenda, diversity and inclusion
plans, and flexible working. While our leaders
answered questions during the calls, we also
intend to feed some of these topics into future
communications to continus raising awarsness.

We also relaunched our internal Syntranet
site, creating one global site for all our
smployses. It contains news and key
information on important areas such as
our strategy, Code of Conduct and policies
to help ensure everyone has access to a
consistent sat of messages and guidelines.

What we heard from employees In 2021
Our second Your Voice survey ran in
December 2021, We were very pleased
that we exceeded our 2030 target at a global
level, with an overall responss réte of 73%
from our employees, This was achieved by
&n extansive mutti-channel communication
campaign delivered across the business,
which included manager brisfings. messaging
via our Syntranet and poster campaigns.
Not alf countries achieved & 7096 response
rate and that will remain a focus for future
surveys. The survey included some new
questions on fopics such as our Gore
values, 10 help us learn how well employees
understand them.

We saw a rise in positive responses
in many areas, including diversity and

" inslusion, [12%), career progression (9%)

and communication {7%). We alsc continued
to see strong results in health and safety,
ethics, and values. All these results reflect the
work we have done in the past few years to
raise awarenass on these important issues.

Our employees told us that they want to hear
more about the Your Voice results and what
wa plan to do in response to their feedback.
To this end, we are working with leaders in
our divisions and functions to provide ratevant
data so that they can share and discuss
specific topics with their teams.

As part of cur Board employee voice
activities, one of our Non-Executive Directors,
Alsxander Catto, mest groups of employees
personally in the UK and by video conference
in Germarty and the USA throughout the year.
Discussions and feedback covered a range of
toplcs such as Company strategy, leagership,
COVID-19, flexible working, diversity and
communication issues,

| Wa look for other opportunities ¢ hear from

our smployees, For example, we ran a survey
in March and December 2021 asking our UK
employees what they thought of cur support
for them during the pandemic. Most fesdback
was positive: 65% seid they had attended one
of our resitience workshops, and more than
half said they wouid do something ditferent
based on what they had learnad. However, a
minority told us that they want us to do more
on flexible working. This is something we are

' assessing as part of our supportive

workplace programme.

Career development and training

We have a good record of attracting new
talent. Faimess in progression and promotion
is esszential, so at a corporate level we are
introducing new digital tools and processes,
including a new global HR information
systemn, We also continued ouwr global talent
review in 2021. As part of that review, we
introduced a new 'talent toolkit® to help our
Ieaders and managers assess gaps and
opportunities in areas such as succession
planning and personal development plans.
We want to do more to help retain a larger
percentage of our graduates and address
Your Voice feedback, which tells us
empioyees want to see more opportunities

in carser planning and development. We are
currently focusing on three key areas to help

i our people make progress: early careers,

functional excellence and leadership.

Our progress
against 2030 targets

Early careers: helping graduates flourish
at Synthomer

' Sinca 2018 we have expanded and improved

our graduate recruitment programme, looking
at everything from when we recruit to how
we make an offer. In that time, we have hired
around 50 new graduates, largely in Europe
and Asia, with a 50:5C gender spiit and

a variety of ethnic backgrounds.

. We have alsc created a blended development

plan, providing graduates with a combination
of mentoring programmes, and on-the-job
and workshop-style training in areas such

as networking, managing others and
business acumen.

Functional excellence: consistent
pathways for sl

Our Group HR team is also working with

our functions to develop new ‘excellence’
frameworks that set out clear caresr
pathways through each of the functions

and the standard of skills we expect. A new
Functional Excallence Steering Committee is
coordinating this work across the Company.
Qur manufacturing and commercial functions
ware tha first to launch their frameworks in
2021. Cur commercial function appointed a
dedicated excellonce director and ran its first
training sessions on contract managemsnt
viaa new academy.

Synthomer plc
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Businaess foundations

Synthomer and sustainability continued

People continued

Leadership: training the teaders

of tomorrow

Because we ara growing so quickly and
integrating new acquisitions, different
lgadership styles, approaches, and even
language, can become part of daily business
life. This can make it difficutt for newer lenders
to know what is expectad of them. To address
this, in 2019 we introduced six leadarship
attrivutes, including ingpiring vision and
purpose, setting standards and dealing

with ambiguity, to provide a common
language and consistent behaviours for

all leaders at every level of our business.
Alongside our core values, we are also

using our leadership attributes as a way

of assessing potential new recruits.

Embracing digital
resources to
support leadership
development

“We believe in continuous conversations
as a key driver for employee engagement.
In that spirit, we expect our leaders to
become coaches for ongoing staff
davelopmant, providing regular ieedback
cpportunities to their teams, We have
launched a new leadershin development
portal, which contains a wealth of useful
resources and tools. The next generation
of Syrthomer leaders will particularly
benefit from our 'first-tme leader’
roadmap, which provides practical
guidance on coaching athers.

Our learning and development team
held a series of giobal briefing calls io help
laaders at all levels start using the portal.”

Christoph Bartels
Director Talent Developmeéant

Synthomer pic
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Ethics and compliance

We published our cusrent Code of Conduct
in 2018. It is available in 14 languages, both
online and In print. We plan 1o review and
refrest the Code later in 2022 and launch
an updated version in 2023.

 Our anti-bribery, corruption and compstition
' law policies are important parts of our Cods

Our 2021 Your Voice survey showed that §7%

of employses understand how the Code
applias to their job, while 81% know how to
report suspected unethical and/or unlawful
business practices.

[ We promote our Ethics Helpline across
- {ne business, including through our Code.

In 2021, we launched a new ‘protection from
retaliation’ policy 16 continue encouraging

an open and transparent culture within
Synthomer. We also updated the investigation
process that supports our helpling to ensure
clear ings of responsibility and that reports
are followed up In an appropriate manner.

Centinuing to provide

compliance training

During 2021, we cortinued 10 develop our
e-leaming ofier, which Included the launch
of refreshed modules on arti-bribery and
corruption and anti-competitive practices.

. Qur Learning Managerent System helps

us track training completion and escalate
instances wihen required training is not
completed in a tmely manner. In 2022,

we plan to introduce new e-learning modules
for aur Code of Conduct and GDFR/data
protection, which will repiace our existing
face-to-tace and orline training.

Qur short-term ethics
and compliance
objectives:

2022

and the scenaric-based workshops and
e-learning that we run as part of our Code
of Conduct training. We will continue to
support employees who are more axposed
10 cornpettion law risk with additional,
gpacific e-learning modules and
face-to-facefonline workshops.

In 2021, we launched & short campaign to
remind empioyses of our policy on gifts and
hospitality as set out in our Code. As part of
this, we rolied out revised standard-form gffts
and hospitality registers.

We also published new Internal guidance

on how 1o raspond 1o, and manage,
unannounced inspections from regulators
{su-called 'dawn raids’), which will be supported
by a phased roll-out of training, starting in 2022,

. And we rani our first campalgn on the United

Nations Anti-Corruption Day, which included
an article on our Syrtranet and on social media,

Msaking changes to support our
compliance programme

We appointed a Globat Compfiarca
Manager in 2021 to help us navigate the
changing reguiatory landscape as we

grow, The manager will lead our Group

legal and compliance team'’s compliance
watk, Thalr inttlal focus in 2022 wil be to
enhance our risk assessment and third-party
due diligence processes.

In Decemter 2021, we establishod a New
compliance brand called "Syntegrity’, which
aligns with our value of integrity. We are now
using the brand to support our compliance
initigtives. This includes a new guarterly
comptiance blog for aft senior laaders that
will airn to communicate new compliance
initiatives, rermind employeea about existing
policias and reguirements and share lessons
leamed from recent reported cases. The blog
will also provide compliance topics for
discussion at team meetings.

See page 51-63 for more information on how
we work with our suppliers to ensure high
ethical standarus, including respecting human
rights,



Our
communities

We wartt the local communities who live
near our sites to 860 us as a good neighbour,
While we have always looked for ways to
support local profects, our acquisttion of
OMNOVA has given us the opportunity

¢ reagsess our approach to

community engagemont.

Since 1961, the Synthomer Foundation
{formerly the OMNOVA Foundation) has acted
as an independent endowment, providing
essential funding for local community
projects, primarily in Ohio, USA, Over the
years, the Foundation has broadened its
remit 10 support projects across the USA,

Our progress
against 2030 targets

Inthe B0 years since it was first greated, the
Foundation has changed hands — and name
— gevaral times, but its mission remains the
same: o support non-profit organisations
who provide programmes and services that
enhance the quality of iife for those in need.
At lgast 50% of annual funding is dedicatad
to education inftiatives, with the rest
supporting arts, civic, health and human
service organisations.

Since acquiring OMNOVA, the Foundation has
sparkad a lot of irterast from our semplovees in
other parts of the world who want to be mora
involved in their local carnmunities. With more
than 40 sites and sales offices across the
globe today — and more to come as we
continue to grow — Synthomer has an
opportunity, therefore, to draw on the
Foundation's experiences {o expant our
community engagement.

And we want fo take a mare sirategic
approach to reflect our growth ambitions.
So, we have set 2 community target as part
of our Vision 2030 roadmap.

Supporting communities - growing our
network fn 2021

To help us take a more strategic approach,
wa used the Foundation's governance
stryciure to sst up a new Synthomer-wide
global volunteering network in February 2021.
That network includes a community
champion at each site, as well as thres
regional coordinatars who maet quarterly
to discuss project proposals, Funding is
approved by our executive Sponsor after

a proposal from our Sustainability Director,
In this first year, the coordination group
identified sita-leve! champions and aligned
activities around our priority themes,
developing the tools to support the network
of volunteers and capture their activities with
neighbouring communiies.

In 2022, the network will priaritise local projects

that support ecucation. For examnple, in Viemam

wae are collaborating with several partners,
including the Ministry of Labour and Vistnam
Bank for Social Policies, to help peor and
disabled children continue their education.

In Portugal, some of our employees are running
'lgssons’ at local sehools to halp children leam
mere about our business. And in the UK, we
took part in British Sctence Week, hosting

* workshops for schooichiidran te halp Inspire

an interest In chemistry from an early age,
Syntnomer Foundation will continue

to support more than 10 universities and
colleges such as the University of Akron
and the University of Wisconsin.

Synthomer Foundation support In 2021
Of the £830,000 that the Synthomer
Foundation gave in 2021, 56% of the funds

i went t¢ education programmes. The rest was
i split batween projects that support arts

and culture, civic activities, and health
and human services.

|

‘Sixty years is an amazing,
notable achievement;
and we look forward

to continuing this great
legacy of supporting

our communities for
many years to come.’

Theresa Carter

. One of the Foundation's fargest single

donations went {0 the American Institute
of Chemical Engineers, which will receive
around £70,000 over the next four years.
This money will help two students attend a
Historically Biack College or University and
participate in a lsadership development
programme,

Our annual highlight: Synthomer

! Cares week

This year, we ran our first Synthomer
Cares week in May 2021, based on a
concept first developed by our OMNOVA
colleagues. During the week, employess

. around the world get involved in activities

to raise funds, support local communities
and feal connected to one another.

- Inthe USA, for example, smployess in

Ohio helped sort donated clothes and pick
up litter for a homeless shelter, while in South
Carolina, employees donated personal care
iterns t¢ a womeny's shelter. And employeas
in Pennsylvania donated just under 230kg

of feod to a local food bank.

In Malaysia, 43 employses took part in

a charity run during Synthomer Cares

week 10 raise money for COVID-19 care kits
for 20 less fortunate families. Support for the
runners was so positive that in the end they
raisad enough 1o buy kits for 30 farmilies.
The top five runners were alao given

& donation to share with the charity

of their choice.

Employees in Raly and Portugal maintained
that sense of connection fater in the year,
during a two-week exercise challenge.

+ Individuals recorded the time they sperit

running, walking or cydling via an app which
Synthomer then convarted into donations,
Participating employees could then ¢choose
which socia) organisation wouid receive the
fungs. The winning team was given a 25%
bonus 1o donate to their organisation. In all,

~ the twe teams complsted 1,093 hours of

exercise and travelled a total of five milion
steps, rafsing £1,560 in the procass.

Synthomer plc [
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Business foundations

Synthomer and sustainability continued

People continued

essential funds,
Locetion

A snapshot of community activities at our sites

While the COVID-18 pandemic meant we were unabls to run community activities in soma countries, such as Vietnam and China, many of
our community leams around the world have continued to support local projects and organisations, while our employees have helped reise

Activity

UK

Qermany - Marl

France

Portugal

Malaysis - Pasir Gudang

Malaysie - Kuala Lumpur

USA - Akron and Mogadore
USA - Auburn

USA - Beachwood

In December 2021, iha operatlona| team donated Chnstmas presents to & iocal school

I Novemnber 2021, our site team provided voluntesr support to help cleanmg and rabu Idlng
houses foﬂowmg davastating ﬂoods across Germany eamer In the ysar

Members of the operational team partJCJpated in Open Doors Days to help students understand
mare about our work at Sokolov. This included an on-site session for careérs counsseliors and
¢chemistry teachers

Three sites each donated €1,000 to Fondation de France to relp families and schoolchwldren
partaculaﬁy aﬁacted by the pandemic.

We continued to play a role on the board of Grace, a non-profit association that promotes
social responsibility and sustainability within companies. Wae also participated in working
groups for the Portuguese Charter for Diversity and inclusion, including heiping to develop
2 socia) responslblllty good practice guide.

Employees auctioned their skills, such as baking and pamtmg, to thelr co!leagues to raise
money for Calvary Homes, an organisation that helps people who have been abused and
abandoned by their families or face serious disadvantages. Together with matched funding
from Synthomar they raised E‘.‘I 000.

Our community team ran activities to raise awareness about food waste and to support The
Lost Food Project. As well &5 a talk from the organisation's chiet exécut va, employees took
part In a challenge to reduce their own food waste. With matched funding from Synthomer,

they also helped raise Just over £1, 000 1or the prOJect

38% of the employees from thesa two sites have }omad the initiative 'Candy gram fundraiser’,
raising more than $300 and providing 266 meals to people in need arcund the site.

Our colleagues in Auburn held an internal ‘corn hole® throwing tournament to raise funds for
Haven Heroes, a local organlsatlon that supports educational success in pnmary schoolch!ldren

A colleague through the Employee Community Leadership Award raised funds for Plnk Ribben
Girs who provide & range of support for breast and gynaecological cancer patients and their
familles. In total we donated $800.

Building our volunteer N

network in Asia

“In 2021, wa took our first steps

to making our communities network
presence in Asia more prominent.
There is still so much to do, but we
have put some strong foundations

in place to continue on our journey

of giving and contributing to the
communities who live near our sites.
Qur position as a market feader in Asia
allows us 1o be closely engaged with
the communities, aspeciaily at the sfies
in Malaysia, | am grateful to everyone
who has helped us get this far, but this
is only the beginning and we will aim
te go further in future!

Emidlyana Ahmad
Talent Deveiopment Executive and Asia
CSA coordinator

_/
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Business foundations

Risk management

Risk report
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Synthomer’s strategic objectives can only

be achieved by taking an appropriate ievel |
of risk in accordance with our risk appetite.

BIUBUBADL) ?

How we manage risk ﬁm
We use leading risk managemant techniques E
which help us make good decisions about ‘ é
business oppcriunities while protecting i &
our sites, systems, empioyees and other I é
ey stakeholders. | 2
Principsl risk ,,E"m’ : g
Volatliity and > see page ‘
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1 ) | The haatmap ilustrates the relative positioning of our principal risks. This is based on the '
. residual (net) ratings after taking into account any mitigating controls in place. The heatmap E%
‘9 Security 1\ Seepageé | justrates our principal risk positioning based on the three dimensions we use 10 assess our s
: of supply 5 | rigks: the likelihood of the risk materialising; its potential impact; and its velocity — the time | g‘
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Business foundations

Risk management continued
Risk report continued

Top-down

Principal risks

Bottom-up
Risk assessment

Divisional and functional

Risk management framework

Board of Directors

Sets the risk culture and risk appetite. Has overall responsibliity for
reviewing and approving the principal risks.

Audit Committee

Supports the Board in monitoring risk exposure. Reviews principal
and emerging risks and the effsctivensss of risk management and
irternal contral processes. Providas challenge to Executive
Managemant where appropriats.

Executive Committee

|

Reports on principal and emarging risks 1o the Audit Committes
and Board. Conducts top-down risk idantification and review.
Ensures risk management policy is implemented and embedded in
the business, and appropriate responses are taken to manage risks,

Division and functional risk owners

Respoensible for risk identification, management and controls within
their division and function. Identify and assess risks, determine and

Risk and Assurance

* Establishes the risk
managernent frameawork

» Proviges guidance and
chalienge to divisional and
functionas risk owners

= Aggregates risk information
and assists management in
dentifying principal risks

monitor risk responses and ensure operating effectiveness of key
controls and progress of actions to manage risk,

Risk governance and oversight
Synthomer plc Board

The Board has overall responsibility for
ensuring that risk is eflectively managed
across the Group and for creating the
tramework for the Greup's risk management
1o operate effectively. The Board continues
to get the risk culture and the risk appetite it
is prepared to accept to achieve the Group's
obiectives, and the wider risk tolerance within
which it empowers the Executive Committae
to manage tha business. In 2021, the Board
completed a review and refresh of its appetite
by mapping its principal risks against a sliding
scaie from ‘risk-averse’ to ‘risk-neutral’, to
'risk-taking’. This is now embedded in our tisk
management framework.

Audit Committes

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committes
reviews and assesses the effectivaness of the
Group's risk management and internal controi
processes and monitors the Group's risk
expasure. [n 2021, the Audit Committee
continued s programme of deep dives

irto aur risk management process, giving
management the opportunity to explain
directly to the Audit Committee the

assessed risks, associated controls in

place, and any further planned mitigating
actions. The Audit Committes carried

out deep dive risk reviews for each of the
Group’s divisions. Speciafist functionaf risk

70 Synthomer ple
Annual Report 2021

reviews were also undertaken, these included

I {T & Cyber Security, Innovation & Inteliectual

Property, Plant Control Systems, Business
Gontinuity Planning, and Pensions. The Audit
Cornmities also reviews surnmaries of the
work undertaken by the internal Audit teamn,
which operates a risk-based audit plan.

. The risk management system, Augit

Committee desp dives, and associated
BSSUrance work are designed to ensure

that risk is managed within Synthomer's

risk appetite, rather than to eliminate risk
completely, and the Audit Committee and
othar assurance reviews provide reasonabie
assurance in fine with good practice.

Executive Commitice

The Exacutive Committee is rasponsibla for the
identification and management of our strategic,
operaticnal, compliance and financial risks

~ using the risk management framework, and

for ensuring risk management policy is
implemented and embedded in the busingss.

Division and functicnal risk owners

- We have a structured risk management
i framework operated at division and

Group functional level. We use a standard
methodology o quantify risk, with a rigk
assessment matrix to ensure risks are

_ assessed consistently.

Risk management methodology

Assess

Identify and
evaluate

Moniter
and
report

Determine
response




Our risk management methodology was
reviewed and refreshed this year. The risk matrix
previously considered two risk dimensicns:
the likefhood of the risk materialising, and its
potential impact. In 2021, we updated the
matrix to include a third dimension: rigk velocity.
Risk velocity considers the time between the
rigk crystallising and the impact being fait,

Divisions and functional departments conduct
their own bottorn-up assessment of risks and
record tham in a risk register using the
Group's standard 1isk managemsent
methodology. They assess risks at both an
inherent (gross) leve! and a residual {net} lavel,
taking into account the mitigating controls in
place. Risk owners also identify any additional
activities that could turther mitigate tha risk in
line with our risk appetite, accepting that
some levet of risk-taking is necessary.

i

Three linos of defence - assurance
Synthomer operates a ‘threa lines of defence’ .
assurance model. As our first ine of defence,
our operational management and smployses
have a responsibllity to manage day-to-day
risk In their own areas, guided by Group polcies,
procedures and control frameworks. Qur second
line of defence includes our Group Risk function,
who develop and rmanage the risk management
framework and engage with managemant to
idantify, agree and update risk information.

It also includas other complianca and assurance
functions, for example Group Safety, Health

and Environment (SHE)}, Regulatory Affairs

and ISO audits, who review the effectiveness

of mitigating acticns and controls.

Qur internal Audit team prevides our third fine
of defence, providing independent assurance
on intemal controls and risk management
pracesses. External assurancs is provided
by our statutory auditors, in respect of the
financial statements, and also by anh external
spacialist In respect of ISO standards.

Assessment of principal rieks

Risks affect us in many ways. ACross our
business, we idantify the likelhood, potential
impact and velocity of risks through our formal
twice-yearly risk assessment submissions by
divisions and Group functions. Management is
also empowsered and actively manages and
reacts 1o risks as part of normal day-to-day
decision making. We use the Group's risk
meathodology to assess the risks in all significant
projects, including change programmes and
the integration of acquisitions. These reviews,
together with our thres lines of defence model,
enabla us to establish effective controls to
manage these uncertainties.

¢ During 2021, the Executive Committee and

i The table on pages 72 to 76 provides more

. and assurance programrme can ohly provide

i Mmanagement processes. Emerging risks are

Qur key risks

We categorise our risks, taking into account
the effactiveness of mitigating actions and
controls, in the foflowing areas:

* Strategio risks that could prevent us
from achieving our strategic objectives.

* Operational risks which, if not successfully
managad, would threaten our viability.
These relate to our ability to operate
a sustainable and safe business.

* Comgliznce risks where a breach of
reguiations or laws could lead to fines from
reguiators, and reputationat risk that may
affact our standing in the invastor and wider
community in a disproportionate manner to
the stza of the evant leading to such damage.

= Financial risks relating to the funding and
fiscal security of the Group.

the Board carried out a robust assessment of |
Synthomer's principal risks and uncertainties. '

| Following this review, we can confirm there

are no changes proposed to our principal
risks.

detail on our principal risks [dentified at the end
of 2021. Our Board and managerment consider
that these pose the greatest threats to our [
business and they scere highest on our rigk
assessment matrix. They faif into categories
that ralate closely to our business modsl.
Not all risks facing Synthomer are listed and
the risks are not listed in any order of priority.

The nature of risk changes over time with
new risks emerging and the impact of
others changing. Our risk management

reasonable, not absolute, assurance that key
risks are managed to an acceptable ievel, and
therefore cannot provide absclute assurance
against misstatement or loss.

Emerging risks

In addition to known rigks, we identify
and analyse emerging risks and the need
for mitigation as part of our existing risk

events that present uncerlainty. They may
potentially affect us in the longer term, but we
do not currently have sufficient information to
undarstand and assess the ikellhood, Impact
or velocity of the risk, or to define an
appropriate risk response. We continue to
embed emerging risks in our risk programme
to ensure they are appropriately considered
&nd monitorad. In some cases, emerging
risks are supsrsedad by others or cease tobe
relevant as the environment in which we
operate evolvas and changes. We continue
to review and identify new emerging risk
trands 1o evaluate the impact and effect
they would have, including any changes
10 our principal risks.

Climate change

COVID-19

! At the time of writing, the COVID-18 pandemic

continues to impact ths global economic,
social and political landscape. We wili
continue to remain agile in managing the
risks that this presents.

We have revewed the impagct of the pandemic
on our principel risks to identify new
cpportunities or material changes to existing
principal risks. As with our assessment
of climate rigks, our raview concluded that
COVID-19 would be more appropriately
managed by including its impact within existing
principal risks rather than defining a separate
COVID-19 risk. We also took this approach
In 2020. We will keep this risk under review.
Synthomer plc
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Business foundations

Risk management continued

Risk report continued

Principal risks and uncertainties
This table shows the most signiiicant risks
that affect our business. There are other,
lower-level risks that can have an impact

on the Group's performance: these are

also actively managed through our risk
management framework.

Synthomer plc
Annual Regort 262°
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Strategic risks

Volatility and competition in chemicals
and polymers market
The markets we oparate in are inherently
volatile due to giobal macrosconomic and
political uncerta nty, and we expact this
volatility to continue in 2022, Such volatility
may affect our raw material costs, volumes

" and margins, potentially adversely affecting

the results of the Group. Thke intreducticn of
a carpon tax could ‘urther affect margins,

The Group couid lose market share 1o other
producers of speciality chemicals it we fail
to remain compatitive,

Link to strategy

Change in risk No change

2021 response

* The Group cantinueo 1o maintain a largety

Innovation and intellectual property
The Group could lose market share to other
producers of speciality chemicals if we fail

. 1o innovate new products that meet market

© = We enhanced our entrepreneurial,

differentiated portfolic of products serving a

wide range of diverse global end markets.
The successful integration of OMNOVA
significanty Increased our presence in key
North American ang China markets.
Segment performance at business unit ievel
is closely monitored and we take conective
actions as necessary to mitigate the risk as
far as reasonably practicable.

We continued to review costs in our key
sites to ensure we can price our products
competitively.

2022 plans

* hew product develepment and our

acquisition slralegy will continue to

farther diversify the Group's risk, ncludirg:

- The completion of the acguisition of
Eastman's Adhesive Resing business,
which will further add to our differentiated
portfalic of products and giocbal
end markets

- The roll put of SyNovas'™ Pius will
enhance our competitive advantage
in the NBR market.

needs and stakeholder expectations with
respect to diffarantiated performance

or sustainability. Shareholder value 15

also dependent on our abiity to identify

and protect our own intelleciual property
and ensure we do not breach third parties’
intel actual property rights, which could lead
1o reputational gamage and additicnaf costs.

Link to strategy

No change

Change in risk

2021 rosponse

customer-focused approach to innovation
by implemeanting & Group-wide portiolic
management process focused an
alignment o business strategy, value
gelivery, ard sustainabllity goals.

The global pandemric and sunply chain
disruptions posed a challenge to the launch of
“ew producis. in the face of this challange, cur
teams leamed new ways of working remotely
and in hybrid work environments which has
strengthened coliaboration between our
inncvation centras around the world.

A new central tearm was formed with the
charter to irvestigate new preduct chemistries
focused on dlimate change, sustainability,
step-change performance enhancement, and
inherently safer and more efficient processes.
We implemented new policies and enhanced
procedures to ensure new innovations and
tratle-secret knowledge is protected and
readily accessible for future innovasion.

2022 plans

We will implement new elements of our
Inovation Excellence Framework which
establishes best practices for opportunity
idsntification, emplcyee development,
inte lectual property and knowledge
management, teamwork, product
stewardship and iaboratory safety.

We will increase our focus on new
processes wih the formation of an
Advanced Process Innovation team
which will invest gate step changes

in process efficiency and sustainability.
Through these initiatives, we am to
increase the success rata of innovat:on
programmes, accelerate the time to
rmarket. and detiver new levels of product
performance aiorgside sustainability
improvements in both products

and Processes.



Strategic risks

Mergers and acquigitions (MEA}
The Group's stratagic plan continues {o
include significant M3A 1o further grow,
differentiate and diversify our business.
Thare is a risk that we fai to identify and
secure any targets or icfentity the wrong
targets, pay too high a price, fall to integrate
acquirad assets and drive plannad synergies,
or encounter performanca, funding, cash
fiow, or climate-refated and environmertal
issues and potentiaily unknown liabilities.

Link to strategy

No change

Change Inrisk

2021 response

= We successtully completed the central
intagration activities related to the OMNOVA
trensaction in Q3 2021, delivering synergies
shead of plar and properly incorporating
'the Synthomer Way' into processes

and culture,

In October 2021, we announcead the
proposed acquisition of Eastman’s
Adhasives Resins business and have begun
working through the carveout separation

to facilitate a close in Q1 2022, Integration
planning for this acquisition is underway.

= The Group's M&A activity and the
completion of the Eastman's Achesives
Resins acquisition and subsequent
integration will continue to be closely
scrutinised by the Board.

» External advice wilf continue to be used to
heip idertify targets, prepare bids, conduct
due diligence, and assess progress against
in‘egration plans and synergies.

! Change programmes

Pocr exacution of change programmes,
including capacity expansion projects,

- the delivery of streamlined and efficient

- 2022 plans

1

standardisec procasses through our Pathway
programme, the reltout of our shared service
centres, and our ESG programmes, could
afiect our ability to deliver our strategy.

Link to strategy
No change

Change in rigk

2021 response

+ Continued commitiment to our Project
Excellance methodology and robust capital
appraisal process have delivered a weli-
controfied portfollo of capital investments,

« We have begun the migration of local entity
transactional finance activities intc
centralised shared services and are
developing our business partnering
talent to meet business needs,

+ \Wa have successfully deployed cur
Pathway global template procasses and
systemns at our wave 1 sites in 2021.

* We have developed a mechanism to
monitor progress against our ESG agenda
and goals.

Feople and talent retention
Peopla are a key asset for Synthomer

in driving cur Company sirategy to grow
and enabling us to operate in our diverse
markets while Gomplying with regulations
and corporate responsibility. f we are unable
to attract, retain and bulld our people
TesouIces, this could adversely afiect the

‘ delivery of the Group's strategic priorities.

Link to etrategy

Change In risk No change

2021 response

« \We deployed a standarclised global talant
management procass, and held talent and
succession reviews at division, function,
Executive Committes and Board level.
We implemented Workday &s & new
global HR Information System including
recruitment, learning, and tatant
management modules with erhanced
employee data reporting and analysis
capability.
We rolled out our Your Voice employeg survey.
We launched an internal communication
improvement plan and recognition scheme
o orive increased ernployee engagernent.
Our iong-term ncentive plan was extended
to former OMNOVA employess.
A single global Linkedin contract was
implemented with enhanced career page,
functionality and recruitment tools, and a
globalised talent acquisition process.

2022 plans

» We will complete our NBR capacity
increase expansion in Q1 2022 in Malaysia
and continue to develop our pians for
further NBR expansion in South East Asia
and other tesritories.

« We will compiste the migration of ali local
antity transactional firance activities to
centralised shared services.

* We will roll out our Pathway solution to
tfurther sites according to our deployment
strategy.

= As part of our ESG agenda, we will devslop
sclence-based targets and track delivery
against published goals.

'

}

« We will iaunch a standarcised global
performance management process to improve
the consistency and quality of performance
management, coaching and development.

« Work will continue on functional excellence
with a specific ongoing focus on
commarcial excellence.

s We will deploy the 2022 Diversity
and Inclusion (D&)) global action plan
with a range of initiatives and workstreams
designed to increase D&} and therefore
our abiltty to attract and retain talent,

Ie We will use the results of the 2021 Your

Voice survey 16 tdevelop and deliver an
action pan.
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Business foundations
Risk management continued
Risk report continued

Operational risks

Loss or failure of a Synthomer site

Risk events. including natural disasters (physical
chronic or acute climate change or

ervironmenta! factors), pandemics {including I
COVID-19), safety incidents, failure of key
suppliers o the supply chaln, sabotaga and
cyber-attack, would have an adverse impact on
operations and business unit profitability.

There is a risk that pur response does not /
ansura the sits is able 1o return to its operatiohal
capatity in the planned time frame anc that we
suffer losses and roputational damage.

Link fo strategy
Change in risk Na change
2021 response

* Wa have continued to use our crisis
management procedures and COVID-19
rasponse protocols to operate consistentty
across our 37 manutacturing sites
fhroughout 2021, despite the ongoing
pandemic.

2022 plans

* We axpect to continue our COVID-19 i
protocols into 2022.

= Crisls management proceduras are
maintained throughout our operating
network and we will implerment them on day
one of our Eastman's Adhesive Resins
acquisition, i

¢ Continue to enhance business continuity
olans.

7 4 Synthamer ple
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1T security

An AT security breach that has an adverse
impact on our systems, including Entenprise
Resource Planning (ERP), SHE databases,
communications and Industrial cortrol
systems, may affect our ongoing operations

- and result in a loss of intellectual property
. or regulatary fines which might undermine

our competitive position and cause
reputational damage.

Link to strategy
Change in risk

No chiange

2021 response

* We have continued to enhance our T
security defences, including:

~ End ot Life/unsupported hardware
replacemment

- Mutti-factor authentication with increased
s@eurity standards

- USB mass storage device controls
embadded to prevent data loss

~ Upgraded password standards

- Anti phishing/fraud awareness campaign
enhancing user awarenass and rasponse
to phighing and soctal engineering attacks

- Enhanced back-up and reécovery
standards across the Graup

— SAP disaster recovery testing orogramme

exacuted
— Firewall roli-out programme compiated
- integration and standardisation of (T
security across the enlarged Group.

2022 plans

* Wa will continue to enhance our security
defences through furthar security
investment and the ongoing implementation
of ihe Group security risk reduction plan.
Planned activities include:

- Further enhancements to privileged
account management (PAM)

- Training programme to increase
awareness of upgradsd Group
Acceptable Use Policy

- Enhanced reporting against IT security
key risk indicators

- Additional crisis response plan scenario
simulation and testing

~ Roliing out our DMARC anti-fraud email
tocl to authepticate email traffic.



Operational risks

Safety, Health and Environment (SHE) ’
Qur industry is inherently dangerois, imvolving
the transport, storage and manufacture of
hazardous chemicals. There is a risk that a
significant accident or environmenta! incident
leads to injury to staff or local communities,
reputational demage, fines and loss of
permissions to operate

Link to strategy

Security of supply of raw materials
goods and services

A disruption in the supply of key raw materials
or services to a manutacturing site could
potentially affect our ability to maks and deliver
products to customars, leading to interruption
in supply, lost revenue and damage to our
reputation as a reliable supply partner.
Potential factors which could contribute to
such an impact include market shortages,
short-term and/or long-term physical
climate-related disruption of upstream supply
chains, or disruption due to global events.

Link to strategy

No change

Change Inrisk

Changs in risk Increase

2021 response

* ¥ve have continued to develop a central
safety audit functicn dedicated to SHE
issues and provided support, advice and
monitoring of all global sites.

Three additionai spacialist resources have
been recruited into the central team to E
support the organisation’s growth. !

* We have completed nine SHE audits in
2021 using a mixed modal of site visits and
remota review due to COVID-19 restrictions.

» The OMNOVA site Integration has
progressed throughout the year with the
majority completing the integration process
and moving towards normal operation,

« SHE improvement plans have baen completed
with ail 290 major actions completed.

* The Group has continued to improve its
SHE performance with a 11% reduction
in injuries.

2022 plans

* We have specific 2022 SHE irnprovement
plans for the Group, for each business, and
for all sites and labs.

* Ag part of an updated SHE strategy, we will
implement a further detalled approach to
operational safaty with increaseq foous '
and transparency of major risk centrols
at key sites.

* We will launch an annual Site Meafth Check
process to assess key SHE performance
and processas at each site, This will be
linked to & new Group Site Recognition
Award to encourage world-class 5
achlevement.

» Wa will deliver a SHE integration of our new
Adhesives Technologias division, with
planned actions to deliver a top quartile
SHE performance within three years.

' 2022 plans

2021 response

* Qur programme to diversify our supply base
and reduce supply chain risk has enabled
us to respond to the challénges presented
by very high demand for many of our key
raw materieds and supply chain disruption,
and meant wa could frequently approve
and access alternativa sources when
requirgd. An active rigk-based approach to
diversifying our supply base remains a
strategic priority for our procurement team,
We have standardised and strengthened
our supply risk tools for our important raw
matarials, prioritised based on EBIT impact
at site lavel, In addition, we have integrated
the findings of a sustainebility materiality
assessment, to ensure that we now include
impacts such as ¢iimate change, and
adopted the use of a full supply base
scanning tool for sustainability risk.

* We completed awareness training on our

sustainable procutement policy and
strategy within the procurement team.

+ Wa have started to use a sustainability
ratings tool to assess our high sustainability
risk suppliers.

+ We will use cur risk assessment tools to
continue the programme to divarsity our
supply base and reduce supply chain risk,
We will increase our focus on, and approval
of, alternative sources of raw materials.

, * Continuous review and improvernanit of the

rigk assessment process and adoption of
the sustainability risk ratings tool.
= Devslop a strategy for supplier audit and
assessment, and consider the adoption of
any industry programmes and best practices.
* Focus on Vision 2030 goal of ensuring 80%
of procurement has a sustainability rating.
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Business foundations
Risk management continued
Risk report continued

Ethics and regulatory compliance risks

Ethics and regulatory compliance

Adsilure to prevent anti-competitive practices, parsonal data breaches, bribery. tax evasion,
nroduct regulatory violetions, other regulatory breaches or unethicat behaviour Gould lead to
substantial penalties, withdrawal of cperating licences and reputational damage that could
adversely affact the Group's ahility to pursue its stratagy.

A failure to proactively address ESG goals, mandates and regulations may resuft in future
penatties, toss of cormpetitiveness and reduced shareholder vatue.

Link to strategy

Change in risk

2021 response

¢ Wa have continued to enhance our ethics and regulatory compliance through:

— Starting to implement the action plan agreed in response to the 2021 internal audit of
Synthomer's compliance framawork, including the appointment of a Global Gompliance
manager.

- Further publicising our Ethics Helpline, refrashing the procedurs for conducting corporate
investigations and updating the process to reflect EU Whistlablowing Directive changes.

— Publishing a new Frotection from Retaliation Folicy.

- Completing the integration of OMNQOVA into the Synthomer compliance framewark.

— Corporate support for UN Ami-Corruption Day - including a news article on our intranet
and social media activity.

- Developing our compliance key risk indicators.

- Launching our new compliance e-learning content and face-to-face training. and our
ascalation policy for managing non-¢completion,

- The creation and communication of our new Dawn Raid Policy on how ta respond
1o an unannounced inspection from a regulator.

- Continued development of our appreach 1o modern slavery complianca.

- Tha creation of new gift and hospitality registers, and communicating these to our
business areas.

- Enhancing our gichal capability in product stewardship and regulalory compliance by
integrating a global team with stronger reglonal presence which includes new dedicated
resources on regulatory intelligence, trade compliance and toxicology.

— Establishing an ESG Governance framework, setting ocur Visian 2030 goals and 2022
targets, increasing extemal communications on our achievements, and implamenting

a project sustainabilty assessment tool o guide priarities,

2022 plans

* Deliver a compliance plan, including continued implementation of the 2021 audit
recommendaticns,

= Develop a compliance brand o support continucus communications and awareness of
compliance areas.,

» Implemient our compliance integration plan for newly acquired businesses.

* Enhance our risk assessment procasses, incorporating third-carty due diligence.

+ Migrate our compliance training to a new learning managemant system, and create new
compliance training offerings including GDPR end Code of Conduct training.

» Commence the review and refrash of our Code of Canduct.

* Report against TCFD in 2021 and develop science-based targets.

* increase our focus on product and process innovations that deliver sustainability benefits.

*» Further strengthen product reguiatory governance through quantitative performance
management of regulatory work processes.

| Synthomaear plc
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No change

Financial risks

Financlal risks

. As a UK-registered Group with a diverse

. Change in risk

presence across the world, we continue to
be exposed to financial veiatility from foreign
axchange risks, credit marksts, and also
funding risks relating to our defined benafit
pension plans, These risks could significantly
affect the results of the Group. They have
been heightaned by global economic
uncertainty resuiting from COVID-19 and
may be further affacted by the potential
introgluction of a carbon tax.

Link to strategy

No change

2021 response

» The Group hedges significant foreign
aexchange axposure, borrowing a proportion
of its funding in overseas currencies to
hadge net assets hald in those currencies.

- = The Group swapped the proceeds of the

£203m share placing into US dollars on the
day of the placing in anticipation of the
acquisition of the Eastman's Adhesive
Resing business in G 2022,

* The implemantation o* global and regional
Pension and Benefits Governance
Committeas to enhance pension risk
aversight and managernent.

2022 plans

* Cumrency risks will continue to be hedged in
ling with Group policy.

s Our giobal pensions team wili continue 1o

monitor pansion risks through active

scheme management, including the

implemsntation of investment strategies

in line with the maturity of each of our

persion schames.

The Groug's funding arrangements wilt

cortinue to be reviewad in light of market

conditions and tenure of existing financing

tacilities.



TCFD report

Climate change, with its many associated
environmental impacts, is one of the
biggest and most urgent challenges
facing the world today. It poses risks for
all of us, and Synthomer is no different in

that respect.

But where we are different is in the
opportunities it presents us as a speclality
chemicais company, a producer of water-
baged polymers, whose benchmark for
new products is their sustainability

(see pages 48).

The new requirement to report against

the Task Force on Climate-related Financiat
Dis¢losures (TCGFD) this year has been a
catalyst for further action. it made us think

in @ more collective, joined-up and holistic
way about what climate changs and

the transition to a low-carbon world may
bring for Synthomer, and to accelerate

the development of a Group-wide approach

to integrating climate thinking into our
business at every levelin the short, medium
and long term, To this end, in April 2021,

we engaged a specialist adviser to analyse
our current position against the requirements
of TCFD and to work with us to develop

and implement a plan, including qualitative
and quantitative scenarios, that would ensure
we are taking climate change properly into
account in our planning and operaticns.

With this being our first report against
TCFD, we felt it would ba most ussful for
stakeholders to Include it as a standalone
section within our Annual Report. To avoid
unnacassary repsetition, however, we have
summarised our approach and progress
under each of the four categories of
TCFD here — governance, strategy, risk
managament, and metrics and targsts -
with cross-references to more details
elsewhare in the report as appropriate.

|

In summary
Overall, we are pleased with the work we

' have done, and how it has contributed

to our understanding of climate risk and
opportunities, and that it has enabied us

to report our compiiance against all 11
requirements of TCFD, The enhancements
to governance and risk management we
have made give us confidence that we are in
a good poslition to embed zn understanding
of climate changse in aur decision making,

- beth at Group level and across the business.

The qualitative and quantitative scenario
analysis we have carried out s8¢ far, modelied
on ohe of our product lines from one of our

| European Functional Solutions sites, has

given us usefu insights into the potential
impacts — both positive and negative — we
may see from the transition to a low-carbon
economy, and the reality of fiving in a warmer
world. Howevar, we have mora to do, by
modelling further product lines in othar
geographies, to ensure the scenario analysis
is thoraugh and robust enough fo be
representative of Synthomer as a whole.

On metrics and targets, we are alrdady ina
good position with our exlsting environmantal
raporting, and with our 2030 environmental
targets (including applying for their verification
as science-based, due in 2022). We are also
looking at possibilities for building on these
targsts to help us manage climate risk and
opportunity as the world evolves,

In the coming year, we have four priorities

_ for developing our understanding of climale

risk and opportunity which we will report
on in 2022:

. » Review our 2030 GHG targets and apply

for them to be confirmed as science-based;

* Extend our quantitative scenaric analysis
beyond Europe to include products from
sites in Asia and the USA;

+ Develop our climate-related matrics and
targets, including setting an internal carbon
price 1o stress test the resilience of key
product lines and Investment projects;

» Develop decarbonisation plans for our
ke sites and longer-term renewable
enargy arrangements to reduce our
climate-related risks.

" What really matters, though, Is what all thig

means in practice for developing the products
the world ngeds for a low-carbon, cirular
economy - and, indeed, creating the
environment that will enable such an
sconomy to evalve, There is ne mmediate
tachnologhcal solution that will switch the
waorld over from a fossil fuel economy.

Moving to renewable energy through the
supply chain s one of the big transitions

that must ocour, Decarbonising incustrial
processes and products is another challonge.
And these can only be achieved by working
in a collaborative way with consumers,
customers and suppliers, with technical

| partners, with the wider industry, and with

policy makers. This partnership apprecach wil
be the real focus for us In the coming years.
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Business foundations

TCFD report continued

Governance

—~ Principle 1: Describe
the Board’s oversight
of ciimate-related risks
and opportunities

- Principle 2: Describe
managerment’s role in
assessing and managing
climate-related risks
and opportunities

Climate change has baen a key focus for the
Board, which has begn actively involved in
considering the business approach to

Strategy

- Principle 3: Describe

climate-related opportunities and roles during

the year. Nonetheless, the 2021 review
revealed cppertunities for improving
governance at executive level, 0 during the
yaar we datermined that the CEO would be
responsible for climate change on behalf of
the Board. We also established an Executive
Sustainability Steering Committes, chaired by
the GEQ, which now meets quarterly (as of
January 2022) and is attended by the full
Executive Committee and the Group
Sustainability Director. Each of our Vision 2030
sustainability goais 15 owned and sponsored
by an axecutive member who is responsible
for ensuring we have the right plans in place
to deliver within tha timeframe. Cverall, the
Cornmittee will enable the CEQ to carry out his
responsibility on behalf of the Board by:

* Enguring that our plans for climate change
ars aligned across the Group, and are
properly resourced and coordinated.

» Ensuring that our climate-related metrics
and targets are managed effectively.

For more on governance, ses our
Governgnce raport, pages 84-129.

inciuding climate-related targets

in remunaration

Wo have reflected the importange of making
progress on climate-related targets in our
Exacutive Committee’s remuneration. As of
2020, 10% of executives’ annual Parformance
Share Plan award has been based on the
reduction of Scope 1 and Scope 2 carbon
dioxide equivalent ermissions.

For more on remuneration, see our
Remuneration report, pages 112-125.

Next steps

To improve our governance stll further, we are

looking at developing new rolas throughout the
business dedicated to assessing and managing
climate-related risks and opporiunities.

i Synthomer plc
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the climate-related risks
and opportunities the f
organisation has identified
over the short, medium

and long term ' (

Principle 4: Describe the
impact of climate-related
risks and opportunities f
on the Company's |
businesses, strategy,

and financial planning

Principle 5: Describe ;
the resilience of the
Company’s strategy, taking
into consideration different
climate-related scenarios,
including a 2°C or lower
scenario

Our strategy for a robust, resfiient growih
business has been built on how we can
differentiate our products through their impact
on the environment. Over the years, through
our watsr-based polymers, we have helped
customers avoid the use of considerable
amounts of carbon and solvents, and our
2030 targets include that at ieast 60% of new

i products launched gach year must nave

shhanced sustainability benefits, and that
B0% of procurement spand must have a
sustainability rating. During that time, we
have also focused on manufacturing and

+ operational efficiency. namely minimising

resources for maximum output.

in the past vear, the world has become
Incraasingly aware of the risks posed by
climate change, with more frequent sevara
weather events affecting rmore parts of the
world. And, in the run-up to COP26 in
November 2021, wa have seen greater
urgancy 1o address thase risks. This also
presents us with opportunitiss, because

. people are increasingly locking for products

that will help to mitigate the negative impacts

of climate change — namely those like ours with
lower carbon smissions that eliminate the use
of sohvents and encourage a circular 8canary.

For mora on our Business stratagy,
see page 15.

Determining our climate-related rigks
and opportunities under .5°C, 2°C
and 2°C scenarios

! Raporting against TCFD has given us the

impetus to guantify the opportunities and risks

. presented by climate change, such that we

can use raal data to help us fecus our strategy.

. To understand the potential opportunities

and impacts of physical climate risks and

| the transition to a low-carbon economy,
- our specialist adviser carried out qualitative

and quantitative analyses for three diffgrent
climatg scenarios: a rise in temperature of

| 1.5°C, 2°C and 3°C over short- (to 2025),

medium- tto 2035) and long-term {to 2050)
horizons. in determining financial materiafity,
we used the same approach as we do for all
financial risks ~ the likelihood of the hazard

' veeurring and the nature and magnituda of its

impact on the business.

To perform their analysis, our adviser looked
at the impact of these scenarios on one
proguct line — styrene acrylic water-based
gmulsion, a Functional Solutions product
made in oyr Worms, Germany plant.

Wa chose this product with the aim of
covaring as many vanables as possible,

The product uses two of our op raw
materials, styrene and buty! acrylate; it is
used in many applications from coatings to

" industrial textiles to construction; and it travels

by water and by road.

- We recognise that the results from this single

product are not sufficient to enable us o
extrapolate the financia! impact of the various
¢limate scenarios on the Group as a whole,
indeed, doing ¢ would no doubt ba
miskeading. We will therefore bé expanding
the scenarios beyond Europe to include a
wider range of products from the USA and
Asia. Nonetheless, the results from this year's
work arg a useful indication of the risks and
opportunities we should consider.

Potential physical and transilion risks
Tha physical risks identfied by the study were

' determined as being more frequent axtrems

weather evants such as floods or droughts
which could affect gur plants' ability 1o
operate efficiently, and which could ihcrease
costs from our supply chain. The transition
risks were determined as being the potential
of global or regional carbon taxes. and narket
and environmental policy changes.

Bath types of risk were present i1 aill
femperature scenarios and under all

: timeframes, but their relative severity and

impact on our business, and our resilience,
is likely to vary botween timeframes, as
discussed below.



Potentlal opportunities

The oppertunities for Synthomer, under all
temperat.ure scenarios and timeframas, were
determined as:

* Growth in demand for products and services
that wil' service a low-carbon or circular
economy in varfous markets and regions
Cost savings and market growth through the
earty adoption of low-carbon technologies,
for example using renewable snergy or-
switching to renewable raw materials

Gur natwork of sites across the world
makes us a more reliable supplier: it is seen
as a competitive advantage, meanirg we
are more resilient to physical operaticnal
1igks, since we can service customers from
a varfgty of plants.

-

The potential impact of these opportunities on
the strategy and performance of the business
is discussed below.

Results by temperature scenario

To summarise: in both the 1.5°C and 2°C
tutures, the biggest risks come from the
transition to a iow-carbon, circular economy,
but this transttion also presents significant
opportunities for Synthomer. Under a 3°C
future, while the opportunities remain, the
physical risks are much more savere,
primarily the impacts on our sites of

drought and floeding.

* If we see giobally coordinated carbon pricing,
we may achieve a 1.5°C future: in this
scenaric, Synthomer could face higher prices
from transition costs. However, demand for
low-carbon and ‘circuiar’ products could
increasa, isading to new, low-carbon market
opportunities, white government purchasing

agreemsnts could put pressure on consumars

in our end markets to decarbonise, leading
to greatar demand for our products.
Without globally coordinated carbon pricing,
a 1.5°C future becomes far less likely, and,
under a 2°C future, Synthomer could face
different operating costs in different markats,
for example, high carbon costsin the EU,
and a patchwork of regulations across USA
states. This kind of lack of coordination
drives market volatility, so it could alsc resutt
in erratic changes in costs in the supply
chain. All of Synthomer's operational sites
would be more vuinerable to the physical
rigks of climate changa under this than
under the 1.5°C scenaric.

Should a 3+°C future become a reality, due
1o the greater physical risis, our river-based
sitas coutd flood regularly, while our coasta!
locations in Asia and Nerth America could
be affected by storm surges, and it could
be difficult tc find alternatives given that

a significant number of s'tes would be
affected simultaneously. Overalt, markets
cotld become severely unstable given the
likelihood of social and economic upheaval
resulting from widespread, severe weather

!

. Business resiliance: considering the

* {mora extrame waather events affecting our

- and therefore the physical risks 10 Synthomer
_ inthe medium 1o long term wolld decrease.

. Al the same tims, with increasing awareness

events, with a cornesponding impact on our
customers, our sSupply chan and our costs.

Impact of climate-related risks and
opportunities over all timeframes

In the short to medium term {to 2025 and
2035), transition risks, particularly global or
regichal carbon taxes, are most likely to affect
us. The physical risks of climate change, while
already starting to occur in the form of more
frequent extrame weather in more parts of the
world, are likely to increase and therefore
become more costly over the medium to

long term (2035 and 2050).

More specificalty, in the short term {to 2025),
under a 1.5°C temperature rise scenario, from
our analysis we estimate that around 75%

of the impact of the risks from clirmate change
will come from transitioning to a low-carbon,
circular economy (notably higher costs},

with just 25% corming from physical risks

operations). In that context however, in the
event that there is global coordination of
carbon pricing and environmental taxes then
it is likely that we would be able to pass most
climate-related cost through 1o our customers.

of chmate-related issuas, we expect to see
growing demand from our customers and their
consumers for products ke ours which offer
lower carbon or circularity benefits. Bath of
these give a considerable measure of
resllience to our business.

It is cifficult to look beyond 2025 with any
degree of certainty, because much depands
on the political will to act now in accordance
with the conclusions reached at COP26, to
bring In the measures such as coordinated
carbon taxation and environmental regulation
that would enable the world to constrain the
temperature increase. Should these measures
occur, in the short term Synthomer wouid
face higher carbon pricing as noted above,
but should be able to pass the costs or;
however such maasures should mean a
1.5°C temmparature rise remains possible

Should these measures not occur, or cccur
too slowly, then a 2°C or even 3+°C
temperature rise becomes increasingly iikely,
and with it an increase in physical risks over
the medium to longer term. We are, however,
in a relatively strong position te withstand the
impact of these risks, bacause our network of
manufacturing sites across the world is wider,
meaning we can supply customers from an
aliernative site if one is afected by extreme
wesather. Moreover, our strateqy is to broaden
our footprint in speciality chemicals through
orgenic and acquisitive grow*h, which means
that in the future, our network is likely to be
wider stifl, thus rendering us more resilient

to climate changs.

" Qur philosophy, approach and pr

Next steps
To embed climate thinking more deeply n our
busingss strategy, in the coming year we wik:

* Develop a plan for how scenario analysis
will fesd into our annual strategy-setting
Process

* Extend our guantitative scenaric analysis
to include products from sites in Asta and
the USA.

Risk management

- Principle 6: Describe the

Company’s processes for
identifying and assessing
climate-related risks

Principle 7: Describe the
Company’s processes
for managing climate-
related risks

Principle B: Describe how
processes for identifying,
assessing, and managing
climate-related risks

are integrated into

the Company’s overall

risk management
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relating to risk management are set out
In our Risk report on pages 69-76.

, Given the wide-ranging potential impacts of
' ¢limate change, during 2021 we considered
" all our principal risks In that context, and

revised them where necessary to take into
acceunt the physical and transttion risks of
climate change. We also estabiished in our
analysis the timeframe over which we expect

. these risks to ocour. The principal risks that
. now include the impact of ciimate change are

as foliows — for more details see pages 72-76:

» Volatilty and competition in chemicals and
polymers market

* Innovaticn and intellectual property

* Mergers and acquisitions

* Change programmes

» | oss or tailure of Synthomer site

: » Security of supp.y of raw materials goods

and services

- e tthics and ~egulatory compliance

= Financial.

From 2022, we will review the risks associated
with climate change every six months as part
of our regular risk management process.

Next steps
in the coming year, we will continue to

' develop our understanding of climate-related
" risks and their potential impact on our

Synthomer plc
Annual Report 2021

79

sjuswerals felduely Aurdwon

UojiBuLow] JeUIn l

|



Business foundations

TCFD report continued

finangial performance, Aside from the further
scenaris analysis described above under
Strateqgy, we wiil develop our understanding
of potential financia! impact of the physical
and transttion risks and opportunities of
climate changs.
Metrics and targets
— Principle 9: Disclose
the metrics used by
the Company to assess
climate-related risks
and opportunities in line
with its strategy and risk
managernent processes

Principle 10: Disclose
Scope 1, Scope 2, and,
if appropriate, Scope 3,
greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions, and the
related risks

Principie 11: Describe

the targets used by the
Company 1o manage
climate-related risks

and opportunities and
performance against targets

Tha metrics wa uge to agsess climate-related
tisks and opportunities are:

* Tha proportion of new products we
make that have sustainability benefits
[see page 48)

s Proportion of raw material procurement
spand covered by a sustainability rating and
improvermnent plan {see page 51)

» Energy consurmption and usage of
renewable energy (see page 58)

* GHG emissions, including Scopes 1 and 2
end related risks (see page 58); for Scope 3
emissions, {see page 58)

+ Water usage {see page G1)
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Our Vision 2030 susteinabllity metrics and
targets, which we aim to have certifiad as
science-pased during 2022, have a strong '
focus on climate. We have published our
ambition to reach net zero by 2050, and

our 2030 targets towards this aim include:

& At least 60% of new producits with
enhanced sustainability benefiis
{sea pags 48)

* 80% procuremant spand with suppliers
with a sustainability rating (ses page 51)

s 40% reduction in Scopes 1 and 2 GHG |
amissions intensity, vs 2018 (see page 58)

« 109 reduction in Scope 3 GHG emissions
intensity, vs 2019 (see page 58)

» 80% of elactricity from renewable sources,
plus improving energy etficiency in all our
operatiens {see page 58)

= Manage and minimise water congumpticn,
and infroduce water management plans in
water-stressed areas and at the sites where
we Use most water (see page 60).

Achleving our Scope 1 and 2 emission |
targets is factored into Executive Committee
annual Performance Share Plan awards, as |
gescribed in the remuneration section above. |
For more on our tustainabllity metrics and

targets, including performance, see the
bility section on pages 42-68.

‘ Next steps

We are looking into detining further
metrics and targets, aligned with TCFD's
recornmandations of Octobar 2021, that

" would help us better measure climate risk
" and our resllignce to it. This will include ;

setting an internal carbon price 1o stress
test the resilience of key product lines,



Viability statement

A sensitiv ty analysis has been undertaken,

None of these scerarios individually, or
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In accordance with the regquirements of the UK o -
Corporate Govemance Coce (‘the Code'), the focusing on the impact of the principal risks  + when combined, threaten the Group, and =
Directors have assessed the viability of the (detailod above on pages 72-76) over the . the compined impact of these scenatios 8
Group over a five-year period to December five-year period and the availability and likely has been evaluated as the most severs stross §
2026, being the period covered by the Group's -+ effectiveness of mitigating actions. The risks scenario. No mitigating actions have besn ®
approved strategic plan. This plan is updated : bave been assessed for ther potential Impact | included for any of the scenarios and, should
annually, in a process led by the Executive | on the Group’s business model, future trading | it need to, the Group could take action guickly
Comimittee with input from the respective . and funding structure, to significartly reduce costs and cash outflows i~
businesses and functions. It includes analysis The sensitivity analysis has considered a as demonstrated d}lring the course of the
of product and profit performance, cash . ’ COVID-19 pandemic in 2020. o)
flow, investment programmes and retums number of severe but piausible scenarios, S
' \ linked to the riskg considered fo have the While this sensitivity analysis did not consider all O
to shareholders. The plan is presented to e . o . ) =
the Board each vear as a part of its annual maost significant financial impact. In all cases, of the risks that the Grroup may face, the Directors §
stratooic review the impact was considered on both liguidity consider that it is reasonable in the droumstances g
eg : and the borrowing covenant, of the inherent uncertainty involved. &
Thag”:::g?;:’;iﬂ:;ﬂﬁf;ﬁi:;g ;n an Tha scenarios included: Based cn the analysis, the Directors have . §
approp " . gl par, ‘ . a reasonable expectation that the Group wil -
being the period over which the Group actively | * Trading dowsnturns as a rasult of increasad be able to continue in operation and mest its @
focuses on its iong-term product development compatition or lack of demandg iablliss as thev fall due over the five-vear
and capital expenditure investmsnts. A period * Delays in project delivery | eriod of their :ssessmen t ¥ 1
above five years s considered by the Directors  + Failure to successfully commercialise l P ’ |
1o be too long, given the uncertainties that new products 1 |
axist beyond this time frame. » The temporary loss of a major
In making their assessment, the Directors manufacturing site
. ) " » Significant foreign exchange rate |
have considered the diverse activities and - \ ) —
: . appreciation against sterling.
product offering of the Greup in terms of -
geographies, chemistry and end markets. l o
The Directors have also considered the ! g
Group’s current strang financia! position, ! 3
including the existing and future committed §','
financing tacilties, which have been assumed 2
to be refinanced at maturity. | 2
! &
| . :
i 2
I 3
g
2
5
. ¢
| 3
|

Synthomer plc
Arnual Report 2021

81




Business foundations

Non-financial disclosures and section 172 statement

Non-financial information statement

The table below summarises where kay elements of our governance reporting {including non-financial matters as required by the Non-Financiat

Reporting Directive) can be found, some of which are integrated into other sections of our Annual Report.
Rslevant policlas snd standards that govem our approach

Raparting requirement

Where to reag mose in this report

Environmetital matters

Emplayees

Social matters

Flespe_ét for Human Rights

Anti-corruption and
anti-bribery

Our buginess modei
Principal riske and
uncertainties
Non-financial KPls

* s+ 0

Code of Conduct

Group SHE Policy

Sustainable Procurement Policy and Strategy
‘Qur vaiuss

Code of Conduct

s Group SHE Policy

* Responsible Earerl;rincr:;lﬁles

Synthomer Cares _

Code of Conduct

Madiern Slavary Act Statament
Conflict Minerals Policy Statermneant
Sustainable Procurement Poﬁgv__anq Strategy
Code of Conduct

+ Ethics Helpiine

Core values o o
How it finks to strategy and delivers value to stakeholders
Risk assessment

He]évant key parformance "rndiEarno’ré

Risk assessment pags 6910 71
Health and safety page 65
Sustainable procurement page 51
TCFD report pages 77-80

* Qurvalues pags 62

Gender pay gap page 113
Section 172 page 97

Health and safety page 55
Saction 172 page 87

Our communities page &7
Upholding human rights page 52
Ethics and compliance page 66
Sustainable procurament page 51

Ethics and compliance page 66
Qur values page 62

Our business model page 15
Managing risk page 6% to 76

"K;y pérformance indicators page 17

Section 172(1) statement and

stakeholder engagement

Wa value our engagement with all gur
stakeholders, including our key stakeholders:
customars, employess, communitios,
suppliers, shareholders, and governments and
authorities. Our section 172(1) statement is on
pages 96-97. It describes how the Diractors
tiave had regard to stakeholders’ interests and
other matters when discharging Directors’
duties set out in section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006. it includes examples of how
stakeholders’ interests were consklared during
principal decisions taken during the year.
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The Strategic Report was approved by
order cf the Board.

R Atkingon
Company Secretary
3 March 2022



Governance

Synthomer offors an
axtensive range of binders
specifically developed to meet the
performance and regulatory
requirermnents of the architectural and
industrial coatings market. Our acryiic and
vinylic copolymer dispersions are low
VOC, kow odour and APEQ free to meet
the increasingly dernanding
environmantal standards without
compromising application
proparties or durabifity.
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Corporate Governance

Our Board of Directors

Caroline A Johnstone
Chair

Nationality: British

Position and date of appointment

Chair of the Board and the Nomination and
Disclosure Committees. Caroline joined the
Board in March 2015 and was appointed Chair
in Dacember 2020 having previously teen Chair
of the Audit Committee and a memper of the
Nomination and Remuneration Commlttees.

Koy appointments

Caroline is a Non-Exgoutive Directot and chair
of the employee engagement committee of
Spirax-Sarco Engineering ple, and a Non-
Executive Director and chair of the audit
committee of Shepherd Bullding Group
Limited, a private company which owns
Portakabin Limited. She has an honorary role
on the board ¢f the University of Manchester.

Skills and experience

Cargling has nearly 40 years' experience

of working with large global organisations

in the chemricals sector and other mdustries.
Her experience includes delivering value from
M&ag, turnaround, culture change and cost
optimisation. She was a partner in and sat
on the board of the Assurance practice of
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC} with
responsibility for all people matters.
Cargline js a chartered accountant

and a member of the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of Scotland.
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Michael Willome
Chief Exacutive Officer

[s]

Nationality: Swiss

* Positlon and date of appointment

Chief Exacutive Oficar since November 2021;
member of the Disclosure Committee,

Key appointments

Michae! Is a8 Non-Executive Director of
Glaston Qy) (Nasdag Helsinki) and sits on
subsidiary hoards of the Indutrade Group.

Skills and experience

Michael is an established publc markst CEQ
with a track record of driving performance
through strong operational management and
strategic actions, including M&A. He was
praviously CEQ of Conzzeta AG, Zurich,
{row Bystronic AG), a global industrial
company listed on the SIX Swiss exchange.
Prior to Conzzeta, Michael spent 18 years
with Clariant, leading Its global industrial &

. Consumer Specialiies division from 2010

to 2015, This followed 13 years in leadership
rolas in Asia Pacific, based in Hong Kong,
Canada and Turkey.

Stephen G Bennett

- Chief Financiai Otficer

[0

Nationality: British

Position and date of appointment
Chief Financial Officer since May 2015;

 memper of the Disclosure Committee.

" Key appcintments

No external appointments.

Skills and experience
Stephen was previously at INEQS where he

" had been chiet financial officer at Petroingos

Refining since 2006. Stephen was also CFO
of INEQS Upstream Limited, a start-up oil
and gas exploration business, and of INEOS
QOlefins and Polymers South and INEOS
Phenol. He joined Coopers & Lybrand in
1986 and is a guaiified chartered accountant,

' He was at Full Circle industries plc as

company secretary and group controker
betore moving to PricewaternouseCoopers
{PwC) in 1997 as a Diractor in

transaction services.



Board committee key
Audit Committea

[R] Remuneration Committee
[N nomiration Committee
iD] Disclosure Committee

8 committee Chair

The Hon. Alexander G Catto
Non-Executive Diractor

N

Nationaiity: British

Position and date of appointment
Non-Exacutive Director since 1981.
Member of Nomination Committae and
designated Non-Executive Director to iead
workforce engagement.

Key appointments

Alexander Is managing director of CairnSaa
Investments Limited, a private imestment
compary, and a Non-Executive Director of
several early stage companies that have been
backag by CairnSea.

Skills and experience

Pricr to the establishment of CairnSea,
Alexander was a Director of Morgan Grenfell
& Co and then Lazard Brothers & Co.

Brendan WD Connolily
Senior independent Director

AIEND]

Nationality: British

Posttion and date of appointment
Independent Non-Executive Director since
January 2014; Chair of the Remuneration
Commitiee; member of the Audit, Disclosurs
and Nomination Committees. Sanior
Independent Director singe April 2015.

Key appointments
Brendan is a Non-Executive Director of

' Victrex PLC, Pepco Group NV and Applus,
and two private equity backed companies,

one of which he chalrs,

Skills and experience

Brendan has over 30 years’ experience in the
oit and gas induetry. Until June 2013 Brendan
was a senior executive at Intartek Group pic
and had praviously been chief executive
officar of Moody International (which was
acquired by Intertek in 2011), Prior to Moody,
he was managing director of Atos Origin LK,
and spent more than 25 years of his carear
with Schlumberger in senior international
roles gver three continents. Brendan has
previous exparience as chairman

of the remuneration committee

of & UK-listed company.

Cynthia S Dubin
Independent Non-Executive Director
BRIN

Nationality: American and Biitish

Position and date of appointment
Independent Non-Executive Director since
July 2020; Chair of the Audit Committee
and A member of tha Nomination and
Remuneration Commiftees.

Key appointments

Cynthia is a Non-Exgcutive Director of the
Competition and Markets Authority, where
she is chait of the audit, risk and assurance
committes, an independent Non-Executive
Director and member of the audit commitiee
of Hurco Companies Inc, an independent
Non-Executive Director, and member of the
audit and risk committee of IGE Futures
Europe, a subsidiary of Intercontinental
Exchangs, and an independeant Non-
Executive Director, chair of the audit
committee and a member of the
compensation committee of Franchise
Group, Inc.

" Skills and experlence

Gynthia has sarved n senior finance and
business roles in the power, ofl, gas and
broader cisan anergy technology sactor,
having started her career in the banking
industry In New York specialising in advising
and lending to large energy projects betore
relocating to London in 1992.
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Corporate Governance

Our Board of Directors continued

Raberto Gualdoni
Independent Non-Executive Director

BN
Naticnality: German and Italian

Position and date of appeintment
Independent Non-Exacutive Diractor since
July 2021; member of the Audit,
Remuneration and Normination Commitiges.

Key appointments

Hoberto Is chair of CABB Group and
a member of the board of directors of
Aerogel Corporation.

Skills and experience

Roberto has over 25 years’ chemical sector
axperience at BASF where he hekd sanior
operational roles covering international sales,
marketing, procurement and M&A and served
an a number of joint venture boards. Hig final
role at BASF was as president of its Styrenics
business, which was carved out as part

of a joint venture as Styrojution, and which
Roberto led as chief axecutive for thres years
until 2074, Roberto has pravious board-jevel
exparience in Saudi Arabia, Finland

and Belgium.
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Dato’ Lee Hau Hian
Non-Executiva Diractor

N

Nationality: Malaysian

Position and date of appointment
Non-Executive Director since 2002; first
joinad the Board in 1693 and stood down

Member of Nomination Committee.

Key appointments

Hau Hian is a Director of Kuala Lumpur
Kepong Bhd and is the president of the Perak
Chinese Maternity Association. He also
serves as a Director of Yayasan De La Salls.

Skills and experienca

Hau Hian is the Managing Director of Batu
Kawan 8hd, a iistad Malaysian invastmants
holding compary, with interests In plantations

. and chemicals manufacturing. He has

. experiance in organisational transforrations,
" gequisitions, chemical and manufacturing

operations and sustainability issues.

Holly A Van Deursen
Independent Non-Executive Director

P AiRIN)

Nationality: Amaerican

Pasition and date of appointment
Independent Non-Executive Direcier since
Septembar 2018; member of the Audit,
Nomination and Remunaration Committees.

Key appointments

Holly is a Non-Executive Directer of Kimbali
Electronics Inc, where she chairs the
Compensation & Govemance Cornmities.
She serves es a Non-Executive Director of

! Albermale Corporation and ag a mamber of
+ the Executive Compensation and Capital

Investment Committees,

Skitls and experience

Until 2005, Holly was group vice prasident,
Potroctiermicals, at BP. She has worked in the
glcbal chemical industry for over 25 years and

. held senior positions across North America,

Europe and Asia. in addition, Holly has since
2006 held Non-Executive Director roles for
giobal companies headguartered in the USA
and spent 12 years on the board of a
Norwagian-iisted company.



Board committoe key

[Al Audit Committea

(R Remuneration Committea
iN] Nomination Committee
@ Disclosure Committes

B Committee Chalr

Richard Atkinson
Chief Counsel and Company Secretary

Position and date of appointment
Company Sacretary since 1998; Group Chief
Counsal.

Kay appointments
No external appointments.

Other Executive responsibilities
Member of the Executive Gommittee
Sustainability Steering Group; deputy chalr
of the boards of the Group's Middle Eastern
Joint venture companies; trustes of the UK
pension schema.

Skilis and experience

Richard qualified as a solicitor in 1988 and
worked in private practice as a corporaté and
banking lawyer before moving into industry as
an in-house lawyer working in the USA and
UK. He has extensive M&A experience and
led on the legal aspacts of all the Group's
acquisitions over the last 20 years. He has a

law degree from the University of Birmingham.

Qur two non-indspendent Board members
The Board recognises the unusual nature of having two non-Indepsndent members.
This is a voluntary arrangement that has besn in place for 40 years,

Date' Lae Hau Hian is the Board's representative for our largest shareholdar, Kuala Lumpur
Kapong Bhd (21.3%] which provided financial support for our recent acquisitions, via share
placing and & rights Issue with his extensive leadership experience in chemical
manufacturing. He offers the Board and Executive Committes invaluable Insights when
making business decisions as well as a parspective on the Malaysian and southeast Asian
business landscape.

The Hon. Alexander Catio Is a member of Synthomer's founding family. Today, the Catto
family cwns a 5% shareholding. Some of our iInvestors continue to vole against Alexander's
Board membership, but we believe he pravides deep knowledge of Synthomer's past and a
unique long-term shareholder perspective. His background in investment baniking and time
cn other boards also give him extensive business, finance, investor engagement and
governance expeariance.
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Corporate Governance

Our Executive Committee

Rob Tupker
President,
Functional Solations and Europe

Nationality: Dutch

Position and date of appointment
Presidert, Functional Soluticns and Furope
since Septemper 2018,

Other Executive responsibilities
Executive sponsor of Diversity and 'nelusion

Leadership Committee, Member of Exscutive
Commitiee Sustainability Steering Group, and

Pathway programme Steering Committee.

Skills and experience
Rob was previously with Honeywell, where

he held a variety of senicr business leadership

positions in the performance materials and
home and building techneologies divisicns.
Prior to Honeywell, he workeg with Std
Chamie {now Clariant) ana Unilevers/iCl's
(now Givaudarn's) flavour and tragrance
division. Rob worked and lived for seven
vears in Asia Pacific, five vears in the L3A
and 20 years across Europe. He has a

chamical enginearing degree from Findhoven

Technical University, an MS¢ fromn MIT and
an MBA fram INSEAD.
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i Nationality: British

. Neil Whitley
i President,

Performance Elastorners Asia

Posgition and date of appointment
President, Performance Elastomers Asia
since Janwary 2021, President, Global HR
since 2015,

. Other Execulive responsibilities
" HR, mermber of the Zxecutive Commitiee

Sugtainabiity Steering Group and the
Pathway programme Steering Commitige.

Skills and experience
Bmee joinng Synthomer In 2075, Neil has

had responsibilty for the Industrial Specialives

and Acrylate Monomers divisipns and ied
the integratiun of the OVINOVA acauisition.

_ Nai' was praviously with Johnson Matthey
. where he was a member of their executive

management committee and diwision director
of the process technologies catalyst and
chemicais refining givisions. Prior 1o Johnson

Matthey, Neil worked in business, finance ard

HR roles at IC). He s an sconomics graduale
from Leeds University and an alumnus of
INSEAD's Advanced | eadership Programme.

Biographles for Michael Willome,

! Stephen Bennett and Richard Atkinson

can be found on pages 84 and B7.

Ana Perroni Laloe
President,
industrial Specialties

Nationalty: Brazllian

Position and date ot appointment
Prag:dent, Industrial Specialties sirce
Fetrruary 2022,

Other Executive responsibilities
Ana is the driving force in the tgam that
founded and have heen leading our
ENGENDER womer's network.

Skills and experience
Ana joinad Syrthormer in March 2018 as

; Globa: Business Developrnent Manager in
our 1S Division. She hokds a BSc ir Chemical

Engineering from IMT in Sao Paulc.
She started her career at Ciba Spetialty

© Chemicals in Brazil, followed by commercial

rces in the UK, Brazit again and Switzeriand.
She then took a career break and founded
and ran a smadl business as she started

a family before joining Synthomer.



Board committee key

Audit Committee

(B Remunsration Committee
[N} Nomination Committee
(D] piscwosure Committse

B committee Chair

Marshall Moore
Chief Technology Officer and Preskdert,
Armericas

Nationality: American

Position and date of appointment
Chief Technotogy Officer and President,
Americas since April 2020, :

Other Executive responsiblitties
Chalrman cf the Synthomer Foundation
Board of Trustees and a member of the
Executive Committee Sustainability Steering
Group.

Skills and experience

Marshall was previoush chief technology
officer and senior vice president of operations
with OMNOVA Solutions. He has 35 years
of experience in polymers and speciality
chemicals, working with Borden Chemicals,
GE Plastics and Chemtura, prior ta joining
OMNOVA in 2015, Assignments have
included leadership positions in technology

Philip Wrigley
Presidant,
Operaticns and SHE.
Nationality: British

' Position and date of appointment

Praesident Operations and SHE since
May 2021,

Cther Exgocutive responsibilities
Member of the Executive Committee
Sustainability Steering Group.

Skills and axperiencs
Phil joined Synthomer in March 2010 and

. was previously Vice President, Gperations

for Functional Solutions, Prior to Synthomer,
Phif worked n the chemical industry for
more than 30 years across speciality and

. commodity sectors for Venator, Hunteman,

Rio Tinto Alcan, Rohm and Haas, Hickson
and Welch and ICl. He has significant
axperience of glabal opaerationat and

SHE improvement programmes. He is the
operational lead for due diligence, integration

! Tim Hughes

Prasident,
Corporate Development

Nationality: British

. Position and deate of appointment

President, Corporate Development since
2018, Tim joined Synthomer in June 2009
and bacame a member of the Exacutive
Committee In 2013,

i Other Executive responslibilities

Mamber of the Exectrtive Commities
Sustainabillity Steering Group.

- SKils and experlence

Tim was previously group managing director,
Urethane Technologies, Chemtura In¢ having
previously led the Urethane Speciality
Chemicals joint vanture between Chemtura

 and Croda ple since 1998. Pricr to Chemitura,

Tim spent 14 ysars with Courtaulds pic in
business leadership and marketing roles in
the speciality chemicals and fibres divisions.
During his career at Synthomer he has besn

lo

SIUBLLETE]S [BISUBUL SNl

SIUBWIBIRIS RIoURLY AUBdion

and innovation, qualty assurance and process

excellence, operations, government affalrs | and synergy delivery for several large responsible for the Industrial Specialities
and advocacy, marksting, and information acquisitions at Synthomer. Phil is also a ; diviston and the Americas, Middle East
technology. He holds a degree in chemistry  ° chartered engineer and mamber of LMech.E. i and Africa region. |
and is a certified Six Sigma Black Bett. ' }
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Corporate Governance

Introduction to corporate governance

Introduction from the Chair

. Overseeing ambition,
supporting growth

The Exaecutive changes saw us welcoming
Michae! Willome as our new Group Chief
Executive Officer and Lity Liu, who will join
us by July 2022, as our new Chief Finance
Officer. We describe the search processes
that led te their recruitment - along with that
of our new Independent Non-Executive
Director, Roberte Gualdoni — on page 107.
Here, | woukd like to repeat the Board's warm
welcome 1o them, and to say how pleased we
arg 1o have found people whose skills,
mindsets and personalities will add huge

" value and diversity to Synthomer.

Scrutinising decislons

and monitoring progress

As well as guiding strategic recruitment,

in 2021 the Board oversaw two significant
decisions that will shape the future of our
business for years to come. The first, inthe
Board pricrity area of erwironment, soclety
and govemance ESG), was the development
and launch of Syntnomar's Vislon 2030
sustainability roadmap. The Board engaged

Even for a business as dynamic as i delaed iocussions of thospprooriale
argats 1or vision 3 1 a png-ter

Synthomer, 2021 was notable asa year viargf of the ipterestsofthe businessgand its

in which the Board oversaw Executive Bt o Aborore T Al voraion whion

gives us a claar diraction 10 stear in the

and_ anrd appOi!‘tments.’ n‘!a_jor Strategic i decade ahead. We will continue to review
activity and monitored significant progress ' Syihomers £5G targets and challenge

the Executive team to ensure they remain

ag ainst our key priorities_ as stretching as possible. For more detail

on Vision 2030, see page 18.

The second significant decision concernad
our proposed acquisition of Eastman's

~ Adhesive Resins business. This very
significant transaction — the largest in our
history —was the subject of detailed Board
oversight, planning and discussion over
much of 2021,

90 Synthomaer plc
Annugt Report 2021



As well as discussions with Synthomer teams,
we sought expert Inputs on market dynamics,
prospacts and pricing, the acquisition process,
and the likely transition. We considered the
impact of tha acquisition on our full rangs of
stakeholders through a detalled section 172
process, concluding that the transaction
served all their Intetests ~ and strengthened
our ability to offer a broader portfolic of
products with sustainability benefits.

We also continued to ensure that Synthomear's
approach to risk evolved with the changing
circumstances we face. As part of this effort,
led by our Group Internal Augit and Risk
Director and foliowing discussion with
external consu'tants, we made important
adaptations to our risk management
framework. We re-assessed our Board
appetite for our significant businass and
strategic risks. In addition, the Board will

now consider the speed at which a risk might
oceur, as well as its probabllity and impact.
For more details, see our Audit Committee
raport on page 98B.

in & year of growth and high performancs,
the Board was also closely involved in a wide
range of major projects, recaiving regular
updates on ongoing programmes such as
Synthomer's capacity expansion in nitrlles,
the OMNOVA integration, the new Asian
Innovation Centre In Malaysia, and the
husiness process and system transformation
Pathway pregramme.

Continuous Improvement for the Board
We continued to act on, and benefit from,
the learnings of our external 2020 Board
evaluation. As the Board continues to evolve
to serve the business, we focused on our
priorities in the erucial areas of succession
planning and giversity and inclusion,

Having compared our gkills with those

of other leading companies in 2020, we
concluded that we have a strong blend

of skills and experience, but wanted to add
to our industry, innovation and Eurcpean
experience — and this guided us in our NED
recruitment in 2021. Recently, we undertook
a deeper review of skills and experience of
the Board moving into 2022 and this guided

1 1am also developing the Board agenda with
the help of my Board colleagues, We have
included thematic deep dives for the Board
to strengthen focus on strategic priorities.
We had sustainability as a Board meeting
standing itern in 2021, to drive our progress
in this area. Quring the year, we expanded the
opportunities for strategic discussion, debate
and expert input at Board meetings — for
example, by hearing from external specialists
on our ESG priorities while we considered
Vision 2030. This is something we want to

: do more of. We also intend to increase our

. engagement with stakeholders, now that

. COVID-18 restrictions are lifting. | am

particulany keen 1o helghtan our engagement
with employees at former OMNOVA sites,
which have been difficult to visit during

the pandemic.

Following our 2020 extermnal evaluation of
tha Board and Committees, this year we
conducted an internal review. The feedback
suggests that we have made good progress
on all our 2021 priorities.

. Having had two clesed Annual General
Mestings dua to COVID-19, | am particularly
looking forward to meeting more shereholders
than | was able to during 2021 at our coming
AGM. We aspire towards making our AGMs
more inclusive by adopting virtual attendance
" mechanisms. Howgver, for the time being,
we will monitor how market practice develops
and this coming meeting will be solely
physical. We will continue to invite questions
to be submitled in advance of the meeting.

A Caroline Johnstone
+ Chair of the Board

3 March 2022

our sucoession planning. We have very strong

internationa! representation, for instance, and
will look to deepen our UK public company
experisnce in fulure recruitment.

We also made progress in our drive to have

a more diverse and inclusive leadership team;
setting a goal of B0% gender diversity in new
hiras to senior roles by 2030. We got oft to

a good start by reaching our first milestone

— 20% of women in such positions — by the
and of 2027. Mora detalls on our succession
planning are o page 106.

Changes to our

governance reporting

We have changed the way in which we
roport on governance this year to make
the information more accessible. The main
body of the report (see 'The Board's year)
8ets out kay activities that our Board
members have undertaken during 2021,

Wa have also developad a new, separate
compliance section, set out on pages
109-110, which describes how we have
complied with UK Corporate Governance
Code (2018 version), with emphasis on
how we have applied its principles.

| hope that | will meet shareholders at the
AGM and | am always happy to hear from
and speak with sharsholders at any tima.

Synthomer pic
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Corporate Governance

Introduction 1o corporate governance continued

Our governance structure
The govemanca structurs is designed to ensure that the Board focus is on strategy, monitoring performance and ensuring apgropriate risk
appetite, risk management and contrals.

Board
» Responsible for Synthomsr's long-term success and setting the Group's purpose, values and culture, and strategic direction
* Oversess Group strategy and risk agsessment
* Hesponsible for corporate governanca and overall financial performance

The Company Secretary provides advice 1o the Board and its Committees and supports the Chair in all governance matters.

A

Audit Nomination Remuneration Disclosure
Committee Committee Committee Committee
» Monitors integrity of financial  » Reviews size, skills, giversity,  * Sets, reviews and » Monitors compliance with
statements experience and Board recommends remunaration disclosure controls and
» Oversees internal controls GOMpOSition pelicy for the Chalr, procedures for material
and risk management * Lsads process 10 appoint Executive Directors, and information
process new Directors and senior Executive Committee * Responsible for laentifying
+ Mariages relationship with managament succession + Ensures the Remunaration ingida information
external audhor, Including planning Policy is properly
recommendations 1o Board * Qversees development implamented
and shareholders on of a Board and * Reviews the design and
appontment and senior managament approves targets of
reappointment succassion pipeline parformance-related
* Keeps non-axacutive and pay schemes
executive leadership needs ¢ Reviews workforce
under review ramuneration ang
* Qversees the Board related polices
evaluation processes
Read more on page 98 Read more on page 106 Read more on page 112

¥

Executive Committee
Chief Executive Officer

Chief Company President, Presidant, President, President, President, Chisf
Financial Secretary . Performance  Functional " Industrial Corporate Qperations Technology
Officer " and Chief Elastomers/ Solutions/ Specialities ‘ Development Officer/
Counsel Prasident Pregideant, ) : ¢ Pragident,
| Asia and " Europe ‘ | | Americas
- Global HR ! ;

In 2018, Synthomer formed a cross-functional Sustainabiiity Committes comprising representatives from all the <ey functions and businesses,
as well as divisional presidents, The Commitiee mests quarterly and s chaired by the Group Sustainabilily Direclor who reports directly to the
Executive Committee. This ensures Synthomer's sustainability agenda is aligned with Group strategy and helps to embed sustainability issues
within gur businasses.

See page 42 for more Information on cur approach to sustainability including sustainability governance.

See page 111, Compliance with the Code, for more information on the division of responsibilities,

9 2 Synthomer plc
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Board and Committee meeting attendance

Tha table below outiines all Board and Committee meeting attendance. When a Director is unable to attend, their views are sought in advance

and incorporated nto discussions.

Non-Executive Directors must disclose to the Board other significant commitments before their appointment. Any proposed new significant

commitments require Board approval before they are accepted.

Board Nominstion Audhit Rsmunaration Disclosura
Total number of scheduled mesetings 20 10 B 5 5
Members Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended
Caroline Johnstone 20 10 5
Calum MacLean - stepped down in November 2621 18 (18} 4)
Michasl Willome — joined Synthomer in November 2021 2 (2) 141)
Stephen Bennet! 19 5
Brendan Connoly 19 10 6 5 5
Lee Hau Hian - joined the Nomination Committes tn
March 2021 19 8(8)
Alexander Catto - joined the Nomination Committge in
March 2021 20 8(8)
Helly Van Deursen — joined the Nomination Committee
in March 2021 20 88 B ]
Cynthia Dubin 18 10 ] 5
Roberto Gualdoni - joined Synthomer in July 2021 7 (M 3(3) 3 33
Just Jansz - joined the Nomination Committes in
March 2021, stepped down in September 2021 13 (13) 70 30 44

For Directors who only aerved for part of the year, the numbers in brackets indicate how many mestings they were eligible to attend,
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Corporate Governance

The Board’s year

We created a comprehensive induction
programme for Michael, which i set out in
our Nomination Committes report on page
108. Deteils of Michael's reward package
are set out on page 112 of our Remuneration
Committee report.

This has been an exceptional year for Synthomer with a heavier
than usual workload for the Board. Due to COVID-19, the majority
of its 20 meetings were held online. In December 2021, the
Board held its first full face-to-face meeting, with only one Non-
Executive Director attending virtually due to ilness. In light of
changing work practices, the Board will now hold two of its
scheduled meetings virtually from 2022,

CFO: selecting a candidate with a strong
record in growth

To help us identify our new CFO, we carriad
out a thorough search across several key
candidate groups, including sitting CFOs in
other FTSE 250 companies. We announcad
Lily Liv’s appointment in Novernber 2021,

and she will join the Company no later than
July 2022, For more information on Lily's

~ appoiniment, sae page 107 in our Nomination
. Committee report and pages 112 t0 113 in our
Remuneration Commitiee report.

As well as the major areas highlighted below, we established
longer-term succession pianning for key roles and were therefore
welt prepared when our Chief Financial Cfficer (CFQ), Stephen
Bennett, announced his decision to step down in August 2021,
The Board alsc approved ongoing site transformation projects,
including closing our only coal-fired power station at our site in
Sokolov, Czech Republic (see page 59 in cur Sustainability report
for more information). It alsc approved the financial plan to
transfer production from our Marl 3 site in Germany, which we
are closing, to our location in Austria.

NED: bringing wide experience of the
chemical sector and board membership
We appointed Roberto Gualdoni as a new
Non-Executive Diractor to replace Just Jansz,
who retired in 2021 having completed his
nine-yaar tarure. Roberto has extensive
knowledge of the international chemical
industry and a wealth of board-ievel
sxparience. Information about Roberto's
induction can be found in our Nomination
Commitiee report on page 108.

Transition to a new management team
This year, we carried out an extensive
recruitment process to hire a new Chief
Executive Officer {CEQ), a new Chief Financial '
Officer (CFO} and a new Independent
Non-Executive Director {NED).

“The induction process
was very thorough and
comprehensive and

Eastman’s Adhesive Resins acquisition

We met regularly throughout 2021 to

discuss progress, duc diligence and our own

business core assessment of the proposed

acquisition. The Board worked with both

Calum and Michael t0 ensure we considered

alt appaortunities and rigks of the trangaction

and that everyone was aligned. We carefuilly

. considered the timing of the proposad

" acquisition alongside the senior management
rransaction — the whole of the executive feam
joined the Board discussions and showed,
with their experiance. support and planning
for the integration of the acquisition.

helped me to get under
the skin of the business.”
Michae! Willome, CEQ

We appointed recruitment specialists Egon
Zshnder to help us search for our CEQ and
NED. Meanwhile, we hired Spancer Stuart
to help us recruit a new CFO. Both agencies

i hsiped us create clear role and candidate
specifications. They were asked to consider
diversity in its widest sense when developing
long- and shortiists of candidates for all rofes.

Ag stated in our Annuai Report 2020,
Egon Zehnder led our Board skils review
and an external evaluation of Synthamer's
Board and Committees in 2020. Thig work
i aside, the Company and lts Directors do not
' have any connection with Egon Zehnder nor
Spencer Stuart.

f Knowing that our new CEQ was in place and
. suppertive, and given the compeliing business
case, wa concluded that his acquisition was

CEQ: comprehensive selection process in the interests of all stakeholders.

Annuat Raport 2021

and induction

Wa selected Michael Willome as our new

CEQ fallowing & comprahensive search

&cross more than 100 companies in a range
" of sectors, including speciality chemicals

and other industriat businesses.

Michasl joined Synthomer in Novemnber

2021 and brings established public market

exgerience and a strong performance track

recerd, including in M&A. He also has a deep

unaerstanding of speciality chiemicals and our
' end markets.

Training and devalopment
We are committed to providing relevant,
ongoing training for our Board members

~ to help them strengthen their understanding
. of key govemance issues. Every year, our

Reamuneration Committee asks an external
spacialist ta provide updates on market
practice, remuneration trends and corporate
govarnance developments at its August
meeting. That meeting is attended by

the whole Board, In 2021, the Board

alse undertook workshops and training

or reporting requirements under the TCFD
and the UK's Department for Business,
Energy and industria! Strategy {BEIS} white
paper Restoring Trust in Audit and Corporate
Governance. See our Audit Committee report



oh page 102 for more infermation on the
actions we have taken as a rasult of the
white paper. The Board also received
refresher training on Directors’ duties and
responsibilities as part of our Eastman’s
Adhesive Resins acquisition work.

Outcomes of our 2021 internal

Board review

We hold external evaluations of the Board
every three yaars, with internal reviews in the
intervening years. In 2021, we held an intemal
avaluation, with the main points for follow up
relating to enhancing our strategy process;
maintaining our culture of léaming lessons from
past experiences; and further devalopment of
our stakeholder engagsment and succession
pans. Wa have a clear action plan for 2022,

Making progress agalnst our 2020
Board evaluation

Wa implemeanted acticns from our latast
external Board and Committee evatuation in
2020 (tecilitated by Egan Zehnder} reviewing
key areas such as Board processes and
compasition, succession planning,
stakeholder relationships and quality

of discussion.

Kgy recommendxtions from

aur 2020 evaldation Actions we took In 2024
Strengthen focus on A Sgries of spacial
Board agenda topics end desp
priorities dives were agreed as
part of the Board

arnual planner.

Enhance leaming We Increased the

opportunities number of extemally
supported
workshops and
training seasions that
the Board receives.

Further develop
Board dynamics

We increased the
regqularity of our
Chalr's one-to-one
digcussions with our
Non-Executive
Directors and
Executive Directors.

we added
sustainabillity as a
standing item at
each Board meeting.

Drive progress in
sustainability

Board engagament: strengthening
stakeoholder connhections

Undsrstanding the needs and expectations
of our stakeholders is an important part of
ensurng Synthomer's success. The Board
has a role to play in this and members
make themselves available to stakehoiders
throughout tha year. Cur Executive Directors
play an importart rola in engaging with our
shareholders and report back to the Board
after results presentations, Our brokars
provided insights and feedback from
shareholders throughout the year and

as we announcea our acquisition of
Eastman’s Adheslve Resins business,

Cur employees are ona of our most important
stakeholder groups. In 2021, the Board
assessed its employee sngagemsnt
approach agalnst FRC guidance.

This demonstrated that we have important
strangths, such as a clearly desighated
Non-Executive Diractor who acts as the
Board's 'smployee voice’: and a flexible

. structure that allows emplayees to ralse

issues. it also showed we have more work
to do in some areas, such as In letting
employees know how the Board has

used their feedback to make decisions.

. See page 97 for more information on Board

Ways that we take the pulse of our culture |

Employee engagement is one of the key
ways the Board fulfils its responsibilities to
set Synthomer’s cuitural tone and assess and
monitor adherence to our values. The Board
is particularly aware that # needs to increasa
fts engagemeant with employees at former

ﬂ DOMNOVA sites — which has proved difficult
- during the pandemic - and has plans to

, do soin 2022, The Board will also engege
| with employees transfarring from the

Eastman's Adhesive Resins acquisition
once it has completed,

During the year, akhough COVID-19
restrictions hampered plans for face-to-face
contact, Alexander Catto, our designated
Non-Executive Dirgctor for workforce
engagemant, was able to meet employees
at our site in Harlow, in the UK, Holly Van
Deursen, cne of our Independent Non-
Executive Directors, is now supporting
Alaxander in his engagement rale. During the
year, they joined employees in Germany and
the USA in virtual meetings. Thelr findings
were discussed by the Board at our
Dacember meeting.

Board members also took part in other
empioyee activities. For example, Caroline
Johnstone and Holly Van Deursen engaged
with Synthomer’s new Engender womean’s
network. Brendan Connolly also hosted

two employee sessions on executive
compensation. The Board continued to assess
employee opinions by drawing on such inputs

| as employes survey data, the use of our sthics

helpline, progress against envircnmental

| targets, and health and safety data.

engagement, in our section 172 staterment.

Strengthening our focus

on sustainability

fn 2021, Synthomer introduced its new
Vision 2030 roadmap, outlining a serios
of sustainability targets in three key areas:
products, operational health, safety and
environment, and people.

The Board held numerous discussions

with the Executive Comimittee to agree
these targets, which are supported by

a series of short-tarm objectives to guide
the Company through the next dacade.
Those conversations ensured that our new
commitments pravide Synthomer with a
clear direction for the next decade while
racognising that there will be more o

do along the way. We appointed Deloitte

to help us prepare to report on TCFD
requirements. As part of thai worl, the firm
interviewed all cur Non-Executive Directors
ta get their views on the subject. Deloitte also
provided progress raports on this work at
several Board meslings throughout the year.
Meanwhile, the Board continues to receive
reports on Synthomer's occupational health
and safety. and process safety performance
for discussion at every Board masting.

See pages 42-68 in the Strategic report for
more information on our sustainability agenda
and targets,

Risk management and internal control
The Board of Directors has uitimate
rasponsibility for the Group's systerns of risk
management and intarnal control and for
reviewing thair effectiveness and sets
appropriate policies to ensure that the Code
requirements are met. The Group’s intemal
conrols over the financial reporting and
consoiidation processes are designad under
the supsarvision of the Chief Financial Officer
to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the rellability of financial reporting and the
preparation and fair pregentation of the
Group's published financial statements for
external reporting purposes in accordance
with IFRS.

The Group risk management framework is set

, out on pages 70-71. Risks associated with

safety, heafth and the environment are, by the

| nature of the Group's business, always of the

utmost concern and the sustainability report

. on pages 55-57 reviews the Group's current
i yaar performance.

The Board confirms that a robust assessment
of tha emerging and principal risks facing the
Group has been carried out and that it has
monitored and reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and intemal
control systems in 2021,

Synthomerplc |
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Corporate Governance

Stakeholder engagement {s.172 compliance)

Understanding the issues that are
important to our stakeholders is essential
to the way in which we deveiop and
execute our business strategy. It is also
critical to our long-term success.

Our approach to section 172

Our section 172 statement describes the
ways in which the Board has carriad out its
responsibility to promote the success of the
Company, recogniging that the key dacisions
it makes today will aftect long term
performance. The statement considers
paragraghs A to F of the Companias Act
2006 and includes details on how the
Board has considered and engaged

with slakeholders.

When making decisicns, the Board considers
the neads of our different stakerolder groups
as well as the likely consequances that any
action taken might have on Synthomer's
reputation. To help, the Board receives papers
that include a table setting out section 172
information. [t uses this information 1o inform
strategic discussions, including implications for
the resilience of ur business and the potential
impact on our community and environment.
it is the Chair's responsibility to ensure that
the Board considers section 172 when
making its decisions.

Whaen making decisions, the Board and

its Committees consider the interests

of our employess, Wa prirnarlly engage
with employees via Alexander Catto,

our designated Non-Executiva Director

for workforce engagement. However, other
Board members mat with employees during
2021 1o discuss executive pay and diversity
and inclusion. More information about how
we engage with emplayses can ba fourd in
our sustainability report on pages §2-68.

Board members make thamselves available
1o investors. In 2021, howsever, most drect
engagement was carriad out by our CEQ
and CFO and reporied back 10 the Board.,

We recognise that it is not always possible
1o provide a positive outcome for most
stakeholdars and that sometimes the Board
has 1o make gecisions basea on competing
priorities. The Board reqularly assesses the
outcomes of its decisions and is available
1o falk to stakeholders when needed.

This engagement helps the Board better
undersiand what matters most to our

96
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| stakeholders, as well supporting discussion

on relevant issues. It also halps the Board
choose the courge of action that best lgads
to high standards of business conduct and

i success for Synthomer in the long term.

. Stakeholder engagement in 2021
. There were no changss to the Board's

identified kay stakeholders, as listad in the
tahie opposie. in carrying out {ts duties, the
Bpard continued 1o ensure it understands,
and considers, the issues that matter most

. 1o these siakeholder groups, particularly

when making material decisions.

The pandemic continued to have animpact on
the Board's engagement with stakeholders in

! 2021, For example, the full Board was unable to

carry out site visits and physical meetings with
smployees. Instead, members raceived regular
updates on how employees across the Group
were coping and how Synthomer helpad them
manage the ongoing operational, physical and
mental demands associated with running our
plants and businesses under COVID-18-related

. congtraints. Managementt provided feedback

o how teams met strong demand from our
custorners, particularly those involved in the
manufacture of nitrile latax gioves. We were,
howevar, able to go ahead with our twice-yearly

© materiality assessment, wher wa appraise what
! sustainability issues matter most to our

stakeholders. During the April 2021
assessment, we spoke 1o a range

of stakeholders, including customers,
empioveas, sharehalders and legisiators.
Thair feedback led us to make a number of
revisions to our approach, For more details,
see page 46 of the strategic report,

For the second year running, it was necessary
to hoid our AGM as a closed meeting, due to
the UK Government’s COVID-18 regulations

i which prevented sharehclders frem attending

a phygical mesting. We did, however,
put measures in place that alliowed
shareholders to submit questions

in advance at the meeting.

- Principal decisions in 2021

This was a particularly busy year for the Board,
with severat changes in Synthomer’s Executive
Commitiee, our proposed acquisition of
Eastman's Adhesive Resing business and tha
launch of the Company's new Vision 2030
sustainablity roadmap and targets. Below we
86t out two examples of the Board's principal
decisions in 2021 and how it considered
saction 172 matters in the procass.

. Acquiring Eastman's Adhesive

Resins business

i To tarry out our acquisition of Eastrnan's

Adhesive Resins business, we had to raise
additiona! tinance. We canvassed opinion
from key shareholders to ensure we had
their support and deterrnined that it was

- in the best interests of the businass and
. our investors ta raise both our borrowing

1estriction from £1.5 billion to £2 bilon and
additional equity through a £200 million

* equity placing. That placing was heavily

oversubscribed. The Board also considered
the acquired business’s impest on the
arvircnment, requesting appropriate
Information from Eastman’s management,
The acguisition aligns with our sustainabilty
roadmap, with many of its products being
usged in the making sustainabla adhesives.

For our employess the Board was of the

; view that the acquisitior would bring @
" number of career and training advantages

and opportunities.
In Decembar 2021, we put the borowing

~ restriction to a vote at an Extraordinary General
i Mesting and received 99.80% approval.
: We also put the proposed acguisition to a vote

at the same meeting and received 99.98%
approval. We are very pleased with by the
Ievel of support from investors, including
Kuala Lumpur Kepong Bhd.

Vislon 203¢

The Beard spent several months engaged

in detailed discussions with the Fxecutive
Cormittes 10 set appropriate targets as part
of the Vision 2030 roadmag. (See page 18 for
more details) During thesa discussions, the
Board intarrogated and challenged tha planned
targets and considered tha views and
expectations of a range of stakeholders,
including our employees, shareholders,
customars and suppliers. It aiso took a
long-tarm view of the business and its abiltty to
deliver on our pumose. The Board reviewed the
short-term objactives which were put forward
by the Executive Committea to underpin the
delivery of the 2030 targets. They considered

~ their alignment with matters of most concern
" 10 our stakeholders and most material 1o our

business — carbon and climate change, diversity
and inclusion, and supply chain assurance.



Stakeholder groups

How the Board engaged in 2021

Customers

We work with more than 6,000 customers
worldwide, providing the products they
neead 1o address technical and sustainability
chaflenges in their own manufacturing
processes.

Employees

Our success relies on the talent of our
empioyees. We want them to feel part of 3
culture that values diversity and inclusion,
fairness and transparency.

Communities
We want the communities who live rear our
sites to see us as a good neighbour.

Suppliers

Our suppliers deliver the raw materlals and
services we need to make our products.

We look for ways to work in partnership with
suppliers 1o create a more sustainable
supply chain,

Shareholders

As a public company listed on the London
Stock Exchange and included in the FTSE
250 index, wea have a rasponsibility to deliver
value for our shareholders.

Governments and authorities
As a member of the chemical industry and
scientific community, it s important we
engage on issues such as policy,
compliance and collaboration.

s The Executive Commitiee attanded all
schedulad Board magtings with divisional
Presidents providing edditional customer-
related context when needed.

The Board discussed the exceptional demand
from our nitrile glove customars, inciuding
managing supply and pricing and

considering the next phase of our

nitrile capacéty expansion.

The Buard recelvaa three pressntations on
smployse engagemant in 2021, Including a
proposal for a sacond Your Volea survey and
Initial survey findings later In the year.

The Board recelved a full report on the survey
results and follow-up action plans In Q1 2022,
= The Board continued to monitor the impact of
COWVID-19 at every Board mesting, recelving
statistics on employee Infection ratas, testing
regimes, number of employees isolating and
working from home and the subsequant
Impact on cparations.

In September, the Board approved a proposal
to adapt the Synthomer Foundation's
povernance model to create a new global
voluntesring network. Ses page 67 of our
sustainabliity report for mere information.

In January and March, the CEQ reported to
the Board on the Impact that the end of the
Braxit transition period had on our operations,
including on frelght and logistics.

QOur Vice President of Procurement and the
Director of Procuremsnt Excellence presented
thelr work to create a more sustainable supply
chain, Inciuding a rnew global procurement
axcollence network and sustainable
procurement policy.

The CEQ and CFO provide updates on thelr
meetings with Investors, and our President
of Corporzte Development shares Investor
relations developmants at every Board
mesting.

Qur Chalr of the Board correspondad with the
Financial Raporting Councit {FRC} to answear
questions abaut dosing our Sokolov
coal-fired plant following the FRG's themnatic
review of I1AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent
Uabilttles and Certingent Assats'.

* Since all areas of the business hava seen
very strong demand, the Board has stayed
abreast of operational issuss, euch as plant
capacity and shift planning to meet the
additloral demand.

Hiatorically, the Board recelvas ad hoc
reports on product quality. However, it has
asked for a more formal process of regutar,
periodic reporting from 2022.

-

The Board reviawed plans for 2021
Employese Voice engagement In April,
although these had to be amended because
of the pandemic. Nonetheless, Alexander
Gatlo visted employees at our Harlow, UK,
shtg in Q2 and held two virtual meetings with
Hally Van Deursen for employeas in
Germany and the USA In Q4. The Board
received feedback on these meetings

in Dacembear 2021,

In future, the Board will recelve regular
reports from the Executive Comwnittee on
progress against our Vision 2030 targets,

In June, the Vice Prasident of Procurement
and the Procuremnent Director for Strategic
Raw Materlals presented to the Board on
supply challengses over the past 18 months
caused by exceptional supply and demand
volatility and extrernety high demand lor our
products. The presentation demonstrated
how the procurament team had overcome
these challsnges, using the Group’s
expertise and relationships with its
suppliers. See pags 51 of our sustainability
teport for mors information on how we waork
with suppliers.

Each Board pack includes analysts'
forecasts and consensus for financlal
performance, as well as a summary of the
axternally prepared sharehokdar analysis
report. This shows our top 20 shareholders
and thelr movements alongside top buyers
and seflers. Analysts’ raports and notes are
shared with the Board as they are issued.

The Board Indirectly engaged with the
FRC's walver of the non-audit fee cap via
our suditer, PwC.

The Board recsived reports on the changing
regulatory landscape, ncluging the BEIS
congultation, TCFD raporting and corporate
govemance.

The Board receives a report three tmes a
yaar on legal compliance with oparational
laws and regulations at our sites.

During the year, Synthomar'a previous CEC
chalred a commitiee of the Chamical
Industries Assoctation which ongaged with
the Cabingt Office on post-Brexit Issues
affecting the UK chemicel industry.

Synthomer plc
Annual Report 2021
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Corporate Governance

Audit Committee report

Audit Committee: an
introduction from the Chair

|

My first full year as Chair of Synthomer’s
Audit Committee has been a busy one, with
new arrivals, a major acquisition and
developments in the way we track and
manage our risks.

Ag a Board mamber, { have a fundamental
duty t¢ help recruit new members of the
managament team, And, as Audit Committee
Chalr, 1 was particularly keen to ansure

we recruited a new chiof executive who
understands that, dong well, rigk
managament and audit are essential tools

fo help 2 business make better decisions.

| am pleased we have found that person

in Michael.

A year of progress

I was also personally very pleased that
Synthomsr began roliing out the new Pathway
business transtormation programme to our
first sites in 2021. This has been & big
capitakintensive project that will heip
standardise ang digitalise the way we manage
core business processes, such as inventory
management, invoicng and procuremsnt,

During the year, the Audit Committes focused
on several key areas, including testing the
fnancial robustness of cur new acquisition from
Eastman, strengthening our risk management
framework and reviewing our Internal Audit
function and environmental reporting
methadology. We also considered more routing,
but important, areas such as responding to

. regulatory changes and adjusting our approach

to Committeg meetings to make besi use of
everybody's time.

Oversight of our proposed acquisition
The announcemeant of Synthomet’s plans to

+ acquire Eastman’s Adhesive Resins business

in October 2021 marked a big step forwards
in our growth ambitions. | am pleased with
how well we have worked with our auditor,
PwC, this year. The level of diligance
exercised on the reporting accountant

work for the Eastman dea), for example,

© was exceptional and | am particularly grateful

to our new lead audit pariner, David Beer,
and his team for theit Nard work,

The proposed acquisition required PwC to
reguest tne Financial Reporting Council (FRC)
for & second waiver o allow them to braach
their cap on tees to auditors for non-audr-
related services. While the FRC approved

. Dur request, they made it claar they would

9 8 Synthomsr pic
Annual Report 2021

not approve a further waiver request for at
least two years. | am, however, satisfied that
we did everything possibie to avoid making
the request and, on page 105, we explain our
reasoning and the steps we're taking to avoid
a8 recurrence,



Improving our risk and audit processes
External consultants worked with us on
important changes to our rigk managemant
framework. In particular, they helped the
Board and management team understand
good practice when defining risk appstite.
As part of that work we have added a third
dimension to our risk frameawork: we now
consider the speed at which a risk might
oceur as well as its probability and impact,

Qur Greup Intemal Audit and Risk Director,
Ginette Grant, has made great progress

in her first full year at Synthomer. As wall
as reviewing owr risk management strategy,
processes and team structure, Ginette

has been very proactive with the Board,
Interviewing individual members to
understand their audit priorities for 2022.

Supporting Synthomer's

sustainability agenda to meet
stakeholders’ expectations

To refisct the growing significance of
sustainability and the need to track progress
against our Vision 2030 targets, our Internal
Audit taam will begin reviewing aspects

of Synthomer's environmental reporting
methodology. We, as a Board, are now
reviewing all our cepital allocation plans

with sustainability In mind.

Responding to regulatory
developments and reviews

Addressing sustainability ls just cne way

we can meet society's expectations of us

as g responsible business. We must remain
proactive in othsr key areas, such ag public
trust, which regulators are looking at very
closely. In 2021 the UK's Department for
Businass, Energy and Industrial Strategy
(BEIS) held a consultation on this subject and,
while final recommendationg are due in 2022,
with companigs expacted to Implement them
in the coming years, the direction of travel is
clear: businesses like ours must be preparad
for the introduction of some new Sarbanes-
Oxley-like regulation. We have begun building
a roadmap that will put us in a good position
whatever the outcornes. Synthomer has

a distinct advantage since our acquired
OMNOVA business, belng orginally an
American company, has an internal control
environment and processes which were
compliart with Sarbanes-Oxley.

¢ The FRC's May thematic review on interim |
reporting was ancther of this year’s regulatory

davelopments. We moved quickly, mapping
our 2021 half-year results work against the
review and applying the lessons learned to
this Anrual Report.

| started this introduction by saying that
this has been a busy year ~ It's also been
a rewarding one, As a committes wa've
continued to work well, albeit virtually, and
| am pleased with how we adapted some
of our meetings to enable thematic deep
dive sessions with more time for guestions
and answers.

ft's bean a pleasure to work with
colleagues across Synthomer who bring
diverse thinking, respect and even passion
for risk management and audit to the
table. | would like to thank everyone for
their dedication in such a busy year. | look
forward to continuing that work in 2022
and beyond.

Cynthia Dubin
Chair

3 March 2022
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Corporate Governance

Audit Committee: How the committee operates

Audit Committee role

We assist the Board's oversight of cur
financial systemns and reporting, and the
adequacy and effectivenass of cur internal
controls and risk management. We also lead
the oversight of bioth external and internal
audit, Our full terms of reference, reviewed
and upgated during the year, are available
a1 www,synthomer.com.

Committes members

The Committes comprised four members
until July 2021 when Roberto Gualdoni joined
the Committee {and the Board) bringing it up
to five members. The Cormvmittee reverted

to four members an the resignation of

Just Jansz in September 2021, Roberto
undertook a rigarous induction on his
appointment, meeting with members of tha
Executive Committea, senior members of the
finance team, Group Intarnal Audit and Rigk
Director, and the lead external audit partner.

The Board considers that each member (s
indspendent within the definition of the Code.
Qur Gommittee Chair, Cynthia, has recent
and relevant financial experience in line with
Provision 24 of the Code. She has had along
career in finance, including having been CFO
of a premium-listed LSE company and a
member and chair of audit committees at
both Nasdag- and NYSE-listed companies.
Together, Committag members have a wide
range of financial, operational and commercial
experence across the chemicals and
angineering sectors.

The skills and experience of Committee
members are set oul ot pages 84-87.

Synthomer plc
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© Committee meetings and operation
" Other Board members have & standing
" invitation to attend our meetings, uniess

netified otherwise. Wa are very pleased that
our CEQ and GFO attend our Committes
maetings, often with the rest of the Board.
Our programime of rigk reviews and updates
has also alowed us to invite high-potential
and diverse members of the management
taam to attand. These include senlor Group
finance team members, the Group Internal
Audit and Risk Cirector, and PwC, fed by
audit partner David Baer.

The Committee meats regularly with PwC
and with the Group Internal Audit and Risk
Director without management present, ‘
The Chair aiso liaises with Brendan Connolty,
the Senior Independant Nen-Executive

Director and Chair ¢f the Remuneration
Committee, 1o discuss matters such

as setting Executive Director

. compensation targets.

Qutside formal meetings, the Chair meets
regutarly on a one-to one basis with the C£O,
the CFQ, Group finance team members, the

' Group Intemal Audit and Risk Director and

PwC, to develop the Committee’s programme
of work and to review progress in actions we
have agreed. This enables us to explore and
understand key issues as they arise and

to ensure we have appropriate information
prepared for, and sufficient time to address,
key issues in Comirittes meetings,

: Correspondence with the FRC

In December 2020 the FRC advised us

that Synthomer had been selected for

1he thematic review into |AS 37 "Provisicns,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’

. In the Annual Report and Accounts for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Subsequently, in October 2021 the FRC
asked us to explain whether wa were obliged
10 decommission our coal-fired utifity plant

in the Czech Republic and to confirm the
amount was includaed in provisions for the
expected outflows. We clarified that the
restructunng charge and provision included
the astimaled cost to maet the legal obligation
to decommission the plant. Wa explained

that the amount was not materiat to the Group
but acknowledged, with hindsight, that the
disclosure would have been improved

if it had stated that the restructuring

charge and provision included the
decommissioning costs.



Activities during the year
To address our core remit in 2021, we:

Integrity of corporete » Reviewed and approved the Group's annual and interim financial staternents, including preliminary results

and financial

announcement

reporting, significant » Reviewed and approved significant accounting policies, estimates and judgements and reported altemative

judgements and
egtimates

External audit

performance measures
» Reviawed and challanged the assumptions and sensitivities in the scenarios modelled to support the preparation

of the accounts on a going concern basis and in assessing the [onger-term viabillty of the Group
« Raviewed the FRC guidance for 2021 covering interim reporting, annual accounts and corporate governance
reporting, along with a summary of the management’s approach to implementation
Agsessed the processes for assuring the Board that the 2021 Annual Report and Accounts, wher taken together,
is foir, balanced and understandable
Regularly reviewed the Group's material litigation and concluded, in the February 2022 Commmittee meeting, that the
provisions are appropriate
Reviewed the UK payrment practices report, discussed the underlying data and challenged managemant on certain
aspects of the report

Approved the external audit plan for 2021; discussed the exparience and expertise of tha key members of the
engagement team, in tha light of a mainly remote audi; and approved the audit fee

Carried out a review of the auditor's reports, including PwC views on significant accounting judgsments, estimates
and the internal contro! environment

Reviewed compliance with the FRC's Ethkcal Standard for auditors and the restrictions on auditors in providing
ncn-audit services. Approved the provision of certain permissible non-audit services by PwC {for detail, see page 105}
Considered and confirmed PwC's independence (sea page 104). Monitored PwC's work as reporting accountants

on the: acquisition of Eastman’s Adhesive Resins business and the subsequent year-end audit, to ensure there wasg
no impact on their independence

Reviewed and assessad the performance of PwC and our iead audit partner

Considered the need to put the external audtt out to tender. After discussion and challenge, we recommended PWC's

reappointment .

-

Internal auaTi. risk
management and
internal controls

Governance

Reviewed risk procesgses across the business to identify and mitigate risks

Implemented changas to cur risk management framework, adding an additional dimension of the speed at which

the risk might occur to propability and impact

GContinued our programme of deep dive reviews on the risk management of our global businesses and functions.

Alongside our reviews of Performance Elastomers, Functional Solutions, Industrial Specialities and Acrylate

Monomers, we also considered pensions, tax, Group-wide cyber security, the security and refiebility of our industrial

automation and control systems, and strategle sourcing operations

Drafted a detailed delivery plan to build the content of the Audit and Assurance Policy and developed & high-lavel

assurance map

Received updates at sach meeting on ongoing and completed internal audits and actions arising

Considersd the results of the 2021 controls assurancs infernat audits and T audits, the self-assessment process

and the adeguacy and speed of management's response to metters raised

+ Reviewed and approved the 2022 internal audit plan and ensuned there is sufficient resource to deliver it .

Reviewed the corporate governanca reporting and whether, as part of the Annual Report, it was falr, balanced

and understandable

Reviewed the effectivenass of the Group's anti-bribery and anti-fraud proceduregs

- Discussed tha effectiveness of the Group's Gode ot Conduct and Ethics Helpline

- Receivad reports on the Independent investigations conducted in response to concerns raised under the
whistleblowing policy and reported to the Board that we were satfsfied with the cutcomes

— Met with Group internal Audit and Risk Director and the external auditor without management on several occasions

— Undertook a2 Committes effectiveness raview, assesged the rasults and concluded that the Committee was
operating effectivaly

- Reviewed the Committea’s terms of reference to ensure our role and responsibitities are aligned with the Code.

L
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Caorporate Governance

Audit Committes: How the committee operates continued

BEIS consultation paper

The Board recsived a presentation from
externai consultants at its June meeting,
outlining the key toplcs raised in the BEIS
consultation paper, Restoring Trust in Audit
and Gorporate Governance, and rating each
‘opic on the impact on the Group and

its urgency.

Executive management assassed how the
Group cou'd best respond to each topic and
presented its findings to the Committes In
August, A number of projects ware initiated,
in ine with the likely outcomes of the
consuftation, each with a project lead/owner.
Wa receive Updates on project progress at
each Committee meecting.

The largest project relates to internal
controls, This aims to ensure that our control
snvironment is sufticiently robust to be
audit-ready, for any new regulaticn, and for
Directors to be able continue to attest to its
effectiveness. Our acguisition of OMNQOVA
brought us a business which was Sarbanes-
Oxley (SCX) compliant and had never
reported a matarial deficiency. The former
Chief Accounting Officer and his deputy, who
have remained with us, have axperience of
SOX implementation and of maintaining and
reporting on a SOX environment. They will
lsad this project.

| Synthomaer ple
Annual Report 2021
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Going concern and viability statements
To enable the Board and Cormmittes

to assass going concern and viability,
managernent sets out its assumptions

and the potential risks to the business and
possible mitigations, together with economic
and business scenarios. During the year,
there was a particular focus on the impact
of the proposed acquisition of Eastrnan's
Adhesive Resins business and the expected
reciuction in Performance Elastomers’ 2022
profitability. The process - conducted

by management, and reviewed by the
Committes to support the Board's
staternent - included:

* Revigwing the Group's sources of funding
and, in particular, testing the ieverage
covenant in our financing arrangemants
and assessing avallable headroom

» Reviewing the short-, medium- and
long-term cash fiow forecasts in various
severe but plausible scenarios, as well as
reverse stress testing forecasts.

» Assessing the Group's current and forecast
activities and factors likely to affect s
future performance and financial position.

_ The Committes discussed the going

concern and viability staterments at the February
2022 Committee meeting and recormmended
that the Board provide the statement setouten
page 128 and page 81, respectively,

Fair, balanced and understandable
The work urdaertaken by management
(and reviewed by the Commitiee) to
suppori the Beoard's statemeant on our
Annual Report being 'fair, balanced and
understandable’ includes:

¢ Establishing a working group of
appropriately qualifisd Group pecple to
oversee ths drafting of the Annual Report
and Accounts. This group met regularly to
ensure that disclosutes were appropriate
for all stakeholders and that dratting was
progressing well

* Engaging & corporate communications
and reporting adviser, to assist
in drafting, editing and proof-reading
the Anngal Report

* Ensuring that the FRC's Octobar 2021
guidance, along with other relevant
guidance, were taken into account

* The CEO and CFO contirming that, in
their opinion, the Annual Report was fair,
balanced and understancable

* Requesting that certain key contributors,
far example, Prasidents and Finance
Directors of our global divisions, sign
a declaration confirming the accuracy
of their information

* Arranging for our remuneration
consultants to review the Directors’
Remuneration report

s An gudit trail being completed by the
VP, Group Finance for matenal data
underpinning non-financial informat on
in the Annual Report

» Cirgulating drafts of the Annual Report
to PwC, the Commiitee and the Board
for review

* Discussing material disclosures at their
February 2022 Commitiee meeting

The Commities discussed the fair, balenced
and understandable statement at their
Febryary 2022 Committee meeting and,

in light of the above, recommended that

the Board provide the staterment as set out
on page 129.



Significant areas of judgement and estimate

_The Committee’s review, challenge and conclusion

Taxation

The Group holds total tax provisions of £23.7 million relating

to matters raised by tax authorities in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement has to be exercised by management,

with advice from tax advisers, 16 determine fax provisions, as the
final tax outcome is uncertain and may not be known for several
yaars. The scale of the Group’s uncertain tax provisions has
reduced significantly over recent years as various long cutstanding
tax matters have baen setiled, both for and against the Group.

The Group Tax Drector presented tc the Board and the Committee
during the year. In assessing the year-end judgements for 2021, she
reported on the basis for calculating the effactive tax rate of 22.5% and
the reconciliation to the statutory tax rates of the Group. She provided
regular updates on interactions with tax autharities that regulate the
jurisdictions in which we operate, setting cut management’s detaiied
rationale and judgement fer sach current tax liabllity. The Comimnittes
challenged management’s judgements to ensure that they were
aligned with our Group tax strategy, The Committes concluded that the
estimates and disclosures were appropriate. PwC presentad s findings
on management's fudgements, using tax specialists as reguired, and
provided the Gommittee with s assessment of their appropriateness.

Pensions
The Group operates a number of defined benefit schemes
{predominantly in the UK, USA and Garmany} which have significant
liabilities, as outined in note 26 to the Group financial statements.
Althaugh the UK and USA schemes are closed to new entrants

and to future accrual, the assessment of liabilties of each of the
schermes is sensitive to changes in actuarial agsurnptions.

Other areas of judgernent

T Our Group Pensions and Benefits Director regularly sttended the

Committee in 2021 to provide updates on our pension arrangemaents.
The Group continues to review our pension scheme investment
advisers and investment strategies to ansure we have a lower risk,
liability-driven investment approach, as waell as undertaking a review
of major scheme dotumentation to ensure it is up to date.

Wa recaived a repon from management satting out the key assumptions
and rationale in vaiuing the liabiites of the main plans in the UIK, USA and
Germany. The Group uses appropriately gualified external actuarial
advisers to help establish the assumptions used in the valuation of
the Group's pension ligbilities. PwC evaluated the assumptions and
methodologies used by our actuarial advisers and management and
assessad whether thelr assumptions were appropriate and not materially
different from external benchmarks for similar schemes.

The Committee reviewed the assumplions and methodology used
by management, including comparisons to those of other companies,
and concurrad with the conclusions,

PwC reportad that they were satisfied with the assumptions used and
the way the schemes had been accounted for.

Altematwe performance measures —~ Spacla| HRems

The Group discloses Special tems separately, to provide a
clearer indication of underlying periormance. Spacial items are
either irregular, and therefore their inclusion in the assessment
of a segment’s performarice would distert trends, or are technical
adjustments which ensure the Group's financial statements are
in compliance with IFRS, but do not reflect the year's operaling
performance; or both, An exampie of the latter is the amortisation
of acguired intangibles, which principally relates to acquired
customer relationships. The Group incurs costs, recognised

2% an expense in the income statement, in maintaining these
customer relationships, The Group considers that the
exclusion of the amortisation charge on acquired intangibles

from Underlying performance avoids the potential double-
counting of such costs and therefare excludes it as a Special

ftern from Underlying performance.

The Committee ragularly challenges rmanagement on what is
considered Special ltems, 1t reviews in dotail every such item which
is excluded or separated from reported Underlying profit and takes
into consideration guidance from the FRC and the extemal auditors,
The Committee is satisfied that it is helpful to a reader of the financial
statements to report Underlying profit, together with [FRS profit,
without Special fterms and thai all Specia! ftems reported met with
the Group's definition of such iterns.

European Commission Investlgahon on
During 2018, the European Commission (the Commlssmn) initiated
an investigation inlo practices relating 1o the purchase of Styrene
monomer by companies, including Synthomer, operating in the
European Economic Area. The Company has and will continue

fo fully cooperate with the Commission during its investigation.

In prier yoars given the ongoing investigation and the inherent
uncertainties assoctated with it, it was not possible to determine
whether or not a fability existed. Similarly, given the many var.ables
in the Commission’s fining framework and accordingly the range of
possible cutcomes, the Directors watre not abie to reliably estimate
any potential possible liabilty. Therefore a contingent liability was
disclosed ir each set of financial statements, Now based on the
information available and the resulting assessment of the expected
outcomae of the investigation a provigion of £87.2 milfion has been
made in relation o this case.

During the course of this ongeing investigation the Committee
receved frorm management regular updaies on the facts and
dircumstances in relation to this investigation along with the
associated accounting analysis. PwC reported that they were
satisfisd with the judgements and related disclosures made by
management. The Committee discussed the matter and concurred
with the cenclusions made.
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Corporate Governance

Audit Committee: How the committee operates continued

Internal audit and risk
management function

The Group Internal Audit and Risk Director has
a direct reporting line to the Audit Commitiee
Ghair and provides an independent assassment
of out internal control and risk management
processss’ effactiveness; hightights key issues;
makes recommendations; and monitors
implementation of mitigations and
racommendations. We nave a dedicated
in-house Internal Audit function, which draws
. On spedialist rescurces as required. At each

i meeting, the Commitiee reviewed progress
against the Internal Audit annual plan and
explored areas ideniified for action, We also
roviewed campleted audit reports, focusing an
racurring themes, which might require Group
actions, and areas where there was divergence
from self-assessments. Davelopmants in our
internal audit arrangerments are set oyt in my
irtroduction on pages 98 to 99.

External audit

We eappro nted PwC as our external auditor
in 2018, following a fuli re-tender process
The firm hag been the Group's auditor

since 2012,

The Commitlee discussed the 2021 auait
process at its December 2021 and February
2022 mestings. DJuring the year, the
Comrmittee Chair was in reguiar discussion
with PwC's lead audit partner to discuss the
prograss of the augt, Tne Committee met
PwC without management being prasent
after he FebrLary 2022 Committee meeting.
No signil cant issues were raised.

Risk management and internal
control environment

Each year, the Board is required to conduct
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’'s
systems of risk management and internal
control. The Board's staterment relating to Lhis
review s 56t out on page 95. At its February
2022 meeting, the Committee reviewed
management’s assessment of the key
elements of these systems and confirmed
their overall effectivenass, Thelr conclusion
draw on the following:

» The internal audit programme completed
auring X021 and progress in implementing
resulting actions

Our programrme of risk reviews and
digcussions with senior managers and other |
staff across the Group thraughout the year
Ongoing management assurance (Via
Committea papers, Board and Committee
presentations and discussions) 10 review
the Group's key financial controls t¢ ensure
they support our continued growth

* The key controls guestionnaire, which is
completed and signed by each Group
operating unit each quarter
Raprasentations 1o the CFO from the
divisions' financial and commercial
management that the financial information
reported to the Group has been prepared
in accordance with our accounting policies
and that all relevan: information has beegn
provided for the greparation of the
Group's Annual Repor: ard Accounts.
These representations are made twice
each year in line with our external

report ng timetahle, |

.

December 2021 Duicome/action taken by the Commitiee

Auditor independence and
objectivity and auditor-provided
non-audit services

the Committee has a clear policy on the
provision of non-audit services by the
gxternal auditor and has defined the very
limited non-audit services they can provide.
Services can only be provided if approved by
the Committee and they are subject to a cap
of 70% of the average of audit tees for the
precading three years. A'l engagements for
non-audit services with an external audit firm

" must be pre-approved by the Commitiee to

ensure that as many lirms as possible woulg
be independent in an audit tender. Details of
audit and non-augit fees paid to the auditor
in 2021 are set out in note 7 on page 149,

PwC produced a report setting out how
they assessed themselves as independent,
This referred to reporting accountant work

- undertaken as part of the acquisition of

Castman's Adhesive Rasins business.
PwG confirmeg that they remaned
indepandant in respect of the 2021 audit.

© The Cammittee comcluded that PwC's

independence and objectivity wera not
compromised by providing ‘hese services
and ihat, due to their knowledge of the

 Group and its Enancial statements, it was
* in Synthomer's interests to engage PwC.

Having considered fhe steps taken by

. PwC 1o preserve their indapendence and

the approach 1o non-audit services set out

. above, the Committee concluded that PwC

continues to demonstrate appropr ate
independence and objoctivity.

PwC’s audit risk assessment - set out on
pages 181 1o 132
with PwC that climate change. whilst not an area
ouerall cantext of their aud t opinion.

PwC undertook a delailed risk assessmert, setting out their view of the significance of key risks
and the potential risk o material mis-staternent. Foliowing diseussion, the Committee agreod

at significant risk, should be considered in the

Materiality level for the audit [pége 133)

PwC's audit plan

PwC's resources

Audlt fee and terms of engagement

i Synthomer plc
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Pw( preposed an audit materiality leve! of £116 mm\om based on 5% of Underlymg proht
before tax of the average Underlying profit before tax for the last three years, rather than just for
the year ended 31 December 2021. &t did so on the basis that current year profits were above a
‘normal' recurring level. Afte” debatng this with PwC and bxecutive Managemant, the
Committee felt it was an appropriate methodology for2c2. |
We reviewed the audit coverage and agreed scope (set out on paga 131 to 134) in detail and
agreed they were appropriate, We asked PwC to perform wor< on the cut-over procedures
used In implementing the Pethway programme and to perfoim on-site fraud assessment work
in some smalker entities where thay are net the statutory auditor. The Committee noted and
approved the continued high level of coverage.

Wa reviewed and discussed PwC’s resources with the fi iren, parucu!arly the exoenence ang
teru-e of thelr audit pariners in our key averseas territories. The Chair and Execuiive
Management irterviewed the prooosed audit pariner for Malaysia, where the existing partner
had completed their tenure.

The Committee reviewed PWC's ‘ee proposal i fight of tha rigks ! identifed and proposed srope
and aprroved the proposed fee of £1.6 mitlion, cornpared to £1.8 millicn in 2020,



Fabruary 2022

Qutcome/action taken by the Commitiee

Confirmation of PwC’s audh plan

PwG confirmad no material changes to the agreed plan.

Audh findings,
significant issues and other accounting

These were discussed with PwC and management - the work of the Committea is set out on
the previous pages.

Judgements (pages 132 to 133)
Management representation letter

The Commitiee reviewes and approved this.

PwC’s independence and ob]oéﬂvlty and
quality control procedures

The Cormmittes evaluated and confirmed PwC's indeb_e"ndenca. objectluﬁtyiaridﬁqﬁé'iﬁy control
procedures.

Audit quality - how we reviewed PwC’s performance
During the year, the Gommitiee evaluated the performance and effectivensess of the externatl auditor, PwC and our audit partner, David Beer in

the following ways:

External evidence

The Committee reviewed the FRC's 2020 Audit Quality inspection Report covering its
conciusions from a review of a selection of PwC audits which showed an improvemeant
year on year, David Beer shared details of actions taken by PwG In response to this report.

Manaigﬁermo_l;t esvidence

At our request, management sought feedback from people across the business who were
involved inworking on the year end with PwC teamns. The feedback was positive to alt
questions asked and indicated that PwC had performed thelr audit well with particularly
high ratings were for planning and quality of people and sarvice.

Audit Committee evidence

David Beer attended all Committee meetings during the year and was involved as the Group
undartook the acauisition of Eastman’s Adhesive Resins business acting in the capacity of
Reporting Accountant. He has demonstrated in Commities meetings how he has challengsd
management in relation to significant accounting judgements and estimates and also worked
with management to ensure that the relevant guidance trom the FRC Issued in the year was

incorperated into both the Interim and Annual Reports.

Reasoning

The Group was in a bilateral negotiation with
Eastmnan in relation to its Adhesive Resing
business, in an exceptionally buoyant M&A
market and the timetable set by the seller
was short. As PwC performed similar work
for the Company in respect of the OMNGCVA
acquisition fin 2019, and in respect of

the 1ssus of a S144a bond in June 2020,
they have a strong understanding of our
processes, systems and peopla. Howaver,
wa proactively sought to engage another
audit firm to undertake this work, Other large
and challenger firms ware approached but
were conflicted due to other work thay carry
out for the Group, or did not have the skills
or resources available to meet our timetable.

1

Use of PwC as reporting accountants for the acquisition of Eastman’s Adhesive Resins business

Steps to avoid a recumence

As part of the planning for a Group audit
tander in 2025 we are monitoring all non-audit |
work given to the large and chalienger audit
firms. We wil seek, as far as is practicable, to
concentrate alf work that would impact thase
firms' ability to bid for the audit, or provide
other indspendent assurance services, into
as few firms as possible to ensure we hava
tha biggest selection available from which to
choose. We will select a firm as a potential
partner for future reporting accounting work
that includes those areas of work subjectto |
the Ethical Standards fee cap and invest

in making the chosen firm familiar with |

" the Group to akow them to operate

as our reporting accountant on any
future acquisition. ‘

How we assured independence

The Committes challenged judgements
made by management and asked PwC

to confirm that they complied with their
commitment to the FRC by having the work
on the 2021 audit reviewed by an internal
technical panel. The Committee also
confirmed with managemeant and PwC that
all feas relating to the reporting accountant
work were pald before the audit opinion on
the 2021 financial statements was signed.

Synthomer plc
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Corporate Governance

Nomination Committee report

Nomination Committee:
introduction from the Chair

i Succession planning for continued growth

This has been a significant year

for Synthomer — and the Nomination
Committee — with a new CEO starting
on 1 November, a new CFO being
appointed shortly afterwards, and

a new Non-Executive member joining
the Board in July.

The Committee - which expanded this year to include all our
Non-Executive Directors - was closely involved with each of
these appointments and in planning inductions for our new
Directors. Committee members have also been involved in
discussions arcund Synthomer's gender target and in further
strengthening our succession planning.

4‘ 06 Synthemer pic
Annual Report 2021

Ensuring that we have future leaders with
the right skills, exper:ence and mindset is
as important as having the right people in
place today. Succession planning continued

. 10 be a strong focus throughout the year for

the Nomination Commitiee and the wider
Board, as we worked 1o embed the ongoing
develcpment of a strong talant pipeling inte
the way we operate.

In late 2021, we built on the previous ysar's
independent skills review — which assessed
our Board’s capabilities against cther plc
comparies to help identify and address gaps
- by locking &t the functional skills the Board
will nasd to stay competitive in the future.
The crucial skills identified included
marketing, digitaiisation and sustainability.
As part of this process, all Board mernbers
assessed themselves against these skills.
We will feed the intelligence gained, and those
from our Board evaluation, into short-term
reoruitment and longer-tarm succession
planning for the Board, as well as emergency
succession planning for the CEO and CFO.,

QOur succession plarning draws not only

. on necessary skills bul also on our strategy
i and direction, which we discussed at length

in January 2021 in setting the scene for the
2021 CEQ and NED searches, in allance

with Egon Zehnder. Qur ability to move fast

to recrut a new CFO in November 2021,
when Stephen Bannatt announced his attention
to step down in August, reflecled the
proactive work we were already doing in
long-term executive sUCCeSSICN planning

with search experts Spencer Stuart.

The Board and Nomination Committee’s
succession planning focus extends to
Executive Commttes members. Qur new CEC
staried reviewing the skills and scope of the
Executive team soon after he joined. We are
supporting him as he develops a blueprint to
strengthen and suppaort the currert team and
will develop (onger-termn succession plans for
aach of the Executive roles.

Setting the tone on diversity

and inclusion from the top

Diversity is as fundamental as skill and
experignice in a strong leadership team.
Reflecting the society in wkich we aderate
is both the right thing to co and - research
shows - the bast thing for busiress.
Diversity of thought and inclusive cultures
drive innovaton and lead to better business
outcorres. For all these reasons, in 2021 wa
strove to ensure that our current ana Tutu-e
leagers are truly diverse.



The process for appointing our new CEQ and NED.

CEO !

CFO

Setting role
requirements

Following Calum's decision to step
down, the Nominatiocn Committes
and the Board worked closely with |
the Senior Independent Director,
HR President and Group HR
Director, and recruitment specialists
Egon Zehnder {o develop a dlear
role and person specification

for our new GEQ.

Wa implemenited succession
planning for key roles, including the
CFO, sarly in 2021 and that allowed

. us§ 0 accelerate our recruttment

process, working on this occasion
with search company Spencer
Stuart, We wanted someone with
an impressive track record anad
experiance of working in a complex,
international business.

NED

Following the retirement of Just
Jansz in 2021, with the complation of
hig ning-year tenure, the Nomination
Committes, the Board, our Senfor
independent Director, HR President
and Group HR Directer worked with
Egon Zehnder to develop a clear role
and person specification for our new

- Non-Exacutive Director.

Identiying
candidates

Process

Recruitment

In January 2021, the Board
confirmad its strategy of organic
and inorganic growth and that set
a backdrop to the CEO recruitment.
Egon Zehnder then interviewed all
members of the Board, and the
Nomination Committee debated
and agreed a detailed candidate
specification, with clear skills,
experience and attributes against
which to assess potantial candidates,

Early in 2021, we appointad Spencer
Stuart te develop our succession
planning for key roles, inciuding

the CFQ. They developed a role
specification, with input from all
members of the Board.

A slgnificant number of internal and
extarnal candidates were initially
assassed by Egon Zehnder against
the agreed criteria. They presented
the most suitable candidates through
a process of interview, discussion

and assessments. Five candidates
met with all members of the Board
and, afier detailed debate and further :
discussions with the fina! two
candidates, the Nomination
Committae unanimously agreed

¢ ta recommend Michael Willome.

After an extensive search process,
wa announced Michael Wiome's
appointment in July 2021,

Spencer Stuart considerad over
300 candidates and reduced this
to & shortlist of seven internal and
axternal candidatas who ware
assessed by Spencer Stuart against
the required criteria, and then
interviewed by the Chair and
incoming CEQ. Three candidates
where taken forward for further
assessment by members of the
Nominations Committee and two

~ final candidates wera interviewed

by all members of the Board,

The Nominations Committes
reflacted and debated the feedback
and unanimously agreed to
recornmend Lily Liu.

In November, we announced that Lity
Liu would be our new CFO, joining us
no later than July 2022

Egon Zehnder developed long and
shortlists lists of NED candidates.
In doing 0, they considered the
broadest definition of diversity.

Egon Zehnder interviewed and
assessed some 20 candidates and
the Chair met with seven potentiat
candidates. The most suitable
candidates were then presented

¢ ta the Senior Independent Director

and then all other members of the
Board. Having reviewsd the process
and evaluated the candidates,

the Nominations Committee
unanimously agreed to

recommend Roberta Gualdoni.

Roberto Guaidoni joined the Board
in July 2021 and is a member
of our Audit, Remuneration and

. Nomination Comimittees,
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Corporate Governance

Board diversity
and tenure at
a glance
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Nomination Committee report continued

Setting a new 2030 gender target

In 2021, Synthomer took an important step
by setting a target of 50% gender diversity
in new hires in leadership, management and
professional roles as part of our Vision 2030
roadmap. Agreeing our Visfon 2030 targsts
involved & great deal of discussion between
the Executive Gommittes and Board during
the first half of 2021, Diversity is particularly
important for Nomination Committee
discussions around sycoession planning,
and we pushed the Executive Committee
1o set tha bar high, It's important to get the
right balance between chaliange and delivery
and | think we achieved that. (See page 44
in the Strategic roport for more information

+ on the Viston 2030 roaamap.)

Our targe is underpinned Dy severa! short-term
objectives, including 20% of women in senior

| re'es by the end of 2021, | amn pleased to see

that wa met this objective, finishing the vear at
20.4%. In all, we saw a 5% rise in the number
of women in senicr leadership versus 2020,
Qne-third of Board memizers are now women
and one member is frorm an ethnically diverse
background, in line witk the Hampton-
Alaxande’ and Parker reviews respactively.

Encouraging greater diversity

beyond gender

Nevertheless, Synthomer neets o do

a fol more to address diversity across the
business, including making more progress
on ethric diversity. Here, too, we have set

a shori-term objective to have 20% of senior
leaders from ethnically diverse backgrounds
by 2025.

New governance to track our progress on
diversity and inclusion

As Chair of Synthomer's new Diversily and
Inclusion Steeving Commities, it was also my

. pleasure to host panel sessions, alongside

oty Van Deursen, organised by Synthomer's
Engender women's Network.

' For more information an the progress

Synthomer has made and our plans to
continue focusing on diversity and inclusion,
see pages B2-66 of the Strategic report.

We have the vig'on, processas and taals in
pace. We must now smbed diversity and
inclusion nto our everyday thinking.

A comprehensive induction programme

An induction programmé 1S an essential pert
of a new Director's first weeks and months at
Syatnomer, it is a structured way of ensuring
they receive the infarmation and support they
need 1o ta<e on their new role quickly and

‘ confidently. | know from my own exper.ence

of joing Synthomer and then stepping up
as Chair of the Board haw helaful this
process is,

The Committee designed a tailored induction
for Michael that included:

* Working with Calum, the Cormnmittes
designed a two-week programme of
introd actions to help Michasi get up to
spied quickly on our most important
activities

» Meetings with the Executive Cornmittes for
briefings on their businesses and fungctions

» Meetings with external advisers and our top
institutional sharehclders o hear their
viaws on Synthomer

s A workshop hosted by a partnar from both
KPMG ard harbert Smith Freshills cn
Diractors' duties and the U listing regime.
Roberto aiso attended th s workshop

» First site visits to mest employees in the
UK, Garmany and tha USA,

While Roberto hasn’t yet been able to
make any ste visits, be plans to do so
in 2022

Qur priorities tor 2022

Our priorities for the coming “nancial

yaar includa identifyng a suttable successor
for Brendan Cornolly whan he steps down
as our Senior Independent Director and
Remuneration Commitiee Chair at our 2023
Annual General Meeting. We will aiso be
developing emergancy succession plans

for pur new CEC and CrO and embedding
long-term succession planning for their roles
for the furure. As Michael develops his team,
we will also be reviewing the skilis, balance
and experience of the Executive Committee.
Ancther important priority will e establishing
a comprehensive, baspoke induction
programme for Lity, and continuing

to support Michasl's immersion

n the busingss.

A year of propress

| am pleased with the progress we've made
as a Committee this year. We have contirued
o work well despite ongoing GOVID-19
restrictions. WWe've had some challenging
corversatiors along the way, but challenge

. is how we help the Company make progress.

. 1look forward to working alongsicle our new

Directore as well ag my sllow Committes
members o support Synthomer as it grows
in size and ambition.

Caroline Johnstone

 Chair cf the Nomination Committee

3 Warch 2022



Corporate Govarnance

Compliance with the Code

For the year ended 31 December 2021. we are pleased to raport that we have applied the principles and complied with the provisions of the
2018 UK Corporate Governance Code {the Code). The full Code is avellable on the FRG's websits, www.irc.org,uk.

1. Board leaderghip and Company purpose

A. Board's role The Board sets the Company’s purposs, values and standards, establishes overail policies and
long-term objectives and approves strategic aims and goals. It is responsible for the Company’s
keng-term success, and for how opportunities and risks are assessed in relation to this. The Board
establishes, communicates and reviews the corporate governance framework under which the
Company operates. There is a formal schedule of matters reservad for the Board which is reviewed
annually to ensure an appropriate delegation of duties to the CEQ is maintained. An annual Board
planner is prepared at the start of each year to ensure important and relevant topics are discussed

at Board meetings throughout the year.
For more details about 2021 activity see The Board's year section on page 94.

B. Purpose and culture The Board adopted the Company’s statement of Its purpose in 2020 and worked with management
during 2021 fo devalop and launch our Vision 2030 roadmap, which will underpin the delivery of our

purposs over the coming decade.

Management have rofled out a programme to embed our new Core Values since their launch in 2020,
with alignment with our culture being meonitored and assessed by the Board using the tools described
on page 62. The Board was minaful of maintaining the Company's strategic direction in the
appolntment process for our new CEQ.

Strategic projects and pricrities are considered and monitored at each Board meeting with, as part of
thet process, membars recelving and considering reports on developments and progress against
plans and resourcing. Financial and operational performance against budget and KPIs is reported st
gach Board meeting.

The Board has designated Synthomer's GEQ responsible for developing and preparing the Group
strategy, business plan and annual budget for recommendation to the Board, The CEQ Is also
responsible for all aspects of day-to-day operational control and for executing Group strategy.

The CEQ is chair of the Executive Committae (which includes the CFO, the Chief Counsel and
Compary Secretary, and operational and functional Group presidents), and mests once a month.
The CFQ shares a monthly management report with all Directers, containing business, finansial, and
health, safety and environmental reviews.

C. Resources and controls

D. Stakeholder engagement  The Board fully consider sharetwoiders’ and wider stakeholders' views when making strategic
decisions. Further information can be found on pages 86 and §7.

E. Workforce engagement Alexander Catto, Non-Executive Director, is the Board's designated employse voice. in this role, he is
suppotted by Holly Van Deursen, one of our other NEDs. Other workforce engagement is undertakan
directly by the Beard, such as via our new Engender women's network.

2, Division of responsibilities
F. Role of the Chair The Chair's responsibilities include:

* L eading an effective Board

* Promoting a culture of openness and debate

» Coordinating perforrnance evaiuation of the GEO and individual Non-Executive Directors

* Holding meetings with and without Executive Directors prasent

* Leading on ali aspects of corporate govemnanca

* Setting the agenda and managing mesting timetables and encouraging open and constructive
dialogue and challenge.

G. Composition of the Board  The composition of the Board is set out in Our Board of Diractors section on page 84. Half of the
Boeard, excluding the Chalir, are independent NEDs, with that independence being assessed annually.
This ensures no one person or graup of interests can dominate Board dacision making or debates,

We document the roles of the Board, Board Committees, Chair and CEQ in the Introduction to
corporate governance on paga 92. We have a clear division of responsibilities betweern the Board and
Executive leadership, with a list of matters raserved for the Board.

Synthomer plc | 1 09
Anrual Report 2021

SILBLEIRIS [BIuUBLY dnolty |
I

SIUBLLBIETS farouBLY Aurduion ‘

vades abeeng

o
o
=
2
o
3
@
=
o
w

LGHBLLGI ey



Corporate Governance

Compliance with the Code continued

r .

H. Rele of the non-executive
directors

1. Rcle of the Company
Secretary

! J. Appointments to the
Board and succession
planning

K. Skills, experignce and
knowledge of the Board

L. Board evaluation

M. Internal and external
audit

N. Fair, balanced and
understandable

Q. Risk management
and internai conirol
framework

5. Remuneration

l P. Remuneration policies
| and practices
L

Q. Executive remuneration

R. Remuneration outcomes
and independent judgement

11
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2. Division of responsibilitieas continued

The main responsibifities of our NEDS are to provide constructive challenge and scrutiny; to hotd
management and individua! Executive Directors 1¢ acocount agains: agreed perforrmance objgctives,
and 10 overses employee engagement.

In addition, our Sanior independent Director acts as a sounding boaro to the Chair; is an alternative
contact for the cther Directors and shareholders; igads an annual meeting process to evaiuate and

fead back on the Chair's performanca, and provides constructive challenge, strategic guidance and
specialist advice.

We assess on appointment whether a candidate has sufficient tima to be a NED, with any proposed
significant external appointmant requiring the Board's agreement.

Our Gompany Secretary’s main remil s 1o advise the Board on all governance matters and on
important legal and regulatory issues and 1o ensure il has the necessary policies, processes,
niormation, time and resoutces 1o function effectively and efficiantly.

3. Composition, succession and evaluation

Our Nomination Commitiee is responsible ‘or assessmng the composition of the Beard, making
recommendations for new appointments, and succession plarning. In making rcommendations far
appoin-ments 1o the Board, the Committee considers the balance of skilis, experience and knowledpe
needed to enhance the Board and support the Company in the execution of our strategy. For more
detalls, see our Nomination Committee report on page 106,

The Nomination Committee ensures the Board has an appropriate mix of skills, expenence and
knowledge, with dus regard for the benefits of all types of diversity. This year wa buiit on our 2020
skills review - which assessed our Board's capabilties against other ple companies ‘o help dentify
and address gans - by looking at the functional skills we will need to stay competitive. All Board
members assessed themselves against the crucial skiffs, which ‘ncluded marketing, digitaisation and
sustainability. We will ised the intelligence geined, and those from our Board evaluation, into short-term
recruitment and longer term success'on planning for the Board, along with emergency successian
p'anning for the CEO and CFO.

Our last axternzl Board evaluation, ‘acillated by Egen Zehnder, was undertaken during 2020.
Aninterna’ review, tocusing on reccrmendatiors stemming from the 2020 evaluation, was carred
outin 2021, See page 91 for aclions laken.

4. Audit, risk and internal control

The Audit Committee is responsibie for reviewing the relationship and indegenderce of the Group's
external auditor, Pwl, and for overseeing the indspendence and sfectiveness of memal augdit.

In 2021, the Committee oversaw Synthomer's grantad application 1o the FRC for & second waiver to
breach tha cap on fees to auditors for nen-audit related saervices, to progress our plans to buy
Castman's Adhesive Resins business. For more details see page 98,

The Board considers this 2021 Annual Report is fair, baianceo and understandable and that it provides
information necessary for shareholders 1o assass the Company's performance, business model and
strategy. We enabled this by such means as having a cedicated working group oversesing draft ng;
ansuring that FRC guidarce was obsotved: requiring key contributors o confirm the accuracy of their
information; and girculating drafts to PwC, Committee chairs and the Board for review.

The Board sets the company's risk appetite and annually reviews the effectiveness of the company's
risk maragernent and internal cont-ol systems. & description of the principal risks facing the company
is et out on pages £6-76.

Syqthomer aims to reward employees farrly. Cu- Remuneration Policy is designed to promote the
long-term success of the Company while aligning the interests of the Cirectors and shareholdars.
The poticy wes last approved by investors at our 2020 AGM. A surmary of the latest Executive
Director Remuneration Pokcy can be found on page 114,

The Remuneration Commities is responsible for setting the remuneration for ali Executive Directors
and the Executive Committes. No Di-ector is involved M deciding their own remuneration arrangomeants
Of outcomes.

Detslls of the waork of the Remuneration Gommittee are set out In the Directors’ Remuneration report
or pages 112 1o 128,

-




Division of responsibilities
The table below provides a summary of the main responsiblities of our Board and CEQ.

ode. nifajens ‘

Posttion: Responsiblities inciude:
Chair * L eading an effective Board ) -
¢ Promoting a cuiture of epenness and debate L

* Coordinating performance evaluation of the CEQ and individuat Non-Executive Diractors
* Holding meetings with and without Executive Directors present
* Leading on all aspects of corporate governance

Chief Executive Officer * Cperational management of the Group
¢ Daveloping, preparing and implementing Group strategy, as approved by the Board
» Communicating Group culture and values
= Communicating Group financial performance to invastors alongside the CFO
+ Keeping the Board informad on material issues

%)
c
<
@
4
h

* Being a sounding board to the Chair .

Senior Independent Director

* Alternative contact for the other Directors and shareholders } @

* Leading an annua! meating process to evaluate and feed back on the Chair's performance ‘ §

* Providing constructive challenges, strategic guldance and specialist advice =2
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=

Non-Executive Directors » Constructive challsnge and senutiny to hold management and Individual Exacutive Directors 1o actount ) B

against agreed performance cbjectives i §

* Employse engagement i 2

e — e i - . - 2

Company Secretary and * Advising the Board on ail governance and compliance matters o
Chief Legal Counzel ¢ Ensuring the Board has the necessary policies, processas, information, time and resources to function !
effectively and efficiently '
» Advising the Board on important lagal and regulatory matters \

o
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ remuneration report

Remuneration Committee:
introduction from the Chair

While 2021 was a busy year for the
Remuneration Committee, much of our
attention was focused on two key issues:
agreeing remuneration for our new CEO
and CFO and completing our work

to align Executive Directors’ pensions with

that of the UK workforce.

1 1 | Synthomer plc
Annual Report 2021

Agreeing the right packages for our new

CEO and CFO

Designing a new Director's remuneration

package is one of this Committee's more

impartant tagks. it involves working closely with

the Group MR Director to creats an offer that

rewards a new recruit’s skills and experience

whils remaining consistent with the terms of our

Diractors’ Remuneration Policy. It must also ‘
reflect the fact that Synthomer Is growing, and

will continue to grow, in siza and complexity. |

CEQ: higher base salary plus covering
relocation costs

The packags we have designed for
Symhomer's new CEQ, Michiael Willome, takes
all of this into account. So while it is in line with
previous CEQ arrangements, it includes a §%

- higher base salary at £650,0C0. This figurs is

lower than Michael's salary was at Bystronic AG
{formerly Conzzeta AG) and takes into account
the larger Group size Tollowing the acquisition
of Eastman’s Adhesive Resing business.
Michael will ba eligible for a maximum annual
bonus of 150% of base salary and a PSP award
of 200% of sakary per year. He will also be
required to build a shareholding aqual to
220% of his annual basic salary.

Since Michael has moved from Switzerland
to the UK, Synthomer afsp agreed a moninly

" relocation allowance for the next four ysars,

We paid Michael a one-off paymant of
£160,000 for the loss of pension-related

' compensation ha would have received

had he sarved out his ull notice period at
Bystronic. This amount is no graater than

. ihat he forfeted. He also received a pro-rated

| Parformance Share Plan {(FSP) award for 2021.

Given that he joined towards the end of the
financial year, Michael did not receive a bonus
in 2021,

In my introduction to last year's report, | said

we intended to align our new CED's pension

with the worktorce rate of 7%, And we have I
done exactly that with Michael's pensior,

We wil do the same in 2022 for Lily Liu 25 our
inceming GFO.

CFO: higher salary to reflect growing
ambitions

While Lily does not officially join us until
the 2022 financial year, we announced her
appointment and remuneration package at

| the end of Novembar 2021, As such, Lily
" will receive a base salary of £440,000.

This is 16% higher than the previous CFO
salary, m fine with Synthomer's poticy and
growing stature, taking into account the



future additional size and complexity of the
organisation and the increasing regulatory
environment. Lily will be eligible for a
maximum annual bonus of 150% of base
salary and a PSP award of 150% of salary
per year. Lily will participate in both plans,

in line with our policy. She will be required
to build a sharehoiding that is equal to 200%
of her annual basic salary, This exceeds the
guideline for the current CFO of 175% of
salary. For more details see page 122.

Arrangomonts for 8ynthomer's
departing CEO

Of course, new arrivals mean the Committee
also has a role in agreeing terms with departing
directors. While Calum stepped down as CEO
at the start of November 2021, as he provided
a full handover to Michael, he did not formaliy
leave Synthorner untit January 2022, This meant
he was entitled to an annual bonus for 2021,
Wa also treated him as a ‘good leaver' for

the purpose of hig remalning share awards.
These awards wlill vest at the normal time

and will be pro-rated to 31 December 2021,
Though not subject to post-emplovment
shareholding, as he resigned prior to the
implementation of the policy Calum will stil
hold shares due to past and current bonus
and PSP plans. For more details, see page 123,

Fee increase for Synthomer's Chair

to reflect a mora complex landscape
As of 1 January 2022, we increased
Caroline Johnstone's fee to £235,000

a year to refiect the greater time the role
requires, and the fact that both Synthomer
and the external governance landscape are
becoming more complex. We also found
that Caroline's fee was below the lower
market quartlle. In future, she will be eligible
for increases in fine with our employees.

Near-maximum bonuses paid In 2021 but
amixed LTIP outcome

Both the CEO and CFO achieved 85% of
maximum bonus outcomas in 2021 as did the
wider organisation, in an extracrdinary year
with exceptional results on the back of the
Covid-ralated lift in Nitrile latex {Performance
Elastorners} serving the rmedical gioves industry,
Even withoUt this uplift to performance, and
nommelising the results, the full financial goat
{Adjusted PBT) would have basn achieved.
The Commitiee therefore considered that this
payout level was appropriate. The only shortfail
against targets set was the SHE process safety
metric which was missed by 0.03 while the
racordable injury case rate (RCR) metric was
met, as were the strategic goals. No discretion
has been exercised in relation to incentive
outcomas. For the 2019 PSP, Relative TSR was
at the median lavel, reflocting the end of year
share price volatilty, but EPS growth was fully
achieved, As with the PBT, on a normalised
basis the EPS would have been fully

met irrespective of the Nitrile latex uplift.

The strategic measures were broadly met,

The overall vesting was therefora 84% of the

maximum. The Commitiee considerad that this
outcome was a falr reflsction of parformance
and the shareholder experiance and therefore

I na discretion has been exercised.

The Committee discussed the £57.2 milion

~ provigion recognised in respect of the

Eurcpean Commission Styrene investigation.
The Committee will consider the implications
of the outcoms of the investigation once i has
been conciuded.

Performance measures for variable
elements of executive pay in 2022

The Commilttas aims to ensure that executive
remuneration matches Synthomer's undorlying
performance. We set annual bonuses uging
three measures — Undertying profit bafore tax
{80%), safety, health and environment targets
{10%,), and strategic personal targets (10%).
Cur 2022 measures will reflect the above and
those for 2021.

For the 2022 PSP awards, the measures wil
be split as follows:

* 30% — ralative total shareholder retum

» 30% - garnings per share (EPS) growth

= 20% - cost efficiencies as a result of the
Eastman's Adhesive Resins acqulsition

» 20% - strategic, of which haif will be a
sustalnability measure.

EPS is an important part of our PSP, since
it acts as @ performance incertive for our
exacutlves and the B0 or so participants in the

PSP. It remains a useful tool for retaining senior |
. talent in a gurrently very competitive market.

In 2021, Synthomer delivered a record EPS
of 75.2p, due to an exceptional increase in
margins in its Nitriie {atex business servicing
the madical gioves industry. Holding senicr
executives to that level in 2022 would make the
2022-24 PSP unachievable. For the purpose

! of setting targets for the 2022 PSP award the
. Committea therefore considered that it was
' appropriate 10 re-base EPS performance for

2021 to remove the impact of the exceptional
margins experienced during the year,

“The target growth ranges applied to this
rebased EPS rermnain unchanged, with 4.5%
per annum growth required for threshold
vesting and 10% per annum growth required
for maximum vesting.

Applying these growth rates to the re-based EPS
for 2021 of 40.9p gives an EPS target for 2024
of 46,7p for threshold performance and 54.4p
for maximum performanca. The Commitise

i congiders that thase tergsts are stretching for

a normialisad price environment, The intention is
that this rebasing will apply for one year only and
we wil retum to our normal methodology in 2023.

As | reportad Jast year, we added a new

" sustainabilty measure to the PSP in March

2021, which is a 25% reduction in CO..
This will continue to be a feature of cur PSP
going forward, with a 40% reduction target
for the 2022 PSP.

Discussing executive pay
with employses
While thera is consldetable interest in
remuneration, it is, in my experience, a
misundarstood subject, particularly around
executive liabilities and responsibilties,
S0, in December 2021, we hald two virtual

| employee events, open o everyons, to
explain how it works and 1o ask for pecple’s
opinions. | was pleased o note that many of
the empleyees who joined the sessions are
aware that executive pay is publicly available
information and we received no suggestions
oh how to do things differently.

Staying on top of key stakeholder issues
. To help the Committee stay informed on
the remuneration issues that matter to our
staksholdets, | ask our remuneration adviser
to provide the Committee with training every
August, This year, wa focusad on the policies
ang approaches disliked by institutional
investeors, and 1o conhsider any new guidance
from Investors, the Investment Association
and proxy agencies.

Continuing to address our gender pay gap
We were pleased 10 show a raduction in both
our rmean and madlan pay gaps in our 2021
UK gendsr pay gap report, with our median
pay gap having consistently improved over
the last three years. We recognise that our
continuing gender pay gaps are primarlly
. related to the lower number of women than
! men In our senior leadership population anct
wa set out how wa are addressing this in the
' sustainability section of the strategic report.

Extra Committee meetings and ad]usting
to a post-pandemic world

Given the amount of work invoived in
arranging pay for two incoming Directors,

the Committee held two extra sessions

in 2021. Mestings remained mainly virtual in

. 2021 due fo the ongoing COVID-18 pandemic.

Freparing for changes in 2023
My tenurs as Senior Indapendant Director
and, thersfore, Chair of this Gommittea, will
" and at the 2023 AGM when ! will retire from
the Board. t am now working with Caroiine
to identify my replacemant and ensure we have
a smooth handover plan in place. And, of
_ course, we will need to update and share our
new Remuneration Poficy in time to put it o
a shareholder vote at the 2023 AGM. | look
forward to sharing more details on both issues
i in what will be my final report next ysar.

| My sincers thanks to all involved in the
Remuneration Committee in 2021. It has
Indeed been a busy year.

Brendan Connolly
Chair of the Remunaration Gommittee

' 3 March 2022
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued

At a glance

Policy for Executive Directors
The table below summaries the policy
approved by the shareholders at the AGM on
29 April 2020. This is valid until a new policy is
approved at the 2023 AGM.

Synthomer's full remuneration policy can ke
found online — https://www.synthomer.com/
fileadmin/fies/ir’govemnance/Synthomer_plo_
Remuneration_Policy_2019.pdf

This inciudes reference to our joiners and
leavers policy, which has been particularly
relevant this year due to Executive Director
changes.

In setting Executive Director remuneration the
Committes takes account of pay and
conditions throughout the Group to ensure
that arrangements are appropriate in the
context of internal pay ratios.

1 14 Synthomer pic
Annual Report 2021

Base salary

Gonerally reviewed annually. Following the appcintment of the new CEC and CFO for 2022,
Executive Director salaries are as follows:

CEO £650,000 Incoming CFO £440,000

{ne increase in 2022 on 2021 salary of pro-rated (no increase as joining the
B650,000) Company during 2022).
Benafits

Includes private haalth insurance, life insurance, car allowance and costs related to business
moves {relocation} or intemational assignments. The CED will also receive a housing
allowance for a four-year period.

Pension

Cash allowance of 7% of base salary for new CEQ and incoming CFO, which is aligned with
that of the UK workforce.

Annual bonus

Maximum up to 160% of base salary. At least 70% assessed against Underlying profit
before tax (80% in 2022), with up to 30% assessed against strategic and operational
maeasures (20% in 2022). Awards in relation to financial parformance of:

0% 50% 100%
of maximum for of maximum for target of maximum for out
threshald performance parformance.

A proportion of the bonus earned is defarred for two years. For current Execuitive Directors
this is one third of any bonus.

Performance Share Plan {(PSP)

Sharaes awarded may not exceed 200% of salary, for 2022 annual maximum awards are
200% of base salary for the CEQ and 150% for the CFO.

Vesting based on performance of three years, with at least 80% based on financial

measures and up 10 20% on performance measures finked to the delivery of the business
strategy. NG single measure will constitute more than 50% of an annual award. There is a
two-year post-vesting holding period requirement.

For 2022 awards, performance measures will be:

30% 30% 20% 20%

relative TSR EPS cost efficiencios related to strategic, of which halfis a
the Eastman's Adhesive  sustainability measure
Resins business

Maximum of 25% for each element will vest far threshold performance.

Sharsholding requiremants

CEO 220% and incoming CFO 200% of base salary.

Requirements to tbe built up over five years.



2021 performance

Annual bonus
Actual parformance agginst the three slements of the annual bonus are set out below. As noted in the Chair's introduction, Michael Willorme

was not ewarded a bonus during 2021 as he did not start until the beginning of November 2021,
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Waighting Thrashold Target Maximum Actual
Underlying PBT 0%  CEEEENNNNNRE)  ccion |9
e — e —_ g
SHE (recordable injuries) 10% 0.33 or less 0.31 ‘ ;
— st —— - _— - - ——— f e ——— W
SHE (process safety) 10% 0.33 or less 0.6 | g
Individusl strategic and operational goals 10% See page 117 10% ? %
Total outcome 100% 95% A
Performance share plan (PSP} — 2019 award \
Actual performance against the three slemants of the annual bonus are set out below. Michaal Wiiiorne did not receive a 2018 award as he L
did not start untll the beginning of November 2021. [ o
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Relative TSR 40% _ 50th percentile | 3
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Corporate Governance

Annual report on
remuneration

Single figure of remuneration for Executive Directors (audited)

Base Total fixec Annial Long-term Fotal variante

salary Benefits Parsion ramunesgtion Lohus incerthvas® rerrunaritian tatal
Year £ £ g 4 € ¢

Executive Directors o e R
M Willcrme' 2021 108333 31,692 {07583 247,608 - - 247,608
~ o 2020 ' - - - - - -
CG MacLean? 2021 495,627 11,000 194809 621,536 706,268 703,638 1409006 2,031,442
2020 558,735 13,200 137,891 709.826 838103 257,518 1096621 1,806.447
$G Bennett 202 378,052 13,349 78610 467011 538724 381,851 920575 1,387,586
2020 355,158 13,530 71,032 438,720 532737 128,711 661448 1,101,168

Noies:

1 M Wilome Joined Synthomer as CEO on 1 Novernber 2021. He recsived a one-oft payment of £100,000 in compenzation for the less of pension-ralated pay from

his previous empioyer which is no greater than the amourt he would have receivad had ha served out his full notice period. M Willome aiso received £52,500 for

services prior to his sppointment as & Dirsctor.

CG Maclean stepped down as a Director on 1 Novermber 2021, His remuneration disclased here has baen pro-ratad ta reflact this periad,

For 2021 the valuss relate to awards granted under the 2011 PSP in 2018 which vest on 11 March 2022. Further information abouwt the leve! ot vesting is provided

in this report. As thase awards have not yet vested they have been valJed based on the average share price for the period 1 Octeber 2021 to 31 Decamber 2024

of 466.3p, along with accrued dividends from the date of grant, 1herg was no share price appraciation that affected the valus of the award and so Rermruneralion

Commitiee did not exercise discretion in respect of the share price changes.

4. 2018 PSP awards vested 01 8 March 2021, For the purpose of the 2020 single figure these swards wore valusd besed on the average share price far the peried
1 October 2020 10 31 Decernber 2020 of 403.8p. Thase awards have besn re-valued based on the shiare price an the dale of vesting of 468.6p The values
disclosed in the 2070 single figure were: CG MaclLean, £241,326 and SG Bennell, £120.617. The share price used to value the pwards on the dete of gram of
& March 2078 was A88.4p. The share prite usea 1o value the PSP for single tigure purposes of 459.6p represents a decrease of 28.8p per share. The proportion
ol the PSP value disclosed in the single tigure attributabls to share price movemnent was therefore a reduction of 5,%%. The Renwneration Comimittee cid not
exercse discretion in respect of tha share price changes.

wm

Additionai information for single figure remuneration

Benefils
Car expunses!
henafit Cmors Total
Iy £ £

M Willome! o 2200 29482
£G Mactean - — 11000 =
5G Bennett 12,500 849
Note:

1. Since M Witlome has moved from Switzerland 10 the UK, he will recelve 2 monthly relocation a lowance for the next four years. This & lowance will be ©7.800 per
~onth tor the first year then £€5.000 per month ‘or the foliowing three yoars, and will be grossed up for tax.

Annual bonus

2021 award

For 2021 the Company operated a cash bonus plan for the Executive Directors relpted to the achisvement of Underying profit belore lax targets,

SHE targets and individuai strategic and operational goals,

The achievement of the Underlying profit before tax target represented up to 80% of the maximum bohas opportunity achisvable of 150% ot
annual basic salary for CG Maclean ana 5G RBennett,

The SHE targets were g ven & 10% weighting of the maximum achievable, with the balance of 10% relatirg to individual strategic and cperational
goals.

Bonus for the year ended 31 December 2021

Maxhimum bonus Tolal Sonus as a Tota bonus
Executive Direciors asd % of salary % of maximum C
CG Maciean ) 150 25 708,288
SG Bennett 180 95 538,724

2021 saw performance that was ahead of financial targets and meaningful progress and acrievemen:s against individual strategic and
operational goals. "he recordable injury portion of the SHE target was mat but tne process safe'y portion was missed.

This 2021 tionug outcome ¢f 5% of maximum is reflected across tne wider organisation. 2021 was an extraordinary yea-, partly gue to the
Covig-ralated It in nitnies marg.ns. Even witheut this upift to performance, the full PET targel would have peen achieved. The Commities
therefore considered that this cayout level was appropiate.

1 -1 6 Synthomer pic
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Further information on the three elements of the bonus is as follows:

1. Undertying profit before tax (80%)
The Underlying profit before tax targets set and achievement are set out below:

Trreahold Targst Maximum Achigved?
Leval of award (% of alement) 0% 50% 100% 261%
Underlying profit before tax' £165.0m £173.7m £191.1m £453.0m
Notas:
1. Targets are set by reference to the Board-approved intemal budget for the Group and measured on & constant cumency basis.
2. For the purpases of calculating achieved Underlying profit bafora tax, adjustments were made Tor currency.
2. SHE (10%)
Targets with an aggregate weighting of 10% related to improvements in recordable injury and process sataty.
Process safety
Recordable imury fmeasured as process
{measured as injury rate} safety event rate)
Target o . N 0.33 or less 013 or less
Level of award 0% for & rate greater than 0.33 0% for a rate greater than 0.13
o o e L 5% for a rata less than .33 5% for a rate lass than 013
Rate achieved 031 0.16
Award outcome 5% 0%

Further details of the definition and measurement of the recordable injury rate and the process safety event rate are given on page 55.

3. Individual strategic and operational goals (10%)

Individual goals and achievements ageainst them considered by the Remuneration Committee with an aggregate weighting of 10% included:

Chlet Execitive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Target 1. Drive developtnent of a five-year NBR investmaent plan 1. Review and make recommendations in respect of the
2. Review profitability at site level and create an action plan control environment
X , 2. Roll out planned implementation phases of the Pathway
3. Develop and lead business-wide ESG stratagy programme
3. Overses tax review of the OMNOVA acquisition and NBR
- investment plan o
Level of award Up to 10% Up to 10%
Chief Exacutive Officer Chiel Financlal Officer
Performance Driva development of a five-year NBR investment plan Review and made recommendations in respect of the
against targets * The CEOQ led a team through 2021 which considered al aspectsof  control environment

this potential investment, including demand and supply, location
camparatives and options and timing. The team reported to the
Board regularly through 2021, which had detailed discusslons

©n various aspects of the potential investment and agrasd furthar
worK to be undertaken. The CEQ guided the team and advised
the board on the strategic aspects and personally lod soma
spacific aspacts of tha thinking as well as leading discussions
with potential partmers and Investors.

Review profitability at a site level and create an action plan

* In 2021, there were a number of projects where the GEQ oversaw
substantial progress in planning for transformation, including the
closure of Mar 3 {and transformation of the Marl site generally), the
Le Havre site transformation, the Sokolov site transferrnation (and
closure of the site's coel-fired power station) and Oulu site closure,
A strong vsam was guided and led in addressing the various aspects
and considergtions - the complexity of product and site interactions
was particularly important to address. The team presented to the
Board on several occasions and addressed the Board's guestions
and suggestions, leading to approval of the proposals.

Develop and lead business-wide ESG strategy

* The business had undertaken e kot of work “uncer the radar® shead
of 2021, and Calum lod the team In developing Vision 2030 and
debating and proposing key targets in the main ESG priorities
for Synthomer. He empowered the team to develop the plan and
showed leadership in debating some quite new areas of focus for the
busingss. His ilvestor communications instiled a level of corfidence

In Synthomer's sustainability position in water based polymers.

Award cutcome 10%

¢ The CFO led his team in reflecting on the changing environment,
the growth in the scale of the Group as well as the potential
changes which might arise from the 2021 gudit and assurance
BEIS consultation, As well as Board tralning sesskons In April
and June 2021, the GFO and the team engaged KPMG to advise
on implementing an Audit end Assurance Policy and developing
a plan for putting in plase an Assurance Map. He also engagsd
Dsloftte to advise on climate change and TCFD reporting,
His team then developed plans to ready the controls environmant
for any Sarbanes Oxday type audit requiraments leveraging the
skills of members of the former OMNOVA Financa team. A clear
assessment of impact and urgency of actions was proguced.

Roll out planned mplementation phases of the

Pathway programme

» The Pathway programme was raalignad in 2020, during the
pandemic and the CFO has overseen the taam as they worked
through to the successiul go-liva of the first sites in 2021.
The business is now moving forward with the next phase.

Oversee tax review of the OMNCVA acqulsition and NBR

investrmeant plan

* Tha CFO oversaw slgnificant progress was made in tax matters
and Investmant in tax resourses during 2021. The Board recelved
reguiar updates on the potemtial tax implications of the proposed
NBR Invastment.

10%
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Corporate Gavernance

Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Additional information for single figure remuneration (audited)

Long-term incentives - Performance share plan

The awards made on 11 March 2019 for CG Mact.ean and for SG Benrett under the PSP were subject te a relatve total shareholder return (TSR)
performance condition, an absolute Underlying eamings per share performance condition and a strategic measuras condiition, as follows:

Relative TSR condition EPS conditior!

Compary relative TSR EFS for the 2021 tinancial yaar Percantage of award that vesls Performance achieved
performance against the FTSE

250 Index {excluding investment

trusts and financial services

companies) over a three-year

period ended

31 December202¢ o o S
Upper quartile 41.0p or More 40% ) EPS of 76.2p gives fult 40%
Betwesn madian and upper Betwesan 35.2p and 4 0p On a straight-line basis between vesting of the award.

quartie 10% and 40% TSR perfarmanca at the b0th
Madian o Coasep TS ) percentiie gives vesting of 10.0%
Below median Less than 35.2p N 0% ’ : of award.

Nate:

1. The targets Fave been adjusied to 1ake account of the bonus factor of 1.0713 fo- the rights issue in 20" S and additional OMNOVA earnings from 1 April 2020,
A furthar 20% ot the awerd was subject 1o three equally weighted strategic measures:

* Parcentage of Group sales (by voiume) in the 2021 financial year derived from new products faunched in the last five vears ana patented

products.
New product percentage’ Percantage of award that vests Percentage athieved
< 15% 0% o ~ 24% gives full vesting of 6.6% of award.
15% - 20% o 1.65% - €.6%
= 20% 6.6%
Note:

1 Excluding volume atlibutable to Monomers, where there is no scope for new product development.

« Gumulative Underlying profit before tax {(PBT) added through acquisitions tor the three years ended 31 December 2021

Cumulative PBT added through acguistions Percentage of eward that vests Mercentage echieved

< £30.0m 0% ) ) £32.4m gives vesting of 3.2% of award.
£30.0m - £60.0m o 1.65% - 68%

> £86.5m 6.6%

+ Return on Invested Gapita! {ROIC) target tracks thres growth projects commissicned in 2019 that were expected 1o impact the Group in the
2021 finangia! year. The three projects selected were JO35 in Malaysia, Worms in Germany and Roebuck in the USA. An overall ROIC
threshold was set at 18,3%, based o~ the weighted average of the three individual project targets. Given the greater importance of the larger
projects, the ROIC part of the award was weighted at 50% tor JOBBS, 25% for Wormns and 25% for Reebuck. The award started to vest ‘or each
individual project at B0% of the anticipated ROIC, based on the original invesiment cases that were brought before the Board &t the time the
projects were approved. The overal ROIC o1 these projects was 57.0% which exceed the thresnald of 18.3%. Ot *he individua: projects, JOBS
and Roeb.ack reached the vesting threshold altaining 523.3% and 85.2% of thair targets. This led to B1.7% vesting of the ROIC portion and
therefore 4.2% of the overa:l award.

In aggregate, 64.0% of the 2019 award vested, ard the Corrmittee did not exercise any discretion with the leve! of vesting.

The 2019 award wiil vest for CG MaclLean and SG Bennett in March 2022 as follows:

Estimated valug
No. of ghares in No. of shares No. of shares of sharas that

criginal award' that lapge” thal vest vesl
CG MaclLean 235,089 64,097 140,972 £703,638
SG Bennott 119,536 43,033 76.503 £381,851

Note:
1 Number of shares in original award were adiustac to take account of the benus tactor of 1.0713 for the nghts issuc in Juty 2016.
2. GG Meclean left Synthomer on 13 January 2022 triggering & time-apoortioned lapse of 14,803 shares.

Overal, the Committee considers that *he Remuneration Policy nas operated as it intendeo during 2021 and that the pey cutcomss are aligned
with the experience of shareholdars and other stakeho ders.
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Pension entitlements (audited)
Both Exacutive Directors receive a cash allowance in lieu of pension contributicns as outlined above. No additional benefit is receivable in the

event of a Director retiring early.
Single figure of remuneration for Non-Executlve Directors (audited)

Commitice
membership Gommittes
Non-Exgeitive Directors Bage fes L] Chalr fee Totel
CA Johnstons 2021 189,500 = - 186,500
o o o 2020 46,367 15,000 4,783 66,150
Tha Hon. AG Catto 2021 43,500 - o= 43500
o __ 2020 41571 - - asn
BWD Connolly’ 201 48,500 15,000 5,000 68,500
o o 2020 45,731 15,000 5000 65,731
Cynthia Dubin _ 2029 43500 16,000 5,000 63,600
B B B o 2020 18,965 6,935 217 26,117
RC Gualdoni? 2021 20815 777 - 27,992
L o 2020 - - - -
D¢ JJC Jansz® S 2021 30,625 11,250 - 43.675
L _ 2020 40742 16000 T.. 55742
Datc’ Lee Hau Hian 2021 43,500 - - 43800
— - 2020 41,849 - T 41848
HA Van Deursen - 2021 43,500 15,000 - 58,500
T 2020 40,742 15,000 - 55742
Notes:
1. Base fea Inchudes an amount of £5,000 per annum for role as Senlor independent Director.
2. Appointed to the Board on B July 2021.
3. Resigned on 29 September 2021.
Directors’ shareholding and share interesis (audited)
Vested umm::::
Inerestsin unexercised Interests in Unvested Intarests In
Company performancs shares and pearformance Share options Shars shares ol
chares related options vested optiona related optl laed ownership 31 December
D b 31 D b 31 D b D b during reguirements 2021
Drectors 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 (% o1 salary¥ (% of salary)
M wWillormng - - - 198,205 - 220% 0%
CG MaclLean® 1,060,347 ~ 1,060,347 512,067 56,031 n/a na
SG Bennett 195,817 - 195817 426,487 36,660 175% 200%
The Hon, AG Catto 1,649,239
1,072,441
BWD Connolly 6,000
CS Dubin -
RC Gualdoni 20,000
Dato’ Les Hau Hian 148,453
CA Jahnstone 24,191
DrJ J C Jansz* 12,500
HA Van Deursen 11,000

Netes:
B

Non-benaficial intarest,
. Unvested performnance related options compriss: {) the awards mada under the PSP in 2018, which were adjusted to take account of the bonus facter of 1.0713

for the rights issue in 2019 and {i} the awards made under the PSP in 2020 and 2021. Deteils of the performance conditions ettaching to the 2019 awards are sat

out on page 118; 2020 and 2021 awards are set cut below.
Untill this requirement is met, no sglas of shares that vest under iong-term incentive plans are permitted cther than to satisty tax liablitles that arise on the exercise

of share awards under such plans. The Committes congiders that unfetterad unexercised vested nil-cost awards are economically egquivalent to shares and as
such that they should count {on a net of tex basis) toward compliance with the share ownership guidslines,

3. The figures for CG MaclLean reflact his shareholding and time pro-rated share interasts on 1 Novarmber 2021, the date that he stepped down as a Director.
4, The figure for JUC Jansz reflect his sharcholding on 29 Septernber 2021, the date that he stepped down as a Director.
There have been na changes in the interests of the Directors in shares between 31 Decamber 2021 and 3 March 2022,
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Corporate Governance

Annual Report on Remuneration continued

2020 award {audited)
The awards made on 12 March 2020 to CG Maclean and SG Bennett were as folows:
Percantage
vegting st
Number of threshola Periormance
Schame Basis of award shares Face velue performance period end date
GG MacLean PSE - nil-cost options 150% of salary 321,624  £B27,348 25% 31/12/2022
SG Bennett PSP ~ nil-cost options 120% of salary 183,500  £420,718 25% 3111272022

The face value of the awards was calcUlated using a share price of 257,.32p per share, the average share price on the five dealing days pricr to
the date of grant.

Further awards wera made on B May 2020 to CG Maclean and SG Bennett, following the approval of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy at the
AGM held on 29 April 2020, as follows:

Porcenlage
vesting at
Number of threshold Performance
Schema Basls of award shares Face valug parformance pariod end dete
CG MacLean PSP - nil-cost options 25% of salary 49,760  £137,891 289 31/12/2022
5G Bennett PSP - nii-cost options 15% of salary 18,985 £52.588 25% QJ1/12/2022

The fage value of the awards was calculated using a share price of 277p per share, the average share price on the five dealing days prior to the
date of grant.

Therefore, the total awards for CG Macbean and SG Bennett in 2020 was:

Percentage
vesting at
Number of thrashold Pefformance
Scheme Besis of eward shares Face value performance  perod end Gate
GG MacLlean PSP - nil-cost options 175% of salary 371,304 £965,237 25% 31/12/2022
SG Bennett PSP - nil-cost options 135% of salary 182,485  ©473,306 25% 31/12/2022

1. CG Maclean left Synthomer on 13 January 2022 tiggering & tme-agportioned tapse of 150,006 shares leaving a balance of 221,289 shares.

The 2020 awards under the PSP are subject to the tollowing performance conditions:
Relativa TSR ondition EPS condion’ Synargies delivered from the OMNOVA scquisition

Company-reiative TSA periormance against
the FTSE 250 index {exchuding Invesirmeant
trusts and financial services companies) over

three-year pericd snding 31 Dacember 2022 EPS for the 2032 financial year Synergy dekvery run rate by 31/12/2622 Pancentaga of award that wit vast
Upper quartile 33.8p or more $29.6m or more 30%

Between 20.0p Between $25.0m  On a straight-line basis betwean
Batwean median and upper quartile and 33.8p and $29.6m 7.5% and 30%
Median 29.0p $25.0m 75%
Below median | ess than 29.0p Less than $25.0m 0%

1. The targets were adjusied to take account of the additional OMNOVA eamings from 1 April 2020.

A further 10% of the award is subject to a strateg'c measure relating to a 10% reduction of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions over the
performance period, axcluding additional emissions from the acquired OMNOVA business.
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2021 awards {audited)
The awards made on 11 March 2021 to CG MaclLean and SG Bennett were as follows:

Perceniage
vesting &t
Number of threshold Parformances
Schams Basis of award shares! Face value perfomance  perad end date
G Maclean PSP - nil-cost options 200% of salary 261,039 £1,189.478 25% 31/12/2023
SG Bennett PSP - nil-cost options 150% of salary 124,446 £567,063 26% 31/12/2023

1. GG MacLean left Synthomer on 13 January 2022 triggering & time-apportioned lapse of 190,540 shares leaving & balence of 70,499 shares.

The face value of the awards was calculated using a share price of 455.67p per share, the average share price on the five dealing days prior to
the date of grant.

The award made on 8 November 2021 to M Willome was as follows:

Percertage
vesting at
Mumber of nreghoid Performance
Schema Bagls of award sharas Face value parlormance  period snd date
M Willome PSP — nil-cost options 200% of salary 188,295 £1,011,106 25% 31/12/2023

The face value of the awards was calculated using e share price of 509.9p per share, the average share price on the five dealing days prior to the
date of grant. This award was time-apportioned from M Willome's starting date.

Aelativa TSR condition EPS condition

Company-relative TSR performance against  EPS for the 2023 financial year Percentage of award that will vest
tha FTSE 250 Index {excluding investment

trusts and financial sorvices companies) over

thres-year period ending 31 December 2023

Upper quartile 38.5p or more 40%

Between median and upper quartile Between 33.0p and 38.5 pence On a straight-line basis between 10% and 40%
Median 33.0p 10%

Below median Less than 33.0p 0%

A further 20% of the award is subject o strategic measures comprising: a 15% reduction of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions compared to
the 2019 baseline and greatsr than 15% of 2023 sales vaiuma to come from new products launched in the five years tc December 2023,
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Corperate Governance

Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Annual Report on Remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2021
Operation of the Executive Director Remuneration Policy for 2022
The current policy has been in force since 29 April 2020, The specific remuneration arrangements for 2022 are described below.,

55,’;}_‘55]@ B

Pension and
benefits

Annual bonus

Performance
share plan

A“éa\ary increase \.;véé_éwérdecl with cffect-fr-om 1 January 2022 of 3.0% for the current Chiet Financigl Officer n line
with that for the average of the UK workforce. The Chief Executive Officer did not receive a salary increase for 2022,
2022 salaries gre as follows:

* M Willome: £650,000

+ SG Bennett: £389,394

* L Liu: £440,000 L o
Pension contributions for new directors are aligned with that of the UK workforce. Exscutives receive a cash allowance in
liew of pension contributions, cer aliowance and private heal:h insurance. Sirce M Willome has moved from Swizerland to
the UK, the Company alsc agreed a monthly relocation allowance for the next four years. This allowance will be £7,800 per
maonth for the first year then £5,000 par month for the following three years, and will be grossed up for tax.

2027 cash allowances in ieu of pension contributions are:

* i Willome: 7% of salary

= 3G Bennstt: 20% of salary

et LU 7% of salary

For 2022, performance under the annual bonus will be measured on the following basis:

» 80% subject 1o performance against Underlying profit before tax targets

* 10% subject to parfcrmance measures ageinst key SHE targets

» 10% subject to performance against individual strategic and cperationa! goels

» Targets anc objectives for 2022 are, by their financial and commercial nature, considered by the Board to be unsuitable
for disclosure In advance. However, the Committee will provids information on targets and objectives retrospect vely.

2022 max mum award oppcrtunity:

+ M Willome: 150% of salary

* 56 Bennett: 150% of salary

*LLivs0%olsalary

For awards to be made in 2022, performance will be measured as follows:

* 30% kased onrelative TSR performance versus FTSE 250 (excluding investment trusts and financial
services comoanies):
- 25% of this elemenl will vest for median perfarmance
- 10C% vesting for upper-quartile performance
- Vesting on a straight-line basis between these points
* 30% based on Underlying CPS growtth:
- 25% of this element will vest tor EPS growth of 4.5% per annum
- 100% vesting for EPS growth of 10% per annum
- Vesting on a straight-line basis between these points
- This target range was sst following consideration of the long-term strategy and the aut ook for the markets in which
we operate
~ 2021 EPS has been rebased for target setting purposes, to take account of the exceptional marging in Nitrile latex.
See page 115.
* 20% based on cest eficiencies as a result of the Eastman’s Adhesive Resing business
* 20% based on strategic targets, of which half will be a sustainabiiity measure linked 1o a reduction in COz emissions
of up o 40% from the 2019 haseline and half will be Bnked to the intrecuction of new anc protected products,

2022 maxmum award opportunty:

* M Willome: 200% ¢f salary
s 8C Bennett: 160% of salary
* L Liu: 160% of salary

Shareboiding
guidelines during
smployment
Chair and Non-
Executive Directors

The Chief Cxecutive Officer ard the current Chief Financial Officer ere expocted to build interests in shares of &t least 220%
and 175% of salary respectivaly. L Liu will be expected to build interests in shares of at least 200% of salary.

The fees o he 'p'é\'d' in 2022 to the Chair and the Nron-Execut-i.\;e Directors were reviewed im-becerr-ber 2021 and as a resuli:

* The Chair's fee was increased from £188,500 to £235,000 per annum with effect from 1 January 2022 to refiect the
greater time commitmert that the role requires ard its increased complexity.

* The tees for Non- Executive Directors were Increased in :ne with the average pay increase tor the Group's UK workforce
with gffect from 1 January 2022.

-1 22 Synthomer plc
Annual Report 2021



1

Hodel aibeiens

Payments to past directors (audited)

While CG MaclLean stepped down as CEQ at the start of November 2021, his agreed formal leaving date was 13 January 2022, meaning he

was entitied to an annual bonus for 2021, The bonus payment will be paid antirety in cash on the normal bonus payment date and will be subject ‘
1o the Remuneration Committee’s right under the Rules to apply rmalus and clawback provisions. He will not be eiigible to recelve any bonus in
raspect of the financial year ending 31 December 2022.

The Remuneration Committee daterrminad that, taking into account the circumstances of the departurs, the transition betwsan the leadership {
of the Company and CG Maclean's contribution to the business during his tenure, he would be treated as a ‘goed leaver' for the purpose of his
unvested awards under the Performance share plan. in line with the approved policy, the awards will be reduced on a time-apportioned basis,

which will be calcuiated 1o 31 Decamber 2021. Awards will be subject to the relevant performance conditions which will be measured at the o
normal time. 2
Pro-rated maximum number of shares ;
Award date Nurnber of shares subject 1o awerd which could vest Vesting date e
2018 . 235086 00000220208 0 1Mach2022 N -
2020 _sngsoes o 221299 12 March 2023 ,7
2021 261,039 70,489 11 March 2024
Any dividend equivalents accrued in respect of these awards would be paid in cash following vesting and will be pro-rated in line with the level —
of vesting of the relevant PSP award, Any shares acquired on the exercise of the awards will be subiect to the Remuneration Committee's right { o]
under the PSP to apply clawback provisions, ! g
Details of the vesting of the award made to CG MacLean in 2018 together with all other remuneration paid to CG MacLean in 2021 are contained g?
in this report. &
The Synthomer post-employment sharehelding guidelines which came into effect in April 2021 have not been applied as CG Maclean gave §
notice of termination before they were introduced. He is, however, contractually bound to hold Synthomer's shares post-empioyment as follows: E]
3
Shares Farlest date shares can be seid | &
6,311 shares daferred from 2019 bonus paid in March 2020 26 March 2022 o - !
17316 shares from vesting of 2017 PSP ewardinMay 2020  4May2022 = =
31,878 shares deferred from 2020 bonus paid in March 2021 26 March 2023 o o
56,031 shares from vesting of 2018 PSP award in March 2021 8 March 2023
Payments for loss of office {audited)
No payments for loss of office were made during the year. -
o
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Corporate Governance

Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Performance graph and table
The graph and table telow allow camparizon of the TSR of the Company and the Chiat Executive Officer remuneratiGn outcomes over the iast
10 years.

TSR chart

360
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December December Decermber December December December December Decermber  Decomber  December  December
20114 2012 2013 014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018 2020 2021

- Synthomerplc == FTSE 250 {excluding investment trusts}

The graph above compares the TSR performancs of the Gormpany with that of the FTSE 260 {exciuding investment trusts). This is considered to
be the most appropriate index against which to make a comparison and was chosen because it represents 2 broad equity market index of which
the Company is a constituent,

2012 2013 2014 2015 2018 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Chisf Executive

Officer total singie

figure of rernuneration

€00 1487 928 967 1246 W18 2516 1807 893 1BO5 2,219
Bonus (% of

maximum awarded) 270 0.0 57.3 987 100.0 100.0 76.5 20.0 1000 95.0
PSP (% of maximum

vestingj 100.0 50.0 0.0 n/a va 08.3 86.2 10.0 31.8 64.0

The Chief Executive Officer total single figure of remuneraticn includes salary, benefits and pengion contributions paidl in the year, together with
bonuses and long-term incentive awards which vested based cn performance in the year.

The 2021 single figure comprises the figure for CG Maclean, which covers the period to 31 October and the figure for M Willome, which covers
the period from 1 November to 31 December 2021.

Chief Executive Officer to all amplayee pay ratio
The following table provides pay ratic data in respect of the Chiet Executiva Officer’s total remuneration compared to the 26th, median and 75th
percentile employee,

25th percentie 751h percentie
Flnancia' year Mathod pay ratio  Median pay ratla pay ratla
2021 Option B S ——— = 4411 311
2020 ~_ OptionB _ ) L ) _ 38m 281 2
2019 Cption B 28:1 23:1 16:1

Tha employees used for the purposes of complling the 1able above were identified or a full-time equivaient basis at the pay period during which
5 April 2021 fell. Option B, which invoives identitying the employess at the 25th, 50th and 75th percentile from our gender pay gap report, was
chosen as the calculation mathodology.

Option B is considered to be the most simple and accurate way of identifying the relevant employees. Using this msthodology we were able to
idantify specffic employees to make the required comparigons.

The atio has increased for 2021 chiefly due to the increase In the PSP outcome.

1 24 Synthomer plc
Annual Report 2021



The definition of pay used included the foliowing:

s Annual salary

» Car allowances

» Al other cash allowances

« Al bonusas and incentive scheme payments for services delivered in the year
» Private medical insurance value

The following table provides salary and total remuneration information in respect of the employess at each quartile.

25th percentile 75t percentile

Financlal year Element of pay employse Medisn employee employes
2021 Salary 38,394 43,425 57,756
Total remuneration 42,277 52,342 72,622

Our Chisf Executive Officer pay is made up of a higher proportion of incertive pay than that of the majority of our employses. This is likely to
introduce more variabillity In the Chief Executive Officer total compensation.

The Board have confirmed that the ratics are consistent with the Company’s wider policies on employee pay, reward and progression.

Percentage change in remuneration of the Directors

The table bealow sets out the increase in salary, benefits and annual bonus of the Directors compared with a selected group of employees.

The parent company, Synthomer plc, does not have any direct employees so a comparator group of employees of the Group™s main UK trading
subsidiary has been used, comprising 463 employees. The Directors consider that this employee population is the most relevant for comparison
purposes, taking into account gaographical location and remuneration structure.

2021 2020

Benefits % Benefis %
Salary and fas % Increase/ Arnwal bonus % Salary ang fee % increase’ Annual bonus %
Increase {dacruaze) Ihcregne ncraass {decreasa) increase
M Willome? na n‘a n‘a n‘a n/a na
CG MaclLean 25 - 1.1 1.3 - 507 .8
SG Bennett 25 (1.3) 11 1.3 (24.1) 560.7
GA Johnstone 2.5 e na wa n/a
The Hon. AG Catto 5.6 n‘a n/a 0.8 na n/a
BWD Connolly 5.4 n‘a na 11 n/a n/a
C Dubin 31 n/a n‘a n‘a n‘a n‘a
RC Guaidoni! na rva n/a n/a n/a n/a
Dr JJC Jansz 3.6 n/a n/a 1.3 n‘a na
Dato’ Lese Hau Hian 2.8 n/a n/a 1.6 n/a n‘a
HA Van Daursen - ) ) - 38 n/e n'a 1.3 na rva
Ave-rage chahﬁe for employees 2.8 a.2 36.5 1.4 4.4) T 6027

Note:
1. M Willorme and R Gualdoni were appointad to the Board in 2021,

Relative importance of spend on pay
The table below shows the relative importance of the Group’s alt employes remuneration expense compared with retumns to shareholders by way

of dividends.

2021 2020

£m £m % change

Dividends paid 73.5 12.8 A474.2
Total employee remuneration 243.7 211.3 15.3

Dividends are the dividends paid in the year. The final 2012 dividend was cancelled at the onset of COVID-19 in March 2020. Total empioyment
remuneration is the consolidatad salary and bonus cost for all Group employees.

Synthomer plc | 2
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Corporate Governance

Annual Report on Remuneration continued

External appointments

Executive Directors are permitted to accept external appointments with the prior approval of the Board, provided that there is no adverse Impact
on their role and duties to the Gompany. Any fees arsing from such appointments may be retained by the Executive Directors where the
appoirtment is unrelated to the Group's businaess.

M Willorme has been a non-exscutive director of Glaston Oyj {Nasdag Helsinki) since May 2020 and received a Beard membership fee of EUR
38,000 in 2021. M Witlome has sat on European subsidiary boards of Indutrade AB since 2013 and received a beard membarship fee of CHF
30,000 in 2021.

SG Bennatt does not currently hoid any external appointments,

Remuneration Committee

Remuneration Committea membership since 1 January 2021:
Brendan Connolly {Ghair) T
Cynthia Dubin

Bg@ggp)éﬁﬁb-ﬁim(?réﬁ_é -.J-u\y 2-0-2'1) R

Just Jansz (to 29 September 2021}
Hally A Van Deursen

Attendance at Committee meetings is $et oLt on page 83.

Key duties of the Committee

During 2021 the Committee was respongible for determining, in agreement with the Board, the Company's policy cn executive remuneration
and the specific remuneration for the Chair and sach of the Executive Directors, including pension rights, within the terms of the agreod policy.
The Committae was also responsible for the specific remuneration of the Executive Committae and for reviewing remuneration elsewhere

ir the Group.

Advisers
The Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary and Group HR Director are invited to attend Committes meetings to contribute to the
Committee in its delibarations. Howaver, no individuai is involved in discussions, or is part of any decisions. relating to their own remuneration.

The Committee received independent acvice from Daloitte LLP (Celoitte) which was appointed as the Commitiee’s independent remuneration
advisar in April 2013.

Curing the vear, Deloitte provided advice on governance and market trends and other remuneration mattera that materially assisted the
Committes. The fees paid to Deloitte in respact of this work were charged on a time and expensss basis and totalled £13,000 for advice in 2021.
The Committee |s comfortable that the Delotte engagement team that provides remuneration advice to the Committee do not have connections
with the Company ot its Directors that may impair their independence. The Committes reviewed the potential tor conflicts of interast and judged that
thare ware appropriate safeguards against such conflicts. Deloftte also provided tax services to part ot the Group and advice on implgmentation
of TCFD to the Board in the year. The Cornmitiee was satisfied that this dic not compromise the independence of the advice received.

Delottte is a founding member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and adheres te its Gode of Conduct. Deloitte was appointed directly by
the Committee, and the Committee is satisfied that the advice received was objective end independant.

Statement of voting at the AGM
The table below sets out the resutts of the votes on the Directors’ remuneration at the 2021 AGM (Annual Report on Remuneration) and the 2020
AGM (Diractors’ Remuneration Policy}.

vates far Voies against Votas withheld

Numbe~ % of vote Numbar % of vote Numbaer
2021 Annual Report on Remuneration 341,442,753 86.58 12,278,209 3.47 26,045
2020 Directors’ Remuneration Folicy 322,152,827 91.88 28,090,122 8.02 28,501
By crdesr of the Board
R Atkinson
Company Secretary

L
8

03 March 2022 —
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ report

The Directors submit their Annual Report and
the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021. None
of the mattars required to be disclosed by
Listing Rule 9.8.4R apply to the Company,
except for the following:

» The amount of capitalised interest -
soe Financial statements note 2

+ Detalls of long-term incentive programmes
- see Directors’ Remuneration report on
pages 112-128

+ Snhareholder waiver of dividends —
see Financial statements note 31.

The Directors’ report is covarad on pages
126-128 as welt as in the following sections of
the Annual Report:

Locgtion [n Annual

Itern Repaort
Staternent of Directors’ Page 128
responsibilities
Financial risk rmanagement Financial
statements ~
note 22
Presant Board Pages 84-87
membership
Corporate Governance Pages 90-97
report
Stratagic report (including Inside
principal activities) front cover
1o page B2
Management of risk and Pages 69-81
viability staternent
Employes engagement Pages 62-66
Directors’ remuneration Pages 112-126
report
Bhare capital Financial
statements —
note 27

Greenhouse gas emissions  Pages 182-183

Sustainability report Pages 42-68

| Results and dividende

The profit attributable to shareholders for

the year was £208.7 million. An interim
dividend of 8.7 pence per share was paid

on 4 November 2021, The total dividend paid
for the year was £73.5 million. The Directors
recommend a final ordinary dividend of 21.3
pence per share payable on & Jufy 2022 to
those shareholders registared at the close

of business on & June 2022, A dividend
reinvestment plan is available to sharshokders
and this attemative will continue to be offerad
until further notice.

Acquisitions and disposals

On 7 April 2021 the Company completed the
sale of Synthomer Thailand Limited to Rimrise
FZE. On 28 October 2021 the Company agreed
to acquire Eastman's Adhesive Resins business
for 31 billion.

Directors

" All the Directors will retire and seek elsction

or re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

None of the Directors sesking re-election

has a service contract except Michael
Willome and Stephen Bennett, who both have
a service contract that contains a 12-month
notice period. Stephen Bennett gave notice of
termination on 4 August 2021 and has agraed

| atermination date with the Company of

4 November 2022,
Director indemnity provisions

" Under the Company's Articles of Assoclation,

the Directors of the Company have the benefit

. of a qualifying third-party indemnity provision.

This means the Company indemnifies them
against certain liabiities, as permitted by
Sections 232 and 234 of the Companies Act
2008, and agalnst costs Incurred by them in
relation to any liability for which they are

~ indermnified. The Company has purchased

and maintains insurance against Directors’

" and officars’ liablities in relation to
, the Company.

Share capital and control

On 28 October 2021 the Company
completed a placing of 42,485,080

new ordinary shares of 10 pence each.
This repmsented approximately 10% of the
Company’s lasued share capital mmediately
before the placing and was connacted to
the financing of the acquisition of Eastrman’s
Adheslve Resins business, which was
announced that day. During 2021 no shares
were purchased. A total of 99,927 shares
were purchased on the open market on
behalf of the shareholders who elected to
participate in the dividend reinvestrnent plaa.

The Company's Articles of Association set
out the rights and obligations attached to
the Company's ordinary shares, being the
only class of issued share capital, alongside
the powers of the Company's Directors.

| Coples can be obtained from Companies

Housa ar downicaded from the Company's
wabsite: www.synthomer.com. There are
no restrictions on the voting rights attached
to the Company’s ordinary shares ar on

the transfer of securities in the Company.
No peraon holds securitias in the Company

! that carry special rights with regard to the

* control of the Company. The Company is not

aware of any agresments between holders

' of securities that may result in restrictions on

the transfer of securities or on veoting rights.
Unless expressly specified to the contrary
in the Company's Articles of Association,
those Articles of Association may be

. amanded by spedial resoiution of the
| Company's shareholders.

Other than in relation fo its borrowings.,
which become repayable on a takeover

, unless certain conditions are satisfied,
_ the Company is not party to any significant
i agresments that would come into effect,

alter or terminate upcn a changa of control
prompted by a takeover bid. The Company
does not have agreemeants with any
Director or employee that would provide
compensation for loss of office or
employment resulting from a takeover.

Ali of the Company's share programmes
contain provisions relating to a change of
control. Qutstanding options and awards
wauld normally vest and become axercisable
on a change of control, subject to the
satisfaction of any performance conditions

" gt that time.

Synthomer plc
Annual Report 2021
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ report continued

Major shareholdings

f

Othat than the shareholdings disclosed as Directors' interests in the Directers’ remuneration
report as at 18 February 2022, the Company had been notifiea under Section 5 of the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the UK Listing Authority of the following significant

holdings of voting rights in its ordinary sharss:

Percentage of

Ordirary shares  Ordinary shates in

{numbor) I1ssUe Nature of holding
Kuala Lumpur Kepeong Bhd 89,745,012 21.34 Direct interest
Jupiter Fund Management pic 24,865,862 534 T Indiract interest.
Ameriprise Financial Ine 21,103,757 4.52 Direct and indirect interest
fiegon Assel Management UK PLG 12,425,941 2.66 Direct and indirect interes

Employment policies and amployee
involvement

The Group gives every corsideration

1o job applications om disabled people,
Employees who becoms disabled are
given every appaortunity to continue warking
for Synthomer under normal terms and
conditions with appropriate training, career
dovelopment and premotion wheraver
possible. The Group seeks to achieve
eqgual opportunities in employment
through recruitment and training policies,

The Groun encourages employee invalverment
inits affairs. The Company regularly engages
with employees 10 make them aware ¢f the
financial and economic factors affecting
Groun performance. Performance-related
bonus programmes are in operation
throughout tha Group. Alexander Gatto

is the designated Non-Executive Oirector
responsitie for gathering the views of the
workforce. Further ‘nformatior on the Board's
workforce engagement methods can be
found on pages 95 to 97. The Group's
approach to diversity and inclusion is
explgined on pages 42 and 63-65.

Authorlty to purchase own shares i
The Company has a general authority to
Make market purchases o not more than
42,485,086 of the Company’s ordinary
shares, in accordance with the tarms of the
specia resolution paszed at the 2021 AGM.
This expires at the conclusion of the 2022
AGM, A resolution will be tabied at the 2022
AGM to renew this authority for an amount
representing approximately 10% of the
Company's issued share capiial as at

2 March 2022,

Political donations
No political donations were made in the year.

UK pension funds

The trusteas have reviewed the independent
investment maragement of the assets of
the Company's UK pension schemes and
assured themselves of the security and
controls in place. In particuiar, it is the
lrustaes' poicy not to imvest in Synthomer pic
shares nor lend monay (o the Company.

Synthomer plc
Annual Report 2023
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, Eacn Director of the Company confirms

Subsidiaries

All the Group's subgidiaries, joint ventures
and related undertakings are listed on pages
179-180.

Statement as to disclosure of
information to auditor

that, to the best of thair knowledge, the |
Cornpany's audior is aware of all relevant
audit information, Each Director also confirms |
that e or she has taken all necessary steps
as 2 Director 1o make thenselvas aware of

any relevant audt information ard 1 establish

" that the information has been shared with

the Company's auditor, For these pumoses,
relevant audit information means inforrmation
neoded by the Co™npany's auditor ir

connection with praparing s report on

pages *31-136. This confirmation is given

and should be interpreted in accordance i
with secticn 418 of the Companies Act 2006. |

Going concern
The Directors hava acknowledged the latest

- guidance on going concern and in rezching

their conclusions have taken into account

¢ tactors that include:

* A $260 mulion tarm loan and a €460 million
revolving credrt facility witt five-year terms
ending on 3 July 2024

» A €620 million bond due 2025

+ The new committed $300 million term
loan facility entered irto on 28 Octoper
2021 in connection with the financing
of the acquisition of Fastman’s adhesive
Resins business.

After making enquiries and taking account
of reasonably possible changes in traaing
nerformance, the Direciors are satistied
that, at the time of approving the financial
statemerts, it is appropriate ¢ adopt the
going concern basis n preparing the
financial statements of ooth the Group
anc the Company.

Cautionary statement

The purpose of this repaort is to provide
information to the members of the Company.
It contains certain forward-looking statements
with respect to the operations, performance
and financial condition of the Group. By their
nature, these statements involve uncertainty,

~ since future events and circumstances
 can cause results and developments to

differ materialiy from those anticipated.
The forward-looking statements reflect
knowledga and information available at
the date of preparation of this report anu
the Company is under ne obligation i
wpdate these forward-locking statements,
Nothing in this teport should be construed
as a profit forecast,

independent auditors

A resolution to appoint
PricewatsrhouseCoopers LLP as the
Company's auditor will be proposed at the

. rext AGM.

. Annup] General Mesting

The AGM will ba held at the offices of the
Company at 45 Pall Mall, London SW1Y 5JG
on 28 April 2022 at 1.00 am.

By order of the Bogr
N N

Richard Atkingon
Company Secretary

3 March 2022



Corporate Governange

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing
the Annual Report and the tinancial
statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulation.

Comparny law reguires the Directors to prepare
financial statemenis for each financial year.
Under that law the Directors have prépared
the Group financial statements in accordance
with UK-adopted Internationa! accounting
atandards and the Company financial
staternents in accordance with UK Generally
Accepted Ancounting Practice (UK Aceounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framewark, and applicable law).
The Greup has also prepared the financial
staternents in accordance with IFASs adopted
pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1806/2002

as it applies in the European Union.

Under company law the Directors must

not approve the financial statements unless
they are satlsfled that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and Company and of the profit or loss of
the Group and Gompany for that period.

In preparing the financial statements,

the Directors are required to:

* Select suitable accounting policies and
than apply them consistently

¢ State whether applicabie UK-adopted
iFRSs and IFASs adopted pursuant to
Regulation (EC) No 1806/2002 as it applies
in the European Union have been followed
for the Group financial staternents and UK |
accounting standards, comprising FRS 101
have been followed for the Company
financial statements, subject to any material i
depariures disclosed and explained in the
financial staternerts

+ Make judgements and accourting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent and

* Prepara the financial staternents on the
going concern basis uniess it is .
inappropriate 1o presume that the Group !
and Company will continue in business. i

The Directors are responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and
Company and hence for taking reasonabie
steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

Tha Directors are also responsible for kesping
adeguate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain tha Group and
Company’s transactions and disclese with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and Company and
enalla e to ensure that the tinancial
statements and the Directors’ rernuneration
report comply with the Companies Act 2008.

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the Company's
website. Lagisiation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial
statemants may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

Directors’ confirmations

The Dlrectors consider that the Annual
Report and Accounts, teken as a whole,
is fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the Information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group and
Company's position and performanca,
business model and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose namas and
functions are fisted in the Directors’ report
confirm that, to the bast of their knowledge:

* the Group financial staternents, which
hava been prepared in accordance with
UK-adopted international accounting
standards IFRSs as adopted pursuant to
Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies
in the European Union;

» the Company financial statements, which
have been prepared In accordance with
UK accounting standards, comprising
FRE 101 give a true and fair view of the
assets, liablities and financial position
of the Company; and
the Directors® repott includes a fair review
of the development and performance of
the business and the position of the Group
and Company, together with a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties that
it faces.

By order ¢f the Board

M Willome
Chief Executive Officer

§G Bennett
Chigf Financial Officer

Synthomer ple
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COur specialist high
soiid SBR and SA and SBR
compounded products provide
high performance binders jor the |
backing of carpet and artificial turf and
as gel foam e'astomers for fioor
coverings, footwear and mattresses.
In all types of carpet {fram wovens to
automotive) and artificia) turf we provide
compounced products with technical
service and support to optimise
the periormance of the
floor cavering.



Group financlal staterments

Independent auditors’ report

1o the members of Synthomer plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our opinion:

* Synthomer Plc's Group financial statements and Company financiai
statements {the "financial statements™} give a true and fair view

of the state of the Group's and of the Gompany's affairs as at

31 December 2021 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for
the year then ended;

the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards;
the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS
101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework™, and applicable law); and
the financial statements have been prapared in accordance with
the requirements of the Cormpanies Act 2006,

-

We have audited the financial statements, included within the

Annual Report, which comprise: the Consalidated balance sheet
and Company statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021;
the Consoiidated income statement, the Consolidated statement of
comprehensive incoms, the Consolidated cash flow statement, the
Consclidated and Company statements of changes in equity, and
Reconciliation of net cash low from operating activities to movement
in net debt for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial
statements, which include a description of the significant

accounting policies.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Basls for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standaras
on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under ISAs (UK) are further describad in the Auditors’ responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statemants section of our report.

Wa halieve that the audit evidence we have obtalned is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Independence

We remained indepsandent of the Group in accordance with the ethical

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable
to listed public interest entitios, and we have fulfilled aur other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowiedge and belef, we declare that non-audit
services prohlbitad by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided.

In August 2021, we applied to the FRC for a one-year waiver in respect

of the UK non-audit services tee cap for our audit ¢f Synthomer Pic's
financial period ending 31 December 2021. The waiver was in respect
of feas relating to private reparting in relation to the Eastman's
Adhesive Resins business acquisition and followed a similar waiver
request in 2020, The application was approved as the exceptional
clrcumstances test wag met, with mitigatiens put in place by us and
the Company to manage the risks to auditor independence.

Other then those disclosed in note 7 10 the consolidated financial
statarments, we have provided no non-sudit services to the Company
in the period undar audit.

| Our audit approach

Context

. In planning and executing our audt we have considered the Group's

climate risk agsessment process (as described in the Sustainability
report and TCFD report). This, together with discussions with cur own
climate change specialists, provided us with a good understanging
of the poiential impact of climate change on the financial statemenits,

Management consider that the impact of ¢limate change coes not give

rise to a material financial statement impact. We used our knowledge
of the Group to evaluate management's assessment. The Group Is
targeting net zero carbon emisslons by 2050, and with Vision 2030

i Lhey are working on tair pathway towards this. The Group has started

to quantify some of the impacts that may arise on this pathway and
we have discussed with managerment and the Audit Committes that
the estimated financlal impacts of clirmate change will need to be
frequently reassessed and our expectation that climate change
disclosures will continue to evolve as greater understanding of the
actual and potential impacts on the Group's future operations are
obtained. We considered how climate change risks would impact the
assumptions mace in the forecasts prepared by management used in
their impeirment analyses and going concern. We also considered the
consistency o the disciosures in relation to climate change mada in

, the cther information within the Annuat Report with the financial

statements and cur knowladgs from our audit,

Overview

Audit scope

» Audit proecedures provids coverage of 84% of revenua and 83% of
underlying operating profit.

* Audit scope covers 8 countries, performing procedures over 14

compenents.
* Financially significant components in the USA, Germany and

Malaysia.

. Key audit matters

* Uncertain Tax Provisions (Group)
» Valuation of defined benefit pension liabilties and level 3 assets

{Group)

. = Presentation and quantum of Special tems {Group}

» Recoverability of investment in, and amounts owad by, Group
undertakings (Company)

Materiality

» Overall Group materiality: £11,505,000 (2020: £7,900,000) based
on approximately 5% of three-year average of underlying profit
before taxation {2020: underying profit betore taxation).

+ Owverall Company materiality; £10,444,500 (202C; £18,660,000)
based on 1% of total assets capped at 90% of GroLp materiality.

¢ Performance materiality: £8,703,000 (2020: £5,925,000} (Group)
and £7,830,000 (2020: £2,250,000} (Company).

The scope of our audit
As part of gesigning our audit, we determined materiality and assessed
the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements.

Synthomer plc
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Group financial statements

Independent auditors’ report continued

to the members of Synthomer plc

Key audit matters

Key audtt matters are those matters that, in the auditors” profassional
jucgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financiat
statements of the current period and include 1ne most significant
assessad risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)
identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effact
on: the overall audi! strategy; the aliccation of resources in the audit;
and directing the etforts of the engagemaent team. These matters, and
any commenis we make on the results of our procedures thereon,

" Presentation of special ftems is & new key audit matter this year.

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and OMNQOMVA acquisition
accounting, which were key audit matters last year, are no longer
included because of the ability of the Group to cortinué to generate
profits and operate despite disruption related 1o the COVID-19
pandemmic, and the accountirg related to the OMNOVA acquisition

: being finalised in the prior year. Olherwise, the key audit matters below
r are consistent with last year.

were addressad in the context of our audit of the financial statements
as a whoie, and in forming our opinion therson, and we do not pravide

a sepdrata opinion on thase matters.

This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit,

Koy audit matter

How our audit addrasasd the key audit matier

Lrcertain Tax Frovisions (Group)

The Group has a wide geographical footprint
and is subject to a range of tax laws in a
number of different tax jurisdictions. As set
out in Note 10, the Group nas a number

of uncertain tax provisions totaiing £23.7m
(2020 £45.9m} as at 31 Degember 2021,

By nature, uncertain tax positions require a
significant element of judgement to dete-mine
an appropriaté orovision. As such, we Tave
assessed that a significant risk axists in ralation
to vaiuation and presentation and discicsure
assertions 1o ensure that provisions made

are appropriate.

Vaiuation of defined benefit pension liebilities
and level 3 assets (Group)

As sel out in nete 26, the Group had £122.4m
{2020; £221.4m) et liabilities as at

31 Lecember 2021 in rglation to defined
benefit pension schemes, These primarily
reprasent the Yule Catto Group retiremant
benefits schema in the UK, the OMNOVA
Solutions Consolidated Pension Plan in tha US
and an unfunded scheme in Germany, which
account for £4 6m. £27.7m, and £74.7m
respectively of the net pension deficit.

The Group uses third party actuaries to
calculate the pension liabilities. The valuation of
thesa liabilities is based on a number of
assumptions and tne calcuiation s highly
sensitive 10 small changes in the assumptions.
For instance, changes in inflation, morality
tables and aiscount rate can have a significant
impact on the valuation of the liability recorded.

The pension asset also containg evel 3 and
other complex assets {complex Flvs where
assels are not traded on Recognised
investment Exchanges {RIE)} totalling £266m
as at 31 December 2021 (31 December

2020: £320m), which are complex in nature 1o
value and therefore we deem there to be a ris<
with regpect to the valuation of these assets.
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In order to assess the valuation and appropriateness of presenlation and disclosurs we.

» Engaged our jax specialists (including transter pricing specialists) to assess the level

of provision held against various tax exposures was materially appropriate. In our
assessment we had regard o the nature of sndividual exposures, Including their origin,
and any developments in the year to assess the rationale for their continued validity

at the current year end.

Inspacted correspondence with tax authoritiss and the Group's tax advisors to evaluate
valuation and completeness ot provisions.

Challenged judgements made by management by assessing individual provisions against
our expectations of potential exposures, having regard to the facts of each case.

+ Considered the adequacy of disclosure in tha annual report.

No significant issues arose fram this work to suggest that the judgements made, amourts
provided or disclosures were inappropriate.

In prder to assess the identified risks wo:

Wa raviewed extornal actuarial reports of the UK and German schemes which set out
the caloulations and assumplions underpinning the vear end pension schems iabities
valuation and our LS component team reviewed an external actaarial report for the

US scheme .

We (and PwC US) held discussions with the external actuaries and were salisfied that the
scope of their work was such that we could usa this work to provide evidence for the
purpose of our audit,

We assessed the competency and cbjectivity of the external actuaries commissioned by
the Group t¢ perform the year end caiculations by considering their technical expertise
and ingepandence from the Group.

We used our own specialist actuarial team to evaluate the key assumptions used in each
of the three schemes by comparing these assumptions to our expectations for similar
schemes as at tha year end,

With respect to the level 3 and other more complex assets, we tested values through a
combination of the following procediures: reviewed audited accounts of pooled investment
vahicles; reviewed internal controls reports of the service provider respons.ble for tha
valuation of the fund, including obtairing bridging letters where the control report doss
not cover the current financiai period of Synthomer ple; ebtained fund transactions close
1o the year end (where available), and obtained third party confirmation from the
nyestment managers.

We also considered the appropriateness of the disclosures with n the financial statements

-

We found maragement's assumptions ‘o be within an acceptable range. We identfied no
concerns over their competency or objectivity.



How our sudit addressed the key sudit matter

Koy audit matter
Preseniation and quanturn of Special ftems Wa considered the appropriateness of amounts classified as Special items. To do this
(Group) we considered:

The Group presents two measures of
parformanca in the income statement;
statutory and underlying, the latter after
adjusting for certain tems of income or
axpenses as management believes these
measures provige additional useful information
on the underlying trends, patformance and
position of the Group.

The determination of which tems of Income
or expense are classified as Spacial items
is subject to judgement and therefore

users of the financial statements could be
misted if amounts are not classified or
calculated appropriately.

Description of the amounts presented as
Special items are inciuded in note 4 to the
financial statements.

* The Group's accounting policy on special terns; and Pronouncements by the Financial
Reporting Council on this matter.

« We challenged management on the appropriatenass of the classification of such Special
items, being mindful that classification should be even-handed between gains and losses,
the basis the classification should be clearly disclosed and a clear reconciliation to
statutory measures provided and applied consiatently one ysar to the next.

* Wa challenged managsmert on the quartum of the slements of the Spacial items, and
the estimates underpinning soma of them, including discussions with the Group's legal
advisors where appropriate.

Qur work highlighted certaln items that management had classified as special iterns which

wars judgemental. Having considered the nature and quantum of these items, overall we are

satisfied that the presentation of special items in the financial statements for the year ended

31 Dacamber 2021 is appropriate.

Recoverability of investment in, and amounts
owed by, Group undertakings (Company)

As disclosed in Note 3 of the Parent Company
financia! statemants, the Company held an
investment in subsidiaries of £536.7m

(2020: £370.5) and amounts owed by Group
undertakings of £1,275m (2020: £1443.4m)

at 31 December 2021,

The assessment of the recoverability of these
assets required the application of management
judgement, particutarly in determining whether
any impairment indicators have arisen that
trigger the need for a formal impalrmant
assessment and in assassing whether the
carrying value of each investment and amounts
owed by Group undertakings are recoverable.

As changes to these judgements and estimates
coukl have a material impact on the Company
financial statements, we consider this to be

a key audit matter.

Cur procedures included the following:

+ Evaluating management's assessment of whether any indicators of impairment existed.

« Assessing the recoverable value by reference to the net assets of the undariying
subsidiaries and amounts owed by Group undertakings with reference to the Director's
intentions for the settiemert of Group-wide intercompany balances.

s Verifying that the recoverable values of the invastment was consistent with the recoverable
value of the CGU tested for goodwill impairment purposes, leveraging the audit work
undertaken as pant of the Group audit.

Based on the proceduras performed, we noted no material lssues from our work.

How we tailored the aud!t scope

We tailorad the scope of our audit 1o ensure that we performed
encugh work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the
Company, the accounting processas and controls, and the industry

in which they operate.

As sei out in note 5 'Segmental amalysis', the Group reports its results
as four segmenits: ‘Performancs Elastomers’, ‘Functional Solutions’,

Where work was parformed by compenent auditors, we determined
tha level of involvament we needed to have in the audit work at those
reperting units to be able to conciude whether sufficient appropriate
audit evidancea had been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the
Group financial statements as & whole, During the audtt, senior
members of the Group team heid a number of mestings with the audit
teams from key reporting units in the UK, Germany, Malaysia end the
USA, and reviewad the work performed by these teams over those
areas of higher audit risk.

‘Industrial Spacialfities’ and ‘Acrylate Monomers'. The Group financial

staternents are a consolidation of reporting units, being holding
companies, intermediate holding companies and operating
companies, across 24 countries. Three countties, belng the USA,
Germany and Malaysia, account for the majority of the Group's results.
Wa accordingly focused our work on three of the reperting units in
these countries, which were subject 1o audits of their complate
financial information. In addition, to increase our coverage of the
Group's revenue and underlying profit before tax we performed full

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality.
Wa set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality. These, together
with qualitative considarations, haiped us determine the scope of aur
audit and the naturg, timing and extent of our audit proceduras on
individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in
evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in

. aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

scope audit procedures at an additional sleven reporting units located
in the UK, ltaly, Germany, Malaysia, the Czech Republic, Austria and
France. These components accourted for B4% of the Group's
revenus, §3% of the Group's underlying opaerating profit.
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Group financial statements

Independent auditors’ report continued

te the members of Bynthomer plc

Based on our professional judgemant, we determined materiality for the finangia! statements as a whole as follows:

F = Group

BN v -0

Ovgrail materiality 11,606,000 2020 £7,900,000).

£10,344,500 (2020: £18,660,0001.

approximately 5% of three-year average of uge}tyﬁg profit Based on 1% of total assets éapped at 80% of Group

How we determined it _before taxation {2020: underying orofit before taxation;.

Rationale for
benchmark appifed

performeance.

Underlying profit before taxation, being profit before 1ax
adjusted for special items, is a key metric for investors and sharehoiders in assessing the performance of the Company,
is used by the Board in measuting the Group's financia’

materiglity.

Total assets is théwprirﬁéry mﬁxrﬁgaﬁfﬂa

and Is 2 generally accepted benchmark. The value is
capped at 30% of the Group overall materiality.

For each component in the scope of our Group audit, we allocated

a materiality thet is iess than our overall Group materiality. The range
of materiality allocated across componants was between £1,300,000
to £10.706,500. Certain cormponents were audited to a local statutory
audit materiality that was also less than our overall Group matetiafity.

Wae use performance materiality 1o reduce to an appropriately low
level the prohiablity that the aggregate of uncarrecied and undelecled
misstaterrents exceeds overall materiality. Spectically, we use
performance matariality in determining the scope of our audit and
the nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes
of transaclions ana disclosuras, for example in determining sample
sizes. Our performance matetiality was 75% (2020: 75%) of overall
materiality, amounting to £8,703,000 (2020: £5,925 000 for the
Group financial statoments and £7,830,000 (2020: £2,250,000) tor
the Company financial stalements,

In determining the performance materiality, we considered a numbsr of
factors - the history of misstatements, risk assessment and aggregation
risk and the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that an amount
at the upper end of our normal range was appropriate.

Wa agread with the Audit Committee that we would report to
them misstatements wentified during our audit above £580,000
{Group audit) (202C: £395,000) and £522,000 (Company aJdit)
{2020: £395,000) as well as misstatements below those amounts
that, in our view, warranted renorting for qualitatve reasons,

Conclusions relating o going concern

Qur evaluation of the membears' assessment of the Group™s and the
Company's ability to continue 1o acopt the go ng concern pasis of
accounting inciudscs:

* We reviewed ihe Directors' model supporting their going concern
assumption. We discussed with management the assumptions
applied in the going corcern review so we ¢ould understand and
challenge the rationale for those assumptions, using our knowledge
of the business, We tested the model's mathematical aceuracy
and considered the reasonablenass of the revenue and cost
assumptions made and the available headroom throughaout

a parind of al least twelve months from the date of approval

of the financial sta’ements,

We reviewed management's sensitivity scenarios including their
severe but plausible downsids. We considered potential mitigating
actions available 10 the Group that a-e achievabie and within
management’s control. We then assessed the availabl ity of

I quid resources Jnder tne different scenarnos and the associated
covenant tests applicable; and

We also agsessed additional gpwnside sensitivfies and consigered
the impact on covenants and liquidity headroom.

Based on the work we have parformed, we have not identified any
material uncertainties relating to events or conaitions that, indivigually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the
Company's ability to continue as a going conce-n for a period of at
least twelve months from when the ‘inancial statements are autnorised
for issue.
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In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the
mambers' use of the going concern basis of acgounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events cr conditions can be predicted,

* this conclusion is not a guarantee as o the Group's and the Company's

ability to contnue as a going concern.

In relation o the memiers’ reporting on how they nave appled the
UK Corporate Governance Code, we nave nothing material to add or
draw attention t¢ in relation to the members’ statement in the finarcial
statements about whether the members considered it appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Qur respensibilittes and the raspensibilitigs 0 the membars with

- respscl to going concern are described in the relevant sections

! of this report.

Reporting on other information
The other information comprises ali of the information in the Annual

" Report other than the financial statements and our auditors reporl
. thereon. The members are responsible for the other information,
" which includes reporting based on the Task Force on Climate-related

Financial Disclosures {TCFD) recommendations. Our opinion on
the financial statemems dees not cover the other information and,

i accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except {¢ the

extant ¢therwiss explicitly stated in this report, any form of
assurance thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial s:aterments, our
responsioity is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

with the financial statements or our knowledge obla ned in the audit,
or ofterwise appears 0 be materially misstated. f we idermtify an
apparent material inconsistency or matérial missiatement, we are
rsguired to perform pracedures fo conclude whether therg s a
material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have
pertormed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement! ot this

 ather information, we are reguired 1o report that fact. We have nothing

to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors’ Repert, we also
considerec whether the disciosures required by the UK Companies
Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undsrtaken in the course of the audt, the
Companies Act 2006 reguires us also o repert cerfa:n opinicns and
matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors’ Report .
In oJr opinion, based on the work undartaken in the course of the
audit, the information given in the Strategic report and Directors”
Report for the year ended 31 December 2021 is consistent with
she financial statements and has been prepared n accordance
with epplicable legal requirements.



In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and
Company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we did not identify any material misstaterents in the Strategic report
and Direciors’ Report.

Directors' Remuneration

In our opinion, the part of the Annual Report on Remuneration to
be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2008.

Corporate governance statement
The Listing Rules require us to review the members’ statements in !
relation to going congem, longer-term viability and that part of the
comorate governance statement relating to the Company’s compliance
with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for
our review. Our additional responsibilities with respect to the corporate
governance statement as other information ars described in the
Reporting on other information saction of this report.

Based on the work undariaken as part of our audit, we have
concluded that each of the foliowing elements of the corporate
governance statemant is materally consistent with the financial
staternents and our knowledgs obtainsd during tha audit, and we
have nothing material to add or draw attention to in relation to:

The members' confirmation thet they have carled out a robust

assessment of the emerging and princlpal rigks;

* The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe these principal
risks, what procedures are In place to identify emerging risks and
an explanation of how these are being managed or mitigated;

* The membars’ statement in the financial statements about whether

they considered it appropriate to adopt the going concem basis of

acoounting In preparing them, and their identification of any material
uncertainties to the Group's and Company's ability to continue to do
s0 over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval

of the financial statements;

The members’ explanation &s to their assessment of the Group's

and Company's prospects, the pericd this assessmant covers and

why the period is appropriate; and

The membars’ statement as to whether they have a reasonable

expectation that the Company will be able 1o continue in operation

and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of its
assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attsntion

to any necessary qualifications or assumptions,

Our review of the directors’ statement regarding the longsr-term
viabiiity of the Group was substantially less in scope than an audit
and only consisted of making inguiries and considering the diractors
procass supperting their statemant; checking that the statament

is in alignment with the relevant provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code; and considering whether the statement is
consistent with the financlal statements and our knowledge and
understanding of the Group and Company and their environment
obtained in the course of the audit.

In additlon, based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we
have concluded that each of the following elements of the corporate
governance statemant is materially consistent with the financial
staternents and our knowlsdge obtained during the audit:

* The members’ staternent that they consider the Annual Report,
taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandabls, and
provides the information necessary for the memkbers to assess the
Group’s and Company's position, performance, business model
and strategy,

* The section of the Annual Report that describes the review of
effectiveness of risk management and intemal control systems; and

= The saction of the Annuat Report describing the work of the
Audit Committee.

Wae have nothing to report in respect of our responsiblity to report
whan the members' atatement ralating to the Company’s compliance
with the Code does not properly disclose a departure from a relevant
provision of the Code specified under the Listing Rules for review by
the auditors.

Rasponsibillties for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilitios of the members for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responaibilities,
the members are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for
being satisfied that they give a true and falr view, The members

are also responsible for such internal control as they determine

is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statemeants, the members are responsible
for assessing the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclasing, as applicable, matters related to going
concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
members either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the

financial statements

Qur objectives ara to obtain reagonable assurance about

whether the financial stalsments as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK} will always detect a material misstatement
when it axists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considarad material if, individually ar in the aggregate, thay could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, Including fraud, are instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations. We dasign procadures in line with our
responsiblities, cutlined above, 1o datect material misstatements
in respect of imegularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
proceduras are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud,
is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we identified that
the principal risks of non-compliance with kaws and regulations related
to breaches of environmental, heaith and safety and compatition
regulations, tax legislation and squivalent local laws and regulations
applicable to significant component teams, and wa considered the extent
to which non-comphance might have a material effect on the financial
statemants. Wa also considarad thoss laws and regulations that have
a direct impact on the financial statements such ag the Companies Act
2006. We evaluated management's incentives and apportunities for

~ fraudulent man/pulation of the financial statsments (including the risk

of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks wers
related to posting Inappropriate joumal ertries to ingrease revenue and
management bias in accounting estimates. The Group engagerment team

i shared this risk assessment with the componant auditors so that they

could include appropriate audit procedures in response 1o such risks
in their work. Audit proceduras petformed by the Group engagement
tearn and/or component auditors included:

* Discussions with management and internal audit, including
consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations and fraud,

« Evaluation of management's controls designed to prevent and
datect imegularities;
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Group financiai statements

Independent auditors' report continued

to the members of Synthamer pic

Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management
in their significant accounting estimates, in particular in ralation to
provisions for uncertain tax positions, the European Commigsion
provision and the valuation of defined bensfit scheme liabllities.
Where we considered appropriate, we held discussions with the
Group's legal advisors.

ldentifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal
entries posted with unusual account combinations (for example
credit to revenue with a debit entry to an unexpected account or !
journals posted by senicr managemsant,

There ara inherent limitations in the audi procedures dascribad above.
Ve are less liksly to become aware of instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations that are nct closely related Yo events and
transactions reflected in the financial statements. Alsg, tha risk of not
detecting a material misstatement due o fraud is highsr thap tha risk
of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may irvolve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through cailusion.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain
transactions and balances, possibly using data auditing techniques.
Howevar, it typically invoives selecting a imited number of items

for testing, rather than testing compiate populations. We will often |
seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or risk
characteristics. In other cases, wse will use augit sampling to gnabla

us to draw a conclusion about the population fram which the sample

is selacted.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statemarnts is lncated on the FRC's website at. www.irc.org.uk/
auditorsyespensibiliies. This description forms part of our audiors’
report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for
the Company’s mambers as a bedy in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We to
not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other persen to whom this report is shown or
frta whose hands it may come save where exprassly agreed by our
prier consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in
our opinion:

» we have nct obitained alt the informatian and explanations we

raquire for our audit; or :

adequeate accounting records have not been kept by the Company,

or returns adaquata for our audit have not been raceived from

branches not visited by us; or

» cartain disclosures of members' rernuneration specified by law are
not madie; or

= the Company financial statements and the part of the Annual Report
on Remuneration to be audited are nat in agreement with the
accounting records and retums.

We have na exceptions o report ansing from this responsibility.

Appaintment

Following the recommendation of the Audit Commitiea, we were
appolnted by the members on 12 July 2012 1o audit the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 and subsequent
financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement

is 10 years, covering the years ended 31 December 2012 to

31 December 2021.
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Other matter
As required by the Financial Conduct Authority Disciosure Guidance and

. Transparency Rule 4.1.14R, thase financial statemants form part of the
ESEF-prepared annual financial report filed on the National Storage
© Mechanism of the Financial Conduct Authority in accordance with

the ESEF Regulatory Technical Standard (ESEF RTS), This auditors’

. report provides no assurance over whather the annual financial report
' has been prepared using the single electronic format specified in the

ESEF RTS.

| David Beer (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Watforg

3 March 2022



Group financial staternents

Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 Decamber 2021

. . = e
Undertylng Spasial Underiying Special 1 g
performance Hems IFRS  periormance Hems IFRS | o
Note £m £m £m em em em ! 2
1
Revenue 5 23205 - 28205 16442 - 1eu42
Company and subsidiaries operating profit before Special ltems 448.3 - 448.3 188.4 - 188.4
Amoriisation of acquired intangibles 4 - (38.2) (36.2 - {30.9 (30.8)
Restructuring and site closure costs 4 - (29.7) (29.7) - {42.5) {42.5) Q :
Acquisiticn costs and related gains 4 - (11.9) {11.9) - (14.6) (14.6) g
Sale of business 4 - 7.4) 7.4) - (6.6) 6.6
Reguiatory fine 4 - {57.2) (57.2) - - - %
impakrment charge o o 4 - - ... - . __ - (:s8 @66
Company and subsidiaries 448.3 {142.4) 306.9 188.4 (1312} 5.2 }
Share of joint verttures o 18 28 - 26 12 - 12
Operating profit/(loss) ~ 6 450.9 {1424) 3085 1886 {131.2) 584
interest payable 9 {27.9) - {27.9) {25.5) - (25.5) W=
Interast recaivable 9 10 - 1.0 1.2 - 1.2
Falr value gain/loss) on unhedged Interest rate derivatives 4 - 82 6.2 - (3.6 Ge =
Loss on extinguishment of financing facilities 4 - - - - 4.9 (4.9 gH
Net interest expense on defined benefit obligations 2] 24) - 24) 3.7 - 3.7 =
Interast element of lease payments g (1.5) - {1.5) 1.8} - (1.6} £
Finance costs L (30.8) 62 (246 {2886 85 @381 5
Profit/{loss) before taxation 420.1 {136.2) 283.9 160.0 {138.7) 20.3 =z
Taxation _ o 10 (84.5) 208 {7a9)  (374) 156 1.8
Profit/(loss) for the year 325.6 {115.6) 210.0 122.8 {124.1) {1.5)
Profit/loss) attributable to non-controlling interests 0.4 0.9 1.3 0.3 4.3) (4.6)
Profit/ficss) attributable to equity holders of the parent - 3252  (1185) 2087 1229 (1198 34
325.6 (115.6) 210.0 122.6 (124.1) {1.5;
Earnings per share
- Basic 13 T5.2p (26.9)p 48.3p 28.9p (2B.2)p 0.7p .
- Diluted 13 74.9p {26.8)p 48.1p 28.8p (28.1)}p 0.7p §
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Group financial statements

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2021

B 2021 . . 2020
Equity Non- Equity Non-
holders of  contrelling holders of conirotiing
the parent interegts Totsl the parent inferasts Total
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Profit/(loss) for the year 208.7 13 210.0 3.1 (4.6) (1.5
Actuarial gains/Aiosses) 28 66.8 - B68.8 {7.6) - (7.6)
Tax relating to components of other compranensive income 10 (11.8) - (11.8) 35 - 3.5
Totai items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 55.0 - 55.0 3 (4 U - “. 1)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 27 2.8 02) 26 (3'." 5) 0.3) (37.8)
Exchange differences recycled on sale of business 27 03 - 0.3 - - -
Fair value gaindlass) on hedged interest derivatives 27 34 - 34 0.8 - {C.8)
Gains on net investment hedges tekento equity & 33 - 33 188 - = 158
Total items that may be reclassifled subsaquently
to profit or loss ) 98 @ D2 98 {22.4) 0.3 2.9
Dlhar comprehanslve meomal(oxpanaa) for the year 848 0.2) -~ §4 j __f2eB OB (26.8)
Totai comprehensive income/(expense} for the year 2735 1.1 27448 (23.4) 4.9 {28.3)
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2021
Hedyging
Copltal and Total equity Non-
Share Share redemption transiation Astained haldings of  contralling Total
capital premium renerve raserve eamings the parsnt Interests aquity
Note £m Em £m B £m £m £m
At 1 January 2021 425 4211 08  {41.9) 1924 6150 13.1 628.1
Profit for the year - - - - 208.7 208.7 13 210.0
Cther comprehensive income for theyear - - - 2.8 55.0 648 {0.2} 848
Total comprehenslvo income ior the year - - - 88 263.7 27356 1.1 274, 6
Dividands 12 - - - - (73.5) (73.5) {0.5) (74.0)
Issue of shares 27 4.2 198.9 - - - 203.1 - 203.1
Share-based payments - - - - 1.2 1.2 - 12
At 31 December 2021 46.7 620.0 0.9 (32.1) 3838 1,0183 13.7 1,033.0
Hegging
Captal and Total equity Nor-
Share Snare  redemplion  transtation Retained  holdings of  cantoling Touat
capital premium Teserve Teserve Barnings the parent tterasts eguity
Now Em €m £m £m £m £m Em
At 1 January 2020 425 4214 08 (18.5) 2044 6549.4 211 670.5
Profitiloss) for the year - - - - 3.1 a1 4.8) (1.8)
Other comprehensive expense for the year - - 22.4) 4.1) {26.5) 0.3 (26.8)
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - {22.4) (1.0) (23.4) (4.9 {28.3)
Dividends 12 ~ - - -~ 12.8) (12.8) 3.1 (15.9)
Share-based payments N _ B - - - - 1.8 1.8 - 18
Al 31 Decermber 2020 42.5 421.1 0.8 {41.8) 182.4 615.0 13.1 625.1
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Group financiaf staternents

Consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 Dacember 2021

2021 o
Note £m om g
Non-currant assets 3
Goodwil 14 487.0 498.4 E
Acquired intangilble assets 15 2976 ML 5
Other intangible assets 16 46.4 36.6
Property, plant and equipment 17 508.3 5218 |
Deferred tax assets 11 292 238
Investment in joint ventures oL o o 18 L. 6.6 o
Total non-urrent assets - o - 13759 14232 | &
Current assets ) o ) 8
inventorics 19 253.7 1703 | 8
Trade and other receivablas 20 3128 262.4
Cash and cash equivalents 21 505.3 2018
Derivative finandlal instuments o o o o 22 32 14
Total current assets o ] - ~ 10750 8358
Total assets o - 24509 2055 S
Current Habilitles <
Borrowings 21 - (20.1) E
Trade and other payables 24 (414.2) (334.1) —
Lease liabilities 23 {8.8) {10.6) i
Currant tax liabilities 10 45.2) 8.5 B
Provisions for other liabifities and charges 25 {85.2} {25.7) Z
22 (10.) 94 B

Derivative financial Instruments } ~ 27 :
Total current liabilitles ] o o (5835 (468.4)

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 21 (610.5) {843.9)
Trade and cther payables 24 {23) 3.7
Lease liabilities 23 34.7) (44.4)

11 (57.5) {43.3)

Defarred tax labilties

Retirement benefit obligations 26 {122.4) 2214y — -
Provisions for other llabllities and charges o S 25 {18.0) 69 |§
Total non-current ligbilities o ] . . 544 (9029 |E
Total labilities ) T ST T T T Tasre T 143100 5
Netsssets , ] 10330 6281 &
Equity e
Share capital 27 46,7 425 &
Share premium 27 6200 LA
Capltal redemption reserve 0.9 08 =
Hedging and trangiation reserve 27 {32.1) 41.9) ‘
Retained earnings o e o o 3838 1924
Equity attributable to aquity holders of the parent 1,019.3 615.0
Non-controlling Interests S e S |7 13.1
Total equity 1,033.0 5281 !
The firancial statements on pages 137 to 172 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 3 March 2022, They are -
signed on its behalf by: E
. g
HWM . Sf%ﬂw- tﬁ&;_ :
M Willome S G Benngtt ‘ %

Director Director
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Group financial statements

Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 Decomber 2021

A . 2020
Note £m £m £m £m

Operating
Cash generated from aperations 28 387.5 232.2

Interest received 10 1.2

Interest paid (27.1) (13.6)

Interast element of lsase payments _ . A o ne
Net interest paid (27.8) (14.0)

UK corporation tax paid - -~

Owerseas corporate tax paid o L o {884 I -1
Total tax pald o . . . {ssa) R <1 )]
Net cash inflow from operatmg ac!ivrﬂes o o o a2k 1868
lnveaﬂng
Dividends recaived from joint ventures 18 19 1.8
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (82.2) 53.8)
Purchase of business - @314.0)
Proceads from sale of business . 17 . 0a
Net cash outflow from investing activities . {78.6) (365.8)
Flnanclng 7 )
Dividends paid 12 {73.5) {12.8)
Dividends paid to hon-controliing interests {0.5) 3.1
Proceeds on issue of shares 27 203.1 -
Settlement of equity-settied share-based payments {0.9) ©0.2)
Repayment of principal portion of isase liabilities 0.7 .7
Repayment of borrowings - {718.3}
Rapaymant of borrowings on acguisition - 273.8)
Proceeds of borrowings o o ) - - 1,2809
Net cash inflow from financing qgtlvhles 113.5 2732
Increase in eash cash equivalents and bank aoverdratts during the year B 3134 942
Cash, cash eguivalents and bank overdrafts at 1 January 21 191.3 1036
Foreign exchange and other movemenis . 2 0.6 6.5
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdratis at 31 December 21 505.3 191.3

Reconciliation of net cash flow from operating activities to movement

in net debt
for the vear ended 31 Cecember 2021

2021 2020
Note £m £m

Net cash inflow from operating activities 2735 186.8
Add back: divioends received from joint vertures 18 1.9 1.8
Less: net capital expenditure 82.2) (63.8)
Less: purchase of business - {587.6)
Add back: proceeds from sale of business ) o o . AT Al

184.9 (452 .€)
Orginary dividends paid 12 (73.5) (12.8)
Issue of shares 27 203.1 -
Oividends pad to non-controliing interests {0.5) (3.1)
Settlement of equity-gettied share-based paymants 0.9 0.2}
Repayrment for principal portion of leaso liabilities &N @n
Foreign exchange and other movemants ) 23 34.6 4.5)
Decrease/{increase) in net debt 348.0 (482.9)
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Group financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

31 December 2021

1 General information

Synthomer pic {the ‘Company') is a public kmited company
incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom under the
Companies Act. The address of the registered office is given on
page 188. The Company is listed on the London Stock Exchange.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
{the 'Group’} and the nature of the Group's operations are set out
in the Strategic Report.

The consolidated financial statemeants are prepared in pounds sterling,
the functional currency of the Company. Foreign operations are
included in accordance with the policies set out In note 2.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

There are no standards or interpretations that ere not ye! elfective
and that would be expected to have a material impact on the entity
in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.

2 Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

On 31 December 2020, IFRS as adopled by the European Union
at that date was brought into UK law and became UK-adopted
Intemational Accounting Standards, with future changes being
subject to endorsement by the LIK Endorsemnent Board. The Comparny
transitioned to UK-adopted Intemational Accounting Standards in its
consolidated financial statements on 1 January 2021. This change
constitutes a change in accounting framework. However, there is
no impact on recognition, measurement or disclosure in the period
reported as a result of the change in framework.

These consoiidated financial statements have bean prepared in
accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards
and with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable
0 companies reporting under those standards.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis, axcapt for the revaluation of financial instrumants that are
maasured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies befow.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Going concam

The Group meets fts day-to-day working capital requirements through
its bank facilities. The current economic conditions continue to create
unceriainty, particularly over the level of demand for the Group's
products. The Group's forecasts and projections take account of
reasonably possible changes in trading performance and & savere but
plausible downside scenatio has been prepared, linked to our principal
risks. This scenario does not threaten the Group's ability to operate
within the level of its current facllities. No mitigating actions have been
included for any of the scenarios and, should It need to, the Group
could take action quickly to significantly reduce costs and cash
outfiows as demonstrated during the course of the COVID-19
pandemic in 2020, -

Having assessed the principal risks and the other matlers discussed
in connection with the viability staternent {(see page 81), the Directors
considerad it appropriate to adopt the going cancern basls of
accounting in preparing its consolidated financlat statements.
Further information on the Group's borrowings is given in note 21.

Baasis of consolidation

| The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
' statements of the Company and entities controlied by tha Compary

(ts subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year. Control is
achieved when tha Company;

* has the power over the investee;

+ g exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

» has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.

Consalidation of a subsidiary begins from the date the Company

obtains control and ceases from the date the Company loses control.

, Whera necessary on cbtaining control, adjustments are made to the

financial staternants of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies
intc tine with those used by the Group.

The results of joint ventures are accounted for using equity accounting.

Non-controling interests in subsidianes are Identified separately
from the Group’s equity therein. Subsequent to the date on which
the Company obtains control, the carying amount of non-controlling
interests is the amcunt of those interests &t initial recognition plus
the non-centrolling Interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity.

Allintra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expanses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated on consolidation.

Business comblnstions

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using
the acquistion method. The considaraticn transferred in a business
combination is measurad at fair value, which is calculated as the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to former cwners of the acquiree and

- the equity interest issued by the Group in exchange for control of

the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are recegnised in profit or
loss as incurred,

At acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabiiities
assumed are recognised at thefr falr value, except that:

. » deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised and measured in

accordance with 1AS 12 Income Taxes;

- = liabilties or assets related to employee benefit arangements are

recognised and measurad in accordance with |AS 19 Employee
Benefits; and

¢ asgets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale In
accordance with |IFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete

by the end of the reporting period in which the combination ocours,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the kemns for which the
accounting is incomplete, Those provisicnal amounts are adjusted
during a measurement period (see below), or additional assets or

~ lighilities are recognised, to reflact new information cbtained about

facts and circumsiances that existed as of the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

A maasurement period is the period from the date of acquisition

to the date the Group obtains complete infermation aboeut facts and
circurnstances that existed as of the acquisttion date and is subject
to a maximum of one year,

- If a business combination is achiaved In stages, the Group’s previousty

held interest In the acquired entity is remeasured to its acquisition date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised In profit
orloss.
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Group financial staternents

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued ‘

31 December 2021

2 Significant accounting policies continued
Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the consideration transferred
over the Group's interast in acquisition-date identifiable assets
acquired less labilities assumed.

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at jeast
annuaily. For the purpose of impairment testing, gocawill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash generating units expecied to benefit from
tre synergies of the combination. Cash generating units are defined as
owr reportable segments: Performance Blastomers, Functional
Solutions, Industrial Specialities and Acrylate Monomers,

Cash generaling units to which goodwill has been allbcated are tested
for impalrment annually, or more frequently when there is an irdication
that the unit may be irpaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount ¢f each asset in the unit.
An impairmertt loss tor goodwill is not reversed in a subseguant penod,

Cn disposal of a subsidiary, associate or Joint venture, the atribuiable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss
a1 disposal.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRS
has besn retained at the previcus UK GAAP amounts subject to being
tested for impairment at that dale. Goodwill written off 1o reserves
under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has not been reinstated and is not
irciuded i determining any subsaquent Jrafit or iass on disposal.

Jolnt ventures

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the eguity method, interests in joirt ventures are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recogniss the
Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or {osses and movernenis
in other ccmprehersive income.

Revenue

Ganeral

Synthorner manufactures and sells mainly water-based polymers
across a diverse range of end use applications. Our products are
predominantly sold in liguid form, in bu k containers.

Revenue is measured based on the consinaration to which the
Group gxpects to be entiticd in a contract with a custormer when
performance obligations are satisfied. Revenue is recognised

at the point in time when control of the product is transforred
from Synthormer to the customer.

The customer is deemed to obtain controt of the resultant asset in Ine
with the incoterms ander which it is sold. The significant majority of
Synthomer's products are sold under Garriage Paic To {CPT) and
Carriage and nsurance Paid (CIP) International Commercial Terms.
Under these terms, contrel of the product is transferred when the goods
reach their dastination. A: this point the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transterred and there is no vnfulfiled obligation that covld
affect the customer's acceptance of the product. A receivable is
recognised at this point in time as consideration is unconditional and
only the passage of time is reduired before payment is due.

Rebates

Synthomer may grant customets rebatss if the goods purchased by
the customer exceed a contractually defined threshold within the
specified pericd. Rebates are usually deductad from the amounts
payable by the customer. Gepending on the terms of the underlying
contract, Synthomer uses either the expected valde or the most li<ely
amount to estimate the variatle consderation for expected future
rebates. Pistorical, curent and forecast imfo-matior, is considered
when calculating rebates.

142
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! ‘The majority of rebate programmaes are aligned with the Group’s
financ.al year end, providing certainty around how much should be

|

i regognised in the tnancial staternents.

- Other
The Group does not have any contracts where the period between
the transfor of promised goods to the customer and payment by the
customer exceeds ong year. As a consequence, the Group applies
the practicat expedient in iFRS 15 and does not adjust any of the

. transaction prices for the time value of monsay.

Foreign currencies

in preparing the financial statements of the individual companies,

| transactions in cur-ericies other than the antity’s functional currency

I are recoghised at the rates of exchange prevalling on the dates of
the fransactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and
liakilities that are denominated in forelgr, currencies are retranslated

! at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet dale. Non-monetary

| assets and lisbilities carried at fair value that are denominatad in

' foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date

when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are

measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currancy are

not reranstated,

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the periad in
which they arise except for:

exchange differences cn transactions entared into to hedge certain
foreign currency risks (see below under "hedge accounting’); and
D exchange difterences on monetary tems receivable or payabie 1o
{2 foreign operal on for which settlement is neither planred nof jikely
" to occur in the foreseeable future (therefore forming part of the net
i investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised inllially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equ ty to profit
at koss on disposal of the ret investment. !

On consohdation, the assets and liabilities of the Greup’s non-Sterling
operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Income and expanse fliems are transiated at the average
exchange rates for the period. Exchange diferences arising, if any,
are recognised in gther comprehensive incorne and accumulated in

a separate component of equity.

Goodw Il and falt value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are freated as assels and iabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at tne closing rate. The Group elected to treat goodwill
and fair value adjustments arising on acquisitions before the date of
transition to IFRS as steriing-denominated assets and liabilities.

Operating profit
| Operating profit rapresents profit from continuing activities before
financing costs and taxaton,

Taxation
It tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

Current tax
The tax cutrently payabie is based on taxable profit for the year,
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reporied in the incomg
statemant because i exc udes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
. are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
eractad by the balance shaet date.

A provision is recognised for thase matters for which the tax
determination s uncertain bit tis considered probable that there

wilt be a future cutflow of funds 10 a tax authority, The provisions are
measJred at best estimate of the amount expected 1o become payable.
The assessment is based on the judgement of tax professionals within |
he Gompaty supported by previous experience in respact of such

activiies and in certain cases basad on specialist independent tax advice.



Deferred tax

Defarred tax is the tax expsected to be payable or récoverable on
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financlal statements and the comesponding tax bases used in the
compuitation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
racognised to the axtent that it is probabie that taxable profits will

be available against which deductible temporary differences can

be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary
differancas hatween the carrying amount and tax basas ul investments
in forelgn operaticons where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foresasable future,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheast date and reduced to the extant that it is no longar
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow ali
or part of the aseet to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculaied at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deforrad tax is charged or credited in the income statement,
excepl whan it relates to items charged or credited directly o other
comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also deatt
with in other comprohensive income.

The measurement of defarred tax liabilities and assets refiscts the tax
consequences that would iollow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred incoma tax assets and liabifities are offset when thera is a
lagally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
ifabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabiities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities whare there is an intantion

to settle the balances on & net basis.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease,

at inception of the contract. The leass term is determined from the
commencement date of the contract and covers tha non-cancellable
tarm. If considered reasonably certain, extension or termination
options are included in the lease term.

At the commencement date, a lease iiability is recognised, measurad
at the present value of the future lease payments and discounted
using the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Subseguently, the lsase
liabllity is adjusted by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the kasa liabllity, reducing the carrying amount to refiect the lease
payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount ta refiect any
reassessment or lease modifications.

At the commencement date, a right of use asset is recognised,
measured at an amount equal to the lease liability plus any leass
payments made before the commencement date and any initial direct
costs, less any lease incentive payments. An estimate of costs to be
incurred in restoring an asset, In accerdance with the terms of the
lease, is also included in the right of use asset at initial recognition.
Subsequently, right of use asssts are measured in accordancs with
the accounting pelicy for property, plant and equipment and are
depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and the useful e
of the underlying asset, Any adjustments to the corresponding lease
liahility are reflectad in the corresponding right of use asset,

Short-tarm Igases and low value leases are not recognised as lease
liabilties anc right of use assets, but are recognised as an expense
straight-line over the lease term.

Leagshold land and buildings

| Plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised impairmant loss. Cost comprises
original purchase price and the costs attributable to bringing the asset
to its working condition for its intended use, inciuding, where
appropriate, capitalised finance costs.

Freehold land Is not depreciated.

Depreciation Is recognised so as to write-off the cost of assets less
their rasidual values over thelr useful lives, using the straight-fine

method, on the following bases:
treehold buildings -50 years

—the lesser ot 50 years and the
pericd of the leasa
—between 3 and 15 years

Assets in the course of construction are carried at cost, lass any
recognised impairment loss. Finance costs directly attributable 1o the
acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part

i of the cost of those assets. Depreciation of these assets commences

whean the assets are ready for their intended use.

| The estimated ussful lives, residual values and depreciation method

are reviewed at tha end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Acquired intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are inltally
recognised at their falr value at the acquisition date, which is regarded

' as thelr cost. Where nacessary the fair value of assets at acquisition anc

- Gustomer relationships
Other intangibles

their estimated useful lives are based on indepandent valuation reports.

Acquired intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and acocumulated impairmeant lossas. Amaortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over estimated useful fives, on the
following bases:

- between 5 and 15 years
—up to 10 years

. Assets with an indefinite (ife are not subject to amortisation,

Acquired intangible assets are detecognissd upon reaching the end of
their useful lives.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are not acquired through & business
combination are inftially measured at cost and amortised on a
straight-line basis over thelr estimated useful lives of up to ten years.

An internally generated intangible asset arising from development {or
from the developmant phasa of an Internal project) is recognised only if
all of the following conditions have been dermonstrated:

« the technical feasibility of completing the asset;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

the ability to use cr sell the asset once development has bean
completed;

the probability that the asset created will generate future economic
benefits;

the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development; and

the asset created can be separately identified and the development
cost can be measured reliably.
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Group financial statemants

Notes to the consolidated financial siatements continued

31 December 2021

2 Significant accounting policies continued

The amount initially recognised for internally generated intangible
assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meels the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
developmaent expenditure Is recognised as an axpense In the period
in which it is incurred.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assetis exciuding goodwill

At gach balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
ot its plant, property and equipment and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverabe amount of the asset is estimated in crder to determine
the extant of the impairment lass {if any). Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the
Group estimates the recoverabla amount of the cash generating
unit 1o which the asset belongs,

The recaverable amaunt is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discourtad to their present value Using a pre-18x
discount rate thal refects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset tor which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable armourt of an asset (or cash generating unit} is
estimated to be less than its carrying amourt, the carrying amount
of the assel (or cash genarating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An imparment loss is recognised in the income statement.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
aof the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to the revisad
estimate of its recoverable amount to the extent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that woulo
have been delermined had no impairment 1oss been recognised in
prior ygars. A reversal of a1 impairment loss is recognised immediate 'y
inthe Incom~e staterment.

Inventories

Inventories are stated &t the lower of cost and net reglisable value.
Cost comprises direct materiais and, where applicable, direct labour
costs ard those cverheads that have been Incurred in bringing the
inventories to their oresent location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net raalisable valuo represents
the estimated seliing price less all estimated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution. Provicion is
made for obsolete, stow-moving or defective items where appropriate.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial lizbilities are recounised when the Group

tecomes a party 1o the centractual provisions of the nstrurrent.

The Group classifies its financial instruments in the
following categories:

* financial agsets and fiabiltics at amortised cost {AC

« financial assets and labties at fair value th-ough profit ard loss
FYTPL); and

* financial assets and liab:ties at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FYTOCH,

Financial assets and liabifities are iritially measured at fair vaiue
ncluding, where permitied, any directly attributable transaction costs.

All recognised financial assets are subseqJuently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on their classification.
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Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
| Financial assats measured at amortised cost include cash and
| cash equivalents and trade and other recevables. Gash and cash
¢ egu valents comprisa ¢ash hald in bank accounts with no access
| restrictions, bank term deposits repaysble on demand or maturing
within three months of inception.

. At each reporting date the Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit ipeses on financial assets measured at amontised

i cost. in establishing the eppropriate amount of loss allowance 10

. be recognised. the Group applies either the general approach or the

; simplified approach, depending on the nature of the underlying class

. of financial assets:

+ Under the general approach, the Group recognises a loss allowance
for g financial asset at an amount equal to the 12 month expected
credi! Josses, unless the cradil risk on the financizl assei has
increased signiticantly since initial recognit on, in which case a loss
allowance is recognised at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses.

The simplitiad approach is appliad 1o the impairment assessment

of trade and other receivables. Under this approach, the Group
recognises expected Wetime losses upon initial recognition.

Financial liabilties measured at amortised cost include trade and other
payabies, lease liabilties and borrowings. Borrowings are measured at
amortised cost unless they form part of a fair value hedge relaticnship.
- The difference between the initial carrying amount of borrowings and
the redemption vaiue 1s recognised in the income statemant cver the
contractual terms using the effective interest rate method.

Financial assets and liabjlities held at fair value

Financial assets and liabilties are measured at fair value through
profit or loss when they do not meet the criteria to be measured at
amortised cost or at fair value th-ough other comprehensve income.

. Financial assets and liabilities at FYTPL are measured al fair value
at the end of each reporting period with fair value gairs or lpsses
i recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not part of a

! dasignatad hedging relationship {see below).

! Derivative financial instrumenis

The Group enters into a variety of derivative t nancial instraments to
manage its exposure 1o interest rate and foraign exchange rate risk,
including torewgn exchangs forward contracts, interest rate swaps and
oreign currency options. Further details of derivative Tinancial
instruments are set put in note 22,

Derivatives are inftially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequent’y remeasured to their
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in the income statement immediately uniess the
detivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in
whict event the timing of the recognition in the income statorment
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship,

Hedge accounting

To mitigate foreign currency and interest rate tisk, the Group
designatas certain derivatives as hedging instruments in fair value
nadges, cash fiow hedges, or hedges of net -rvestments i foreign
operations as appropriate.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents

the relationship between the hedging instrument and ~he hedged
tern, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions. Furtharmore, at the inception
of the hedge and or an ongoing basis, the Group documenis whether
the hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in far value or
cash flows of the hedged item attribuiable to the hedged risk.

On adopticn of [FRS 9, the Group e'ected to continLe to apply the
hedge accounting requirements of 145 39 as permitied by the standard.



Falr value hedges
The Group only applies fair value hedge accounting for foreign
curtency risk.

The fair velua change on qualifying hedging instruments is recognised
in the income statement and is recognised in the same line as the
hedged item.

Cash flow hedges

Tha effactive portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives thet are
designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash
flow hedging reserve, limited to the cumulative changa In fair valia of
the hedgead item trom inception of the hedge.

Gains or losses relating to an ineffective portion are recognised
Immediately in the income staternant.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are reclassified in the income staterment in the
periods when the hedged itam affects profit or foss, in the same line
as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast
transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a
non-financial liabilty, the gains and losses previously recognised in
other comprahensiva income and accumulated in equity are removed
from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the
non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

Hedge accounting Is discontinued when the Group revokes the
hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
tarminated or exercised, ot no langer quaiifies for hedge accounting.
Ary gain or loss accurnulated at that time in equity is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss.
When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or 1088 In equity is recogrnised immediataly in profit

or loss,

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Hedges of net investments in foreign opserations are accounted for
similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging
instrument refating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised
in other comprehensive income in the foreign currency translation
ragerve. The gain or loss refating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the incoma statermnent.

Gains and losses on the hedging tnstrument relating to the effective
portion of the hedge accumulated in the foreign currency transiation
raserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
foreign operation.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirament bensfit schemes are
recognised as an expanse whan employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions. Payments made to state-managed
retirernant benefit schemes are treated as payments to defined
coniribution schemes where the Group's obligations under the schemes
are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution scheme.

For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is
calculated using the orojected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations carried out at the end of each reporting petiod.

Defined beneflt costs are eplit into three categories, namely:

= gervice costs, which includes current service cost, past service cost |

and gains and losses on curtailments and settlements;
+ net interest axpense; and
* rerneasuremants,

The Group presents service costs within cost of sales and
administrative expenses in its consolidated income statement.

Past service cost is recognised whert the plan amendment or
curtailment occurs.

Net interest expense is recognised within finance costs and Is calculateq
by applying a discount rate to the net defined banefit liability,

Remeasurement compriging actuarial gains and losses and the retum
, on schemae assets (exciuding Interest} are recognised immediately in

© the balance shest with a charge or credit to the statement of other

comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and are not
subsequently reclassified to profit and loss.

Provislons

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
{legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, It is probable that the
Group will bo required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of tha amaunt of the obligation. Provigions are measured
as the best estimate of the expenditure required to setile the obligation
at the balance sheet dats and are discounted to present valus where
the effect is material.

Provisions for restructuring costs are recognised when the Group
has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring that has been
communicated to effected parties.

Share-based payments

' The Group issues equity-settied share-based payments to certain
employees. These are measured at the fair value of the equity
Ingtruments at grant date, The fair value excludes the effact of
non-market-based vesting conditions. The fair value dstermined

at the grant date of the eguity-settled share-based paymants is

. expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting pariod, based on
the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest.
At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the effact
of non-markei-based vesting conditions. The impact of tha revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revizsed estimate, with a
corrasponding adjustment to equity reserves. The Group will on
occasion, at its own discretion, settle these share-based payments
in cash rather than equity.

for cash-settied share-based payments, a liability is recognised for
the goods or services acquired, measured initially at the fair vaiue of
the liability. At each batance sheet date unt!l the liability is settied, and
at the date of settlement, the fair value of the lisbliity is remeasured,
with any changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss for the vear.

Afternative Performance Measures
The Group has consistently usad two significant Atternative
Performance Measures (APMs) sincs its adoption of IFRS in 2005:

i« Undarlying performance, which excludes Special ltems from IFRS
profit measures; and

* EBITDA, which excludes Special tems, amontisation and
depreclation from IFRS operating profit.

The Board's view is that Underlying performance provides additional
clarity for the Group's investors and so it is the primary focus of the
Group's narrative reporting. It is not intended to be a superior measure
to IFAS, however, thesa measures are used internally to manage

the business.

Further information and tha reconclliation to the IFRS mesasuraes are
included m notes 4 and 5.
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Group financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

31 Decempber 2021

2 Significant accounting policies continued

Critical accounting judgements and estimates

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the Directors are
required to make jJutigements {other than these involving estimations)
tha nave a significant impact on the amounts recognised and to make
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilivies that are not readily apparent from othar sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on histerical
experience and other factors that are considered to he relevant.
Actual results may diffar from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions 1o accoumting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the astimate is revised if the revision aflacts only
that period, or in the period of the revision and futJre petiods if the
revigion affects both current and future pericds.

Kay sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estmation uncertainty at the reporting date that may have a signifficant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of agsets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below,

The assumptions for each estimate are set out in the relevant note
referenced below.

» Defined banefit otligation (note 26);

Calculation of the Group's defined bene’it obligation includes a
nurmber of assumptions which impact the carrying valiue of the
obligation,

Valuation o° goodwill and intangibie assets on acauisition:

In a business combination, intangible assets are identiftied and
recognised at fair vaiue. The assumptions involved in valuing these
intangible assets raquire the use of estimates that may differ from
the actual cutcome. These estimates cover fulure growth rates.
expected inflation rates and the discourt rate useo. Changing the
assumpticns selected by management could sigiificantly affect the
allonation of the purchase price paid between goodwill and other
acquired intangibies.

Curren tax liabil ty and deferred tax lnoles 10 and 11);

The Group annually incurs significant amounts of incomea taxes
payable to various jurisdictions around the world andg it also
recognises significant changes in deferred “ax assets and
delerred rax liablities, ai of whch are based on maragement's
interpretations of applicable laws, regulations and elevant

court decigions,

Critigal judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

During 2018, the Europgan Garmission {the Commiigsion) initiated
an irvastigation into practices refating to the purchase of Styrene
monomer by companies, ncluding Synthomer, operating in the
Eurcpean Economic Area. The Company has and wil continue to
fulty cooperate wath the Commission during its mvestigation. In prior
years given the ongoing irvestigation and the inherent uncertainties
associated with #t, it was not possible to detarrrine whether ornot a
labilty existed. Similarly. given the many variablgs ir. the Commission's
fining framework and accardingly the range o possible outcomas,
the Directors were not able to reliably estimaie any potential possible
liaility. Therefore a contingent iab lity was disclosed in each set of
financia statements. Now based on the information available and the
resulting assessment of the expected outcome o the investigation

a provision of £57.2 million has baen made in relation to shis cass.

There are nG other critical judgemesnts, apart rom those involving
estimations (which are ciscussed above), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies.
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3 Adoption of new and revised standards
No naw or revised aceounting standards were adopled in the yoar.

In April 2021, the IFRS Interpretations Committes issued a naw
interpretation in refation to accounting for customisation and
canfiguration casts of cloud computing arrangements. Following

a detailed review, it was confirmed that the new interp-etation does
matsrialty impact the accounting treatrment for costs ingurred on the
Group's Pathway programma.

There are a rumber of other ameandmaents and clarifications to FRS,
effectve in future vears, which are not expected to significantly impact
the Group's cansclidated results or financia! position.

4 Special ftems

IFRS and Underlying performance

The IFRS profit measures show the performance of the Group

as a whole and as such include all sources of income and expense,
including both one-off items and those that do not refate 1o the

. Group’s ongoing businesses. To provide additional clarity on the

ongoing trading performance of the Group’s businesses, managemant
uses 'Undetlying’ performance as an Alternative Performance
Measure tc pian for, control and assess the performance of the
segments. Underlying performance differs from the IFRS

measures as it exsludes Special tems,

Special ltems
Special tems are disclcsed separately in order to provide a clearar
indication of the Group's Underlying performance.

Special kems are sither irregular, and therefore including them in

the assesament of a segment’s performance would fead 1o a diswortion
of trends. or are technical adjustments which ensure the Group's
firancial stataments are in compliance with IFRS but do not refiest the
operating performance of a segment in the year, o hoth. An example
of the latter is the amortisation of acquired intangibles, which
principally relates to acquired customer relationships. The Group
incurs costs, which are recognisad as an expense in the income
statement, In maintaining these customer relationships. The Group

- considers that the exclus on of the amortisation chage on actuied

intangibles from Underlying periprmance avoids the potentiar double
counting o’ such costs and therefora excludes it as a Spec-al tem
from Underlying performance.

The fellowing are consistently disclosea separately as Special
Iterns in order to provide a clearer indication of the Group's
Underlying performance;

Restructuring and sita clasure costs;

Sale of a business or significant asset;
Acquisition costs;

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets:
Impairment of non-gurrent assets;

-
.
*
L]

+ * Fair value adiustmen:s in respect of derivative financiai instrurments

where hadge accounting is not applied;

* ltams of ircome and expense that are considered materia), either by
their size and/or nature;

* Tax impact of above tems; and

s Settlernent of priotr period tax issues.



Speclal ltems comprise: o
w o |§

Note £m £m a

Amortisation of acauired intargibles 15 (36.2} @09 |3

Restructuring and site closure costs {290.7) {42.5) | §

Acquisition costs and ralated gains {11.9) (148) |

Sale of business (7:4) B8

Regulatory fine {57.2) -

Impairment charge o B . ) - N::T

Total impact on operating loss T (14z4) 812 | 3

Finance costs ‘ g

Fair value gain/{loss) on unhedged interest rate derivatives 9 8.2 [ X . g

Loss on extinguishment of financing facflittes . g9 - R

Total impact on profit before taxation {138.2) (139.7)

Taxation Special kems 10 88 a8 - - -

Taxation on Speclal tems -~ B o ) o 10 1.8 205

Total impact on profit for the year (11580  (124.1)

Amortisation of acquired intangibles increased in 2021, reflecting the first full year charge since the acquisition of OMNCOVA Sclutions Inc on
1 Aprit 2020. The tair value of the intangible assets arising on the acquisition of OMNOVA amounting to £330.1 mition are belng amortised over
a period of 511 vears mainly cependent on the characteristics of the customer refationships.

Restructuring and site closure costs in 2021 comprise:
¢ A £13.2 million charge in relation 1o the substantialy completed integration of the OMNOVA acqulsition net of a £1.2 million pension curtailment

cradit in relation to the French business;
= A £11.6 million charge to dernoiish and rationalise assets at a small number of sites, to bring them into line with our ESG strategy; and
s A further £4.9 milion for the completion of the rationaltsation of the Group’s Eurcpaan Performance Materials network.
Restructuring and site closure costs in 2020 comprised £19.5 million for integration of OMNOVA, £20.8 million for the rationalisation of the
Group's European Performance Materials network and £2.1 million to rationalise the Acrylate Monomaers site,

Acquisition costs and related gains are for the acquisition of Eastman’s Adhesive Resing business and comprise £15,0 million of costs, mainly
professionai adviser fees, offset by a £3.1 million gain on a foreign exchange derivative ertered inte in October 2021 to hedge the acquisition
price. Acquisition costs in 2020 related to the acquisition of OMNOVA,

Sale of business mainly comprised a further £7.1 million loss on the cnerous contract for the disposal of Synthomer’s Europsaan Tyre Cord ‘ o
business as preduction is relocated to Caojing (Ching) to enabla the Marl 3 esset (Germany) te be fully closed. This is incremental to the charge g
taken in 2020, g
During 2018, the Europsan Cornmission initiated an Investigation into practices relating to the purchase of Styrene monomer by companies, i g
including Synthomer, cperating in the European Economic Area. The Company has and will continue to fully cooperate with the Commission -1
during its investigation. Based ¢n the infarmation available and the resulting assessment of the expectad outcome of the investigation a provision ) :7:
of £567.2 million has been made in relation to this case. I §.
In 2020, a £36.6 million impairment charge was booked relating to four sites. l 3
In July 2018 the Group entered into swap arrangements to fix Euro interest rates on the full value of tha then €440 million committed ungecured 1
revolving credit faclity. The fair value movement of the unhedged interest rate derivatives relates to the movement in the mark-to-market of the
swap at 31 Dacember 2021 in excess of the Group's current borrowings.
Following the Group's successful refinancing in 2020, capitalised debt costs relating to the 2018 refinancing and the 2019 bridge to bond were
wrritten off, leading to a ioss on extinguishment of £4.9 million. ;
Taxation Special temns comprised the ralease of uncertain tax provisions in refation to historical tax Issues in France and Malaysia. o
Taxation on Special lterms fs mainly deferred tax credits arising on the amortisstion of acquired intangibles and restructuring and site le
closure costs, g

E)

H
g

Synthomer pic -1 47
Annual Report 2021



Group financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
31 December 2021

5 Segmental analysis
The Group's Executive Commities, chared by the Chief Executive Officer, examines the Group's performance.

The Group's reportable segments are as follows:

Performance Elastomers

Performance Elastomers is focused on healthcare, paper, carpet, compounds and foam markets through our Nitrile Butadiene Rubber latex
INitrile latex) and Styrene Butadiene Rubber latax ang Blastomeric Modifiars businesses (Performance Materials},

Fungtional Solutions

Functional Solutions is ‘ocused on coatings, corstruction, adhesives and technical textiles markets through our water-based acryiic and vinylic
based digpersions products,

Industriat Specialities

Industrial Specialities is focused on speciglity chemicat adaitives and non-water-based chermistry for & broad range of applications frarn polymer
additives, coated fabrics. and iaminates and films to emerging materials and technologies.

Acrylate Monomers

Acrylate Monomers is focused on the production of acrylate monomers which are soid to external customers in European markets as well as our
European Functional Solutons dispersions business.

The Group's Execurive Committee is the chief operating decision maker and primarily uses a measure of carnings before interest, tax,
depredistion ang amortisation (EBITDA) to assess the performance of the operating segments. No information is provided to the Group's
Executive Commitiee at the segment level concerning interest income, interest expense, income tax or other material non-cash items.

No single customer accoeunts for more than 109% of the Group's revenue,

A segmenta. analysis of Underlying performance ang Special lterns is snown below.,

2021
Performance Functlonat industrial Acrylute
EX 5 Sot P ¢ Corporats Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em
Revenue
Total revenue 951.5 900.3 aB2.5 110.3 - 2,344.6
Inter-segmental revenue - - - {15.1) - [156.1)
951.5 9003 382.5 852 - 2,320.5
EBITDA 320.7 1392 LY£.} 353 (20.6) 522.2
Depreciation and amortisation B ) {25.8) (28.4) {13.7 08 29 M3
Operating profit/{loss) before Special items 2949 1114 33.8 345 {23.5) 450.9
Special tems _ o _ 80 @13 pa 62 (38 (1424
Operating profit/{loss) i 286.9 69.8 19.8 29.3 (97.3) 308.5
Finance costs L {24.6)
Profli before taxation - 283.9
o o a0
Perormance Funciotal ncustna Acry.ate
Elastomers Solusions Spetalitios #onomers Corparate Tota:
£in rm £m em im &m
Revenue
Total revenue 680.3 646.7 264.9 64.4 - 1,656.3
Inter-segmental revenue - = - a1z.1 - {12.1}
) - ' 6680.3 6487 2849 52.3 - 16442
EBITCA 142.5 966 412 (2.4) {17.5) 259.4
Depreciation and amortisation 125.7) {26.5) (12.2) 3.9 2.2 (69.8)
Operating prott/ioss) before'Spécial ftams 116.8 64.1 29.0 (5.6} (19.7) 1896
Special tems [36.0} 138.0) (10.2) {20.7) 63y  [131.2)
Operating profit/ioss) — IFR3 80.6 311 188 26.3) (48.0) 58.4
Finance costs . ) @38.1)
Prefit before taxation 20.3

Finance costs far the period includa a £6.2 million gain in Special ltems (2020: £8.5 million loss) as set out in note 4,
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Qeographical information i
Tha Group's reveniue from external customers and its non-current assets (excluding deferred tax} by geographical location are detailed below: l %
Revanue by destination __ Non-ourrent assets :
2021 2020 2021 020 @
£m £m £m Em ‘g
UK 1036 75.6 1548 1406
Germany 257.2 183.2 189.4 184.6
ttaly 1029 B3.2 339 527
Netherlands 814 57.5 108 151 I o
France 97.2 64.6 99.2 1114 €
Belgium 492 36.0 623 m2 | g
Other Europe 380.6 283.4 75.8 78.8 2
Malaysia 3924 304.5 170.5 162.7
China 145.9 933 223 223
Other Asia 2065 1442 225 303 ..
USA 309.6 2548 4975 5141
Restofwond o o _105.0 74.1 78 6.5
2,329.5 1,644.2 1,346.7 1,399.4
8 Operating profit
a0zt 2020
Nate £m £t
Revenue 23205 1,644.2
Cost of salas . . o o (1,620.3)  {1,206.8)
Gross profit 7002 437.4
Sales and marketing costs {55.8) (53.9)
Administrative expenses {133.8) {125.3)
Share of joint ventures o - o o 18 286 12
EBITDA 522.2 23594
Depreciation and amortisation - Underlying parformance . . (713) 69.8}
Operating profit - Underlying performance 450.8 189.6
Special tems 7 S e ~ {142.9) (131.2y —
Operating profit - IFRS ) aoss 58.4 { §
2071 a0 8
Note £m £m g
Operating profit is statea aftar charging the following: ‘ §
Amoitisation of acquired intangibles 15 36.2 308 . ‘%
Arnortisation of othar intangibles 16 71 4.9 %
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 17 54.4 540 g
Depreciation of right of use assets 17 9.8 10.9 j 23
Research and development expenditure 289 258 !
Net lossAgain) on foreign exchange 0.7 (1.0)
7 Auditors’ remuneration
2021 2020 |
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for: - -
audit of the Company's annual financia! statermerts and the consolidated annual financial statements 332 22z
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and their asscciates for other services to the Group: ' g
audtt of the Company’s subsidiaries’ annual financial statements o - . n2¢m 1,504 | j;'f
Total audit fees S o - 1628 186 §
Audit related assurance servicas 42 40 g
Cther assurance services e o . . 1,582 567
Total non-audit fees o 1,624 507

Details of the Company's policy on the use of auditars for non-audit services, tne reasons why the auditors were used rather than another
supplier and how the auditors’ independence and objectivity was sefeguarded are set out in the Audit Commitiee section of the Corporate
Governancs report on paga 10%. No services were provided pursuant to contingent fee arrangements.
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8 Staff costs

2021 2020
The average monthly number of employees during the year by segment was:
Performance Elastarmers 944 £8a3
Functionai Solutions 1,826 1,656
Industrial Specialities 1,176 QB3
Acrylate Monomers 344 351
Corporate - _ ; 324 321
- ] 4614 4,184
2921 2020
£m om
The aggregate remunaeration of all Group employees comprised:
‘Wages and salaries 243.7 2113
Social security costs 26.5 258
Other pension costs 13.9 14.0
Share-based payments 21 20
) 2862 2529
Directors' emoluments are disclosed in the Diractors’ Remuneration report on pages 112 to 126.
9 Finance costs
2021 2020
£m m
Interest payable on bank loans arxi overdrafts 279 25.5
Lass: interest recsivable {1.0) {1.2)
Net interest expense on defined bensfit obligations 24 3.7
Interest alement of lease payments B o 15 1.6
Underlying finance costs 308 29.6
Fair value {gainyloss on unhedged interest derivatives 6.2) 3.6
Loss on extinguishment of financing faciities _ - 49
Finance cosis 24.8 38.1
10 Taxation
2021 2020
£m £m
Current tax
UK corporation tax 03 -
Overseas tax . _B9.0 39.9
89,3 39.9
Deferred fax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences o - 52 2.5)
] - ' . L S 94.5 37.4
Special ftems )
Current tax:
Historlcal issues 8.8) 49
Purchase and sale of business {0.2) 0.2
Restructuring end site closiire costs 4.2 0.2
Defarred tax:
Restructuring and site closure costs 16.1) {10.5)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles {6.9) (10.7)
Acquired tax attributes 5.6 -
Other deferred tax on acquisition of business - 141
(20.6) (15.6)
Tatal tax on profit before taxation 73.9 21.8

UK carporation tax is calculated at 19.0% {2020: 19.0%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation for other jurisdictions is

calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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Reconciliation of tax expense to profit before taxation

r
The differences between the tetal tax charges shown above and the amount calgulated by applying the standard rate of UK carporation tax to the 1' n%’
profit before tax is as foliows. 3
2021 2020 z
£m £m ’§
Profit before taxation 283.9 203 | =
Tax on profit bafore taxation at standard UK corporation tax rate of 19.0% (2020: 19.0%) 53.9 338 L‘ -
Effects of: I Q -
Expenses not deguctibie for tex purposes 167 58 | g
Tax incentives and #ems not subjact to tax (0.8) R
Higher tax rates on overséas earmnings 16.6 60 .3
Other defarred tax asset not recognised less amounts now recognised (1.6) 7.2
Adjustments to tax charge In respect of prior periods {r.5) 3.3 l
Eflectof change of rate on deforredtex o 24 og | .
Tax charge for year 738 218
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income
2021 2020
£m £m
Current tax credit in respect of actuarial losses 14 1.3
Deferred tax (chargej/credit in respect of actuarial movements 132 2.2
Total tax {charge)/credit In respaot of actuarial movements ' (11.8) 35
Current tax liablities
2021 2020
£m £m
Current tax liabllities (45.2) (58.5)

The expenses not deductible for tax purposes inclucies a disallowance of the £57.2 milllont In relation to the European Commission
Styrene investigation,

11 Deferred taxation
Deferrad tax assets have beean recognised in respect of all tax losses and other temporary differences giving rise to daferred tax assets to the

exterd that it Is probable that these assets will be recovered,

s

The movements in deferrad tax assets and fiabilities are shown bslow.

H
Deferred tax liabilities =
Accelarated a
tax Acquired Right of DR
depreciation  intanglbles Sub-total Ctfset Total za
£m £m em £m tm @
AL 1 January @z.8) 816 (1144) 719 w33 | g
{Charged)/credited to income statement {1.2) - X:] 5.7 P
Exchange adjustment ) o o 08 12 20 B )
At 81 Decamber _{33.2) (73.5) {106.7} 48.2 {57.5)
2020
Accelerated
tax Acquirad Right of
depraciation intangibles Other Sub-tokal Otfget Total —_
Em £m £m £m £m £m
Al 1 January {17.9) (11.8) (1.1} (30.8) - {20.8) [_9
Purchase of business {10.0) (76.0} - {886.0} g
{Charged)/credited to incorme staternent 5.2) 10.7 1.1 6.6 i 5
Exchange adjustment - o o 03 R @ i 3
At 31 Dacember (32.8) (81.8) - {114.4) 71.1 “33 &

Deferred tax liabflities not recognised i

No deferred tax liability has bees recognised on temporary differences relating to unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries of £71.7 million
{2020: £30.5 milion), as the Group is able to control the timing of the revarsal of the temporary differences and it is not probable that the
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future,

Synthomser plc 1 51
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Group financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

31 Decembar 2021

11 Deferred taxation continued

Deferred tax asseats
2021
Right of
Losses Panslon Restructuring Other Sub-total Ofizet Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 29.0 37.2 10.5 182 81.9 71.1) 238
{Charged)/credited o income statement (3.1} {3.9) 6.1 {3.1) 3.5)
Charged to staternent of other comprehensiva income - {13.9) - - (13.2)
Exchange adjustment R _%2 o8& _ {05 102
At 31 December 26.1 200 18.1 16.2 78.4 (49.2) 28.2
2020
Right of
Lossss Pension  Bestructunng Ciher Sub-tota! Offset Totsk
fm £ £m £m £m £m [
At 1 January 2.2 18.7 - 1.9 228 - 228
Purchase of business 28.5 18.9 -~ 10.1 55.6
Credited/(charged} to income statament 2.9 (1.9) 10.5 4.5 160
Credited to statament of other comprahengive incoma - 2.2 - - 2.2
Exchange adjustment 8 o7 -7 pe
At 31 December 20.0 37.2 105 18.2 94.9 71.1) 23.8
Tax lesses not recognised
The amounts of tax logsas for which no deferrad tax asset has been recognised at the balance sheet dates are as follows:
2021 2020
2m £m
Tax losses 534 1103
534 110.3
Al of the unrecognised tax lpsses set out above can be carrled forward Indefinitaly.
12 Dividends
2021 2020
Pence 2021 Fence 2020
por share £m per ghare £m
Interim dividsnd 87p 36.9 3.0p 12.8
Proposed final dividend 213 206 8.6p 36.6
30.0p 136.4 11.6p 48.4
The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM and has not been included as a liability in these financial
statements.
Dividends paid
2021 2020
£m £m
Interim dividend 369 12.8
Prior year final diviciend B o o o %8 -
' 73.5 12.8
The proposed final 2019 dividend was suspended and subsequently cancelled to pressrve cash, liquidity and balance sheat strergith at the
onset of COVID-19 in March 2020.
13 Earnings per share
Fiiral 2020
Underiying Special Underlying Sir'zracwl
per Hema IFRE performance hems IFRS
Earnings
Profit/lloss) attributable to equity hoiders of the parent tm 3252 {116.5) 208.7 1229 {118.8) 3.1
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares — basic jo.0le] 432,200 424,843
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares 000 B 1,654 2,505
Wéigmed average number of ordinary shares — dilted ‘000 433,944 427,348
Earnings pet share
Basic earnings per share pence 75.2 (26.9) 48.3 28.8 (28.2) a.7
Diluted sarnings per share pence 74.9 [26.8) 48.1 28.8 (28.1) 0.7
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14 Goodwill

2021 2020
£m o
Cost
At 1 January 5088 3385
Measurement period adjustment 21 -
Purchase of buginess - 180.2
Exchangs adjustments L N o » _ B8 9.9}
At 31 December o . ) . B024 5088
Accumulated impairment lossaes
Al 1 January 184 14.1
Impaitrentcharge o _ - 1.3
At 31 Decamber ] ] ) 154 15.4
Metbookvaiue S U
o 487.0 463 4

At 31 December
Goodwill acguired in a business combination is allccated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units (CGUSs) that are expected to benefit from
that business combination.

in March 2021, a £2.1 milllon measuremeant period adjustment was recognisad, relating to the acquisition of OMNQVA Solutions Inc,

The allocation of the carrying value of goodwill is represented below:

Not book Net book Met book

value at value at Measura- value st

1 January  Purchase of Exchange 31 Docomber  mert perind Exchange 31 December

2020 buslness Impairment  adiustments 2020 adjustment adjpustments 2021

£m £m £m £m £m £m Em £m

Performance Elastomers 119.0 - - 42 123.2 - (5.9) 117.3
Functional Solutions 180.0 138.0 - {11.B) 306.4 1.9 14) 306.9
Industrial Specialities 24.1 42.2 - {2.5) 83.8 0.2 (1.2 628
Acryiate Monomers o 13 - "3 - - - -
Total 324.4 1802 (1.3) {9.8) 493.4 2.4 {8.6) 487.0

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more freguently if there are indications that goodwill might ba Impaited.

The recoverable amounts for CGUs are datermined from vakie in use catculations. The key assumptions for the value In use calculations are the
discount rate, profitability and growth rate. These assumptions have been revised in the year in light of the current economic environment.

Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assesaments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the Group. The discount rate is based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital adjusted, where appropriate, for the risk
premium attributable to a particufar CGU's activities and geography of oparation. A pre-tax discount rate of 10,2% has been used in the above
caloulations for each CGU (2020: 8.7%).

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts for each CGU, derived from the most recent five-year business plans approved by the Board. The final
year cash flow is then assumed to apply into perpetuity with estimated annual growth rates of 3.1%, 1.9% and 2.0% for Performance Elastomers,
Functional Solutions and Industral Specialities respectively {2020: 1.79%, 1.6% and 1.6% for Performance Elastomers, Functional Solutions and
Industrial Specialities respectivaly). These rates do hot exceed average long-term growth rates for relevant markets.

A sensitivity analysis has been undertaken on these impairment tests, with scenarios covaring increased cost of capital, the impact of potential
carbon taxes, reduced margins and reduction in customer demand. For each CGU, the Directors believe that there is no reasonably possible
changs in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based that would cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the

aggregate recovarable amount of the CGU.

Synthomer plc |
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Group financial staternents

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

31 Decamber 2021

15 Acquired intangible assets

Other
Cusiomar acquired
relationships  intanglbles Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2021 373.2 21.6 384.8
Derecognition of fully amortised assets 8.1 - 3.1
Exchange adjustments o o o .- A4 05 _18.9)
At31 December2021 - o L . 361.7 N4 3828
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2024 488 5.0 53.8
Amortisation charge for the year 34.1 21 38.2
Daracognition of fully amortised assets 3.1 - 31)
Exchange adlustmerits . (1.3 (0.4) .n
At 31 December 2021 785 67 __ B52
Net book value B - . L
At 31 December 2021 2832 14.4 297.6
Other
Customer acquirac
relationships intangibles Total
tm £m tm
Cost
At 1 January 2020 713 9.1 804
Purchase of business 3168 3.2 33041
Derecognition of fully amortised assets (0.9) - 09
Exchange atjustments {144 ©0.7) (14.8)
At 31 December 2020 . 373.2 21.8 384.8
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2020 208 28 238
Amortigation charge for the year 29.0 19 fc[oke]
Impairment charge 0.1 - 0.1
Darscognition of fully amortlsed assets 0.9) - 0.9)
Exchange adjustmerits ) - o _ {6y 43 0.1
At 31 December 2020 o o o 488 5D 53.8
Net book value . _ .
At 31 December 2020 324.4 16.6 3410
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16 Other intangible assets

Other
Intangibie  Assets under
assets construction Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2021 14.8 20.9 a4.7
Additions 9.5 6.4 159
Transfers 36.1 (36.1) -
Exchange adjustments ~ o o _ . 14 (©-2) 12
At 31 December 2021 o &8 - 61.8
Acoumulated amortlsation and impairment ’ T T o
At 1 danuary 2021 8.1 - 8.1
Amortisation charge for the year 74 - 71
Exchange adjustments o 7 02 - 0.2
A1 31 December 2021 ) o ) - B 15.4 - 154
Net book value
At 31 Dacember 2021 e 46.4 - 484
Other
intangible Assats under
asseis construction Total
£m S £m
Cost
At 1 January 2020 8.2 17.9 26.1
Additions 1.4 12.4 13.8
Purchase of businass 5.7 - 5.7
Transfer 0.2 0.2 -
Disposels 0.8) - 0.8)
Exchange adjustments o o B I N < 4 R (1)
At 31 December 2020 . - - L o 14.8 200 44.7
Accumulated amortisation and impairment i
At 1 January 2020 4.1 - 4.1
Amortisation charge for the year 4.9 - 49
Impairment Q1 - 0.1
Disposals 0.8} - ©.9)
Exchange adjustments o e - 02 - ©.2)
At 31 December 2020 o L o Bl - 8.1
Net book value 3 o o
3 6.7 200 366

At 31 December 2020

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the perfod in which it is incurred.

As disclosed in note 2, there are various conditions reguired by IAS 38 for an internally generated intangible asset to be recognised,

During the ysar the Group Invested a further £12.9 milllion in its Pathway pregramma (2020: £12.2 million). Thig programmie is designed to deliver
a unified operating model on a single set of integrated aystems to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the Group. The investment in this

programme was shown as an asset under construction until the deployment phase began.
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Group firanciai statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

31 Decamber 2021

17 Property, plant and equipment

Owned assels Right 01 Uso asuots
Loaswhold - o
Iano and tand and Plant and Assets under Land and Plantand
™ Totad
£m £m £m £m £m £m £
Cost
At 1 January 2021 181.4 B.7 739.4 26.1 369 294 1,020.9
Additions 8.0 - 48.5 134 1.6 21 .6
Sale of business {3.8) - (3.6} - - - {7.2)
Disposals (.1) - 9.9) - n.7 8.0) 20.7)
Transfer from assets under construction 0.2 - 8.9 {10.1) - - -
Exchange adustments (4.2) - 28y s 02 08 _ (@87
At 31 December 2021 178.7 8.7 761.0 2re 36.6 23.0 1,035.9
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2029 50.0 81 417.8 - 6.0 1.2 499.1
Depraciation charge for the year 16.6 0.1 Ir7 - 3.6 6.2 64.2
Sale of bUSINGSS {2.4) - (3.6} - - - {6.0)
Disposals 0.7) - 9.6) - {0.9) 4.9] {(16.1)
Exchange adjustmants o 1.9 - a8 - 07 02 (138
A1 31 December 2021 _ __ 7108 52 4297 - B4 127 5278
Netbook value .- e o B
At 31 December 2021 408.1 3.5 3313 279 27.2 10.3 508.3
. Owoedaseets ﬁlgﬂ!ﬁl_use assets
Leaschold
Freshold jand land and ®lantand  Assets under Land and Par and
and tuldmgs builgings BupmEnt  0nshuclog Luilgings equipmznt Teral
£m ) £ m fm em o
Cost
At 1 January 2020 18361 g7 636.7 13.4 21.5 24.4 8108
Additions 7.9 - 9.0 18.8 1.6 29 41.2
Purchase of business 68.2 - 87.2 8.2 15.0 5.9 184.5
Disposaty 0.1} - ("0.3) - 0.8} 4.5) {15.8}
Transfer from assets under construction 1.5 - 14.1 {15.6) - - ~
Exchangs adustments 2.2) ~ 27 (k4] - 0.3 or_ 0.2
At 31 Qeéembgr 2020 1_31 4 87 7384 251 35.9 29.4 1.020.9
Accumulated depreciation and impairmeant
At 1 January 2020 40.5 4.9 363.5 - 2.4 4.6 405.9
Denreciation charge for the year 77 0.2 461 - 4.5 6.4 €49
Impaiment 9.7 - 231 - - Q.7 33.5
Disposals 0.1 . @1 - 0.9 [0.8) (10.9)
Exchange adjustments 1z - 4.2 - - 0.3 57
A3 December 2020 590 61 4178 - 60 112 49841
Net book value } 7 -
At 81 December 2020 1294 36 321.5 25.1 300 18.2 521.8

Frechold land is not depreciaied and is helo at historicad cost. At 31 December 2021, the Group’s freghold land was recognised at £50.4 mllion

(3" December 2020: £54.3 million).

At 31 Decenber 2021 the Group had entered into contractual commitments for the acguisition of praperty, plant and equipment amounting to

£18.8 milfion [2020: £18.9 milicn).
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18 Investment in joint ventures @
Detailg of the Group's joint ventures are as follows: 3
Place of i g
Narme of artity incorporation _ COwnership_Principal activity Segment ] 3
Synthomar Middle East Company Lid  Saudi Arabia 49% Manufacture and sale of acrylic and viny! resin emulsions Functional Solutions | §
Synthomer Functional Solutions FZCO  UAE 49% Trading In adhesives and oilileld chemicals Functional Solutions ;
Synthomer FZC0 UAE 49% Sales and marketing support for Synthomer companies  Functional Solutions
Super Sky Ltd UK 50%  Non-trading Corporate T
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these financlal statements. The ownership of entities has not changed since ’7?
the prior year, ‘ g
‘g

Sunmarised tinancial information In regpect of the joint ventures ls set out below. This information represents amounts in the joint ventures'
financie! statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

Summarised batance sheet (100%)
2021 2020 .
£m £m
Non-currant assets 64 4.6 o
Cash and cash equivalents 28 4.2 9
Other current assets . o e ) _ - o 2485 14.6 b
Total current assets - _ ... = 88 M
Other curent labiites 189 09 B
Total current kiabifties B o S - (185~ o [B
Net assets 15.0 13.5
2021 2020
Group share: £m £m
Total essets 165 11.5
Totalliabiities o N 81 “9
Net assets 74 6.6
Summarised statement of comprehensive income {100%) [ g
2021 2020 3
£m Em B
Revenue B18 39.4 ‘ Z
]
Operating profit 54 27 l %
Taxation B e o o o - ©a E
Profit for the year 54 25 g
Exchange differences on translation B o 82 09 ‘ B
Total comprehensive income 5.6 21
Dividendspaid - R : - BN <2 B
Movement in retained eamings ~ _ _ _ — AT
Group share:
Profit for the year 28 12
Exchange differences on translation 0.1 ©2 o
Dividends paid {1.9) (18 §
| £
I
Ef
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Group financlal statermants

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
31 December 2021

18 Investment in joint ventures continued
The following table reconciles the summary information above to the carrying amount of the Group's interest in the joint ventures:

investment in joint ventures

2021 2020
£m £m
At 1 January 6.6 7.5
Profit from continuing cperations 26 1.2
Exchange differences on transiation 0.1 0.2}
Lividend paid - . . R - _ e .8 b9
At 31 December ' ) 7.4 6.6
19 inventories
2024 2020
£m £m
Raw matenals and consumables 1204 78.8
Finished gocds . ~ o o o 1333 814
S T ) i - 253.7 1703
Stock written off during the year 5.9 0.5
Cost of inventory recognised as an éxpense and included in cost of sales 1,338.4 926.2

The nature of the chermicaf reaction necessary to produce finishied goods from raw materials Is such that 'wark in progress’ is not a matarial part
of tha Group's inventory at any given point of time.

20 Trade and other receivables

2021 2020

£m £m

Trade receivables 27541 229.3
Other receivables 25.4 238
P[q_piayments__i ) . 7 7 123 9.5
3128 262.4

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.

Before accepting a new customer, the Group uses appropriate procedures to assess the potential customer’s cradit guality in order to set a
credit limit,

The Group applies a simplified approach 1o measure the I0ss allowanca for trade receivables classified at amortised cost, using the lifetime
expected loss provision. The expected credit loss on trade receivables is estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default
axperience and credit rating, adjusted as appropriate for current observable data. The Group has no significant concentration of cradit risk,
with exposure spread over a large number of customers. The following table detaifs the risk profile of trade receivabies based on the Group's
provisian matrix.

Trade rm!ia}:lu - d.y_! paat duse

Notyetdus <60 81-120 > 120 "\ Total
2021 £m £m em £m £m
Gross carrying amount 249.3 25.3 0.3 1.7 276.6
Expected cradit loss rate 0.08%
Lifetime expacted credit loss ) ) (1.5)
Total - 275.1

; - Tfade recewqu_s_: deys past guia_ e

Not yet due < B0 61120 > 120 Total
2000 em £ £m £m £m
Gross carmrying amount 2141 1841 03 1.7 231.2
Expected credt loss rate 0.12%
Lifetims expectad credit loss B B . R {1.9)
Total ' 7 229.3
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The following table shows the mavement in the lifetime expected credit inss that has been recognised for trade receivables in accordance with

the simplified approach set out in IFRS 9;

2021 2022
£m £m
At 1 January 19 09
Exchange adiustrnents ©.4 0.4
Acquisition of business - 14
Transter ffrorn)fio credit impaired 0.2) 0.1
Uncollectable amounts written off orrecovered — .y 04
At 31 December 1.5 19
21 Cash and borrowings
Cash  Exchange
1 danuary Inflows/ and other 31 December
2034 {outfiows} movemens 20321
£ Em em £m
Bank overdrafts {10.5) 10.5 - -
Curvem borrowings o ) _ 196} - % -
Current liabiities S ] » 2.1 105 86 -
Bank loans {186.2) - (11 (1879
€520m 3.675% senior unsecured foan notes due 2025 . . __tsn - 281 (318
Non-current liabliities _ _ (8439 ~_ 234 (8195
Total borrowings o . __®ea0 w5 340 (105
Cash and cash equivalants e 2018 3028 06 5083
Net debt ‘ f4622) 3154 34.6 (114.2)
Cepitalised debt casts shown in the tables above, which have baen recognised as a reduction In borrowings in the financial statements,
amounted to £9.9 million at 31 Decembar 2021 (31 December 2020: £11,2 million).
Analysis of net debt by currency:
2021 2020
" Cashand Cashond 2020
canh Total cash Tolal
sguivaients  borrowings equivalantas borowings
£m £m £m £m
Sterling 2115 - 125 -
Euro 50.7 43713 388 484.7
US doliar 1248 192,1 54.1 190.5
Malayslan ringgit 51.0 - 61.0 -~
Other e . 673 = 3.4 -
Totat 506.3 620.4 201.8 675.2

The principal features of the Group's borrowings are as follows:

The Group has committed unsecured borrowing facillties compriging a $260 million term laan, a €460 million ravoiving credit tacility both of
which have terms ending July 2024, The Group also has a $300 mition term loan with a term ending in October 2024 and €520 milion 3.875%

unsecured senior loan notes due In June 2025.
Changes In liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities, in¢luding both cash and non-cash changes,
Liabdlities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows are classified in the Group's consolidated cash flow statement as cash

flows from financing activities.

_ Non cath changes

Financing Exchange
1 January oash and other 31 December
201 stfl Actjufa i 2021
£m £m £m Em £Em
Borrowings {653.5) - - 340  (619.5)
Leaseliabites = __  _ | _ .. B &y 0 - 18 435
Total ’ {708.5) 9.7 - 35.8 {663.0)
Synthomer pic
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Group financia! staternents

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
31 Decemnber 2021

22 Financial instruments
The table below sets oul the Group's accounting classification of each class of financial assets and liabilives:

—  ae —_ 2020 -
Carrying Carrymg
Valuation amount amount within
catagory in Falr yalus Carrying within scape Carrying scope of
accordance hierarchy amount of IFRS 7 Fair value smoynt FRS 7 Fair va ug
with IFR$ 9’ fevel fm £m £m £m m £m
Trade receivabigs AC Levsl 2 275.1 275.1 2751 2283 220.3 228.3
Other recaivabiss AC Leval 2 25.4 15.0 15.0 23.8 13.9 13.9
Cash and cash squivalents AC Lavel 2 505.3 5053 5053 201.8 201.8 201.8
Derivatives — no hedge accounting FVTPL _ Level 2 _ 82 32 32 14 R 1.4
Total asasts 808.0 798.8 798.6 456.1 446.4 446.4
Borrowings AC Level 2 [619.5) 618.5) {629.4) 684.0) 664.00 (675.2)
Trade and cther payables AC Level 2 {418.5) {404.8) {404.8) {@337.8) {324.9) (324.9)
Derivatives — no hedge accounting FVTPL  Level2  (10.1) {10.1) {10.1} _ 194 (18.4) (19.4)
Total liabilities {1,046.1)  (1,034.2) (1,0e44.1) (1.021.2) {(1,008.3) {(1,019.5)
Note:

1 AC: smartised cost; FYTEL fair value through profit or loss; a more detalled description of the categones cen oo lound n note 2.
The fair value of the Group’s borrowings at 31 December 2021 was £629.4 million (31 December 202C: £675.2 milion).

Financial risk management
The Group's policies, approved by the Board, pravioe weitten principles on financial risk management and the use of financial derivatives.
These risks include market risk including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and kquidity risk.

The Group has a policy of hedging significant foreign exchange fransactionat exposure at operating company level. The Group regularly reviews
its net assets and bolrowing Carrency exposures, DOrrowing in overseas currencies In order 1o hedge the net assets held i those currencies ss
appropriate. The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative tnanc.al instrumants, for speculative parposes.

Curvency risk
The Group presents its consolidated financial statements in sterfing and conducts business in many currencies. As a result, it is subject to

foreign currency fisk tue 1o exchange rate movements, which will atfect the Group’s transactions and the translation of the “esults anc underlying
net assets of its operations,

To manage the currency risk the Group uses foreigh currency borrowings, forward contracts and currency swaps to hedge overseas nel assets,
which are predominantly oencminated in Euros, US dollars and Malaysian ringgits. Profit translation exposures are not hedged.

The Group hedges currency transaction exposures at the point of confirmed order, using forward fereign exchange contracts. The Group's
policy is, where practicabla, 1o hadge ail exgosuras on monetary agsets and habifities. Consequently, there are no mate-ial currency exposures to
disclose (2020: none).

Interest rate risk

The Group has an exposure 1o interest rate risk, arising principally on changes in US dollar and Eure interest rates. To manage intersst rate risk,
the Group manages ts proportion of tixed 1o floating rate borrowings, and u'ilises interest rate swaps. These practices aim to minirise the
Group's net finance charges with acceptable year-on-year volatility.

At 31 December 2021 the Group had in place swap arrangements 1o fix interest rates on €440 milion of borrowings.

The Group's interest rate derivatives are designated as fair value hedges with fair value movermant on the hedged portion recognised in squity.
Interest paid on these derivatives is recognised in the income statenent, within Underlying interest costs. Fair value movement in the unhedged
portion Is also racognise in profit and loss, as a Spedcial l'em,

After taking account of interest rate swaps, the Group's currency and interest rate exposure as at 31 December 2021 was:

2021 2620 7
Flasting rate Fixed rate Total Ficating rate Fixed rate Jotal
borrowings  Yorrowings  borrowings BoTowIngs borrowings borrowings
£m Em £m £m £m m
Furo - 437.3 437.3 0.3 474.4 4847
US dollar 1821 - 1m24 1905 - 1805
Total 192.1 4373 629.4 2008 474.4 675.2
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Market tIsk sensitivity analysis
The Group's miain exposure to market risk Js in the form of interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The Group uses a sensitivity analysis that

estimates the impacts on the consolidated income staternent and other comprehensive income of elther an instantaneous increase or decrease
of 1,.0% in market interest rates or a 10% strengthening or weakening in stering against ali other currencies, from the rates applicable at

31 Decamber 2021 and 31 December 2020 with all other vadables remaining constant. The sensitivity analysis exciudes the impact of market
risks on the net post employment benefit labilities and assets, and corporate tax payable. This analysis Is for llustrative purposes only, as
interest and foreign exchange rates rarely change In isolation.

There has bean no change 1o the Group's exposure to market risks or the manner in which these risks are managed and measured.

... . . .
lncome statarnent  Equity Incomestatemert Eeuly
Underiying IFRS FRS Underlying RS IFRS
-/+ Em -f+Em «/+ €M -/+ Em -+ £m -/ £m
Interest rate sensithvity analysis

Uk irterest rate +/- 1.0% 241 - - - - ~
Euro interast rate +/- 1.0% 0.5 4.4 - 0.4 4.4 -
US intarest mie +/- 1.0% 0.7 - - 1.4 - -

Foreign currency sengitivity analysis
Sterling -/+ 10% 19.0 18.9 23.0 34 34 31.3
Euro exchange rate -/+ 10% 10 1.0 10.0 2.8 28 786
US dollar exchange rate -/+ 10% 108 19.6 116 10 10 218
Malaysian ringgit exchange rate -+ 10% 05 0.5 - - - -

The interast rate sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both darivative and non-derivative
instruments at the balanca sheet date. For tloating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming that the amount of liabllity cutstanding at the
talance sheet date was cutstanding for the whole year.

For intarest rate derivatives the mark-to-market adiustrent, and arnount recognised In equity as part of 2 hedging arrangement, is estimated
using the interest rate senslitivity againgt the nominal amount. ‘

The foreign currency sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency danominated monetary tems and adjusts their translation at
the period end for a 10% change in foraign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes external loans as wall as loans to foreign cperations
within the Group where the dencmination of tha loan is in a curmency other than the functional currency of the lender or borrower.

CredH risk
Credit risk rafers to the risk that a counterparty wilk defauft on fts cortractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group, Credit risk arises

on cash balances, derivative financlal instruments and credit exposures to customers.

The carrying amount of finencial assets represents the Group's exposuse to cradit risk at the balanca sheet date as disclosed at the start of this
note. A financial asset is in default when the counterparty fails to pay its contractual obligations. Financial assets are written-off when there is no
reasonable expedctation of recovery, Credit risk ia managed separatety for finantial and buginess-related credit exposures.

Finangial cradit risk
Synthomer aims to minimise its financial cregit risk through the application of risk management policies approved and monitored by the Board.

Courterparties are prademinantly limited to major banks and financial institutions with a cradit rating of investment grade and the policy restricts
the expaosure to any one counterparty by setting credit limits. The Group's policy is designed to ensure that individual counterparty limits are
adhered to and that there are no significant concentrations of credit risk. Tha Board aiso definas the types of financial Instruments which may be
transacted. Synthomer annually reviews the credit limits applied and regularty monitors the counterparties’ credit quality, reflecting market cradit
conditions.

Business related credit risk

Trade and other receivables exposures are managet focally in the operating units whers they arise and active risk management is applied,
focusing on country risk, credit limits, ongoing credit evaluation and manitoring procedures. Thare is no significant concentration of credit risk
with respec! 1o receivabies as the Group has a large number of customers which are intemationally dispersed. See note 20 for infermation on
credit rigk with respect to trade and other recaeivables.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is tha risk that Synthorner is unabie to maet its payment obligations whan due, or that it is Lnable, on an ongoing basis, to bomew
funds at an acceptable price to fund actual or proposed commitments. The Group manages liquidity risk by malntaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity

profiles of assets and liabilties,
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Group financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

31 December 2021

22 Financial instruments continued

The following tables provide an aralysis of the anticipated undiscounted contractual cash flows including intarest payable for the Grauo’s
knancial liabiliies and derivative instruments. The liquidity analysis for lease Hiabilities is included in note 23. Where Interest payments are
calcuwiated at a floating rate, rates of each cash flow untl maturity of the instruments are calculated based on the forward yield curve prevailing at
the respective year ends, Derivative contracts are presented on a net basis.

. A W0
_  Amountdue Amountdue

betwaen  betweon betwaen  Letween

within 1 and 2and within 1 and 2ang

1yeor 2 years Byears 1 year 2 years 5yeats

£ £m £m £m £m £m

Qverdrafts - - - {10.5) - -
Financiat liabiities in trade and other payablas {402.3} {1.5) 0.5 {321.9) (2.0 1.7}
Bank ioans — principat - - {192.1} - - {190.2)
€520m 3.875% ssrior unsecured loan notas due 2025 - - (4373 - - |[464.9)
nterest payments on borowings . _pos (208 (278 @) (@20 (600)
Total non-derlvative financlal liabilities {422.8) (22.0) (B57.7) (363.8) {24.00 (716.8)

. 2021 : - Lo

Amountdue - Amountdue _

batween between between  betwepn

within 18nd 2and within 1and 2and

1yaar 2 ysars 5 years 1 yoar 2 years 5 years

£m £m £m £m £m €m

Currency forwards 3.2 - - 1.4 - -
Total derivative financial assets 3.2 - - 14 - -
Interest rate swaps 4.0) 4.0 1) 4.2) 4.3) (1.5
Currency forwards _ N 02 - - 0.8) - -
Total derivative financial liabilities {5.2) {a.0) r. 1 5.0 4.3 (11.5)

The fnancial covenant at 31 December 2021 jor the BCF is that net debt must be less than 4.0 times EBITDA. At 31 December 2021 the actual
covenant for the net gebt was 0.3 umes EBITDA,

Any non-compliance with covenants underlying Synthomar's financing arvangements could, if not waived, constitite an event of default with
respect 10 any such arrangements, and any NoN-com piance with covenants may, in particular circumstances. lead o an accelaration of maturity
on certain borrowings and the inability ta acoass committed facities. Synthomer was in full compliance with its financial covenanis in respect of
its borrowings throughout each of the years presented.

At the vesr end, Synthomer had undrawn committed bank facilities as follows:

2021 2020
Expiring Expirieg
Gotween betweyn
2ang 5 2and5
Yoars Totel yoars Tow
£m £m Lm £m
Unsecured €450m multi-currency RCF expiring 3 July 2024 3738 3733 3970 3970
Unsecured $300m Term Loan Facility expiring 28 October 2024 ~ 217 2217 - B
595.0 585.0 3970 3970

Fair value measurement
Certain of the Group's financial instruments are hed at fair vafug. The fait value of a financial instrument is the price that wauid be received to sell
ar asset or paid to transter 2 tiability in an orderly triansacton betwaen markat participants at the balance sheet date.

As prescribed by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, fair values are measured using a hierarchy where the inputs are as follows:

* Level 1 - quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabiities.
s Level 2 - not leve! 1 but arg ohservable for that asset or hability either directly or indirectly.
s evel 3 - not based on pbservable market data.

Interest rate swaps and toreign currency forwards and swaps are valued using discounted cash flow techrigues. These teonniques incorporate
imputs such as foreign exchangs rates and interest rates, which are used in a discounted cash fiow calculation incorporating the instrument's
term, notional amaount ard discount rate, and taking credit nisk into account. As significant inputs to the valuatior are observadie in active
markets, all of the Group's finanaial instruments are classitied as tevel 2 financial instruments.

I he tair value of forward foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps ahd cufrency swaps is estimated by discounting the future contractuaf
cash fiows using forward exchange rates, ‘n’erest rates end prices at the balance sheet date.

There ware no transtars of any financial instrument batween the levels of the fair valug hierarchy during the current or orior year.
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Headge relationships
The Group targets a ons-to-one hedge ratio. Strengths of the economic relationship batween the hedged tem and the hadging instrument is

analysed on an ongoing basis. Ineffectiveness can arise from subsequent change in the forecast transactions as a result of timing, cash flows or
value except when the critfcal terms of the hedging instrumant and hedged ttem are closely aligned, The change in the cradit risk of tha hedging
instruments or tha hadgad tems is not expected to be the primary factor in the sconomic relaticnship.

The notional amounts, contractual maturities and rates of the hedging Instruments degignated in hedging relationships as of 31 December 2021
by the main risk categories are as follows:

o Hedgad sk HNotional amoumt ) Matury - Range of hatged raes
2021 ‘ ' -
Cash flow hedges

Interest rate swap interest rale  Up to €44Um 28/08/2018 - 268/0B/2025 0.617% to 0.535% fixed
Net investment hedges

Nat investment Currency  Up to €560m 01/04/2020 ~ present 1.11 - 1.20
Netinvestment = Cumency Upto$370m __DMDA2020-present  1.38-142
2020 . T

Cash flow hedges

Intarest rate swap terest rate  Up to €440m 28/08/2018 - 28/08/2025 0.617% t0 0.535% fixed
Nat investment hedges

MNat investmant Cummency  Up to €560m from 01/04/2020 1.08-1.15
Net investment Currency  Up to $370m from 01/04/2020 1.23-1.37

Where hedge accounting is applied, hedges are documented and tested for effectiveness on an ongeing basis.

The ratio for hadging Instruments dasignated in both net investmeant and cash flow hedge relationships was 1:1. ineffectivaness could occur on
either hedging ralationship due to significant changes in counterparty cradit risk or a reduction in the notional amount of the hedged item during
the designated hedging period.

Cash flow hedges
The Group designated a5 a cash flow hedge the interest rate swaps used to manage interest rate risk on its Eurc bomrowings.

In 2021 a gain of £3.4 million (2020: £0.8 milion loss) was recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve in raspect of these derivatives.

At 31 December 2021 the cash flow heage reserve includes a cumulative loss of £10.0 million 2020: Joss of £13.4 million), all of which relates to
continuing cash flow hedges. The cash flows are expected to occur betwean 2022 and 2025.

In the year, the Group's bommowings fell below the total of the interast rate derivative contracts, isading to a reduction in the balance designated as
a cash flow hegge, The change in fair vaiue retating to the unhedged portion of the interest rate swaps was a gain of £6.2 milion (2020: loss of
£3.6 mifiion} which was recognised in the income statement within financae costs as a Special Item.

Capital management

The Board is committed to anhancing shareholdar value in the long term, beth by invasting in the business so as to deliver continued
improvement in the return from those investments and by managing the capital structure,

Synthomer manages its capital structure to achieve capital efficiency and to provide flexibility to invest through the econamic cycle and give
efficient access to dabt marksts at attractive cost levels. This is achieved by targeting a net debt to EBITDA ratio between 1.0 and 2.0, In crder to
finance acquisitions, the Group may increase the ratio to 3.0, with deleveraging within 12-24 months.

As at 31 December 2021 the net debt to EBITDA ratio was 0.3 times (2020; 1.8 times).

The Board maintains a dividend policy to 2.5 times earnings cover. Should excess capital not be deployed for acquisitions or capital expenditure,
the Board wili periodically consider one-off capital returns to shareholders in order to maintain an efficient balance shest.

23 Leass liabilities
The Group has a portfolio of leasaes mainly comprising land and buildings, chemical storage tenks and vehicles. Further details are given in note 2.

Information in respect of right of use asssts, including the carrying amount, additions and depreciation, are set cut in note 17 to thess financial
statements. Information in espect of the carrying value is set cut bedow and Information in respect of interest arising on lease liabilities is set out
in note 9.

Synthomer also enters into short-term leases and low value leases which are not recognised as right of use assets and lease liabilities.
The expense racognised in the year in relation to these leasss is not material. Synthomer has no material exposure to variable lease payments,

extension options or committed leases not yet commenced.
The total cash outflow for leases in the year was as follows:

2021 2020

£m £m

Payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities 9.7 9.7
15 1.6

Payments for the interest portion of lease liabiities
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Group financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
31 December 2021

23 Lease iiabliities continued
Lease liabilities included in the balance sheet are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
£m £m
Current 8.8 10.6
Non-current o . e 34.7 444
435 556.0
The following table details the maturity of contractual undiscourted cash flows for lease llabilities:
2021 2020
£m em
Less than one year 94 1.2
Between ong and two years 8.1 10.6
Between two and five years 1.3 171
More than five years 47.0 19.0
24 Trade and other payables
2021 2020
£m £m
Amount due within one year
Trade payables 264.0 2046
Other payables 50.8 40,5
Accruals L : B _ 99.4 89.0
414.2 3341
Amount due after one year
Accruals 23 a7
) 23 37

Average trade payable days in 2021 was B0 (2020: 84). This figure represents trade payable days for all trading operations within the Group,

calcuiated as 8 weighted average based on cost of sales.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables, other payables and accruals approximates 1o thair fair value.

25 Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Restructuring Regulatory

& she closure fine Total

£mn £m £m

At 1 January 2021 31.6 - 31.8

Charged to the income statement 26.9 57.2 84.1

Utilised during the year (10.5} - {10.5j

Exchange adjustments B _ (20 - 2.0

At 31 Decomber 2021 48.0 57.2 103.2
Analysis of provisions

3 Decomber 31 December

2021 2020

£m £m

Nort-current 180 59

Current _ 85.2 257

103.2 31.6

1 64 . Synthomer plc
| Annusl Report 2021



Analysis of charge to the Income statement

2029 2020
£m £m
Underlying performance - -
Speciathens . e 881 27K
84.1 27.0

The closing balance includes £57.2 midion for the European Commission fine, £15.8 million and £1.0 million in raiation to the rationaksation of the
Group’s European Performance Materials network in Marl and Oulu respectively and £10.6 million in relation to the onercus contract arising on
the disposal of the European Tyre Gord business. In the year, & £5.1 million provision was recognised for the closure of OMNOVA's administrative
and R&D site in Villejust [France). A £11.8 million provision was recognised to demolish and rationalise assets at a small number of sites, to bring

them into line with our ESG strategy.

26 Retirement benefit obligations
The Group operates a variety of retirament bianefit arrangements, covering bath defined ¢entributicn and defined benefit schemes.

Defined coniribution schemes
The Group operates a number of defined contribution schemes for its employeas. Costs recognised in respect of defined contribution pension

plans across the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 were £10.8 miillion {2020: £8.2 milion).

The risk relating to benefits to be paid to the dependants of scheme members (widow and orphan banefits) is re-ingured with an externai
Insurance company.

Multi-employer schemes

The Group participates in saveral tariffs of the Pensionskasse Degussa in Germany, which is a muiti-employer pension scheme.

Reguiar contributions are payable to the schéme by each participating employer for new bensfits accruing. The assets of all participating
employers are pocled, and cantributions are calculated based on aggregated demographic experience. Therefore sufficient information is not
avaiiable 1o identify the Group's share of the assets on a consistent and rgliable basis ard the Group accounts for the scheme on a defined
contribution basis. The Group expects to make a regular contribution of £2.4 million to the scheme in 2022,

To the exient that there is underfunding in the scheme, deficit contributions are payable based on an actuarial assessment of each participating
employar’s share of the future benefit accrua!, At 31 December 2021 there is no indication of any commitment for additional deficit contributions
in excess of regular contributions.

Defined benefit schemes

UK
The Group’s UK defined bensfit scheme is administered by a fund that is legally separate from the Company. The trustees of the pension furd

are required by law to act in the interest of the fund and of all relevant stakehoiders in the scheme. The trustess of the pension scheme are
responsible for the investment policy with regard to the assets of the fund,

The scheme was closed to future ascrual in 2009 and all retiremant benefits since thet time ara provided by way of a definad cantribution
scheme, The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the companies concered. A triennlal actuarial valuation of the scheme was
undertaken in 2021 and is in the process of being finalised by the trustees of the scheme and the Company.

USA
The Group's US defined perefit scheme was acquired as part of the OMNOVA acquisition and is adrinistered by a fund which is legally separate

from OMNOVA Solutions Inc. The fiduciary committes is required by law to act In the interest of the fund and is responsibla for the investment
policy with regard to the assets of the fund.

The scheme was closad 1o future accrual in 2011 and ali retirement bengfits since that tme are provided by way of a defined contribution
scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the companies concerned and & formai valuation ts undertaken on an

annua! basis.

Germany
The Group operates a numoer of defined benefit schemes in Germany. These schemss are closed o new members. In line with common

practice, these schames are unfunded and liabilities are ssttled on a cash basls as they fall due. Af each balence sheet date, obligations are
calcutated by exiernal actuaries.

Other
The Group oparates a number of smaller cverseas pension and retiremem benefit schemes. For the funded schemes, assets are held separately

from those of the Group. The aggregated pension disciosures for the other defined benefit schemes have been compiled from a number of
actuanal valuations at 31 December 2021.
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Group financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
31 December 2021

268 Retirement benefit obligations continued
Retirement benefit risks
Defined benetit schemes expose the Group to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Asset return risk

The plan llabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond vields; if plan assets
‘underperfonn this y»eld th«s wm increase the deficit.

interest rate risk A decrease in corporate bond y|elds will increase plan hamtmas aftnough this will be partlauy offsst by an increase

Lonééﬁy risk
will result in an increase in the plans’ liabilities.

Charges to the income statement in respect of the Group's definad benefit pension schemes are as follows.

o 2021 o _ _ . e -
uK usSh Bnrmlny Othar Totsl UK USA  Germany Other Totel
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m em om

Service cost 0.9 1.7 0.4 - 30 16 1.8 0.6 1.0 4.8
Net interest expsnse _ b8 10 06 02 @ 24 1 14 10 03 a7
15 27 10 a.2 54 2.6 30 1.6 1.3 8.5
Amourtts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income are sat cut below:
2021 . Emc - o
UK l.asA qum.m Other Total UK USA Germary Other Total
£m £m £m £m fim om £m £m £m
Return on plar assets
excluding amounts included
n interest expense 3.1 195 - {0.8) 156 32.0 334 - 06 65.7
Gaing/{losses) from thanges in
assumptions 345 72 69 28 512 433 {208 (7.8 e w33
Actuarial galns/(iosses} a4 28.7 69 1.8 66.8 1.3 123 7.5 0.0 {7.6)
Amounts incladed in the Group's consplidated balance shes! arising from the Group's defined benefit scheme obligations are:
2021 2020
UK “usa l;“ermnn;' Other Total -RUK usa Garmarw Other Toal
Em £m Em £m £m €m &m £ £m £m
Presert value of definad
banefit ohfigations 410.1) (206.2) (77.6) {24.8) (718.8) 4564 2203 91.0) 83C.G)  (F97.7)
Fair value of schemes’ assets 405.5 1785 29 85 596.4 404 % 168.5 3.2 106 5768
Net IInblIl!y arismg trom B - h
defined benefit obligaticns {4.6) 127.7) {74.7) {164) (1224) 52.3) {61.8) 87.8) {19.5) (221.4)
Fair valug of the schemes’ assets are set out below:
L 2021 B B - ) 2020 _
UK USa Germany Other Tota) UK JESA  Germany Dither Total
Em Em £m £m £m Lm £m om £ m
At 1 January 404.1 168.5 3.2 10.5 576.3 366.5 - 3.1 8.0 3786
[tgrest income 57 24 - - 8.1 72 28 - - 10.0
Amounts recognlsed in mcome in ) )
respect of defined benefit schemes 57 2.4 - - 8.1 7.2 28 - - 10.0
Remeasurgment:
Return o plan assets excluding amounts
incliged in interest income B3y 185 @ - (08} 158 320 531 - 0.6 85.7
Amaounts recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income 3.1) 18.5 - 0.9 15.6 32.0 334 - 0.6 65.7
Caortributions:
Employers 16.9 100 - 0.6 27.5 16.5 0.4 - Q7 17.8
Payments from plars:
Benefit payments (181 (13.9] - 0.2 (32.2) (18 (11.8§) - 0.8y (304}
1.2} (3.9} - 0.4 #.7) e {111 - 0.1 (128
Plan agsets from acovired entibes - - - - ~ - 1488 - 0.5 1431
Exchange adjustments - 2.0 ©03) 08 11 - 149 01 05 (14.3)
At 31 December 4055 17685 2.9 95 5864 4041 188.5 3.2 10.6 5763

Synthomer plc
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Plan asssts for the principal schemes comprised: o
e 2020 - g
LK USA Germany UK USA Germany | g
£m By em £m £m £m a
Hadge funds 175 - - 20,8 - - §
Equitins 98.5 97.2 1.5 107.2 88.8 1.6
Debt instruments 270.1 56.8 14 258.3 491 1.6
Property 2.2 24.5 - 8.8 20.6 -
Annuity assets 31 - - 52 - .
Cash L ) _ 0.1 - - 3.8 - §
Fair value of schemmes' assets 4065 1785 2.9 404.1 158.5 3.2 ' g
All investments in equities, bonds and property are gquoted. -
Fresent value of defined benefit obligations comprised: {
— 221 2020 T
UK USA Germany Other Total UK USA  Germany Gther Total
£m Em Em £m £m £m £m £m £m £m o
At 1 January {456.4) (2203) (91.0) (30.0} (797.7) {422.2) - 763y (17.1} (518.6) :
Current servica cost (0.9) 1.7 (0.4) {1.2) {4.2) 0.8 {1.6) 0.5) (1.0 (3.8 ;
Past service cost - - - 12 12 {0.8) - 0.1} - 0.9 ';
Interest axpense 7 83y (84 0.6) 02 (1.5 (82 4.2) (1.0 03 (137 Z
Amounts recognised in income In g
respect of defined benefit schemes 1y ) 1.0 ©02) (135 {9.8) (5.8} e 03 (85
Remeasuremnant gains/losses) from: a
changes in financial agsumpticng 14.3 10.8 7.0 - 32.2 433} (19.6) (7.6} {1.8) (72.9)
changes in demographic assumptions 6.4 0.3) - 1.1 7.2 - - - 0.3 0.3
experience adjustments - . 138 {3.4) 9y 15 118 0 - (12 S 8 VR o <
Amounts recognised in the statement
of comprehensive incoma o %5 T2 68 26 512 (43.3) (0B {78 18 73y
Contributions: T
Employers 0.8 - 22 0.6 a7 0.8 20 2.1 0.3 52
Payments from plans: g
Benefit payments 18.1 13.9 - 0.2 32.2 18.1 11.5 - 0.8 30.4 ‘ g
19.0 13.9 22 0.8 35.9 18.9 13.5 21 1.1 35.6 b
Scheme liabilities from acqulred entities - - - - - - {2287 - {10.2) (238.9 g
Disposals of subsiciary - - - 0.2 0.2 - - - - - =
Exchange adjustments - {18 83 17 51 - 25 4§ (09 180 §
At 31 December (4101} (2062) (77.6) {24.9) (718.8) {456.4) {220.3) (81.0} {30.0) (797.7) g
The Group remains committad to funding the deficits for the UK and US defined benefit schemes. 1
Following the 2018 triennial valuation of the UK scheme, which completed in 20718, the Company committed o paying contributions for the ‘
periad to 5 April 2023, Increasing from £16.4 milion in the year commencing 6 Apiil 2019 to £18.2 million for the year commeancing 6 April 2022,
Contributicns from the sponsoring companies are expectad to ba £17.9 milllen In 2022. The 2621 triennial valuation will be compileted in 2022,
The defined henefit obligation of the US scheme was £73.4 million on acquisition. This has raduced to £27.7 milion at 31 December 2021, !
The Group s currently contributing $6 million per annum to help reduce this daficit. —_
The Group's other defined benefit schemes are largely unfunded, with minimal plan assets, Liabilities from these schemes are settled on a cash ‘)9
basis as they fall due. i
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Group financial statements

Notes to the consoclidated financial statements continued
31 Dacember 2021

28 Retirement benefit abligations continuad
Actuarial assumptions
The major assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

S 021 _. oo ——

UK USA Germany Other UK USA Germany Other

% % % % % % % %

Rate of increase in pensians in payment 3.20 0.00 100 2.00-3.40 2.80 0.00 1.00 1.90-2.75
Rate of increase in pensions in deferment 290 0.00 250 2.00-3.40 2.20 .00 250 1.50-2.76
Discount rate 1.80 2.68 1.20 0.27-2.48 1.40 219 070 (0.80)-1.94
Inflation assumption 3.40 0.00 1.75 1.20-2.00 2.90 0.00 1.75 1.00-2.00

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics. Mortality assumptions are based
on coun‘ry-specific mortality tables and, where appropriate, irclude an allowance for future Improvements in life expectancy. In addition, where
credible data exists, actual pian experience is taken into account, The Group's most substantial pension liabifities ara n the UK, the US and
Germany wherse, using the martality tables adopted, the expected lifetime of avarage membars currently at age 65 and average membaers at age
65 in 20 years’ time is as follows:

2021 2020
_ Retiingteday  Retiringin20yoars ___ Retiing todey 7 FetinginZoyems
UK USA Germany UK USA Germany UK USA  Gsrmany UK USA  Germeany
Male §7.2 86.4 85.5 858 874 88.2 87.3 86.4 85.3 88.5 87.3 88.1
Female B89.5 87.5 88.9 950.9 88.5 21.1 88.5 87.4 88.8 91.4 B88.4 91.0

The weighted avarage duration of the bensfit cbligation at the end of the reporting periad is 14.9 years 1or the UK scheme (2020: 16.2 years),
10.7 years for the US scheme (2020: 11.3 years] and 17.2 years for the Germarn schemes (2020: 18.4 years;.

Sensitivity analysis

Signficant actuaral assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rats and mortality. The sensitivity analys s
below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occrring at the end of the reporting period, assuming
that all other assumptions are held constant.

Increase in schems Habilities

UK UsA Garmany

. . ~ . _ . Em £m tm

BDiscount raie {decrease o 1%} 72 23 14
FLture mortality rate {one year increass in expectancy) 19 7 3

The above sensitivties are based on a change of assurmotion while haiding all other assumptions constant. In practice this is unlikely to oocur
ana changes in some of the assumptions may have some correlation, When ¢alculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation 1o
significant actuarial assumptions, the same meathod ipresent valug of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unt credit
method &t the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when caiculating the pension fiability recognised within the baiance sheet,

27 Share capital and reserves
Share capital

2021 2020 2021 2020
Number Numbeat £m £m

Ordinary shares of 10 pence

Shares in issue at 1 January 424,850,961 424,850,961 425 42,5

Issued in year o o 42485080 _ - 42 -

Shares in issue at 31 Dacember 467,336,041 424,850,861 46.7 42.5

Crdinary shares carry no nght 1o fixed ircome.
On 28 Qetober 2021 the Group completed a share placing, resuiting in the issue of 42,485,080 ordinary shares at 485 pence per share.
Share premium

2021 2020

£m £m

Balance at 1 January 421.1 4211
Pramium arising on issue of shares 201.7 -
Expenses of issue of shares i o o o 28 -
Balance at 31 Decomber 620.0 421.1

The share premium account epresents the difference between the issua price and the nominal val.ue of shares issued.
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Retained earnings r T
2021 2020 ‘s”
o | g
Balance at 1 January 192.4 204.4 [ &
Dividends paid (73.5) g £
Nat profit for the year 208.7 31 [ -+
Actuarial gains/f{losses) recognised in other comprehensive income 66.6 (7.6) l
Tax refating to components of other comprehensive income {11.8) 35 ——
Charge 10 equity fof equity-settled share-based payments R, _. 18 =
Balence at 31 December 3838 1924 | g
Hedging and translation reserve 1 g
Cash flow &
hedglng  Trerelation !
resorve ressrve Totak
£m £m £m l
Balance at 1 Jenuary 2021 {13.4) (28.5 @i
Exchange differences on translation of foreign cperations - 28 28
Gains on net investment hedges taken to equity - 33 823 o
Gain recognised on cash flow hedges: £
Intorest rate swaps 34 - 34 =
Reclassification to prefit or loss: =
- 03 03

Exchange difference recycled on sale of business - ) o

Balance st 31 December 2021 o 00 @29) 32.1)

=

Balance at 1 January 2020 (12.6} 5.9 (19.5)
Exchange differences on transiation of forgign operations - 37.5) (37.5)
Gains on net investment hadges taken to equity - 159 16.9

Loss recognised on cash flow hedges:

Inlerestratoswaps R -2 BT X
Balance at 31 December 2020 (13.4) (28.5) 41.9)

Cash tiow hedging reserve
The hedging reserve represents the cumulative amourt of gains and losses on hedging instruments deemed etiective in cash flow hedges.

Tha cumulative deferred gain or fass on the hedging instrurment is recognised in profit or Ioss only when the hedged transaction impacts the
profit or loss, or is included as a basis adjustment to the non-financia! hegged kem, consistent with the applicable accounting policy.

|
\

Translation reserve
Exchange differences relating to the translation of the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations, which relate 10 subsidiaries only, from their

functional currency into the parent's functiona) currency, being steriing, are recognised directly in the transtation reserve. Gains and losses on
hedging instruments that are designated as hedges of net investments in foreign operations are Included in the translation reserve.
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Graup financial stataments

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
31 December 2021

28 Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from operations

2021 2020
£m Em.
Operating profit - continuing operations 308.5 58.4
Less: share of profits of joint ventures B _ B : - B 28 1.2
o B ) o ,,__ o B 3059 572
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment B4.4 54.0
Dapreciation of right of use assets 9.8 10.9
Armortisation of other intangibles T4 4.9
Sharg-based payrents 21 20
Special llems 1424 131.2
Gash impact of restructuring and stte closure costs {17.8) {25.3)
Cash impact of acquisition costs and related gains (6.6} (7.4
Pensgion funding in excess of service cost (@7.0) na.s
Movement in working capftal __ A o _ 28 235
Cash generated from operalions 387.6 2322
Reconcliiation of movement in working capital
[Increase)/dacrease in inventaries 871.7 171
(Incraase)/decraase in trade and cther receivables {64.8) 19.1
Increase/{decraase) in frade and cther payables _ ) . i o . 887 {120
Movement in working'caph:al S {82.8) 23.5

29 Related party transactions
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiarias, which are related parties, have beer: eliminated on consolidation and are not included
in this note. Transactions between the Company and ts subsidiaries are disclosed in the Company's finencial statements where appropriate.

The UK dafined benefit scheme 15 a relatad party: see note 26.

A summary of the key management compensation telates to the Directors and members of the Executive Gommittee, is set out below:

2021 2020

Key i £ £m
Short-term employee banefits B.3 9.1
Pansion costs 0.5 0.4
Share-based payments o o _ . ) . 24 20
) ] 10.8 11.5

30 Contingent assets, contingent liabilities and guarantees
Guarantees and contingent liabilities of the Group amount to £2.5 million (2020: £2.7 milion} and relate 1o ar environmental liability in France,

The Company and its subsidiaries have, in the normal course of business, entered into guarantees and counter-indemnities in respect
of perfoermance bonds, relating o the Group’s own contracts,
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31 Share-hased payments ré

Psrformance Share Plan g
The Group's Performance Share Plan is described in the Lirectors’ Remuneration repert on pages 112 to 126. In addition to the twa Executive £
Directors, it is available to other senior management. Movement In the options held under the scheme are defined as follows: 3
b o)
Weighted av. Welghtad av. ]
axsrcing exercies 1
Optlone. price {f) Options price (L) i
2021 2021 2020 2020
- number number number number -
Qutstanding at 1 January © 2,551,822 - 1,936,998 - r
Grarted during the year 875,330 - 1,134,333 - g
Exercised during the year ‘ (214,389} - {40,145) - 1%
Lapsed during the year 821,270} - (470,563) - iz
OQutstanding at 31 December . _ 2,391,283 - 2,551,622 -
Exercisabie at 31 Dacember 22,367 - 49,564 -

The outstanding share options were all issued under the Performance Shave Plan. As at 31 December 2021 the following options
were outstanding:

o . - e Num‘bi
Exercisable betwean 2016 and 2023 8,316
Exercigable between 2017 and 2024 6,045

7,106

Exercisable batween 2018 and 2025
Exercisable betwaen 2022 and 2029 729,704

Exarcisable betwesn 2023 and 2030 954,432
Exerclsable betwaean 2024 and 2031 o 5 3 - ) 684,790
2,391,203

The total exercise price for all the above grants is £nil.

Fer options outstanding as at 31 December 2021, tha exercise prica was £nil and the weighted average remaining contractual Ife was 4.95 years
(2020: 5.16 years).

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise was £4.64 (2020: £2.83}.

!

The weighted average falr value of the options at the measurement date granted during the year was £3.60 (2020: £1.94). The valuation was

based on the following inputs and assumptions, using a Monte Cario simutation model; Q

2021 om |
Woeighted average share price (€} 4.68 288 2
Option price (E) - - 1B
Value of optionality nit i g
Vesting assumption 7% 75% g
The vesting assumption is the estimate al the measurement date of the percantage of the opticns that will uitimately vest and is based on market g.

conditions and managemeant’s assessment of the likelihogd of achievement of the performance criteria.

The Group also operates a cash-settled share-based payment schems for which there was an expense in the year of £1.8 million |
(2020: £2.4 million) and for which there was a liabllity at the year end of £4.0 million (2020: £2.9 million). |

The Synthomer Employee Benefit Trust
The Company established a trust, formerly the Yule Catto Employee Benefit Trust, on 17 July 1996 to distribute shares to emplayess enabling the

obligations under the Yule Catto Longer-Term Performance Share Plan and the Yule Catto Longer-Torm Detferred Bonus Plan to be met.
The Trust is managed by the RBC Trusiess (Guernsey) Limited, an independent company Iocated in Guernsey.

At 31 December 2020, the Trust held 2,547 (2020: 8,839) ordinary shares in the Company with a market value of £0.0 million (2020: £0.0 million).

The dividends on these shares have baen waived. All of the shares are under gption. Costs are amortised over the life of the plans.

uoRBLLIGJU| BN i [

32 Share price Information
The middle market value of the listed ordinary shares at 3t December 2021 was 39892.6 pence (31 December 2020; 449.6 pence).

Puring the year, the markst price ranged between 388.6 pence and 564.0 pehoe. The latest ordinary share price is available
on the Group’s website, www.synthomer.com
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Group financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
31 December 2021

33 Audit exemptions

The following subsidiaries have taken advantage of tha exempticn from an audit for the year ended 31 December 2021 avaiiable under S$47%a of
the Companies Act 2008, as the Company has given a statutory guarantse of all of the outstanding lisbilities of these subsidiaries as at

31 December 2021,

Compeany
Company ragistration
Dimex Limited 01763129
Ecatto Limited 00378441
Harlow Chamical Company Limited 00778831
OMNOCVA Performance Chemicals Limited 03734749
OMNOVA UK Holding Limited 07682224
PolymaerlLatex Limited 03439041
Revertax Limited DOB73653
Super Sky Limited 2021871
Synthomer Overseas Limited 06349474
Templg Fields 510 01415496
Tempie Fields 514 Limited 04541637
Temple Fields 515 Limited 00852510
Temple Fields 522 Limited 05516912
Termple Fields 523 Limited 0551613
Temple Fislds 530 Limited 00831113

1 7 2 Synthomer pic
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Synthomer is a globai leading
supplisr of Acrylonitrile Butadiene
Rubber (NBR latex) for glove dipping
and associated healthcare industries.
These products are designed 1o meet tha highest
performarice requirements of medical and industrial
glove manufacturers, providing high flexibility and
comfort as we!l as a high barrler protection for the
end user. Gioves manufactured from Synthomer's
speclality NBR latex ensure a combination of high
tensile strength, good skongation and relaxation
to cater to the specific needs of medical,
exgmination, clean room, food handling,
medical drug handing and chemical
laboratory applications
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Company financiat statements

Company statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2021

20 2020
Note £m £m
Non-current assels
Property, plant and eguipment 4 4.4 5.6
Other intangible assets 5 415 -
Investment in subsgidiaries and joint ventures 3 537.8 a70.8
Deferred tax assets B . _ o . B I B
Total non-current asgots o o . 3764
Current assets
Other debtors [+ 1.279.7 1,445.6
Cash and cash equivalents 248.9 42.6
Derivativa financial instruments o _ B 9 30 14
Total current asgets _ . o - ) _ 15816 14806
Current liabllities
Borrowings 8 (10.4) 44.0)
Other payables 7 (180.8) (164.8)
Provisions 57.2) -
Derivative financial instruments 4 8.1) {18.8}
Lease liabilties . o 07 _on
Total current liabilities _ _ i B B (258.2) (228.3)
Net current assels - ) B _ 1.2734 1,261.3
Tatal asssts less current liabilities B ] 18580  1,637.7
Non-current liabilitlas
Borrowings 8 619.5) 643.9)
Lease lisblities - R {17 2.3)
Total non-current liabilities {621.2) (646.2)
Net asseis 1237.8 981.5
Equity
Share capital 10 46.7 425
Shara pramium 10 620.0 4211
Revaluation reserve 0.8 .8
Capital ademption reserve 0.9 0.9
Retaned earnings N _ _ _ 5694 526.2
Total equity 1,237.8 991.5

Ag disclosed in note 2, the Company's profit for the year was £112.1 million {2020: £193.5 million).
The notes on pages 176 to 180 are an integra, part of thage financial stataments.

The financial statements of Synthomer ple (registered nurnber 88381) on pages 174 to 180 were approved by the Board of Directors

\aj aythorised fpr issue on 3 March 202¢. They are sigged on its behalf by:
o

Will S @ Benhett
Diractor Diractor
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Company financial statements

Company statement of changes in equity

for the year endad 31 December 2021

Capha!
Share Shars lon p Retained Totad
capltal premium reserve resarve sarnings squity
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2021 42.5 421.1 0B 0.9 526.2 8915
Profit for the year S o = - - - 1121 121
Total comprehensive income for the year o o - - - - 1121 1121
Issue of shares 42 188.9 - - - 2031
Dividends - - - - {73.5) (7.5
Share-based payments — - _ - 12 1.2
Fair valug gain on hedged interest rate derivatives - - - - - 84 3.4
At 31 December 2021 46.7 620.0 05 0.8 569.4 1,237.8
Cepital

Share Share  Rgualuation  redemption Retalned Total

capital pemitnn rEgerve rasana earnngs aquity

£m £m em £m £m £m

At 1 January 2020 425 42t .1 08 0.8 344.6 B0G.9
Profit for the year B - - - - 1985 193.5
Total cormprehensive incoms for the year - = - - - 1835 1836
Dividands - - - - (12.8) {12.8)
Share-based payments - - - - 18 1.8
Fair vaiug kosE on hedged interest rate derivatives - - - 0.9 0.8
At 31 December 2020 42,5 4211 0.8 0.9 526.2 991.5

Synthomer plc

Annual Report 2021
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Company financial statements

Notes to the Company financial statements
31 December 2021

1 Significant accounting policies

The separate financial statements of the Company are presentsd as required by the Companies Act 2008, The Gompany meets the definition of
a qualifying entity under FRS 100 "Application of Financial Reporting Reguirements’ issued by the FRC. Accondingly, these financial statements
wers prepared in accordance with FRS 101 'Raduced Disclosure Framework'.

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions avaiiable under that standard in relation o
share-based payments, financial instruments, capital menagerment, presentation of a cash flow statement, standards not yet affective and
certain related party transactions.

Where required, equivaient disclosures are given in the consolidated financial staternents.

The financlal statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the remeasurement of certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

The basis of accounting and the principal accounting policies adopted are the same as those set out in note 2 to the consolidated tinancial
staternents except as noted below.

Investments in subsidiarles and joint ventures are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment. The carrying amounts of the
Company's investrnents ara reviewed at each reporting date to determing whethar there is an indication of iImpairment. If such an indication
exists, then tha asset's recoverable amount is estimated. Losses are recognised in the income statement and reflected in an allowance against
the carrying value, When a subsequent avant causes the amaount of impairment 'oss to decreass, tha dacrease in impairment loss is reversed
through the income staternent.

Intercompany balances are shown gross unless a right of set-off exists, Balances are valued at fair value at inception and are repayable on
demand. All intercompany loans are repayabie on demand and the Company has the ability to refinance any of its subsidiaries using equity
allowing the subsidiary to repay ahy recelvables owed to Synthomer pic.

Dividend distributions to the Company’s shareholders are recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders.

There are no significant accounting judgements and estimates applied in praparing the Company's account except for the Impairment testing of
amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings. When measuring the potential impairment of receivables from subsidiarigs, torward-looking
information based on assumptions for the future movement of ditfarant economic drivers are considered.

2 Profit for the year

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no separate profit and loss account or statement of comprehensive income is
presented for Synthomer plc. The Company reported a profit of £112.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 {2020: profit of
£193.5 miliion).

Auditor remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note 7 1o the consclidatad financial staternants.
The Cormpany had no employees during the current or prior year.
3 Investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures

2021 2020
© Jaint T Joint
Subsidiaries ventures Tota! Bubskjierias vermures Total
£m m £m £n £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 370.5 0.5 370 264.3 05 264.8
Additions 167.1 - 167.1 106.2 - 106.2
At 31 December ) 537.8 05 5381 3705 0.5 3o
Provisions
At 1 and 31 December January - {0.2) f02) - 0.2) {0.2)
Net book value . 7 L L
At 31 December j 537.6 0.3 5379 370.5 0.3 370.8

Datails of the Group's subsidiaries ang joint vertures are included in note 12 on pages 179 and 180.
In March 2021 the Comipany capitalised a loan receivable from Temple Figlds 514 Limited.
"he Diregtors consider the vaiue of investments to be supported by underlying assets.
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4 Property, plant and equipment 1’ o
R - S -
Freshold | &
Right of use andand  Plactand Pightcfuss  Freehold lang Plard and i &
bulldinge bulidings  eguipment Total buldings  and bulldings squipment Tota: L _@
£m £m m £m gm £m £m £m -]
Cost :
At t January 4.1 3.0 [1X -] 7.7 4.4 3.0 - 7.1 lL
Additions - - 0.1 0.1 - - 0.6 be -
Translers to other intangibloaseets 0 - - 0§ __ 08 = - = - = - - 727
At3iDecember ===~ 000 &1 30 o 72 4 30 6B 77 |3
|
Accumutated depreciation 1 g
A1 January 12 0.9 - 21 0.8 0.9 - 15 i
Chargefortheyesr ==~ _®F = - - T 08 _ - = _ _ 08 !
At 31 December 1808 - 23 12 o - 21 l._
Netbookvalwe ST
A1 31 December 2.2 21 04 4.4 29 21 06 56 : §
e}
Freehold land amaounting o £1.8 million (2020: £1.8 million} has not been depreciated. §
B
S Other intangible assets | B
20 2020 z
£m £m g
Cost 3
At 1 January - -
Additions 21 - 1
Transfers from Group undertakings 40.9 -
Transiers from property, plant end equipment . _ . . _ o8 - |
M:Decsmbor . _ &
Accumnulatod depreciation L-
At January - - N
Chargeforteyear o R LU,
At 31 December U = B,
Netbookvale o N o Z
At 31 December T ] ) a5 - W

The first phass of the Group's Pathway Programme systems transtormation project was sucesssfully deployed in May 2021, Now that the system
iz operationg!, costs have been transferrad to the Gompany.

In Apel 2021, the IFRS Interpretations Committee issued a new intarpretation ln retation to accounting for customisation and configuration costs
of cloud computing arrangements. Folfiowing a detailed review, it was confirmed that the new interpretation doas matarially impact the
accounting treatment for costs incurred on the Group's Pathway programma,

5

6 Debtors
2021 2020
£m £m
Amounts owsad by Group undenakings 1,275.0 1,443.4
Other receivables 0.6 14 :
Prepaymeris and aceruedincome .4y
1,270.7 1,445.8

ugnswuoul IR0

Amounts owed by Group undertakings are valued at fair value at inception and are repayable on demand.

Of the Company's amounts owed by Group undertakings, £148.0 million is impaired (2020: £149.0 milior). Future expected credit losses
on amounts receivable from subsidiaries are immaterial,
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Company financial staternents

Notes to the Company financial statements continued

31 December 2021

T Other creditors

2024 2080
£n £m
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 142.5 148.2
Ctner creditors 3.5 4.2
Accruals and deferred income L o 348 _1z24
180.8 164.8
Amounis owed 1o Group undertakings are valusd at fair value at inception and aré repayable on demand,
8 Borrowings
2021 2020
£m £m
Current borrowings
Overdrafts 10.4 34.4
Current borrowings - - - - 96
10.4 44.0
Non-current borrowings
Bank loans 187.9 186.2
€520m 3.875% senior unsecured ioan notes dus 1 July 20256 431.6 4577
619.5 643.9
Datails of borrowings are proviged in note 21 1o tha consolidated tinancia! staterments.
9 Financial instruments
The fair value of the financial instruments disclosed in the Compary’s statement of financial position are as folows!
2021 2020
berwing - Canying
Valustion amount amaunt wittin
categery in Falr value Cearrylng within scope Catrying  scope of (FRS
acoordance hierarchy amount ofIFRS 7 Fair vélue amount 7 Far value:
with IFRS 9 leve} £m £m £m £m £rr. £m
Other receivables AC Leveal 2 1,279.7 1,275.6 1,275.6 14456 1,445.6 14456
Cash and cash equivalents AC Level 2 248.9 2489 2489 42 6 42.6 42.6
Derivalives - ho hedge accounting FVTPL  Levei2 30 3g0 30 i4 14 1.4
Tota) assets ) 15316 15278 15275 1,489.6 14806  1,480.6
Borrowings AC  Level2 {629.9) 18629.9) {639.8) (687.9) 687.9) 1699.1)
Trade and other payables AC Level 2 (180.8) {180.6) (180.6j {164.8) (164.0) (1640}
Dervatives — no hedge accourting FYTPL  Level2 (9.9) {99 &) ne.e (38.8) 18.8)
Total liabliities (819.8) (819.6} (829.5) (871.5) B70.7) (8681.9)

1 AC: amortises cost, VTGO 1air value through other camprehensive Incame; FYTPL: tair value througn profit of loss

Furthar gisclosures on finangial instruments are inciuded in note 22 of the consalidated financial statemants.

10 Share capital and share premium

Details of *ne Company's share capital and share premiu, are shown in note 27 of the corsaolidated fnancia! staternems,

11 Guarantees and other financial commitments

The Company has provided finarcial guarantees amounting to £20.1 million (2020: £31.9 millicon} in respect of bank and othe- facilties of

subsidiaries and joint ventures.
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12 Subsidiaries and joint ventures
Principal Ownership
BCtvitY

Gountry of incorporetion and negﬁsteradaddress %
United KlnudonT-ﬁ' T T T
Central Road, Harlow, Essex, CM20 28H

Dimex Limited Hokding Gompany 100
Ecatto Limited Holding Company 100%
Harlow Chemical Company Limited Holding Comipany 1002
OMNOVA Performance Chermicals Limited Dormant 100
OMNOVA UK Holding Limited Dormant 100
Polymer atex Limited Holding Commpany T
Ravartex Limited Dormant 100°
S.A. (300) Limited Rolding Gompany 1002
Star Phama Limites Dormant 100
Super Sky Limited Heiding Company 502
Synthomer (UK) Limfted Trading 100
Synthomer Holdings Limited Helding Corrpany 1008
Synthomer Overseas Limited Holding Company 1002
Templa Figlds 510 Dormant 100
Temple Figlds 514 Limited Holding Comporny 1007
Templa Fields 515 Limited Helding Company 100
Temple Fislds 522 Limited Hoiding Company 1008
Temple Flelds 523 Limnited Holding Company 10or
Tempile Flelds 530 Linited Holding Company 100
Williarn Blythe Limited Trading 100
4E Pall Mall, London, SW1Y 5JG

Synthomer Trading Limited Trading 100
44 Espisnade, St Heller, Jersey, JE4 WG

Synthomer Jersey Limited - Dormant 1007
Australe T
£8 Glpps Street, Collingwood, Victoria, 3066

Syrihomer Ausiralia Pty Ltmnaa_ o Tradng 1 o0
Avstia T '
Industriepark, Pischelasdart, 3435

Smumsr Fustria GmbH Trading 100
China D ' o
Bulliding 53-58, 1000 Zhangheng Road, Zhangliang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong, Shanghat, 201203

Shanghal Synthomer Chernicals Co Lid Trading 100

& Hua Jing Road, China (Shanghal) Pilot Free Trade Zone, Shanghal,
200131
OMNOVA Performance Chemicals Traging

[{Shanghai) Co Ltd Trading 00
210 Thou Song Aoad, Skanghai Chemical Industry Park, Shanghal
201507
COMNOVA Shanghai Co Lid Trading 100
308 Jlangbin Acad, Xisogang United Dovelopment Zone, Mingbo
Economic & Technlce)] Develcpment Zone, Ningbo, 315803
OMNOVA Ningbo Co Litd Trading 100
56 XI Li Road, China {Shanghail Pilot Free Trade Zone, Shanghal,
200131
Eliokem Trading {Shanghal) Co I__td Trading 100
Czohch ;l:publlc T -
Tevarni 2003, Sokolov, 358 01
Synthomer AS Trading 100
¥ Celnici 1031/4, Prague, 110 00

Nonfredng 100

Syrihomer Hokdings (GZF) SR0.__

Principal  Ownership

Couniﬂ lnc-orpoL!on ?E _regla‘!iuda;l_mss ) activity %
Egypt T
indusiriel Zone 1-8, 10th of Remadam Cliy, Sharkiya

Synthomer SAE o Trading 83
Finland T T T
PQ Box 175, Oulu, Fi 80101

Syntho_rner !_:Inland Cy - i Dormant 100
e T — —
14 avenue des Tropiques, Z.A. de Courtaboeu! 2, Villejust, 919565
OMNOVA Sclutions France Holding SAS Holding Comoarny 100
OMNCVA Solutions International SAS Hoiding Company 100
OMNOVA Solutions SAS Trading 100
704 rue Pisrre o1 Mare Curie, Ribécourt-Draslincourt, 60170

Synthomesr France SAS Trading 100
8 Place de 1a Madelaine, Paris, 75008

Yule Catto Intermnationa! SA Non-Trading 100
Germany T T
Werrastrasse 10, Marl, 45768

Synthomer Dautschland GmbH Trading 100
Temple Fieids GmbH Non-Trading 100
Yule Catto Holdings GmbH Helding Company 100
ingla T ’
1001, Meadows, Sahar Plaza, Andheri-Kuria Road, Andheri East,
Mumbai 400068

OMNOVA India Trading LLP Trading 100
taty - T
Via dells Industria 8, Filago, B3, 24040

Synthomer S,rl. Trading 100
Via Morozzg 27, Sant’Albano Stura, CN, 12040

Synthomer Specialty Pesina Sa.l Trading 100
Piazza Cavour 3, Milanc, M1, 2012t

EQUEA italia S.rt. N_on-Tidingm 100

Melaysin
Unlt 16-2, Wisme Uoa Damansara {l, 6 Changkat Semantan, Damansara
Helghts, Kuaia Lumpur, 80490

Desa Baiduri Sdn Bha Property Leting 70
Kind Action (M) Sdn Bhd Trading 7o
FPolymarlatex San Bhd Trading 100
Quallty Polyrer Sdn Bha Trading 70
Revertex (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Trading 70
Rexplas Sdn Bhd Dormant 70
Synthomer Sdn Bhd Trading 1a0
Terra Sirmo_ni Sdn Bhd _____ Hokiing Comparry 100
Mauritiue o T T
c/o Citco (Mawritius} Limited, Towet A, 1 Cybercity, Ebene

OMNOVA Asia Facific Corp Holding Comparny 100
Standard Charted Tower, 19 Cybercity, Ebene

OMNOVAHadngUmted _ Holdiog Gompany 100

Synthomer plc l
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Compary financial statements

Notes to the Company financial statements continued

31 Dacember 2021

12 Subsidiaries and joint ventures continued
Principal  Ownershp

Couriry of Innurpglauon and registered addrass activity %
Netherlai;is ) - o .
1Jsseiatraat 41, Oss, 6147 KG

Synthamer BY Trading 100
Yulé Catto BV Non-Trading 100
Yule Catto Nederland BV Non-Trading 100
Speltdilk 15704} Halmond

Xyntra investments Y Non-Tradling 33
Portugal - - i 7 )
Rua Francisco Lyon de Castro, 28, 2725-387 Mem Mariing

OMNOVA Salutions Partugal SA Trading 100
{yon28 - Imobfiario SA Non-Trading 109
Saudi Arabia

27 Strest, 2ng rigl City, D 1472

Synthomer Middie East Company Ltd Tracting 48
Singapore a ) T

Ccean Financial Centre, 10 Collyer Quay, 048315

OMNOVA Parformance Chemicals Singapore

Pte Lta Trading 100
Spain T B )
Camino de Sangroniz 8, Sondika, 48160

Synthomer Asua SL Trading 100
Paseo da la Castellana 177, Madrid, 28046

OMNOVA Solutions (Espana) SL Non-Trading 100
Rambla de Catalunya 63, Barcelona, 98007

Yule Catto Spain SL Non-Tragiing 100
Sweden - 7

Tastarpsvagen 11, Kaviinge, 244 32

Synthomer Speciality Additives AB Trading 100

Synthomer plc
Annual Report 2021
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Princlpal Ownership
Couniry of Incorporaton and registensd addrass acilvity %

Thailand
111/7 Mog 2, Nikompattana District, Rayong, 21180

" OMNOVA Engineersd Surfaces (Thalland) Co

Lid TLadmg 100
vae B B i
Bullding 2101, Office $10122A2, Jabel All Fres Zone, Dubat

Synthomer Funcikna) Bolutions FZCO Trading 49

. East Wing 2, Office 201, Po Bax 54645, Dubai Alrport Free Zone, Dubal

" Bynthomer FZCQ o Trading 49"
usa - § -
1201 F o8 Streat NE, , GA, 30384
. Synthomer LLC Tracing 100
. Yule Catto Ing Non-Trading 100
160 Greentres Drive, Suite 101, Dover, DE, 19804
Syrthomet USA LG Trading 100
25435 Harvard Road, Beachwood, Ohlo 44122-8201
Dacoratve Products Theiland inc Holding Company 100
OMNOVA Dverseas Inc Non-Trading 100
OMNOVA Salutions iInc Trading 100
© OMNOVA Wallcovaring (USA) Inc Holding Gormpany 100
Synthemer NBR Solutions LLC Dormant 100
Vluinam ) )
8, 8th Streeot, Song Than industrial Park, Bl An
Synthomer Vietham Co Ltd Trading_ B0

i Notes

1. Joint ventures.

. 2. Harow Chamica Cormpany Limtted s Incorparatad n LK but s resldent in Netherlands.

3. Bhares diractly held by Synthorhar plt;
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Synthomer’s Laminates & Films }
businass provides decorative |
laminates for rasidential and
commercial interior environments.
The products include Innovative, durable :
surfaces for a wide range of applications — =
from kitchen to bathroom, retail to \ Q
recreational vehicles, end performance 3
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industrial applications, i ';g.‘
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Other information

Environment performance summary'®

2021 vs 2021 vs

2021 2020 2018 20200 201972
Energy consumption - matered {Q.))'
Totak
Enlarged Group 5,682,484 5.410,255 5,486,905 4.66% 3.58%
UKony _B3ESS4 340477 320741 CS6%  267%
Energy consumption by source h
Gas 2,574,818 2,422,643 2,479,253 B8.28% 3.85%
Light and Heavy Oils 28,207 26,364 30,354 0.26% 13.37%
Stearn and hot water {meterad) 892,030 B3B.4B5 933,805 £.39% -4.48%
Electricity (matered) 1,418,872 1426718 1,420,687  -055%  -0.13%
Coal o . . 750448 696,145 602,716 7.80%  24.51%
Speoitic energy consumption {GJftonne production}
Enlarged Group 3.16 3.09 3.08 2.36% 2.67%
UK only 4.31 3956 4.22 2.00% 2.13%
Refrigerant Releases — HCFC and others
Total refrigerant releases (tonne} 1,805 1,687 2,581 T01% -30.08%
Specific refrigarant releases (kgr/tonne production) 0.0010 0.0010 Q.05 4.66% -30.68%
Greenhouse Gas emissions (tonne COze)? 348
Total Scope 1 emissions
Enlarged Group 211,205 200,856 198,786 5.15% 6.25%
UK only 12,721 12,867 12,429 -1.13% 2.35%
Totai $cope 2 emissions — Hybrid approach
Entarged Group 83,352 178,017 213,258 -64.41%  -70.29%
UK only 5,893 6,266 5,308 5.868% 11.01%
Total Scope 2 amissions — Markst Base
Enlarged Group 89,914 182,701 227400 -61.73% -69.26%
UK only 5,893 6,265 5,308 5.96% 11.01%
Total Scope 2 emissions - Location Base
Enlarged Group 211,059 222317 225,542 -5.06% -6.42%
U only B 7,826 8,785 8387 -1091% -5.4E6%
Total GHG emissions
Enlarged Group 274,557 378,873 412,044 -2753% -33.37%
UK only ) . B B 18,613 19,133 17,737 -2.72% 4.04%
SpecHic GHG emisslone {tonne CO.e/tonne production)
Enlarged Group 0.153 0.216 0232 -29.92%  -33.95%
UK only 0.237 0.222 0.227 8.64% 4.39%
Greenhouse Gas emigsions by source {tonne CO2e)
From energy® 269,536 373,984 403570 -27.93% -3321%
From refrigerant rel 5,021 4,887 8,474 272%  -40.76%
Other emissgions to air
Suiphur Dioxide {SC,) {tonne) 122,202 132312 126322 -7.54%  -3.06%
Kilos SO,/tonne production 0.068 0.076 0.07 -9.67% -4.11%
Nitrous Oxides [NO,} (tonne)® 239822 236.186  207.398 1.64% 15.63%
Kilos NO,/tonne production 0,134 0.135 0117 0.69% 14.63%
Volatile Organic Compounds {(VOCs) (tonmne) 5956.286 504.932 6515.008 17.89% 16.59%
Kilos VOCs/tonne production 0.332 0.288 0.280 15.31% 14.56%

-‘ 82 l Synthomer plc
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2021 ve 2021 vs

2021 2020 2019 2020° 20174 I £
Water Usage g
Total water withdrawal {m?) - B 702459 7,241,228 777,805  B58% 068k | 3
Water usage by source () { ‘,3;
Public Potable Supply 1,712,987 1,683,337 1,811,582 1.76% -5.44% l
Raw Watar from River 3357138 2,978,227 2,701,844 12.72% 20.25% | _
Raw Water from Borehole 1,358,196 1,172,020 1,200,802 1588% 13.10%
Raw Watar form Canal 115,771 106,563 107,642 8.65% 7.55% ‘ o)
Raw Water from Other . B 1318,387 1301001 1265856  1.33%  4.15% ' &
Specific water withdrawal {m*/tonne production) - T T F' 8
Enlarged Group 4.38 418 404  620%  B8.58% ‘ s
Waste Managgmam l
Total Hazardous Waste {tonne) - 24,110 22116 23,908 8.01% 0B84% *° —
Hazardous waste by source (tonne) T T S
Recycled — energy recovary 2,931 3,044 3,777 -06T%  -22.41% g
Recycled — separated — reprocessed 5,065 6,418 5959 -21.09% -15.00% =
incinerated — nc energy recovery 2,738 1,611 1,430 69.94% 01.47% I §
Disposed by landfil 3,235 2,276 1,643 42.16% 9B81% =
Other 10,141 8567 11,100 18.38%  8.64% &
Specific hazardous waste (kg/tonne production) 13.46 12.63 13.47 6.62% -0.04% g
Tota! Non-Hazardous Waste {tonne) 17,128 16,783 24,310 2.04% 2055% i 3
Non-hazardous waste by source (tonna})
Recyclad — energy recovery 4,278 4,475 8,176  -4.41% -47.68% |
Recyclad — sapardted - reprocessed 2,436 2377 2,275 19.32% 24.66%
Incinerated — no energy recovery 22.31 17.03 186.00 30.97% -88.01% !
Disposed by landfill 8011 8,170 11,808 -1,.95% -32.16%
Other - municipality o - L 1,979 1745 1865  13.44% 8.11% |
Specific non-hazardous wasats (kg/tonne production) 9.56 0.68 13.70 -0.20% -3017%
Total Wasteftonne) - . 41,285 38900 48218 _ 600% -1448% [ -
Specific total waste (kg/tonne production) 7303 | 2221 2716 9.68%  1528% &
Total waste to landtill (kg) B , . _ 11,246 10445 13451 7.66% -16.39% | B
Specific waste to landfilt (kg/tonne production) 6.28 5.96 7.58 5.30% -17.12% ‘ g
Production volume {tonnea) 1,790,718 1,751,408 1,775,082 2.24% 0.88% f;—
Foctnote: | S
1. Data relatss to site usage of all tuels, exchrding transport of goods to and from site and the movement of thege vehicles on shte. internal ranspart on shie is included., g
2. Emissions to eir have been calculated from the usage of all fuels, excluding transport fuel. They thereforo include both direct emisslons and (ndirect emissions related to boughi-in =

slectrictty, steam, compressed air, cooling water &1¢., with the exception of transmission and distripution: kosses for alectricity ithese losees ere in Scope 3, this report is for Scope 1 and 2)

3. CC: aquivalent emissions Include contributions from CH, and N0 asscciated with combustion.

4. MM direct energy production from fossl! fuels has been aggregeted on a Group-wide basis and converted to COze by using the appropriate emissfons factors. No allowance has been madie |
tor possiblé country fo country vanation in calortlic value or COz emilesion factors for primary fuefs, Electrichty has been converted to CO:e on & country by country basis. Scope 2
emissions have been calculsted weing three different aporoaches:
Merkst Base: using market-based emisglons factors tor slectichy from suppllers of standard grid fuel mix tarlifs. In case of suppliers emesfons lectora not avallable, the resldual mix was ‘
usad for the EU sites and Location Base approach for non-EU sHes.
Location Base: using emissions factors from DEFRA {detaset published In June 2021) were used for UK grid electricity and for overseas grid electricity from 1he relevent IEA (iImternational
Energy Authority) ‘World CQz Emisaions from Fuel Combustion” databasas. In accordance with UK Govemment guldance, kactors used for 2021 reporting are based on 2015 validated
data.
Hybrid Approach: wging Location Base Info excep for sites wiltin the Group that purchase frenewable energy attribute certificates. Efectricity for thesa loeations has been given a GO-2
emissiong factor of zerd In calculating enargy-related ermissions totals,
The twiarid apgroach |s the approach that has besn used by the Group in pravicus years (o esteblish the basefine and the tergets. I order to be abls to compore historical periormance
yeer 1o year, the ttal emissione Scopea 1 and 2 have bean cetculatud using the hytrid approach.

5. The fotal COze figure id the total of tha CCr equivalent from enorgy and the refrigarant contribution.

6. NO, emissions are predominantly those frem combustion processes. The COa equivalent Global Wanming Fotential cortribution from thess releases 13 already Included in the CO; from the
snergy figure above.

7. 2020 data has been modifled sccording to the detaks provided in tha Erviconment section.

Percentage changes are calculatad irom the base data and may differ slightty from changes calculated from the data in the tablcs bacauss of rounding.

COur Stallingboraugh shie In the UK drawa elactricity from an adjacent waste (ncinerator, But sines the waste Is both ranewable and non-renswable, the site hae some associated emissions.

In 2021, the emisslons from this eleatricity were 0.438kg COqe per kKWh, bassd on our determination of the factars ysed for the Ciimate Change Agresmaent submission,

10.Environmental performance daty cavers all manufacturing operstions and maljor office/technicel centres. it excludes alt non-trading end office/sales-related subsidiaries and julnt ventures

datad on pages 176 and 187 of this Report,
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Other infarrnation

GRI Content Index

GRI Biandard Disclosure Page
GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Organieational profile

GRI 1621 o Name of the organfsauon ~ !ront cover
GR!102-2 . .ﬁ@wt:ss brands, products, . and servicas - B 3 7
GHL 102 3 Location of headquartera B B _back cover
GRl 102—4 Location o!‘gggr_atlons B L 3,26, 30, 34._3§
GRIi 102- 5 Ownership and lagal form ) _ _ o 127-128
GRI 1026 Markets served T _ _ . _ ) . BT
GRI102-7 Scale of the organisation _ _ . B 25
GRI102-8 N Infoqnation an employees and ot cther workers oniing data pack
GRI 102-9 Supply chain _ i} ~ 51-53
GRI 102-10 S|gniﬂcant changes to the o_rgamsa'uon and its supply chain o 922
GR( 10211 __ Pregautionary principie or approach - . 66 80
GRI1G2-12  Extarnal initiatives - ) _ 44, 47,54
GRJ 102- 13 - Membership of assoc:aﬂons 45
Sirategy ‘ o )

GRi 10214 Statement from senior c?eolsiqmmaker - L ___B—iS
Ethics and |htegnty o B .
GRI 102- 16 i Values, principles, standa@é. and norms of behaviour ) 62, 65-67
Governancl B . - _ _ _ .
GRI 102 -18 Governance structure 45, B4-93
Stakeholder angagement _ . .

GRI 102-40 } List of stakehpiqer groups - 46, 96-97
GRi 102-41 Collectlue bargaining | agreamants o _ ) _62
GRt 102 4z . ldentifymg and gelecting stakehaldars B 46, B6-97
GRl 102—43 ~ ~ Approach to stg!(eholggingagement 48, 96-97
GRI 102-44 Key fopics and concerns ralsed _ 48, 96-97
Reporﬂhg pracllca '

GRI *02-45 Entities included i m  the consoludated financial statamants 179-180, 183
GRI 102-46 Defining report content and topic Boundaries 179 180 183
GRi 102-47 List of material topics ) 46
GRI 102-48 Restatements of |nf0rmatlon B _ 50, 61,183
GRI 102-49 Changes in reportlng 59, 61,183
GRI102-50 Reporting perod . ~ 47
GRI102-51 Dafe of most recent repc)rt _ 47
GRI 102-52 Repomng cycle . 47
GRI102-53 ) Contact point for questrons regarojlng the report . 188
GRI 102- 54 Cl_aums ;Lfrrgpomq_g in accordance with the GRI S}andards ~ 47
GRI 10255 _ GRI content index - - . . 184185
GRI 102-56 External assurance A7
SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES

Strategy and Business . o o

GPRt 1031 i Exptanation of the material topic and its Boundary 44
GRI 103-2 The management approach and |ts components _ 44
GR{ 103-3 Evaluation of the management approach : 44
Risk Management . ) o

GRI 102-15 Kay impacts, risks, and opportunitios 46,6980
Governance and Compliance . _ N

GR! 103-1 - Explanation of the ma!ena! topu: and rts Boundary . - _ 48, 66 81
GRl 103-2 The management approach and its componen‘:s 45, 66 92
GRI 103-3 . Evaluation of the managemert apprcach 45, 65
Rasponmble and lnvnhrnd d management =~ ~

GRI 102-20 _ Executive-level responsibility for economic, enwronrnema and social top\cs 45
Stakeholder invoivement B
GFﬂmE -2 Consumng stakeholders on economnc envnrcnmemai ang somal topics 45._97
Compliance . B . _

GRI 2052 7 Communication and training about anti-corruption policies and procedures 66

1 84 Synthomer ple
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GR| Standard Disglosure
Ethics and Integrity ~ _ .
GRI 102117 Mechanisms for advice and concerns aboul ethics - B 66
People ) ; _ __ W_
GRE 1031 mj __ Exptanation of the material topic and its Boundary o B . ‘ 62-83
GHI 103-2 The management approach and fis components - - - - 6263
GRI 103-3 __ Evaluafion of the management approach o ’ v 62-64
Employment conditions o ) o -
GRI 4011 New employee hires and employea tumaver o i o 62
Employees diversity and Inclusion o L .
GRI 405-1 Dlverwty of governance bodles and employsss T B T T B4
Employees developmant, tralning and education o L g;
GRI 404-1 Average hours of fraining per year per employee o ' online data pack
GRI404-3 Perce_ntage of employeas receiving regular performance and career development raviews "~ onfine data pack
Communities support - N ] T
GRI 413—1_ ) - Cﬁaﬁons vg@t;ﬁnl-c;cal community engagement, impact assgssmants, an(-:_li‘t_isvelopmé_n-i programs- - 6768
Safety '
GRI 103-1 i Explanatlon of the material ioplc and its Boundary o 54
GR! 103-2 "~ Tnemanagement approachand ts components T " 64
GRI103-3  Evaluation of the management approach - ) N 55-57
Occupltlonal Haalth and Safety o ) L L
GRI 4031 Occupational heatth and safety management system - S ) &
GRI 4032 _ . Hazard identification, risk ‘assessment, and incident |nvesttgat|on T - N 55—277
GRI 403- -4 Worker participation, consuttation, and communicatuon on occupational b heafth and sefaty 5457
GRI403-5 Worlcar training on oecupational health and safaty ) o 65-57
GRL 403-6 Promotion of worker heaith - - 55
(?Rf 4038 " Workers covarad by an oocupatlonal health and safety management system e ’ o §14:57
GRI 403-9 . Work- ~related Injuriss ) 55
GRI 403-10 Work-related Il heatth _ _ T T s
Envlronment o B B - '
GRI 1031 - Explanatlon ‘of the matanal_ topic fopic and its Boundary - . 54, 58
GRI 103-2 The management approach and fts components - - 5859
GRI i03-3 i o Evaluatlon of the management approach ) o . T ._____ 58-61
Energy o " _
ﬁoaq Energy con consumpﬂon within the orgamsatron - . - 182
GRI328  Energyinfensity o S 59, 182
GRI302-4  Reduction of energy oonsumptlon ) ) B o . 59-80,182
Water - L o B o o o
GRIZ03-3  Water wm\drawaJ L . . 80E1,183
GRIS03-5  Waterconsumption e 60-61
Emigsions ] R ]
GRI3051 _ Direct (Scops 1) ) GHG er amlssmns o - ) ez
GRI305-2 __ Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions_ L B o — 182
GRIG54 _  _ GHG emissions intensity - N ' - . 80,182
GR 305-5 Reduction af GHG amisslons _ .. 80,182
GRI 305-7 __ Nttrogan oxides (NO,), sulphur omdes (S0,), and other significant air emnsslons - o e, 182
GRI30B-2 Waste by typs end disposaimethod "~ g11g3
Sustainable Value Chmn o L o
GRI 103_1 o Explanation of the material topic and Its Boundary o o o s
GRI103-2 __ The management approachand its components e 1-53
GRI 103-3 _ Evatuation of the management approach o -~ 5183
Procurement - . . e e e
GRI3081 _ New suppliers that were screened using environmantat criteria o 5
GRE 41 New suppliers that were scresned using soclal criteria B ' o &1
Product Safety S
GR} 416-1 ' _ Aﬁgg_sment of the health and safety impacts of product and ssrvice catagortes . 50
GRI4162 Incidents of non-compliance concerning the health and safety impacts of products and services 50
GRI 4171 o Heqmrements for product and service lnfofmatlon and labelling L .50
GRI 47-2 Incidents of non-compliance concerning product and service information and labelhng o . 50
GRIS7-3 Incidents of non-compliance concerning markefjng,c-;mmumoaﬂpni N
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Cther informatior

Glossary of terms

Capital
employed
CASE
CppP

cau

CH,
CHP

Conetant
currency

CRM
CSR
DEFRA
EBITDA

Eom -
EPDLA
EPS
ERP
ESG.
EUUS
FEED
P
FRC

Free Cash

Flow

186

AmorﬁsglLCOé-t_' o o
American Chemical Council

Annual General Meeting

Accedent and incident Managerment Svatem
Acrylate Mor Monamers .

Alemative Performance Measurés

Black Asian and Msnonty Ethnic
_Construction and Coatings

Carpet and Foam

Net asssts Bxc|udlng third party net debt

Coatings, Adhesives, Seslants and Elastomers
__ Carbon Disclosure Project

Cash h Generating Unit
Methane . B
Combined Heat and Power

_ Chemlcal Industries Association

Carbon Dioxide
Carbon Dioxide 8 equwalent
Refiects current year results for enstmg business

translatad at the prior year's average exchange rates,

and includes the impact of acquisitions
Customer Relationship Managemant system

Oorporatq Social Responsibility

Dspartment for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
EBITDA is caiculated as operating proht before
depreciation, amortisation and Spacial tems
Extraordinary General Mesimg

€uropsan Polymer Digpersion and Latex Assotiation
Eamings Per Share

Enterprise Resouroe Plann_un_g___

Erwvironmental, Socml and Goverhance

Europe, Middie East Afnca and Americas

Front End Engmeeﬁng Design _

Functlona\ Polymers o

F/nanczaJ Reporting Councit

"The mavement in net dett before hnanctng activities,
foreign exchange and the cash impact of Special
items, asset disposa s and business combinations
Financial Reporting Standard

Functiona! Solutions

Fair Value Through O Other Comprahenswe Income
Falr Value Through F Profrt or Loss

(‘ross Domestic Produc__t

Ganeral Data Protection Fiegulat;on

Greenhouse Gases

Gigajoule

Global Rgggdlng Initiative

Global Technology and lnnovahon
Globa' Warming Potentlal

i Heath & Protection

Human Resocurces
High Solids Styrene Butadiene Rubber
International Accourting Standard

Inter-Bank Offered Rates
International Council of Chemical Associations

Synthomaer plc

Arnual Report 2021
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Net debt

NO,

OEM
Oﬁeratlng
profit
PET

PE

PHA

PPE

PSA

PSE

SBR

sD
$DG

SHE
SHEMS

SOFR
SONIA
STEM
TCFD

The Code
TSR
UK GAAP
Underlying
performance

_ Mergers and Acqussmons

Origina Equnpmeﬁt Manufac‘lurer

' !nternatrlpnaf Financial Reportmg fStandards

Industrial Specialities

International Standards of Audmng
Keay Perfarmance Indicators
Kilotonne or 1,000 ‘(onnes (metnc)

London Inter- Banl} Offer Rates

" Leaming Managerent System

Lost Time Accident

Long Term Incentive Plan

Manufacturing Exc;eliencﬁem
Mavement Contral Graer
Managemggto_fchange
Malaysian Ringgits
Nitrous Oxida

Nitrile Butad llene & Rubber
Non Exect.mvs Director
Cash and cash equwalents together with short- and
long-term borrowings

Nitrogen Oxides.

Operating profit represents profit from contmumg
activities before finance costs and taxation

Profit Betore Tax

Performance Elastomers -

Process Hazard Assessment "
Prope_rty, Plant and Equwpmant
Pressure Sensttive Adhesive
Process Salety Events
Performance Share Plan
Permit to Work

PDvalnyl Chhonde

Research and Development

ResponSible Care

Return on Invested Capﬂal is caloulated as Group
Underlying oparating profit as a percentage of Group
capital employed

Styrene Butadiene Rubber

Sustainable Developmment

Sustainable Development Goals

_ Specific Crergy Consumption

Safety, Health and Environment
Safety, Health and Environment Management
System o
Secured Overnlght Financing Rate

Sterling Cvernight Index Average
Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathamatlcs
Taskforce on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
Tne UK Corporate Govemance Code
Total Shareholder Return
UK Generally Accepted Accounting Prectice
Underlying perfarmance reprasents the statutory
performance of the Group under IFRS, excluding

Special ltems

voCs

Volatile Organic Compounds



Other information

Historical financial summary

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 201 2015
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Revenue o 25205 1,644,2 1,459.1 1,618.9 14802 10857 870.1
Underlying performance (a)
EBITDA ®) 6222 2594 177.9 181.0 1762 160.1 125.0
Operating profit {c) 4508 1896 125.8 1421 139.0 130.2 1029
Finance costs i (30.8) (28.5) ©.6) 7.0 {9.0) {8.0) {7.6)
Profit before taxation 4201 160.0 118.2 1351 1300 1222 953
Basic earrings per share (1) 752p 28.9p 25.3p 30.7p 28.7p 26.4p 201p
Dividends per share {f 80.0p 11.6p 4.0ps 12.2p 11.4p 10.5p 8.0p
Dividend cover - A 25 25 63 25 25 2.5 25
IFRS e _ N . . .
Operating profit © 3085 56.4 110.6 128.7 954 1447 80.3
Finance costs o ) @46} (@381 (101 84 B B8O 78
Profit before taxation N 2839 203 100.5 120.3 86.4 1367 728
Baslc earnings per share (f) 48.3p 0.7p 21.5p 27.4p 20.3p 30.3p 1B8.6p
Dividends per share M 30.0p 11.6p 4.0p% 12.2p 11.40 10.5p 8.0p
Dividend cover - B 1.6 01 54 22 18 29 2.1
Met debt 5 1142 462.2) 207 (214.0) {180.5) {150.3) 8.1
Capital expenditure (e} 822 53.8 £9.1 75.7 0.3 45.6 22.8

Notes:

(8} As presented in the consolidatad income statement on page 137,
(b} As defined In the accounting policies NGte and reconcked in note .

{c) As defined In the accounting policies nole on page 142,

() As reconciled in note 21.

(&) As presented on the consolidated cash ‘tow statemer.

() Dividends and earnings per share figures for 2018 and prior have boen restated to refiect the bonus faclor of 1.0713 arising from the rights issue which completed on 29 July 2019.
(g) The proposed final 2019 dividend was cancelied 1o preserva cesh, liguidity and balance sheet strengih st the onget of COVID-19 In March 2020,
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Other information

Advisers

Registered office . Registrars

Synthomer plc " Computershare Investor Services plc
Temple Figlds Lochsice House

Harlow _ 7 Lochside Avenue

Essex i Edinburgh Park

Cv20 28H Edinburgh

Registered number 98381 . EH12 by

Company Secretary Independent aud itors

Richard Atkinson PricewaterhcuseCoopers LLP
Bankers ‘ Eg:;tg;ed Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Barclays Bank plc

Citibank . Bolicitors

Commerzbank AG ! Herbert Smith Freehifis LLP

HSBC Bank pic . Sguire Pation Boggs {(UK) LLP
Santander

Goldman Sachs |

SEB [

Joint stockbrokers
Barclays Bank pic and Numis Securities |td
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